

## THIRTIETH DAY

St. Paul, Minnesota, Friday, April 3, 2009

The Senate met at 8:15 a.m. and was called to order by the President.

**CALL OF THE SENATE**

Senator Pogemiller imposed a call of the Senate. The Sergeant at Arms was instructed to bring in the absent members.

Prayer was offered by Senator Gary W. Kubly.

The roll was called, and the following Senators answered to their names:

|           |              |        |                |           |
|-----------|--------------|--------|----------------|-----------|
| Anderson  | Fobbe        | Limmer | Olson, G.      | Scheid    |
| Bakk      | Foley        | Lourey | Pappas         | Skoe      |
| Berglin   | Frederickson | Lynch  | Pogemiller     | Skogen    |
| Cohen     | Higgins      | Marty  | Prettner Solon | Sparks    |
| Day       | Jungbauer    | Metzen | Rest           | Stumpf    |
| Dibble    | Kelash       | Moua   | Rummel         | Vickerman |
| Doll      | Kubly        | Murphy | Saltzman       | Wiger     |
| Fischbach | Langseth     | Olseen | Saxhaug        |           |

The President declared a quorum present.

The reading of the Journal was dispensed with and the Journal, as printed and corrected, was approved.

**EXECUTIVE AND OFFICIAL COMMUNICATIONS**

The following communications were received.

April 1, 2009

The Honorable James P. Metzen  
President of the Senate

Dear President Metzen:

Please be advised that I have received, approved, signed and deposited in the Office of the Secretary of State, S.F. No. 236.

Sincerely,  
Tim Pawlenty, Governor

April 1, 2009

The Honorable Margaret Anderson Kelliher  
Speaker of the House of Representatives

The Honorable James P. Metzen  
President of the Senate

I have the honor to inform you that the following enrolled Acts of the 2009 Session of the State Legislature have been received from the Office of the Governor and are deposited in the Office of the Secretary of State for preservation, pursuant to the State Constitution, Article IV, Section 23:

| S.F.<br>No. | H.F.<br>No. | Session Laws<br>Chapter No. | Time and<br>Date Approved<br>2009 | Date Filed<br>2009 |
|-------------|-------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------------|--------------------|
| 236         |             | 8                           | 11:29 a.m. April 1                | April 1            |
|             | 1797        | 9                           | 11:31 a.m. April 1                | April 1            |

Sincerely,  
Mark Ritchie  
Secretary of State

### MESSAGES FROM THE HOUSE

Mr. President:

I have the honor to announce the adoption by the House of the following Senate Concurrent Resolution, herewith returned:

**Senate Concurrent Resolution No. 7:** A Senate concurrent resolution relating to adjournment for more than three days.

Albin A. Mathiowetz, Chief Clerk, House of Representatives

Returned April 2, 2009

Mr. President:

I have the honor to announce the adoption by the House of the following Senate Concurrent Resolution, herewith returned, AS AMENDED by the House, in which amendments the concurrence of the Senate is respectfully requested:

**Senate Concurrent Resolution No. 6:** A Senate concurrent resolution adopting Permanent Joint Rules of the Senate and House of Representatives.

Senate Concurrent Resolution No. 6 is herewith returned to the Senate.

30TH DAY]

FRIDAY, APRIL 3, 2009

1473

Albin A. Mathiowetz, Chief Clerk, House of Representatives

Returned April 2, 2009

Senator Pogemiller moved that Senate Concurrent Resolution No. 6 be laid on the table. The motion prevailed.

Mr. President:

I have the honor to announce the passage by the House of the following Senate Files, herewith returned: S.F. Nos. 95 and 832.

Albin A. Mathiowetz, Chief Clerk, House of Representatives

Returned April 2, 2009

### REPORTS OF COMMITTEES

Senator Pogemiller moved that the Committee Report at the Desk be now adopted. The motion prevailed.

#### **Senator Scheid from the Committee on Commerce and Consumer Protection, to which was referred**

**S.F. No. 518:** A bill for an act relating to commerce; regulating debt management and debt settlement services; amending Minnesota Statutes 2008, sections 332A.02, subdivisions 5, 8, 9, 10, 13, by adding a subdivision; 332A.04, subdivision 6; 332A.08; 332A.10; 332A.11, subdivision 2; 332A.14; proposing coding for new law as Minnesota Statutes, chapter 332B.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert:

"Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 45.011, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **Scope.** As used in chapters 45 to 83, 155A, 332, 332A, 332B, 345, and 359, and sections 325D.30 to 325D.42, 326B.802 to 326B.885, and 386.61 to 386.78, unless the context indicates otherwise, the terms defined in this section have the meanings given them.

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 46.04, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **General.** The commissioner of commerce, referred to in chapters 46 to 59A, and ~~chapter 332A, and 332B~~ as the commissioner, is vested with all the powers, authority, and privileges which, prior to the enactment of Laws 1909, chapter 201, were conferred by law upon the public examiner, and shall take over all duties in relation to state banks, savings banks, trust companies, savings associations, and other financial institutions within the state which, prior to the enactment of chapter 201, were imposed upon the public examiner. The commissioner of commerce shall exercise a constant supervision, either personally or through the examiners herein provided for, over the books and affairs of all state banks, savings banks, trust companies, savings associations, credit unions, industrial loan and thrift companies, and other financial institutions doing business within this state; and shall, through examiners, examine each financial institution at

least once every 24 calendar months. In satisfying this examination requirement, the commissioner may accept reports of examination prepared by a federal agency having comparable supervisory powers and examination procedures. With the exception of industrial loan and thrift companies which do not have deposit liabilities and licensed regulated lenders, it shall be the principal purpose of these examinations to inspect and verify the assets and liabilities of each and so far investigate the character and value of the assets of each institution as to determine with reasonable certainty that the values are correctly carried on its books. Assets and liabilities shall be verified in accordance with methods of procedure which the commissioner may determine to be adequate to carry out the intentions of this section. It shall be the further purpose of these examinations to assess the adequacy of capital protection and the capacity of the institution to meet usual and reasonably anticipated deposit withdrawals and other cash commitments without resorting to excessive borrowing or sale of assets at a significant loss, and to investigate each institution's compliance with applicable laws and rules. Based on the examination findings, the commissioner shall make a determination as to whether the institution is being operated in a safe and sound manner. None of the above provisions limits the commissioner in making additional examinations as deemed necessary or advisable. The commissioner shall investigate the methods of operation and conduct of these institutions and their systems of accounting, to ascertain whether these methods and systems are in accordance with law and sound banking principles. The commissioner may make requirements as to records as deemed necessary to facilitate the carrying out of the commissioner's duties and to properly protect the public interest. The commissioner may examine, or cause to be examined by these examiners, on oath, any officer, director, trustee, owner, agent, clerk, customer, or depositor of any financial institution touching the affairs and business thereof, and may issue, or cause to be issued by the examiners, subpoenas, and administer, or cause to be administered by the examiners, oaths. In case of any refusal to obey any subpoena issued under the commissioner's direction, the refusal may at once be reported to the district court of the district in which the bank or other financial institution is located, and this court shall enforce obedience to these subpoenas in the manner provided by law for enforcing obedience to subpoenas of the court. In all matters relating to official duties, the commissioner of commerce has the power possessed by courts of law to issue subpoenas and cause them to be served and enforced, and all officers, directors, trustees, and employees of state banks, savings banks, trust companies, savings associations, and other financial institutions within the state, and all persons having dealings with or knowledge of the affairs or methods of these institutions, shall afford reasonable facilities for these examinations, make returns and reports to the commissioner of commerce as the commissioner may require; attend and answer, under oath, the commissioner's lawful inquiries; produce and exhibit any books, accounts, documents, and property as the commissioner may desire to inspect, and in all things aid the commissioner in the performance of duties.

Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 46.05, is amended to read:

**46.05 SUPERVISION OVER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS.**

Every state bank, savings bank, trust company, savings association, debt management services provider, debt settlement services provider, and other financial institutions shall be at all times under the supervision and subject to the control of the commissioner of commerce. If, and whenever in the performance of duties, the commissioner finds it necessary to make a special investigation of any financial institution under the commissioner's supervision, and other than a complete examination, the commissioner shall make a charge therefor to include only the necessary costs thereof. Such a fee shall be payable to the commissioner on the commissioner's making a request for payment.

Sec. 4. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 46.131, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. **Assessment authority.** Each bank, trust company, savings bank, savings association, regulated lender, industrial loan and thrift company, credit union, motor vehicle sales finance company, debt management services provider, debt settlement services provider, and insurance premium finance company organized under the laws of this state or required to be administered by the commissioner of commerce shall pay into the state treasury its proportionate share of the cost of maintaining the Department of Commerce.

Sec. 5. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 325E.311, subdivision 6, is amended to read:

Subd. 6. **Telephone solicitation.** "Telephone solicitation" means any voice communication over a telephone line for the purpose of encouraging the purchase or rental of, or investment in, property, goods, or services, whether the communication is made by a live operator, through the use of an automatic dialing-announcing device as defined in section 325E.26, subdivision 2, or by other means. Telephone solicitation does not include communications:

(1) to any residential subscriber with that subscriber's prior express invitation or permission; or

(2) by or on behalf of any person or entity with whom a residential subscriber has a prior or current business or personal relationship.

Telephone solicitation also does not include communications if the caller is identified by a caller identification service and the call is:

(i) by or on behalf of an organization that is identified as a nonprofit organization under state or federal law, unless the organization is a debt management services provider defined in section 332A.02 or a debt settlement services provider defined in section 332B.02;

(ii) by a person soliciting without the intent to complete, and who does not in fact complete, the sales presentation during the call, but who will complete the sales presentation at a later face-to-face meeting between the solicitor who makes the call and the prospective purchaser; or

(iii) by a political party as defined under section 200.02, subdivision 6.

Sec. 6. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 332A.02, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 2a. **Advertise.** "Advertise" means to solicit business through any means or medium.

Sec. 7. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 332A.02, subdivision 5, is amended to read:

Subd. 5. **Controlling or affiliated party.** "Controlling or affiliated party" means any person or entity that controls or is controlled, directly or indirectly ~~controlling, controlled by,~~ or is under common control with another person. Controlling or affiliated party includes, but is not limited to, employees, officers, independent contractors, corporations, partnerships, and limited liability corporations.

Sec. 8. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 332A.02, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 5a. **Creditor.** "Creditor" means any party:

(1) named by the debtor as a creditor in the debt management services plan or debt management services agreement;

(2) that acquires or holds the debt; or

(3) to whom interactions with the debt management services is assigned in relation to the debt listed in the debt management services plan or debt management services agreement.

Sec. 9. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 332A.02, subdivision 8, is amended to read:

Subd. 8. **Debt management services provider.** "Debt management services provider" means any person offering or providing debt management services to a debtor domiciled in this state, regardless of whether or not a fee is charged for the services and regardless of whether the person maintains a physical presence in the state. This term includes any person to whom duties under a debt management services agreement or debt management services plan are delegated, and does not include services performed by the following when engaged in the regular course of their respective businesses and professions:

(1) attorneys at law, escrow agents, accountants, broker-dealers in securities;

(2) state or national banks, credit unions, trust companies, savings associations, title insurance companies, insurance companies, and all other lending institutions duly authorized to transact business in Minnesota, ~~provided no fee is charged for the service;~~

(3) persons who, as employees on a regular salary or wage of an employer not engaged in the business of debt management, perform credit services for their employer;

(4) public officers acting in their official capacities and persons acting as a debt management services provider pursuant to court order;

(5) any person while performing services incidental to the dissolution, winding up, or liquidation of a partnership, corporation, or other business enterprise;

(6) the state, its political subdivisions, public agencies, and their employees;

(7) ~~credit unions and~~ collection agencies, ~~provided no fee is charged for the service~~ that the services are provided to a creditor;

(8) "qualified organizations" designated as representative payees for purposes of the Social Security and Supplemental Security Income Representative Payee System and the federal Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1990, Public Law 101-508;

(9) accelerated mortgage payment providers. "Accelerated mortgage payment providers" are persons who, after satisfying the requirements of sections 332.30 to 332.303, receive funds to make mortgage payments to a lender or lenders, on behalf of mortgagors, in order to exceed regularly scheduled minimum payment obligations under the terms of the indebtedness. The term does not include: (i) persons or entities described in clauses (1) to (8); (ii) mortgage lenders or servicers, industrial loan and thrift companies, or regulated lenders under chapter 56; or (iii) persons authorized to make loans under section 47.20, subdivision 1. For purposes of this clause and sections 332.30 to 332.303, "lender" means the original lender or that lender's assignee, whichever is the current mortgage holder;

(10) trustees, guardians, and conservators; and

(11) debt settlement services providers.

Sec. 10. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 332A.02, subdivision 9, is amended to read:

Subd. 9. **Debt management services.** "Debt management services" means the provision of any ~~one or more of the following services in connection with debt incurred primarily for personal, family, or household services:~~

~~(1) managing the financial affairs of an individual by distributing income or money to the individual's creditors;~~

~~(2) receiving funds for the purpose of distributing the funds among creditors in payment or partial payment of obligations of a debtor; or~~

~~(3) adjusting, prorating, pooling, or liquidating the indebtedness of a debtor whereby a debt management services provider assists in managing the financial affairs of a debtor by distributing periodic payments to the debtor's creditors from funds that the debt management services provider receives from the debtor and where the primary purpose of the services is to effect repayment of debt incurred primarily for personal, family, or household services.~~

Any person so engaged or holding out as so engaged is deemed to be engaged in the provision of debt management services regardless of whether or not a fee is charged for such services.

Sec. 11. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 332A.02, subdivision 10, is amended to read:

Subd. 10. **Debtor.** "Debtor" means the person for whom the debt ~~prorating service is~~ management services are performed.

Sec. 12. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 332A.02, subdivision 13, is amended to read:

Subd. 13. **Debt settlement services provider.** "Debt settlement services provider" means ~~any person engaging in or holding out as engaging in the business of negotiating, adjusting, or settling debt incurred primarily for personal, family, or household purposes without holding or receiving the debtor's funds or personal property and without paying the debtor's funds to, or distributing the debtor's property among, creditors has the meaning given in section 332B.02, subdivision 11. The term shall not include persons listed in subdivision 8, clauses (1) to (10).~~

Sec. 13. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 332A.04, subdivision 6, is amended to read:

Subd. 6. **Right of action on bond.** If the registrant has failed to account to a debtor or distribute to the debtor's creditors the amounts required by this chapter ~~and, or has failed to perform any of the services promised in the debt management services agreement between the debtor and registrant, the registrant is in default.~~ The debtor or the debtor's legal representative or receiver, the commissioner, or the attorney general, shall have, in addition to all other legal remedies, a right of action in the name of the debtor on the bond or the security given under this section, for loss suffered by the debtor, not exceeding the face amount of the bond or security, and without the necessity of joining the registrant in the suit or action based on the default.

Sec. 14. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 332A.08, is amended to read:

### **332A.08 DENIAL OF REGISTRATION.**

The commissioner, with notice to the applicant by certified mail sent to the address listed on the application, may deny an application for a registration upon finding that the applicant:

(1) has submitted an application required under section 332A.04 that contains incorrect, misleading, incomplete, or materially untrue information. An application is incomplete if it does not include all the information required in section 332A.04;

(2) has failed to pay any fee or pay or maintain any bond required by this chapter, or failed to comply with any order, decision, or finding of the commissioner made under and within the authority of this chapter;

(3) has violated any provision of this chapter or any rule or direction lawfully made by the commissioner under and within the authority of this chapter;

(4) or any controlling or affiliated party has ever been convicted of a crime or found civilly liable for an offense involving moral turpitude, including forgery, embezzlement, obtaining money under false pretenses, larceny, extortion, conspiracy to defraud, or any other similar offense or violation, or any violation of a federal or state law or regulation in connection with activities relating to the rendition of debt management services or any consumer fraud, false advertising, deceptive trade practices, or similar consumer protection law;

(5) has had a registration or license previously revoked or suspended in this state or any other state or the applicant or licensee has been permanently or temporarily enjoined by any court of competent jurisdiction from engaging in or continuing any conduct or practice involving any aspect of the debt management services provider business; or any controlling or affiliated party has been an officer, director, manager, or shareholder owning more than a ten percent interest in a debt management services provider whose registration has previously been revoked or suspended in this state or any other state, or who has been permanently or temporarily enjoined by any court of competent jurisdiction from engaging in or continuing any conduct or practice involving any aspect of the debt management services provider business;

(6) has made any false statement or representation to the commissioner;

(7) is insolvent;

(8) refuses to fully comply with an investigation or examination of the debt management services provider by the commissioner;

(9) has improperly withheld, misappropriated, or converted any money or properties received in the course of doing business;

(10) has failed to have a trust account with an actual cash balance equal to or greater than the sum of the escrow balances of each debtor's account;

(11) has defaulted in making payments to creditors on behalf of debtors as required by agreements between the provider and debtor; ~~or~~

(12) has used fraudulent, coercive, or dishonest practices, or demonstrated incompetence, untrustworthiness, or financial irresponsibility in this state or elsewhere; or

(13) has been shown to have engaged in a pattern of failing to perform the services promised.

Sec. 15. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 332A.10, is amended to read:

**332A.10 WRITTEN DEBT MANAGEMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT.**



Subdivision 1. **Written agreement required.** (a) A debt management services provider may not perform any debt management services or receive any money related to a debt management services plan until the provider has obtained a debt management services agreement that contains all terms of the agreement between the debt management services provider and the debtor.

(b) A debt management services agreement must:

- (1) be in writing, dated, and signed by the debt management services provider and the debtor;
- (2) conspicuously indicate whether or not the debt management services provider is registered with the Minnesota Department of Commerce and include any registration number; and
- (3) be written in the debtor's primary language if the debt management services provider advertised in that language.

(c) The registrant must furnish the debtor with a copy of the signed contract upon execution.

Subd. 2. **Actions prior to written agreement.** No person may provide debt management services for a debtor or execute a debt management services agreement unless the person first has:

(1) provided the debtor individualized counseling and educational information that, at a minimum, addresses managing household finances, managing credit and debt, budgeting, and personal savings strategies;

(2) prepared in writing and provided to the debtor, in a form that the debtor may keep, an individualized financial analysis and a proposed debt management services plan listing the debtor's known debts with specific recommendations regarding actions the debtor should take to reduce or eliminate the amount of the debts, including written disclosure that debt management services are not suitable for all debtors and that there are other ways, including bankruptcy, to deal with indebtedness;

(3) made a determination supported by an individualized financial analysis that the debtor can reasonably meet the requirements of the proposed debt management services plan and that there is a net tangible benefit to the debtor of entering into the proposed debt management services plan; and

(4) prepared, in a form the debtor may keep, a written list identifying all known creditors of the debtor that the provider reasonably expects to participate in the plan and the creditors, including secured creditors, that the provider reasonably expects not to participate; and

(5) disclosed, in addition to the written disclosure on the agreement required under subdivision 1, whether or not the debt management services provider is registered with the Minnesota Department of Commerce and any registration number.

Subd. 3. **Required terms provisions.** (a) Each debt management services agreement must contain the following ~~terms~~ provisions, which must be disclosed prominently and clearly in bold print on the front page of the agreement, segregated by bold lines from all other information on the page:

(1) the origination fee amount to be paid by the debtor and whether all or a portion of the initial origination fee amount is refundable or nonrefundable;

(2) the monthly fee amount or percentage to be paid by the debtor; and

(3) the total amount of fees reasonably anticipated to be paid by the debtor over the term of the agreement.

(b) Each debt management services agreement must also contain the following:

(1) a disclosure that if the amount of debt owed is increased by interest, late fees, over the limit fees, and other amounts imposed by the creditors, the length of the debt management services agreement will be extended and remain in force and that the total dollar charges agreed upon may increase at the rate agreed upon in the original contract agreement;

(2) a prominent statement describing the terms upon which the debtor may cancel the contract as set forth in section 332A.11;

(3) a detailed description of all services to be performed by the debt management services provider for the debtor;

(4) the debt management services provider's refund policy; and

(5) the debt management services provider's principal business address and the name and address of its agent in this state authorized to receive service of process.

Subd. 4. **Prohibited terms.** The following terms shall not be included in the debt management services agreement:

(1) a hold harmless clause;

(2) a confession of judgment, or a power of attorney to confess judgment against the debtor or appear as the debtor in any judicial proceeding;

(3) a waiver of the right to a jury trial, if applicable, in any action brought by or against a debtor;

(4) an assignment of or an order for payment of wages or other compensation for services;

(5) a provision in which the debtor agrees not to assert any claim or defense arising out of the debt management services agreement;

(6) a waiver of any provision of this chapter or a release of any obligation required to be performed on the part of the debt management services provider; or

(7) a mandatory arbitration or choice of law clause.

Subd. 5. **New debt management services agreements; modification of existing agreements.**

(a) Separate and additional debt management services agreements that comply with this chapter may be entered into by the debt management services provider and the debtor provided that no additional ~~initial~~ origination fee may be charged by the debt management services provider.

(b) Any modification of an existing debt management services agreement, including any increase in the number or amount of debts included in the debt management ~~service~~ services agreement, must be in writing and signed by both parties, except that the signature of the debtor is not required if:

(1) a creditor is added to or deleted from a debt management services agreement at the request of the debtor or a debtor voluntarily increases the amount of a payment, provided the debt management services provider must provide an updated payment schedule to the debtor within seven days; or

(2) the payment amount to a creditor in the agreement increases by \$10 or less and the total payment amount to all creditors increases a total of \$20 or less as a result of incorrect or incomplete information provided by the debtor regarding the amount of debt owed a creditor, provided the debt management services provider must notify the debtor of the increase within seven days.

No fees, charges, or other consideration may be demanded from the debtor for the modification, other than an increase in the amount of the monthly maintenance fee established in the original debt management services agreement.

Sec. 16. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 332A.11, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. **Notice of debtor's right to cancel.** A debt management services agreement must contain, on its face, in an easily readable typeface type immediately adjacent to the space for signature by the debtor, the following notice: "Right To Cancel: You have the right to cancel this contract at any time on ten days' written notice."

Sec. 17. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 332A.14, is amended to read:

### **332A.14 PROHIBITIONS.**

~~A registrant~~ (a) No debt management services provider shall not:

(1) purchase from a creditor any obligation of a debtor;

(2) use, threaten to use, seek to have used, or seek to have threatened the use of any legal process, including but not limited to garnishment and repossession of personal property, against any debtor while the debt management services agreement between the registrant and the debtor remains executory;

(3) advise, counsel, or encourage a debtor to stop paying a creditor until a debt management services plan is in place, or imply, infer, encourage, or in any other way indicate, that it is advisable to stop paying a creditor;

(4) sanction or condone the act by a debtor of ceasing payments or imply, infer, or in any manner indicate that the act of ceasing payments is advisable or beneficial to the debtor;

~~(4)~~ (5) require as a condition of performing debt management services the purchase of any services, stock, insurance, commodity, or other property or any interest therein either by the debtor or the registrant;

~~(5)~~ (6) compromise any debts unless the prior written approval of the debtor has been obtained to such compromise and unless such compromise inures solely to the benefit of the debtor;

~~(6)~~ (7) receive from any debtor as security or in payment of any fee a promissory note or other promise to pay or any mortgage or other security, whether as to real or personal property;

~~(7)~~ (8) lend money or provide credit to any debtor if any interest or fee is charged, or directly or indirectly collect any fee for referring, advising, procuring, arranging, or assisting a consumer in obtaining any extension of credit or other debtor service from a lender or debt management services provider;

~~(8)~~ (9) structure a debt management services agreement that would result in negative

amortization of any debt in the plan;

~~(9)~~ (10) engage in any unfair, deceptive, or unconscionable act or practice in connection with any service provided to any debtor;

~~(10)~~ (11) offer, pay, or give any material cash fee, gift, bonus, premium, reward, or other compensation to any person for referring any prospective customer to the registrant or for enrolling a debtor in a debt management services plan, or provide any other incentives for employees or agents of the debt management services provider to induce debtors to enter into a debt management services plan;

~~(11)~~ (12) receive any cash, fee, gift, bonus, premium, reward, or other compensation from any person other than the debtor or a person on the debtor's behalf in connection with activities as a registrant, provided that this paragraph does not apply to a registrant which is a bona fide nonprofit corporation duly organized under chapter 317A or under the similar laws of another state;

~~(12)~~ (13) enter into a contract with a debtor unless a thorough written budget analysis indicates that the debtor can reasonably meet the requirements of the financial adjustment plan and will be benefited by the plan;

~~(13)~~ (14) in any way charge or purport to charge or provide any debtor credit insurance in conjunction with any contract or agreement involved in the debt management services plan;

~~(14)~~ (15) operate or employ a person who is an employee or owner of a collection agency or process-serving business; or

~~(15)~~ (16) solicit, demand, collect, require, or attempt to require payment of a sum that the registrant states, discloses, or advertises to be a voluntary contribution to a debt management services provider or designee from the debtor.

#### Sec. 18. [332B.02] DEFINITIONS.

Subdivision 1. **Scope.** Unless a different meaning is clearly indicated by the context, for the purposes of this chapter, the terms defined in this section have the meanings given them.

Subd. 2. **Advertise.** "Advertise" means to solicit business through any means or medium.

Subd. 3. **Aggregate debt.** "Aggregate debt" means the total of principal and interest that is owed by the debtor to the creditors at the time of execution of the debt settlement agreement.

Subd. 4. **Attorney general.** "Attorney general" means the attorney general of the state of Minnesota.

Subd. 5. **Commissioner.** "Commissioner" means the commissioner of commerce.

Subd. 6. **Controlling or affiliated party.** "Controlling or affiliated party" means any person or entity that controls or is controlled, directly or indirectly, or is under common control with another person. Controlling or affiliated party includes, but is not limited to, employees, officers, independent contractors, corporations, partnerships, and limited liability corporations.

Subd. 7. **Creditor.** "Creditor" means any party:

(1) named by the debtor as a creditor in the debt settlement services plan or debt settlement

services agreement;

(2) that acquires or holds the debt; or

(3) to whom interactions with the debt settlement services is assigned in relation to the debt listed in the debt settlement services plan or debt settlement services agreement.

Subd. 8. **Debt settlement services.** "Debt settlement services" means any one or more of the following activities:

(1) offering to provide advice, or offering to act or acting as an intermediary between a debtor and one or more of the debtor's creditors, where the primary purpose of the advice or action is to obtain a settlement for less than the full amount of debt, whether in principal, interest, fees, or other charges, incurred primarily for personal, family, or household purposes including, but not limited to, offering debt negotiation, debt reduction, or debt relief services; or

(2) advising, encouraging, assisting, or counseling a debtor to accumulate funds in an account for future payment of a reduced amount of debt to one or more of the debtor's creditors.

Any person so engaged or holding out as so engaged is deemed to be engaged in the provision of debt settlement services, regardless of whether or not a fee is charged for such services.

Subd. 9. **Debt settlement services agreement.** "Debt settlement services agreement" means the written contract between the debt settlement services provider and the debtor.

Subd. 10. **Debt settlement services plan.** "Debt settlement services plan" means the debtor's individualized package of debt settlement services set forth in the debt settlement services agreement.

Subd. 11. **Debt settlement services provider.** "Debt settlement services provider" means any person offering or providing debt settlement services to a debtor domiciled in this state, regardless of whether or not a fee is charged for the services and regardless of whether the person maintains a physical presence in the state. The term includes any person to whom duties under a debt management agreement or debt management plan are delegated, a lead generator, or any other person acting as an intermediary or referral agent between a debtor and an entity actually providing debt settlement services. The term shall not include persons listed in section 332A.02, subdivision 8, clauses (1) to (10).

Subd. 12. **Lead generator.** "Lead generator" means a person that solicits debtors to engage in debt settlement through mail, in-person, or electronic Web site-based solicitation or any other means.

Subd. 13. **Person.** "Person" means an individual, firm, partnership, association, or corporation.

Subd. 14. **Registrant.** "Registrant" means any person registered by the commissioner pursuant to this chapter and, where used in conjunction with an act or omission required or prohibited by this chapter, shall mean any person performing debt settlement services.

Sec. 19. **[332B.03] REQUIREMENT OF REGISTRATION.**

On or after August 1, 2009, it is unlawful for any person, whether or not located in this state, to operate as a debt settlement services provider or provide debt settlement services including, but not limited to, offering, advertising, or executing or causing to be executed any debt settlement

services or debt settlement services agreement, except as authorized by law, without first becoming registered as provided in this chapter. Debt settlement services providers may continue to provide debt settlement services without complying with this chapter to those debtors who entered into a contract to participate in a debt settlement services plan prior to August 1, 2009, but may not enter into a debt settlement services agreement with a debt on or after August 1, 2009, without complying with this chapter.

Sec. 20. **[332B.04] REGISTRATION.**

Subdivision 1. **Form.** Application for registration to operate as a debt settlement services provider in this state must be made in writing to the commissioner, under oath, in the form prescribed by the commissioner, and must contain:

- (1) the full name of each principal of the entity applying;
- (2) the address, which must not be a post office box, and the telephone number and, if applicable, the e-mail address, of the applicant;
- (3) consent to the jurisdiction of the courts of this state;
- (4) the name and address of the registered agent authorized to accept service of process on behalf of the applicant or appointment of the commissioner as the applicant's agent for purposes of accepting service of process;
- (5) disclosure of:
  - (i) whether any controlling or affiliated party has ever been convicted of a crime or found civilly liable for an offense involving moral turpitude, including forgery, embezzlement, obtaining money under false pretenses, larceny, extortion, conspiracy to defraud, or any other similar offense or violation, or any violation of a federal or state law or regulation in connection with activities relating to the rendition of debt settlement services or involving any consumer fraud, false advertising, deceptive trade practices, or similar consumer protection law;
  - (ii) any judgments, private or public litigation, tax liens, written complaints, administrative actions, or investigations by any government agency against the applicant or any officer, director, manager, or shareholder owning more than five percent interest in the applicant, unresolved or otherwise, filed or otherwise commenced within the preceding ten years;
  - (iii) whether the applicant or any person employed by the applicant has had a record of having defaulted in the payment of money collected for others, including the discharge of debts through bankruptcy proceedings; and
  - (iv) whether the applicant's license or registration to provide debt settlement services in any other state has ever been revoked or suspended;
- (6) a copy of the applicant's standard debt settlement services agreement that the applicant intends to execute with debtors;
- (7) proof of accreditation; and
- (8) any other information and material as the commissioner may require.

The commissioner may, for good cause shown, temporarily waive any requirement of this subdivision.

Subd. 2. **Term and scope of registration.** A registration is effective until 11:59 p.m. on December 31 of the year for which the application for registration is filed or until it is surrendered by the registrant or revoked or suspended by the commissioner. The registration is limited solely to the business of providing debt settlement services.

Subd. 3. **Fees; bond.** An applicant for registration as a debt settlement services provider must comply with the requirements of section 332A.04, subdivisions 3, 4, and 5.

Subd. 4. **Right of action on bond.** If the registrant has failed to account to a debtor, or has failed to perform any of the services promised, the registrant is in default. The debtor or the debtor's legal representative or receiver, the commissioner, or the attorney general, shall have, in addition to all other legal remedies, a right of action in the name of the debtor on the bond or the security given under this section, for loss suffered by the debtor, not exceeding the face amount of the bond or security, and without the necessity of joining the registrant in the suit or action based on the default.

Subd. 5. **Registrant list.** The commissioner must maintain a list of registered debt settlement services providers. The list must be made available to the public in written form upon request and on the Department of Commerce Web site.

Subd. 6. **Renewal of registration.** Each year, each registrant under the provisions of this chapter must not, more than 60 nor less than 30 days before its registration is to expire, apply to the commissioner for renewal of its registration on a form prescribed by the commissioner. The application must be signed by the registrant under penalty of perjury, contain current information on all matters required in the original application, and be accompanied by a payment of \$250. The registrant must maintain a continuous surety bond that satisfies the requirements of section 332A.04, subdivision 4. The renewal is effective for one year. The commissioner may, for good cause shown, temporarily waive any requirement of this section.

Sec. 21. **[332B.05] DENIAL, SUSPENSION, REVOCATION, OR NONRENEWAL OF REGISTRATION.**

Subdivision 1. **Denial.** The commissioner, with notice to the applicant by certified mail sent to the address listed on the application, may deny an application for a registration for any of the reasons specified under section 332A.08.

Subd. 2. **Suspension, revocation, or nonrenewal.** The commissioner may suspend, revoke, or refuse to renew any registration issued under this chapter, or may levy a civil penalty under section 45.027, or any combination of actions, if the debt settlement services provider or any controlling or affiliated person has committed any act or omission for which the commissioner could have refused to issue an initial registration.

Subd. 3. **Procedure.** Suspension, revocation, or nonrenewal must be upon notice and under the conditions prescribed in section 332A.09, subdivision 1. Upon issuance of an order suspending, revoking, or refusing to renew a registration, the commissioner:

- (1) shall follow the procedure established in section 332A.09, subdivision 2; and
- (2) may follow the procedure specified in section 332A.09, subdivision 3, concerning the

appointment of a receiver for funds of sanctioned registrants.

**Sec. 22. [332B.06] WRITTEN DEBT SETTLEMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT; DISCLOSURES; TRUST ACCOUNT.**

Subdivision 1. **Written agreement required.** (a) A debt settlement services provider may not perform, or impose any charges or receive any payment for, any debt settlement services until the provider and the debtor have executed a debt settlement services agreement that contains all terms of the agreement between the debt settlement services provider and the debtor and complies with all the applicable requirements of this chapter.

(b) A debt settlement services agreement must:

(1) be in writing, dated, and signed by the debt settlement services provider and the debtor;

(2) conspicuously indicate whether or not the debt settlement services provider is registered with the Minnesota Department of Commerce and include any registration number; and

(3) be written in the debtor's primary language if the debt settlement services provider advertises in that language.

(c) The registrant must furnish the debtor with a copy of the signed contract upon execution.

Subd. 2. **Actions prior to executing a written agreement.** No person may provide debt settlement services for a debtor or execute a debt settlement services agreement unless the person first has:

(1) provided the debtor individualized counseling that, at a minimum, addresses managing household finances, managing credit and debt, budgeting, personal savings strategies, and a detailed description of all the various ways to reduce or eliminate the debt, which must, at a minimum, include bankruptcy; and

(2) prepared in writing and provided to the debtor, in a form the debtor may keep, an individualized financial analysis of the debtor's financial circumstances, including income and liabilities, and made a determination supported by the individualized financial analysis that:

(i) the debt settlement plan proposed for addressing the debt is suitable for the individual debtor;

(ii) the debtor can reasonably meet the requirements of the proposed debt settlement services plan; and

(iii) there is a net tangible benefit to the debtor of entering into the proposed debt settlement services plan.

Subd. 3. **Determination concerning creditor participation.** (a) Before executing a debt settlement services agreement or providing any services, a debt settlement services provider must make a determination, supported by sufficient bases, which creditors listed by the debtor are reasonably likely, and which are not reasonably likely, to participate in the debt settlement services plan set forth in the debt settlement services agreement.

(b) A debt settlement provider must make personal or written contact with a creditor to determine the reasonable likelihood of participation or nonparticipation of the creditor, unless the



debt settlement services provider:

(1) has written confirmation from the creditor that the creditor and the debt settlement services provider are currently engaged in negotiations to settle a debt for another debtor; or

(2) can produce evidence that the provider and the creditor have entered into a settlement of a debt within the prior six months.

(c) A debt settlement services provider has a defense against a claim that no sufficient basis existed to make a determination that a creditor was likely to participate if, at the time the determination was made, the debt settlement services provider can produce:

(1) written confirmation from the creditor that the creditor and the debt settlement services provider were currently engaged in negotiations to settle a debt for another debtor; or

(2) evidence that the provider and the creditor had entered into a settlement of a debt within the six months prior to the date of the determination.

(d) The debt settlement services provider must notify the debtor as soon as practicable after the provider has made a determination on the likelihood of participation or nonparticipation of all the creditors listed for inclusion in the debt settlement services agreement or debt settlement services plan. If not all creditors listed in the debt settlement services agreement are reasonably likely to participate in the debt settlement services plan, the debt settlement services provider must obtain the written authorization from the debtor to proceed with the debt settlement services agreement without the participation of all listed creditors.

Subd. 4. **Disclosures.** (a) A person offering to provide or providing debt settlement services must disclose both orally and in writing whether or not the person is registered with the Minnesota Department of Commerce and any registration number.

(b) No person may provide debt settlement services unless the person first has provided, both orally and in writing, on a single sheet of paper, separate from any other document or writing, the following verbatim notice:

#### **WARNING**

We CANNOT GUARANTEE that you will successfully reduce or eliminate your debt.

If you stop paying your creditors, there is a strong likelihood some or all of the following may happen:

- (1) YOUR WAGES OR BANK ACCOUNT MAY STILL BE GARNISHED.
- (2) YOU MAY STILL BE CONTACTED BY CREDITORS.
- (3) YOU MAY STILL BE SUED BY CREDITORS for the money you owe.
- (4) FEES, INTEREST, AND OTHER CHARGES WILL CONTINUE TO MOUNT UP DURING THE (INSERT NUMBER) MONTHS THIS PLAN IS IN EFFECT.

Even if we do settle your debt, YOU MAY STILL HAVE TO PAY TAXES on the amount forgiven.

Your credit rating may be adversely affected.

(c) The heading, "WARNING," must be in bold, underlined, 28-point type, and the remaining text must be in 14-point type, with a double space between each statement.

(d) The disclosure and notice required under this subdivision must be provided in the debtor's primary language if the debt settlement provider advertises in that language.

Subd. 5. **Required information.** (a) Each debt settlement services agreement must contain the following information, which must be disclosed prominently and clearly in bold print on the front page of the agreement, segregated by bold lines from all other information on the page:

(1) the origination fee amount to be paid by the debtor and whether all or part of the origination fee is refundable or nonrefundable; and

(2) the service fee formula and the total amount of service fees reasonably anticipated to be paid by the debtor over the term of the agreement.

(b) Each debt settlement services agreement must also contain the following:

(1) a prominent statement describing the terms upon which the debtor may cancel the contract as set forth in section 332B.07;

(2) a detailed description of all services to be performed by the debt settlement services provider for the debtor;

(3) the debt settlement services provider's refund policy;

(4) the debt settlement services provider's principal business address, which must not be a post office box, and the name and address of its agent in this state authorized to receive service of process; and

(5) the name of each creditor the debtor has listed and the aggregate debt owed to each creditor that will be the subject of settlement.

Subd. 6. **Prohibited terms.** A debt settlement services agreement may not contain any of the terms prohibited under section 332A.10, subdivision 4.

Subd. 7. **New debt settlement services agreements; modifications of existing agreements.** (a) Separate and additional debt settlement services agreements that comply with this chapter may be entered into by the debt settlement services provider and the debtor, provided that no additional origination fee may be charged by the debt settlement services provider.

(b) Any modification of an existing debt settlement services agreement, including any increase in the number or amount of debts included in the debt settlement services agreement, must be in writing and signed by both parties. No fee may be charged to modify an existing agreement.

Subd. 8. **Funds held in trust.** Debtor funds may be temporarily held in trust for the purpose of writing exchange checks. If the registrant temporarily holds debtor funds, the registrant must maintain a separate trust account, except that the registrant may commingle debtor funds with the registrant's own funds, in the form of an interest fund, to the extent necessary to ensure maintenance of a minimum balance, if the financial institution at which the trust account is held requires a

minimum balance to avoid the assessment of fees or penalties for failure to maintain a minimum balance.

**Sec. 23. [332B.07] RIGHT TO CANCEL.**

Subdivision 1. **Debtor's right to cancel.** (a) A debtor has the right to cancel a debt settlement services agreement without cause at any time upon ten days' written notice to the debt settlement services provider.

(b) In the event of cancellation, the debt settlement services provider must, within ten days of the cancellation, notify the debtor's creditors of the cancellation and provide a refund of all funds paid by or for the debtor to the debt settlement services provider, except for the origination fee specified in section 332B.09, subdivision 1.

Subd. 2. **Notice of debtor's right to cancel.** A debt settlement services agreement must contain, on its face, in an easily readable type immediately adjacent to the space for signature by the debtor, the following notice: "Right to Cancel: You have the right to cancel this contract at any time on ten days' written notice."

Subd. 3. **Automatic termination.** Upon the payment of all listed or settled debts and fees, the debt settlement services agreement must automatically terminate, and all unexpended funds paid by or for the debtor to the debt settlement services provider must be immediately returned to the debtor.

Subd. 4. **Debt settlement services provider's right to cancel.** (a) A debt settlement services provider may cancel a debt settlement services agreement with good cause upon 30 days' written notice to the debtor.

(b) Within ten days after the cancellation, the debt settlement services provider must:

(1) notify the debtor's creditors of the cancellation; and

(2) return to the debtor all funds paid by or for the debtor to the debt settlement provider, except for the origination fee specified in section 332B.09, subdivision 1.

**Sec. 24. [332B.08] BOOKS, RECORDS, AND INFORMATION.**

Subdivision 1. **Records retention; annual report.** Every registrant must keep, and use in the registrant's business, such books, accounts, and records, including electronic records, as will enable the commissioner to determine whether the registrant is complying with this chapter and the rules, orders, and directives adopted by the commissioner under this chapter. Every registrant must preserve such books, accounts, and records for at least six years after making the final entry on any transaction recorded therein. Examinations of the books, records, and method of operations conducted under the supervision of the commissioner shall be done at the cost of the registrant. The cost must be assessed as determined under section 46.131.

Subd. 2. **Annual report.** On or before March 15 of each calendar year, each registrant must file a report with the commissioner containing such information as the commissioner may require about the preceding calendar year. The report must be in a form the commissioner prescribes.

Subd. 3. **Statements to debtors.** (a) Each registrant must:

(1) maintain and make available records and accounts that will enable each debtor to ascertain

the amounts paid to the creditors of the debtor. A statement showing amounts received from the debtor, disbursements to each creditor, amounts that any creditor has agreed to as payment in full for any debt owed the creditor by the debtor, charges deducted by the registrant, and other information as the commissioner may prescribe, must be furnished by the registrant to the debtor at least monthly and, in addition, upon any cancellation or termination of the contract;

(2) include in the statement furnished to debtors a list of all activities conducted pursuant to the contract, including the number and description of communications with each creditor during the reporting period; and

(3) prepare and retain in the file of each debtor a written analysis of the debtor's income and expenses to substantiate that the plan of payment is feasible and practicable.

(b) Each debtor must have reasonable access, without cost, by electronic or other means, to information in the registrant's files applicable to the debtor. These statements, records, and accounts must otherwise remain confidential, except for duly authorized state and government officials, the commissioner, the attorney general, the debtor, and the debtor's representative and designees.

**Sec. 25. [332B.09] FEES; WITHDRAWAL OF CREDITORS.**

Subdivision 1. **Origination fee.** A debt settlement services provider may charge a nonrefundable origination fee of not more than \$500.

Subd. 2. **Monthly fee.** In addition to the origination fee under subdivision 1, a debt settlement services provider may, beginning in the fourth month after the execution of the debt settlement services agreement, charge a monthly fee of up to \$50:

(1) for the first two years that the debt settlement services agreement is in effect if the aggregate debt is \$20,000 or less; or

(2) for the first three years that the debt settlement services agreement is in effect if the aggregate debt is more than \$20,000.

Subd. 3. **Settlement fee.** (a) A debt settlement services provider may charge a settlement fee equal to ten percent of the savings actually negotiated by the debt settlement services provider. The savings shall be calculated as the difference between the aggregate debt that is stated in the debt settlement services agreement at the time of its execution and total amount that the debtor actually pays to settle all the debts stated in the debt settlement services agreement, provided that only savings resulting from concessions actually negotiated by the debt settlement services provider may be counted.

(b) If a written offer of settlement is made by a creditor but rejected by the debtor, a debt settlement services provider may charge a settlement fee equal to ten percent of the potential savings. The potential savings shall be calculated as the difference between the aggregate debt that is stated in the debt settlement services agreement at the time of its execution and written settlement offer from the creditor, provided that only savings resulting from proposed concessions actually negotiated by the debt settlement services provider may be counted.

(c) No other fees may be charged.

Subd. 4. **Collection of fees.** No debt settlement services provider may claim, demand, charge,

collect, or receive any compensation until after the debt settlement service provider has fully performed each and every service the provider has contracted to perform or represented would be performed or as otherwise provided in this section.

Subd. 5. **Withdrawal of creditor.** Whenever a creditor withdraws from a debt settlement services plan, the debt settlement services provider must promptly notify the debtor of the withdrawal, identify the creditor, and inform the debtor of the right to cancel the debt settlement services agreement. In no case may this notice be provided more than 15 days after the debt settlement services provider learns of the creditor's decision to withdraw from a plan.

Subd. 6. **Timely notification of settlement.** A debt settlement services provider must notify the debtor within 24 hours of settlement of a debt with a creditor.

**Sec. 26. [332B.10] PROHIBITIONS.**

No debt settlement services provider shall:

- (1) engage in any activity, act, or omission prohibited under section 332A.14;
- (2) promise, guarantee, or directly or indirectly imply, infer, or in any manner represent that any debt will be settled prior to the presentation to the debtor of an offer by the creditors participating in the debt settlement plan to settle;
- (3) misrepresent the timing of negotiations with creditors;
- (4) imply, infer, or in any manner represent that:
  - (i) fees, interest, and other charges will not continue to accrue prior to the time debts are settled;
  - (ii) wages or bank accounts are not subject to garnishment;
  - (iii) creditors will not continue to contact the debtor;
  - (iv) the debtor is not subject to legal action; and
  - (v) the debtor will not be subject to tax consequences for the portion of any debts forgiven;
- (5) execute a power of attorney or any other agreement, oral or written, express or implied, that extinguishes or limits the debtor's right at any time to contract or communicate with any creditor or the creditor's right at any time to communicate with the debtor;
- (6) exercise or attempt to exercise a power of attorney after an individual has terminated an agreement;
- (7) state, imply, infer, or, in any other manner, indicate that entering into a debt settlement services agreement or settling debts will either have no effect on, or improve, the debtor's credit, credit rating, and credit score;
- (8) challenge a debt without the written consent of the debtor;
- (9) make any false or misleading claim regarding a creditor's right to collect a debt;
- (10) falsely represent that the debt settlement services provider can negotiate better settlement terms with a creditor than the debtor alone can negotiate;

(11) provide or offer to provide legal advice or legal services unless the person providing or offering to provide legal advice is licensed to practice law in the state;

(12) misrepresent that it is authorized or competent to furnish legal advice or perform legal services; and

(13) settle a debt or lead an individual to believe that a payment to a creditor is in settlement of a debt to the creditor unless, at the time of settlement, the individual receives a certification from the creditor that the payment is in full settlement of the debt.

**Sec. 27. [332B.11] ADVERTISEMENT OF DEBT SETTLEMENT SERVICES PLAN.**

No debt settlement services provider may engage in any activity proscribed by section 332A.16, or represent, claim, imply, or infer that secured debts may be settled.

**Sec. 28. [332B.12] DEBT SETTLEMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT RESCISSION.**

Any debtor has the right to rescind any debt settlement services agreement with a debt settlement services provider that commits a material violation of this chapter. On rescission, all fees paid to the debt settlement services provider or any other person other than creditors of the debtor must be returned to the debtor entering into the debt settlement services agreement within ten days of rescission of the debt settlement services agreement.

**Sec. 29. [332B.13] ENFORCEMENT; REMEDIES.**

Subdivision 1. **Violation as deceptive practice.** A violation of any of the provisions of this chapter is considered an unfair or deceptive trade practice under section 8.31, subdivision 1. A private right of action under section 8.31 by an aggrieved debtor is in the public interest.

Subd. 2. **Private right of action.** (a) A debt settlement provider who fails to comply with any of the provisions of this chapter is liable under this section in an individual action for the sum of:

(1) actual, incidental, and consequential damages sustained by the debtor as a result of the failure; and

(2) statutory damages of up to \$5,000.

(b) A debt settlement provider who fails to comply with any of the provisions of this chapter is liable to the named plaintiffs under this section in a class action for the amount that each named plaintiff could recover under paragraph (a), clause (1), and to the other class members for such amount as the court may allow.

(c) In determining the amount of statutory damages, the court shall consider, among other relevant factors:

(1) the frequency, nature, and persistence of noncompliance;

(2) the extent to which the noncompliance was intentional; and

(3) in the case of a class action, the number of debtors adversely affected.

(d) A plaintiff or class successful in a legal or equitable action under this section is entitled to the costs of the action, plus reasonable attorney fees.

Subd. 3. **Injunctive relief.** A debtor may sue a debt settlement services provider for temporary or permanent injunctive or other appropriate equitable relief to prevent violations of any provision of this chapter. A court must grant injunctive relief on a showing that the debt settlement services provider has violated any provision of this chapter, or in the case of a temporary injunction, on a showing that the debtor is likely to prevail on allegations that the debt settlement services provider violated any provision of this chapter.

Subd. 4. **Remedies cumulative.** The remedies provided in this section are cumulative and do not restrict any remedy that is otherwise available. The provisions of this chapter are not exclusive and are in addition to any other requirements, rights, remedies, and penalties provided by law.

Subd. 5. **Public enforcement.** The attorney general shall enforce this chapter under section 8.31.

Sec. 30. **[332B.14] INVESTIGATIONS.**

At any reasonable time, the commissioner may examine the books and records of every registrant and of any person engaged in the business of providing debt settlement services. The commissioner, once during any calendar year, may require the submission of an audit prepared by a certified public accountant of the books and records of each registrant. If the registrant has, within one year previous to the commissioner's demand, had an audit prepared for some other purpose, this audit may be submitted to satisfy the requirement of this section. The commissioner may investigate any complaint concerning violations of this chapter and may require the attendance and sworn testimony of witnesses and the production of documents."

Delete the title and insert:

"A bill for an act relating to commerce; regulating debt management and debt settlement services; amending Minnesota Statutes 2008, sections 45.011, subdivision 1; 46.04, subdivision 1; 46.05; 46.131, subdivision 2; 325E.311, subdivision 6; 332A.02, subdivisions 5, 8, 9, 10, 13, by adding subdivisions; 332A.04, subdivision 6; 332A.08; 332A.10; 332A.11, subdivision 2; 332A.14; proposing coding for new law as Minnesota Statutes, chapter 332B."

And when so amended the bill do pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Judiciary. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

## **INTRODUCTION AND FIRST READING OF SENATE BILLS**

The following bills were read the first time.

### **Senators Pariseau, Skogen, Gimse, Dille and Saxhaug introduced—**

**S.F. No. 2033:** A bill for an act relating to natural resources; establishing a program to allow public walk-in access on private property; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 97B.001, subdivision 7; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 86A.

Referred to the Committee on Environment and Natural Resources.

**Senator Erickson Ropes introduced—**

**S.F. No. 2034:** A bill for an act relating to capital improvements; appropriating money for energy efficiency improvements in the Caledonia City Hall; authorizing the sale and issuance of state bonds.

Referred to the Committee on Finance.

**Senator Erickson Ropes introduced—**

**S.F. No. 2035:** A bill for an act relating to capital improvements; appropriating money for sewer and water infrastructure in Caledonia; authorizing the sale and issuance of state bonds.

Referred to the Committee on Finance.

**Senator Erickson Ropes introduced—**

**S.F. No. 2036:** A bill for an act relating to capital improvements; appropriating money for the wastewater treatment plant in Caledonia; authorizing the sale and issuance of state bonds.

Referred to the Committee on Finance.

**Senator Murphy introduced—**

**S.F. No. 2037:** A bill for an act relating to the arts; appropriating money to Independent School District No. 813, Lake City.

Referred to the Committee on Finance.

**Senator Berglin introduced—**

**S.F. No. 2038:** A bill for an act relating to human services finance; restoring certain hospital payment unallotments; appropriating money.

Referred to the Committee on Finance.

**Senator Berglin introduced—**

**S.F. No. 2039:** A bill for an act relating to cultural heritage; appropriating money for a cultural fitness and wellness center in the East Phillips Cultural and Community Center.

Referred to the Committee on Finance.

**Senator Sparks introduced—**

**S.F. No. 2040:** A bill for an act relating to natural resources; appropriating money for the Shooting Star Trail.

Referred to the Committee on Finance.



**Senator Foley introduced—**

**S.F. No. 2041:** A bill for an act relating to real estate; establishing homelessness prevention and safer homes and neighborhoods accounts; requiring a report; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 82.50, by adding subdivisions.

Referred to the Committee on Commerce and Consumer Protection.

**Senator Pappas introduced—**

**S.F. No. 2042:** A bill for an act relating to public safety; providing housing and support services for victims of human trafficking; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 299A.795; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 299A.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

**Senator Torres Ray introduced—**

**S.F. No. 2043:** A bill for an act relating to natural resources; appropriating money for metropolitan regional parks.

Referred to the Committee on Finance.

**Senator Rummel introduced—**

**S.F. No. 2044:** A bill for an act relating to education finance; appropriating money for environmentally responsible arts education projects.

Referred to the Committee on Finance.

**Senator Rummel introduced—**

**S.F. No. 2045:** A bill for an act relating to environment; prohibiting the use of coal tar; requiring notification and planning; appropriating money; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 116.

Referred to the Committee on Environment and Natural Resources.

**Senator Chaudhary introduced—**

**S.F. No. 2046:** A bill for an act relating to natural resources; providing for local grant program to acquire and manage aquatic management areas; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 2008, sections 84.975, subdivision 1; 86A.05, subdivision 14; 97C.02.

Referred to the Committee on Environment and Natural Resources.

**Senators Moua and Vickerman introduced—**

**S.F. No. 2047:** A bill for an act relating to agriculture; appropriating money for a grant to reimburse expenses for certain farmers incurring crop damages.

Referred to the Committee on Finance.

### MOTIONS AND RESOLUTIONS

Senator Bonoff moved that her name be stricken as a co-author to S.F. No. 1274. The motion prevailed.

Senator Rest moved that the names of Senators Scheid and Dibble be added as co-authors to S.F. No. 1274. The motion prevailed.

Senator Scheid moved that her name be stricken as chief author, shown as a co-author, and the name of Senator Lynch be added as chief author to S.F. No. 1478. The motion prevailed.

Senator Prettner Solon moved that the name of Senator Anderson be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 2029. The motion prevailed.

Senator Wiger moved that S.F. No. 18, No. 2 on General Orders, be stricken and re-referred to the Committee on Rules and Administration. The motion prevailed.

### RECESS

Senator Pogemiller moved that the Senate do now recess subject to the call of the President. The motion prevailed.

After a brief recess, the President called the Senate to order.

### MOTIONS AND RESOLUTIONS - CONTINUED

Without objection, remaining on the Order of Business of Motions and Resolutions, the Senate reverted to the Orders of Business of Reports of Committees and Second Reading of Senate Bills.

### REPORTS OF COMMITTEES

Senator Pogemiller moved that the Committee Reports at the Desk be now adopted. The motion prevailed.

**Senator Scheid from the Committee on Commerce and Consumer Protection, to which was referred**

**S.F. No. 806:** A bill for an act relating to financial institutions; regulating payday lending; providing penalties and remedies; amending Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 47.60, subdivision 6; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 47.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert:

"Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 47.60, subdivision 4, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. **Books of account; annual report; schedule of charges; disclosures.** (a) A lender filing under subdivision 3 shall keep and use in the business books, accounts, and records as will enable the commissioner to determine whether the filer is complying with this section.

(b) A lender filing under subdivision 3 shall annually on or before March 15 file a report to the commissioner giving the information the commissioner reasonably requires concerning the business and operations during the preceding calendar year, including the information required to be reported under section 47.601, subdivision 5.

(c) A lender filing under subdivision 3 shall display prominently in each place of business a full and accurate schedule, to be approved by the commissioner, of the charges to be made and the method of computing those charges. A lender shall furnish a copy of the contract of loan to a person obligated on it or who may become obligated on it at any time upon the request of that person. This is in addition to any disclosures required by the federal Truth in Lending Act, United States Code, title 15.

(d) A lender filing under subdivision 3 shall, upon repayment of the loan in full, mark indelibly every obligation signed by the borrower with the word "Paid" or "Canceled" within 20 days after repayment.

(e) A lender filing under subdivision 3 shall display prominently, in each licensed place of business, a full and accurate statement of the charges to be made for loans made under this section. The statement of charges must be displayed in a notice, on plastic or other durable material measuring at least 12 inches by 18 inches, headed "CONSUMER NOTICE REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF MINNESOTA." The notice shall include, immediately above the statement of charges, the following sentence, or a substantially similar sentence approved by the commissioner: "These loan charges are higher than otherwise permitted under Minnesota law. Minnesota law permits these higher charges only because short-term small loans might otherwise not be available to consumers. If you have another source of a loan, you may be able to benefit from a lower interest rate and other loan charges." The notice must not contain any other statement or information, unless the commissioner has determined that the additional statement or information is necessary to prevent confusion or inaccuracy. The notice must be designed with a type size that is large enough to be readily noticeable and legible. The form of the notice must be approved by the commissioner prior to its use.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective for reports made for the 2009 calendar year.

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 47.60, subdivision 6, is amended to read:

Subd. 6. **Penalties for violation.** ~~A person~~ An individual or entity or the ~~person's~~ entity's members, officers, directors, agents, and employees who violate or participate in the violation of any of the provisions of this section ~~may be~~ is liable in the same manner as in section ~~56.19~~ 47.601. A violation of any provision of this section is considered to be a violation of section 325F.69 and all remedies of section 8.31 are available for such a violation.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective August 1, 2009, and applies to loans made on or after that date.

Sec. 3. **[47.601] CONSUMER SHORT-TERM LOANS.**

Subdivision 1. **Definitions.** (a) For the purposes of this section, the terms defined in this

subdivision have the meanings given.

(b) "Borrower" means an individual who obtains a consumer short-term loan primarily for personal, family, or household purposes.

(c) "Commissioner" means the commissioner of commerce.

(d) "Consumer short-term loan" means a loan to a borrower which has a principal amount, or an advance on a credit limit, of \$1,000 or less and requires a minimum payment within 60 days of loan origination or credit advance of more than 25 percent of the principal balance or credit advance. For the purposes of this section, each new advance of money to a borrower under a consumer short-term loan agreement constitutes a new consumer short-term loan. A "consumer short-term loan" does not include any transaction made under chapter 325J or a loan made by a consumer short-term lender where, in the event of default on the loan, the sole recourse for recovery of the amount owed, other than a lawsuit for damages for the debt, is to proceed against physical goods pledged by the borrower as collateral for the loan.

(e) "Consumer short-term lender" means an individual or entity engaged in the business of making or arranging consumer short-term loans, other than a state or federally chartered bank, savings bank, or credit union.

Subd. 2. **Consumer short-term loan contract.** (a) No contract or agreement between a consumer short-term loan lender and a borrower residing in Minnesota may contain the following:

(1) a provision selecting a law other than Minnesota law under which the contract is construed or enforced;

(2) a provision choosing a forum for dispute resolution other than the state of Minnesota; or

(3) a provision limiting class actions.

(b) Any provision prohibited by paragraph (a) is void and unenforceable.

(c) A consumer short-term loan lender must furnish a copy of the written loan contract to each borrower. The contract and disclosures must be written in the language in which the loan was negotiated with the borrower and must contain:

(1) the name; address, which may not be a post office box; and telephone number of the lender making the consumer short-term loan;

(2) the name and title of the individual employee or representative who signs the contract on behalf of the lender;

(3) an itemization of the fees and interest charges to be paid by the borrower;

(4) in bold, 24-point type, the annual percentage rate as computed under United States Code, chapter 15, section 1606; and

(5) a description of the borrower's payment obligations under the loan.

(d) The holder or assignee of a check or other instrument evidencing an obligation of a borrower in connection with a consumer short-term loan takes the instrument subject to all claims by and defenses of the borrower against the consumer short-term lender.

Subd. 3. **Debt collection.** A consumer short-term lender collecting or attempting to collect on an indebtedness in connection with a consumer short-term loan must not engage in the prohibited debt collection practices referenced in section 332.37.

Subd. 4. **Criminal prosecution.** A borrower may not be prosecuted under section 609.535 for issuance of a dishonored check.

Subd. 5. **Record keeping; annual reports; notifications.** In addition to any other information required to be filed under chapters 45 through 56, a consumer short-term lender must annually file a report with the commissioner that contains the following information for each calendar year:

- (1) the total dollar amount, over and above principal, collected on consumer short-term loans;
- (2) the average annual percentage rate and range of annual percentage rates for consumer short-term loans;
- (3) the number of individual borrowers who obtained one or more consumer short-term loans;
- (4) a breakdown of the number of individual borrowers identified in clause (3) by the number of individual borrowers who obtained:
  - (i) five or more loans;
  - (ii) ten or more loans;
  - (iii) 15 or more loans; and
  - (iv) 20 or more loans; and
- (5) the total number and dollar amount of loans charged off or written off.

Subd. 6. **Jurisdiction.** For the purposes of this section, a consumer short-term loan transaction is deemed to take place in the state of Minnesota if the borrower is a Minnesota resident and the borrower completes the transaction, either personally or electronically, while physically located in the state of Minnesota.

Subd. 7. **Penalties for violation; private right of action.** (a) Except for a "bona fide error" as set forth under United States Code, chapter 15, section 1640, subsection (c), an individual or entity who violates subdivision 2, 3, or 4 is liable to the borrower for:

- (1) all money collected or received in connection with the loan;
- (2) actual, incidental, and consequential damages;
- (3) statutory damages of up to \$1,000 per violation;
- (4) costs, disbursements, and reasonable attorney fees; and
- (5) injunctive relief.

(b) In addition to the remedies provided in paragraph (a), a loan is void, and the borrower is not obligated to pay any amounts owing if the loan is made:

- (1) by a consumer short-term lender who has not obtained an applicable license from the

commissioner;

(2) in violation of any provision of subdivision 2, 3, 4, or 5; or

(3) in which interest, fees, charges, or loan amounts exceed the interest, fees, charges, or loan amounts allowable under sections 47.59, subdivision 6, and 47.60, subdivision 2.

Subd. 8. **Attorney general enforcement.** The attorney general shall enforce this section under section 8.31.

Subd. 9. **Remedies cumulative.** The remedies provided in this section are cumulative and do not restrict any remedy that is otherwise available. The provisions of this section are not exclusive and are in addition to any other requirements, rights, remedies, and penalties provided by law.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective August 1, 2009, and applies to loans made on or after that date.

Sec. 4. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 53.09, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. **Annual report.** (1) Each industrial loan and thrift company shall annually on or before the first day of March file a report with the commissioner stating in detail, under appropriate heads, its assets and liabilities at the close of business on the last day of the preceding calendar year and, if applicable, information required under section 47.601, subdivision 5. This report shall be made under oath in the form prescribed by the commissioner.

(2) Each industrial loan and thrift company which holds authority to accept accounts pursuant to section 53.04, subdivision 5, shall in place of the requirement in clause (1) submit the reports required of state banks pursuant to section 48.48.

(3) Within 30 days following a change in controlling ownership of the capital stock of an industrial loan and thrift company, it shall file a written report with the commissioner stating in detail the nature of such change in ownership.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective for reports made for the 2009 calendar year."

Delete the title and insert:

"A bill for an act relating to financial institutions; regulating payday lending; providing penalties and remedies; amending Minnesota Statutes 2008, sections 47.60, subdivisions 4, 6; 53.09, subdivision 2; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 47."

And when so amended the bill do pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Judiciary. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

**Senator Scheid from the Committee on Commerce and Consumer Protection, to which was referred**

**S.F. No. 1743:** A bill for an act relating to insurance; prohibiting certain claims processing practices by third-party administrators of health coverage plans; regulating health claims clearinghouses; providing a time limit on insurer audits of health claims payments; amending Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 60A.23, subdivision 8; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 62Q.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert:

"Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 60A.23, subdivision 8, is amended to read:

Subd. 8. **Self-insurance or insurance plan administrators who are vendors of risk management services.** (1) **Scope.** This subdivision applies to any vendor of risk management services and to any entity which administers, for compensation, a self-insurance or insurance plan. This subdivision does not apply (a) to an insurance company authorized to transact insurance in this state, as defined by section 60A.06, subdivision 1, clauses (4) and (5); (b) to a service plan corporation, as defined by section 62C.02, subdivision 6; (c) to a health maintenance organization, as defined by section 62D.02, subdivision 4; (d) to an employer directly operating a self-insurance plan for its employees' benefits; (e) to an entity which administers a program of health benefits established pursuant to a collective bargaining agreement between an employer, or group or association of employers, and a union or unions; or (f) to an entity which administers a self-insurance or insurance plan if a licensed Minnesota insurer is providing insurance to the plan and if the licensed insurer has appointed the entity administering the plan as one of its licensed agents within this state.

(2) **Definitions.** For purposes of this subdivision the following terms have the meanings given them.

(a) "Administering a self-insurance or insurance plan" means (i) processing, reviewing or paying claims, (ii) establishing or operating funds and accounts, or (iii) otherwise providing necessary administrative services in connection with the operation of a self-insurance or insurance plan.

(b) "Employer" means an employer, as defined by section 62E.02, subdivision 2.

(c) "Entity" means any association, corporation, partnership, sole proprietorship, trust, or other business entity engaged in or transacting business in this state.

(d) "Self-insurance or insurance plan" means a plan providing life, medical or hospital care, accident, sickness or disability insurance for the benefit of employees or members of an association, or a plan providing liability coverage for any other risk or hazard, which is or is not directly insured or provided by a licensed insurer, service plan corporation, or health maintenance organization.

(e) "Vendor of risk management services" means an entity providing for compensation actuarial, financial management, accounting, legal or other services for the purpose of designing and establishing a self-insurance or insurance plan for an employer.

(3) **License.** No vendor of risk management services or entity administering a self-insurance or insurance plan may transact this business in this state unless it is licensed to do so by the commissioner. An applicant for a license shall state in writing the type of activities it seeks authorization to engage in and the type of services it seeks authorization to provide. The license may be granted only when the commissioner is satisfied that the entity possesses the necessary organization, background, expertise, and financial integrity to supply the services sought to be offered. The commissioner may issue a license subject to restrictions or limitations upon the authorization, including the type of services which may be supplied or the activities which may be engaged in. The license fee is \$1,500 for the initial application and \$1,500 for each three-year renewal. All licenses are for a period of three years.

(4) **Regulatory restrictions; powers of the commissioner.** To assure that self-insurance or insurance plans are financially solvent, are administered in a fair and equitable fashion, and are processing claims and paying benefits in a prompt, fair, and honest manner, vendors of risk management services and entities administering insurance or self-insurance plans are subject to the supervision and examination by the commissioner. Vendors of risk management services, entities administering insurance or self-insurance plans, and insurance or self-insurance plans established or operated by them are subject to the trade practice requirements of sections 72A.19 to 72A.30. In lieu of an unlimited guarantee from a parent corporation for a vendor of risk management services or an entity administering insurance or self-insurance plans, the commissioner may accept a surety bond in a form satisfactory to the commissioner in an amount equal to 120 percent of the total amount of claims handled by the applicant in the prior year. If at any time the total amount of claims handled during a year exceeds the amount upon which the bond was calculated, the administrator shall immediately notify the commissioner. The commissioner may require that the bond be increased accordingly.

No contract entered into after July 1, 2001, between a licensed vendor of risk management services and a group authorized to self-insure for workers' compensation liabilities under section 79A.03, subdivision 6, may take effect until it has been filed with the commissioner, and either (1) the commissioner has approved it or (2) 60 days have elapsed and the commissioner has not disapproved it as misleading or violative of public policy.

(5) **Rulemaking authority.** To carry out the purposes of this subdivision, the commissioner may adopt rules pursuant to sections 14.001 to 14.69. These rules may:

- (a) establish reporting requirements for administrators of insurance or self-insurance plans;
- (b) establish standards and guidelines to assure the adequacy of financing, reinsuring, and administration of insurance or self-insurance plans;
- (c) establish bonding requirements or other provisions assuring the financial integrity of entities administering insurance or self-insurance plans; or
- (d) establish other reasonable requirements to further the purposes of this subdivision.

(6) **Claims processing practices.** No entity administering a self-insurance or insurance plan shall:

(a) require a patient to pay for care provided by an in-network provider an amount that exceeds the fee negotiated between the entity and that provider for the covered service provided;

(b) attempt to recoup from the provider a payment owed to the provider by the patient for deductibles, co-pays, coinsurance, or other enrollee cost-sharing required under the plan, unless the administrator has confirmed with the provider that the patient has paid the cost-sharing amounts in full; or

(c) limit the time period for a provider to submit a claim, which may not be less than 90 days through contract except when otherwise required by state or federal law or regulation, unless the health care provider knew or was informed of the correct name and address of the responsible health plan company or third-party administrator. For purposes of this paragraph, presentation of the health coverage identification card by the patient is deemed sufficient notification of the correct information.



**EFFECTIVE DATE.** Paragraph 6, clause (c) is effective August 1, 2009, and applies to patient care provided on or after that date. Paragraph 6, clauses (a) and (b), are effective the day following final enactment.

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 62J.536, subdivision 2b, is amended to read:

Subd. 2b. **Compliance and investigations.** (a) The commissioner of health shall, to the extent practicable, seek the cooperation of health care providers and group purchasers in obtaining compliance with this section and may provide technical assistance to health care providers and group purchasers.

(b) A person who believes a health care provider or group purchaser is not complying with the requirements of this section may file a complaint with the commissioner of health. Complaints filed under this section must meet the following requirements:

(1) A complaint must be filed in writing, either on paper or electronically.

(2) A complaint must name the person that is the subject of the complaint and describe the acts or omissions believed to be in violation of this section.

(3) A complaint must be filed within 180 days of when the complainant knew or should have known that the act or omission complained of occurred.

(4) The commissioner may prescribe additional procedures for the filing of complaints as required to satisfy the requirements of this section.

(c) The commissioner of health may investigate complaints filed under this section. The investigation may include a review of the pertinent policies, procedures, or practices of the health care provider or group purchaser and of the circumstances regarding any alleged violation. At the time of initial written communication with the health care provider or group purchaser about the complaint, the commissioner of health shall describe the acts or omissions that are the basis of the complaint. The commissioner may conduct compliance reviews to determine whether health care providers and group purchasers are complying with this section.

(d) Health care providers and group purchasers must cooperate with the commissioner of health if the commissioner undertakes an investigation or compliance review of the policies, procedures, or practices of the health care provider or group purchaser to determine compliance with this section. This cooperation includes, but is not limited to:

(1) A health care provider or group purchaser must permit access by the commissioner of health during normal business hours to its facilities, books, records, accounts, and other sources of information that are pertinent to ascertaining compliance with this section.

(2) If any information required of a health care provider or group purchaser under this section is in the exclusive possession of any other agency, institution, or person and the other agency, institution, or person fails or refuses to furnish the information, the health care provider or group purchaser must so certify and set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information.

(3) Any individually identifiable health information obtained by the commissioner of health in connection with an investigation or compliance review under this section may not be used or disclosed by the commissioner of health, except as necessary for ascertaining or enforcing

compliance with this section.

(e) If an investigation of a complaint indicates noncompliance, the commissioner of health shall attempt to reach a resolution of the matter by informal means. Informal means may include demonstrated compliance or a completed corrective action plan or other agreement. If the matter is resolved by informal means, the commissioner of health shall so inform the health care provider or group purchaser and, if the matter arose from a complaint, the complainant, in writing. If the matter is not resolved by informal means, the commissioner of health shall:

(1) inform the health care provider or group purchaser and provide an opportunity for the health care provider or group purchaser to submit written evidence of any mitigating factors or other considerations. The health care provider or group purchaser must submit any such evidence to the commissioner of health within 30 calendar days of receipt of the notification; and

(2) inform the health care provider or group purchaser, through a notice of proposed determination according to paragraph (i), that the commissioner of health finds that a civil money penalty should be imposed.

(f) If, after an investigation or a compliance review, the commissioner of health determines that further action is not warranted, the commissioner of health shall so inform the health care provider or group purchaser and, if the matter arose from a complaint, the complainant, in writing.

(g) A health care provider or group purchaser may not threaten, intimidate, coerce, harass, discriminate against, or take any other retaliatory action against any individual or other person for:

(1) filing of a complaint under this section;

(2) testifying, assisting, or participating in an investigation, compliance review, proceeding, or contested case proceeding under this section; or

(3) opposing any act or practice made unlawful by this section, provided the individual or person has a good faith belief that the practice opposed is unlawful, and the manner of opposition is reasonable and does not involve an unauthorized disclosure of a patient's health information.

(h) The commissioner of health may impose a civil money penalty on a health care provider or group purchaser if the commissioner of health determines that the health care provider or group purchaser has violated this section. If the commissioner of health determines that more than one health care provider or group purchaser was responsible for a violation, the commissioner of health may impose a civil money penalty against each health care provider or group purchaser. The amount of a civil money penalty shall be determined as follows:

(1) The amount of a civil money penalty shall be up to \$100 for each violation, but not exceed \$25,000 for identical violations during a calendar year.

(2) In the case of continuing violation of this section, a separate violation occurs each business day that the health care provider or group purchaser is in violation of this section.

(3) In determining the amount of any civil money penalty, the commissioner of health may consider as aggravating or mitigating factors, as appropriate, any of the following:

(i) the nature of the violation, in light of the purpose of the goals of this section;

- (ii) the time period during which the violation occurred;
  - (iii) whether the violation hindered or facilitated an individual's ability to obtain health care;
  - (iv) whether the violation resulted in financial harm;
  - (v) whether the violation was intentional;
  - (vi) whether the violation was beyond the direct control of the health care provider or group purchaser;
  - (vii) any history of prior compliance with the provisions of this section, including violations;
  - (viii) whether and to what extent the provider or group purchaser has attempted to correct previous violations;
  - (ix) how the health care provider or group purchaser has responded to technical assistance from the commissioner of health provided in the context of a compliance effort; or
  - (x) the financial condition of the health care provider or group purchaser including, but not limited to, whether the health care provider or group purchaser had financial difficulties that affected its ability to comply or whether the imposition of a civil money penalty would jeopardize the ability of the health care provider or group purchaser to continue to provide, or to pay for, health care.
- (i) If a penalty is proposed according to this section, the commissioner of health must deliver, or send by certified mail with return receipt requested, to the respondent written notice of the commissioner of health's intent to impose a penalty. This notice of proposed determination must include:
- (1) a reference to the statutory basis for the penalty;
  - (2) a description of the findings of fact regarding the violations with respect to which the penalty is proposed;
  - (3) the amount of the proposed penalty;
  - (4) any circumstances described in paragraph (i) that were considered in determining the amount of the proposed penalty;
  - (5) instructions for responding to the notice, including a statement of the respondent's right to a contested case proceeding and a statement that failure to request a contested case proceeding within 30 calendar days permits the imposition of the proposed penalty; and
  - (6) the address to which the contested case proceeding request must be sent.
- (j) A health care provider or group purchaser may contest whether the finding of facts constitute a violation of this section, according to a contested case proceeding as set forth in sections 14.57 to 14.62, subject to appeal according to sections 14.63 to 14.68.
- (k) Any data collected by the commissioner of health as part of an active investigation or active compliance review under this section are classified as protected nonpublic data pursuant to section 13.02, subdivision 13, in the case of data not on individuals and confidential pursuant to section 13.02, subdivision 3, in the case of data on individuals. Data describing the final disposition of an

investigation or compliance review are classified as public.

(l) Civil money penalties imposed and collected under this subdivision shall be deposited into a revolving fund and are appropriated to the commissioner of health for the purposes of this subdivision, including the provision of technical assistance.

(m) Transactions by group purchasers that are not covered under United States Code, title 42, sections 1320d to 1320d-8, involving any claim subject to section 62Q.75, subdivision 3; 65B.54; 72A.20; 72A.201; or 176.194, subdivision 3, clause (3), shall not be found in violation of this section unless the commissioner establishes that the rules promulgated pursuant to subdivision 2 accommodate the requirements of the above-listed sections and provide specific guidance regarding processing of transactions by a group purchaser with respect to a transaction involving such a claim under the constraints of the above-listed sections. No transaction shall be alleged to be in violation of this section if the group purchaser is acting reasonably to comply with section 62Q.75, subdivision 3; 65B.54; 72A.20; 72A.201; or 176.194, subdivision 3, clause (3), in processing such a transaction.

### Sec. 3. **[62Q.7375] HEALTH CARE CLEARINGHOUSES.**

Subdivision 1. **Definition.** For the purposes of this section, "health care clearinghouse" or "clearinghouse" means a public or private entity, including a billing service, repricing company, community health management information system or community health information system, and "value-added" networks and switches, that does either of the following functions:

(1) processes or facilitates the processing of health information received from another entity in a nonstandard format or containing nonstandard data content into standard data elements or a standard transaction; or

(2) receives a standard transaction from another entity and processes or facilitates the processing of health information into nonstandard format or nonstandard data content for the receiving entity.

Subd. 2. **Claims submission deadlines and careful handling.** (a) A health plan or third-party administrator must not have or enforce a deadline for submission of claims that is shorter than the period provided in section 60A.23, subdivision 8, paragraph (6), clause (c).

(b) A claim submitted to a health plan or third-party administrator through a health care clearinghouse or clearinghouse within the time permitted under paragraph (a) must be treated as timely by the health plan or third-party administrator. This paragraph does not apply if the provider submitted the claim to a clearinghouse that does not have the ability or authority to transmit the claim to the relevant health plan company.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective August 1, 2009, and applies to claims transmitted to a clearinghouse on or after that date.

Sec. 4. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 319B.02, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 21a. **Surviving spouse.** "Surviving spouse" means a surviving spouse of a deceased professional as an individual, as the personal representative of the estate of the decedent, as the trustee of an inter vivos or testamentary trust created by the decedent, or as the sole heir or beneficiary of an estate or trust of which the personal representative or trustee is a bank or other institution that has trust powers.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment and applies to surviving spouses of professionals who die on or after that date.

Sec. 5. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 319B.07, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **Ownership of interests restricted.** Ownership interests in a professional firm may not be owned or held, either directly or indirectly, except by any of the following:

(1) professionals who, with respect to at least one category of the pertinent professional services, are licensed and not disqualified;

(2) general partnerships, other than limited liability partnerships, authorized to furnish at least one category of the professional firm's pertinent professional services;

(3) other professional firms authorized to furnish at least one category of the professional firm's pertinent professional services;

(4) a voting trust established with respect to some or all of the ownership interests in the professional firm, if (i) the professional firm's generally applicable governing law permits the establishment of voting trusts, and (ii) all the voting trustees and all the holders of beneficial interests in the trust are professionals licensed to furnish at least one category of the pertinent professional services; ~~and~~

(5) an employee stock ownership plan as defined in section 4975(e)(7) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, if (i) all the voting trustees of the plan are professionals licensed to furnish at least one category of the pertinent professional services, and (ii) the ownership interests are not directly issued to anyone other than professionals licensed to furnish at least one category of the pertinent professional services; and

(6) sole ownership by a surviving spouse of a deceased professional who was the sole owner of the professional firm at the time of the professional's death, but only during the period of time ending one year after the death of the professional.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment and applies to surviving spouses of professionals who die on or after that date.

Sec. 6. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 319B.08, is amended to read:

**319B.08 EFFECT OF DEATH OR DISQUALIFICATION OF OWNER.**

Subdivision 1. **Acquisition of interests or automatic loss of professional firm status.** (a) If an owner dies or becomes disqualified to practice all the pertinent professional services, then either:

(1) within 90 days after the death or the beginning of the disqualification, all of that owner's ownership interest must be acquired by the professional firm, by persons permitted by section 319B.07 to own the ownership interest, or by some combination; or

(2) at the end of the 90-day period, the firm's election under section 319B.03, subdivision 2, or 319B.04, subdivision 2, is automatically rescinded, the firm loses its status as a professional firm, and the authority created by that election and status terminates.

An acquisition satisfies clause (1) if all right and title to the deceased or disqualified owner's

interest are acquired before the end of the 90-day period, even if some or all of the consideration is paid after the end of the 90-day period. However, payment cannot be secured in any way that violates sections 319B.01 to 319B.12.

(b) If automatic rescission does occur under paragraph (a), the firm must immediately and accordingly update its organizational document, certificate of authority, or statement of foreign qualification. Even without that updating, however, the rescission, loss of status, and termination of authority provided by paragraph (a) occur automatically at the end of the 90-day period.

Subd. 2. **Terms of acquisition.** (a) If:

(1) an owner dies or becomes disqualified to practice all the pertinent professional services;

(2) the professional firm has in effect a mechanism, valid according to the professional firm's generally applicable governing law, to effect a purchase of the deceased or disqualified owner's ownership interest so as to satisfy subdivision 1, paragraph (a), clause (1); and

(3) the professional firm does not agree with the disqualified owner or the representative of the deceased owner to set aside the mechanism,

then that mechanism applies.

(b) If:

(1) an owner dies or becomes disqualified to practice all the pertinent professional services;

(2) the professional firm has in effect no mechanism as described in paragraph (a), or has agreed as mentioned in paragraph (a), clause (3), to set aside that mechanism; and

(3) consistent with its generally applicable governing law, the professional firm agrees with the disqualified owner or the representative of the deceased owner, before the end of the 90-day period, to an arrangement to effect a purchase of the deceased or disqualified owner's ownership interest so as to satisfy subdivision 1, paragraph (a), clause (1),

then that arrangement applies.

(c) If:

(1) an owner of a Minnesota professional firm dies or becomes disqualified to practice all the pertinent professional services;

(2) the Minnesota professional firm does not have in effect a mechanism as described in paragraph (a);

(3) the Minnesota professional firm does not make an arrangement as described in paragraph (b); and

(4) no provision or tenet of the Minnesota professional firm's generally applicable governing law and no provision of any document or agreement authorized by the Minnesota professional firm's generally applicable governing law expressly precludes an acquisition under this paragraph,

then the firm may acquire the deceased or disqualified owner's ownership interest as stated in this paragraph. To act under this paragraph, the Minnesota professional firm must within 90 days after

the death or beginning of the disqualification tender to the representative of the deceased owner's estate or to the disqualified owner the fair value of the owner's ownership interest, as determined by the Minnesota professional firm's governance authority. That price must be at least the book value, as determined in accordance with the Minnesota professional firm's regular method of accounting, as of the end of the month immediately preceding the death or loss of license. The tender must be unconditional and may not attempt to have the recipient waive any rights provided in this section. If the Minnesota professional firm tenders a price under this paragraph within the 90-day period, the deceased or disqualified owner's ownership interest immediately transfers to the Minnesota professional firm regardless of any dispute as to the fairness of the price. A disqualified owner or representative of the deceased owner's estate who disputes the fairness of the tendered price may take the tendered price and bring suit in district court seeking additional payment. The suit must be commenced within one year after the payment is tendered. A Minnesota professional firm may agree with a disqualified owner or the representative of a deceased owner's estate to delay all or part of the payment due under this paragraph, but all right and title to the owner's ownership interests must be acquired before the end of the 90-day period and payment may not be secured in any way that violates sections 319B.01 to 319B.12.

**Subd. 3. Expiration of firm-issued option on death or disqualification of holder.** If the holder of an option issued under section 319B.07, subdivision 3, paragraph (a), clause (1), dies or becomes disqualified, the option automatically expires.

**Subd. 4. One-year period for surviving spouse of sole owner.** For purposes of this section, each mention of "90 days," "90-day period," or similar term shall be interpreted as one year after the death of a professional who was the sole owner of the professional firm if the surviving spouse of the deceased professional owns and controls the firm after the death.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment and applies to surviving spouses of professionals who die on or after that date.

Sec. 7. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 319B.09, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **Governance authority.** (a) Except as stated in paragraph (b), a professional firm's governance authority must rest with:

(1) one or more professionals, each of whom is licensed to furnish at least one category of the pertinent professional services; or

(2) a surviving spouse of a deceased professional who was the sole owner of the professional firm, while the surviving spouse owns and controls the firm, but only during the period of time ending one year after the death of the professional.

(b) In a Minnesota professional firm organized under chapter 317A and in a foreign professional firm organized under the nonprofit corporation statute of another state, at least one individual possessing governance authority must be a professional licensed to furnish at least one category of the pertinent professional services.

(c) Individuals who possess governance authority within a professional firm may delegate administrative and operational matters to others. No decision entailing the exercise of professional judgment may be delegated or assigned to anyone who is not a professional licensed to practice the professional services involved in the decision.

(d) An individual whose license to practice any pertinent professional services is revoked or suspended may not, during the time the revocation or suspension is in effect, possess or exercise governance authority, hold a position with governance authority, or take part in any decision or other action constituting an exercise of governance authority. Nothing in this chapter prevents a board from further terminating, restricting, limiting, qualifying, or imposing conditions on an individual's governance role as board disciplinary action.

(e) A professional firm owned and controlled by a surviving spouse must comply with all requirements of this chapter, except those clearly inapplicable to a firm owned and governed by a surviving spouse who is not a professional of the same type as the surviving spouse's decedent.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment and applies to surviving spouses of professionals who die on or after that date."

Renumber the sections in sequence

Delete the title and insert:

"A bill for an act relating to commerce; prohibiting certain claims processing practices by third-party administrators of health coverage plans; regulating health claims clearinghouses; permitting a deceased professional's surviving spouse to retain ownership of a professional firm that was solely owned by the decedent for up to one year after the death; amending Minnesota Statutes 2008, sections 60A.23, subdivision 8; 62J.536, subdivision 2b; 319B.02, by adding a subdivision; 319B.07, subdivision 1; 319B.08; 319B.09, subdivision 1; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 62Q."

And when so amended the bill do pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Health, Housing and Family Security. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

**Senator Scheid from the Committee on Commerce and Consumer Protection, to which was referred**

**S.F. No. 1905:** A bill for an act relating to insurance; expanding the small employer health insurance market; creating a process for developing a standard application form for small employer health coverage; amending Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 62L.02, subdivision 26.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 1, delete section 1

Page 2, line 25, after "develop" insert "and recommend to the legislature"

Page 2, line 27, after "coverage" insert "in the small employer market"

Renumber the sections in sequence

Amend the title as follows:

Page 1, line 2, delete "expanding the small employer health insurance market;"

Amend the title numbers accordingly

And when so amended the bill do pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Health, Housing



and Family Security. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

**Senator Scheid from the Committee on Commerce and Consumer Protection, to which was referred**

**S.F. No. 312:** A bill for an act relating to insurance; requiring coverage for autism spectrum disorders; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 62A.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 1, delete lines 20 to 24

Page 2, delete lines 1 to 3

Page 2, line 7, after "evaluation," insert "assessment," and after "disorders" insert ", including but not limited to the following:" and delete the period

Page 2, after line 7, insert:

"(1) intensive behavior therapy, such as applied behavior analysis, intensive early intervention behavior therapy, intensive behavior intervention, and Lovaas therapy;

(2) behavior services, instruction, and management;

(3) speech therapy;

(4) occupational therapy;

(5) physical therapy; and

(6) medications."

Page 2, line 9, delete "a" and insert "an individualized"

And when so amended the bill do pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Health, Housing and Family Security. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

**Senator Cohen from the Committee on Finance, to which was re-referred**

**S.F. No. 97:** A bill for an act relating to health; providing for the medical use of marijuana; providing civil and criminal penalties; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 13.3806, by adding a subdivision; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 152.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 8, line 11, delete "\$10" and insert "\$15"

Page 11, line 32, delete "\$1,000" and insert "\$2,000"

Page 12, line 7, delete "\$10" and insert "\$15"

Page 15, line 7, delete "\$401,000" and insert "\$436,000" and delete "is" and insert "and \$517,000 for fiscal year 2011 are"

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

**Senator Cohen from the Committee on Finance, to which was referred**

**S.F. No. 694:** A bill for an act relating to human services; repealing prenatal alcohol or drug use prevention appropriation; amending Laws 2007, chapter 147, article 19, section 3, subdivision 4.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 1, delete section 1 and insert:

"Section 1. Laws 2007, chapter 147, article 19, section 3, subdivision 4, as amended by Laws 2008, chapter 277, article 5, section 1, and Laws 2008, chapter 363, article 18, section 7, is amended to read:

**Subd. 4. Children and Economic Assistance Grants**

The amounts that may be spent from this appropriation for each purpose are as follows:

**(a) MFIP/DWP Grants**

|              | Appropriations by Fund |            |
|--------------|------------------------|------------|
| General      | 62,069,000             | 62,405,000 |
| Federal TANF | 75,904,000             | 80,841,000 |

**(b) Support Services Grants**

|              | Appropriations by Fund |             |
|--------------|------------------------|-------------|
| General      | 8,715,000              | 8,715,000   |
| Federal TANF | 113,429,000            | 115,902,000 |

**TANF Prior Appropriation Cancellation.**

Notwithstanding Laws 2001, First Special Session chapter 9, article 17, section 2, subdivision 11, paragraph (b), any unexpended TANF funds appropriated to the commissioner to contract with the Board of Trustees of Minnesota State Colleges and Universities, to provide tuition waivers to employees of health care and human service providers that are members of qualifying consortia operating under Minnesota Statutes, sections 116L.10 to 116L.15, must cancel at the end of fiscal year 2007.

**MFIP Pilot Program.** Of the TANF appropriation, \$100,000 in fiscal year 2008

and \$750,000 in fiscal year 2009 are for a grant to the Stearns-Benton Employment and Training Council for the Workforce U pilot program. Base level funding for this program shall be \$750,000 in 2010 and \$0 in 2011.

**Supported Work.** (1) Of the TANF appropriation, \$5,468,000 in fiscal year 2008 is for supported work for MFIP participants, to be allocated to counties and tribes based on the criteria under clauses (2) and (3), and is available until expended. Paid transitional work experience and other supported employment under this rider provides a continuum of employment assistance, including outreach and recruitment, program orientation and intake, testing and assessment, job development and marketing, preworksite training, supported worksite experience, job coaching, and postplacement follow-up, in addition to extensive case management and referral services. \* **(The preceding text "and \$7,291,000 in fiscal year 2009" was indicated as vetoed by the governor.)**

(2) A county or tribe is eligible to receive an allocation under this rider if:

(i) the county or tribe is not meeting the federal work participation rate;

(ii) the county or tribe has participants who are required to perform work activities under Minnesota Statutes, chapter 256J, but are not meeting hourly work requirements; and

(iii) the county or tribe has assessed participants who have completed six weeks of job search or are required to perform work activities and are not meeting the hourly requirements, and the county or tribe has determined that the participant would benefit from working in a supported work environment.

(3) A county or tribe may also be eligible for funds in order to contract for supplemental hours of paid work at the participant's child's

place of education, child care location, or the child's physical or mental health treatment facility or office. This grant to counties and tribes is specifically for MFIP participants who need to work up to five hours more per week in order to meet the hourly work requirement, and the participant's employer cannot or will not offer more hours to the participant.

**Work Study.** Of the TANF appropriation, \$750,000 each year are to the commissioner to contract with the Minnesota Office of Higher Education for the biennium beginning July 1, 2007, for work study grants under Minnesota Statutes, section 136A.233, specifically for low-income individuals who receive assistance under Minnesota Statutes, chapter 256J, and for grants to opportunities industrialization centers. \* **(The preceding text beginning "Work Study. Of the TANF appropriation," was indicated as vetoed by the governor.)**

**Integrated Service Projects.** \$2,500,000 in fiscal year 2008 and \$2,500,000 in fiscal year 2009 are appropriated from the TANF fund to the commissioner to continue to fund the existing integrated services projects for MFIP families, and if funding allows, additional similar projects.

**Base Adjustment.** The TANF base for fiscal year 2010 is \$115,902,000 and for fiscal year 2011 is \$115,152,000.

**(c) MFIP Child Care Assistance Grants**

|         |            |            |
|---------|------------|------------|
| General | 74,654,000 | 71,951,000 |
|---------|------------|------------|

**(d) Basic Sliding Fee Child Care Assistance Grants**

|         |            |            |
|---------|------------|------------|
| General | 42,995,000 | 45,008,000 |
|---------|------------|------------|

**Base Adjustment.** The general fund base is \$44,881,000 for fiscal year 2010 and \$44,852,000 for fiscal year 2011.

**At-Home Infant Care Program.** No funding

shall be allocated to or spent on the at-home infant care program under Minnesota Statutes, section 119B.035.

**(e) Child Care Development Grants**

|         |           |           |
|---------|-----------|-----------|
| General | 4,390,000 | 6,390,000 |
|---------|-----------|-----------|

**Prekindergarten Exploratory Projects.** Of the general fund appropriation, \$2,000,000 the first year and \$4,000,000 the second year are for grants to the city of St. Paul, Hennepin County, and Blue Earth County to establish scholarship demonstration projects to be conducted in partnership with the Minnesota Early Learning Foundation to promote children's school readiness. This appropriation is available until June 30, 2009.

**Child Care Services Grants.** Of this appropriation, \$250,000 each year are for the purpose of providing child care services grants under Minnesota Statutes, section 119B.21, subdivision 5. This appropriation is for the 2008-2009 biennium only, and does not increase the base funding.

**Early Childhood Professional Development System.** Of this appropriation, \$250,000 each year are for purposes of the early childhood professional development system, which increases the quality and continuum of professional development opportunities for child care practitioners. This appropriation is for the 2008-2009 biennium only, and does not increase the base funding.

**Base Adjustment.** The general fund base is \$1,515,000 for each of fiscal years 2010 and 2011.

**(f) Child Support Enforcement Grants**

|         |            |           |
|---------|------------|-----------|
| General | 11,038,000 | 3,705,000 |
|---------|------------|-----------|

**Child Support Enforcement.** \$7,333,000 for fiscal year 2008 is to make grants to counties for child support enforcement programs to make up for the loss under the 2005 federal

Deficit Reduction Act of federal matching funds for federal incentive funds passed on to the counties by the state.

This appropriation is available until June 30, 2009.

**(g) Children's Services Grants**

| Appropriations by Fund |            |            |
|------------------------|------------|------------|
| General                | 63,647,000 | 71,147,000 |
| Health Care Access     | 250,000    | -0-        |
| TANF                   | 240,000    | 340,000    |

**Grants for Programs Serving Young Parents.**

Of the TANF fund appropriation, \$140,000 each year is for a grant to a program or programs that provide comprehensive services through a private, nonprofit agency to young parents in Hennepin County who have dropped out of school and are receiving public assistance. The program administrator shall report annually to the commissioner on skills development, education, job training, and job placement outcomes for program participants.

**County Allocations for Rate Increases.** County Children and Community Services Act allocations shall be increased by \$197,000 effective October 1, 2007, and \$696,000 effective October 1, 2008, to help counties pay for the rate adjustments to day training and habilitation providers for participants paid by county social service funds. Notwithstanding the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, section 256M.40, the allocation to a county shall be based on the county's proportion of social services spending for day training and habilitation services as determined in the most recent social services expenditure and grant reconciliation report.

**Privatized Adoption Grants.** Federal reimbursement for privatized adoption grant and foster care recruitment grant expenditures is appropriated to the commissioner for

adoption grants and foster care and adoption administrative purposes.

**Adoption Assistance Incentive Grants.** Federal funds available during fiscal year 2008 and fiscal year 2009 for the adoption incentive grants are appropriated to the commissioner for these purposes.

**Adoption Assistance and Relative Custody Assistance.** The commissioner may transfer unencumbered appropriation balances for adoption assistance and relative custody assistance between fiscal years and between programs.

**Children's Mental Health Grants.** Of the general fund appropriation, \$5,913,000 in fiscal year 2008 and \$6,825,000 in fiscal year 2009 are for children's mental health grants. The purpose of these grants is to increase and maintain the state's children's mental health service capacity, especially for school-based mental health services. The commissioner shall require grantees to utilize all available third party reimbursement sources as a condition of using state grant funds. At least 15 percent of these funds shall be used to encourage efficiencies through early intervention services. At least another 15 percent shall be used to provide respite care services for children with severe emotional disturbance at risk of out-of-home placement.

**Mental Health Crisis Services.** Of the general fund appropriation, \$2,528,000 in fiscal year 2008 and \$2,850,000 in fiscal year 2009 are for statewide funding of children's mental health crisis services. Providers must utilize all available funding streams.

**Children's Mental Health Evidence-Based and Best Practices.** Of the general fund appropriation, \$375,000 in fiscal year 2008 and \$750,000 in fiscal year 2009 are for children's mental health evidence-based and best practices including, but not limited to: Adolescent Integrated Dual Diagnosis Treatment services; school-based mental

health services; co-location of mental health and physical health care, and; the use of technological resources to better inform diagnosis and development of treatment plan development by mental health professionals. The commissioner shall require grantees to utilize all available third-party reimbursement sources as a condition of using state grant funds.

**Culturally Specific Mental Health Treatment Grants.** Of the general fund appropriation, \$75,000 in fiscal year 2008 and \$300,000 in fiscal year 2009 are for children's mental health grants to support increased availability of mental health services for persons from cultural and ethnic minorities within the state. The commissioner shall use at least 20 percent of these funds to help members of cultural and ethnic minority communities to become qualified mental health professionals and practitioners. The commissioner shall assist grantees to meet third-party credentialing requirements and require them to utilize all available third-party reimbursement sources as a condition of using state grant funds.

**Mental Health Services for Children with Special Treatment Needs.** Of the general fund appropriation, \$50,000 in fiscal year 2008 and \$200,000 in fiscal year 2009 are for children's mental health grants to support increased availability of mental health services for children with special treatment needs. These shall include, but not be limited to: victims of trauma, including children subjected to abuse or neglect, veterans and their families, and refugee populations; persons with complex treatment needs, such as eating disorders; and those with low incidence disorders.

**MFIP and Children's Mental Health Pilot Project.** Of the TANF appropriation, \$100,000 in fiscal year 2008 and \$200,000 in fiscal year 2009 are to fund the MFIP and children's mental health pilot project. Of these amounts, up to \$100,000 may be expended on evaluation of this pilot.



**Prenatal Alcohol or Drug Use.** Of the general fund appropriation, \$75,000 each year is to award grants beginning July 1, 2007, to programs that provide services under Minnesota Statutes, section 254A.171, in Pine, Kanabec, and Carlton Counties. the second year is for a grant to A Circle of Women for program services. This appropriation shall become part of the base appropriation.

**Base Adjustment.** The general fund base is \$62,572,000 in fiscal year 2010 and \$62,575,000 in fiscal year 2011.

**(h) Children and Community Services Grants**

|         |             |            |
|---------|-------------|------------|
| General | 101,369,000 | 69,208,000 |
|---------|-------------|------------|

**Base Adjustment.** The general fund base is \$69,274,000 in each of fiscal years 2010 and 2011.

**Targeted Case Management Temporary Funding.** (a) Of the general fund appropriation, \$32,667,000 in fiscal year 2008 is transferred to the targeted case management contingency reserve account in the general fund to be allocated to counties and tribes affected by reductions in targeted case management federal Medicaid revenue as a result of the provisions in the federal Deficit Reduction Act of 2005, Public Law 109-171.

(b) Contingent upon (1) publication by the federal Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services of final regulations implementing the targeted case management provisions of the federal Deficit Reduction Act of 2005, Public Law 109-171, or (2) the issuance of a finding by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services of federal Medicaid overpayments for targeted case management expenditures, up to \$32,667,000 is appropriated to the commissioner of human services. Prior to distribution of funds, the commissioner shall estimate and certify the

amount by which the federal regulations or federal disallowance will reduce targeted case management Medicaid revenue over the 2008-2009 biennium.

(c) Within 60 days of a contingency described in paragraph (b), the commissioner shall distribute the grants proportionate to each affected county or tribe's targeted case management federal earnings for calendar year 2005, not to exceed the lower of (1) the amount of the estimated reduction in federal revenue or (2) \$32,667,000.

(d) These funds are available in either year of the biennium. Counties and tribes shall use these funds to pay for social service-related costs, but the funds are not subject to provisions of the Children and Community Services Act grant under Minnesota Statutes, chapter 256M.

(e) This appropriation shall be available to pay counties and tribes for expenses incurred on or after July 1, 2007. The appropriation shall be available until expended.

(i) **General Assistance Grants**

|         |            |            |
|---------|------------|------------|
| General | 37,876,000 | 38,253,000 |
|---------|------------|------------|

**General Assistance Standard.** The commissioner shall set the monthly standard of assistance for general assistance units consisting of an adult recipient who is childless and unmarried or living apart from parents or a legal guardian at \$203. The commissioner may reduce this amount according to Laws 1997, chapter 85, article 3, section 54.

**Emergency General Assistance.** The amount appropriated for emergency general assistance funds is limited to no more than \$7,889,812 in fiscal year 2008 and \$7,889,812 in fiscal year 2009. Funds to counties must be allocated by the commissioner using the allocation method specified in Minnesota Statutes, section 256D.06.

**(j) Minnesota Supplemental Aid Grants**

|         |            |            |
|---------|------------|------------|
| General | 30,505,000 | 30,812,000 |
|---------|------------|------------|

**Emergency Minnesota Supplemental Aid Funds.** The amount appropriated for emergency Minnesota supplemental aid funds is limited to no more than \$1,100,000 in fiscal year 2008 and \$1,100,000 in fiscal year 2009. Funds to counties must be allocated by the commissioner using the allocation method specified in Minnesota Statutes, section 256D.46.

**(k) Group Residential Housing Grants**

|         |            |            |
|---------|------------|------------|
| General | 91,069,000 | 98,671,000 |
|---------|------------|------------|

**People Incorporated.** Of the general fund appropriation, \$460,000 each year is to augment community support and mental health services provided to individuals residing in facilities under Minnesota Statutes, section 256I.05, subdivision 1m.

**(l) Other Children and Economic Assistance Grants**

|              |            |            |
|--------------|------------|------------|
| General      | 20,183,000 | 16,333,000 |
| Federal TANF | 1,500,000  | 1,500,000  |

**Base Adjustment.** The general fund base shall be \$16,033,000 in fiscal year 2010 and \$15,533,000 in fiscal year 2011. The TANF base shall be \$1,500,000 in fiscal year 2010 and \$1,181,000 in fiscal year 2011.

**Homeless and Runaway Youth.** Of the general fund appropriation, \$500,000 each year are for the Runaway and Homeless Youth Act under Minnesota Statutes, section 256K.45. Funds shall be spent in each area of the continuum of care to ensure that programs are meeting the greatest need. This is a onetime appropriation.

**Long-Term Homelessness.** Of the general fund appropriation, \$2,000,000 in fiscal year 2008 is for implementation of programs to address

long-term homelessness and is available in either year of the biennium. This is a onetime appropriation.

**Minnesota Community Action Grants.** (a) Of the general fund appropriation, \$250,000 each year is for the purposes of Minnesota community action grants under Minnesota Statutes, sections 256E.30 to 256E.32. This is a onetime appropriation.

(b) Of the TANF appropriation, \$1,500,000 each year is for community action agencies for auto repairs, auto loans, and auto purchase grants to individuals who are eligible to receive benefits under Minnesota Statutes, chapter 256J, or who have lost eligibility for benefits under Minnesota Statutes, chapter 256J, due to earnings in the prior 12 months. Base level funding for this activity shall be \$1,500,000 in fiscal year 2010 and \$1,181,000 in fiscal year 2011. \* **(The preceding text beginning "(b) Of the TANF appropriation," was indicated as vetoed by the governor.)**

(c) Money appropriated under paragraphs (a) and (b) that is not spent in the first year does not cancel but is available for the second year.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment."

Amend the title accordingly

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

**Senator Cohen from the Committee on Finance, to which was re-referred**

**S.F. No. 713:** A bill for an act relating to state government; establishing a state employee suggestion system for making state government less costly or more efficient; appropriating money; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 16A.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 12, after "first" insert "fiscal"

Page 1, line 13, delete everything after the period and insert "The award must be paid from the appropriation to which the savings accrued."

Page 1, delete lines 14 and 15

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

**Senator Cohen from the Committee on Finance, to which was re-referred**

**S.F. No. 182:** A bill for an act relating to elections; establishing districting principles for legislative and congressional plans; providing for appointment of a commission to recommend the boundaries of legislative and congressional districts; amending Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 2.021; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 2; repealing Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 2.031.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 3, line 29, delete "a redistricting plan" and insert "the first redistricting plans"

Page 3, delete subdivision 7 and insert:

"Subd. 7. **Deadlines.** (a) The commission shall submit to the legislature by April 30 of the year ending in one redistricting plans for legislative and congressional seats. Either of these plans may be enacted or rejected by the legislature, but not modified.

(b) If a first plan submitted by the commission is rejected by the legislature, the commission shall submit a second plan within two weeks after the rejection, unless by then the legislature has rejected the first plan and adjourned the regular session in the year ending in one, in which case the second plan must be submitted to the legislature at the opening of its regular session in the year ending in two. A second plan may be enacted or rejected by the legislature, but not modified.

(c) If the commission fails to submit a plan by either of these two deadlines, the legislature may proceed to enact a plan in place of the missing plan without waiting for the commission to submit a plan.

(d) If a second plan is rejected by the legislature, the commission shall submit a third plan within two weeks after the rejection, unless the second plan was rejected by the legislature at its regular session in the year ending in one and the legislature adjourned the regular session in the year ending in one less than two weeks after it rejected the second plan, in which case the third plan must be submitted to the legislature at the opening of its regular session in the year ending in two. The third plan may be enacted as submitted, rejected, or enacted as modified by the legislature."

Page 4, after line 6, insert:

"Sec. 3. **APPROPRIATION.**

\$141,000 is appropriated from the general fund to the legislative coordinating commission to pay the expenses of the redistricting commission created by this act, to be available until June 30, 2011. The appropriation base is \$47,000 for fiscal year 2012 and zero for fiscal year 2013."

Renumber the sections in sequence

Amend the title as follows:

Page 1, line 4, after the semicolon, insert "appropriating money;"

And when so amended the bill do pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Rules and Administration. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

**Senator Cohen from the Committee on Finance, to which was referred**

**S.F. No. 1938:** A bill for an act relating to state government finance; providing federal stimulus oversight funding for certain state agencies; appropriating money.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 2, after line 33, insert:

"Sec. 5. **HUMAN SERVICES.**

Subdivision 1. **Local share payment modification required for ARRA compliance.** Effective retroactively from October 1, 2008, through June 30, 2009, the state shall reduce Hennepin County's monthly contribution to the nonfederal share of medical assistance costs to the percentage required on September 1, 2008, to meet federal requirements for enhanced federal match under the American Reinvestment and Recovery Act of 2009. Notwithstanding the requirements of Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 256B.19, subdivision 1c, paragraph (d), for the period beginning October 1, 2008, to June 30, 2009, Hennepin County's monthly payment under that provision is reduced to \$434,688.

Subd. 2. **Capitation payments.** Effective retroactively from October 1, 2008, through December 31, 2010, the commissioner of human services shall increase capitation payments made to the Metropolitan Health Plan under Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 256B.19, subdivision 1c, paragraph (c), by \$6,800,000. The increased amount includes federal matching money.

Sec. 6. **FISCAL STABILIZATION ACCOUNT.**

The fiscal stabilization account is created in the federal fund. All money received by the state under title XIV of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, Public Law 111-5, division A, must be credited to the fiscal stabilization account. Money in the account must not be spent except pursuant to a direct appropriation by law. When all money credited and to be credited to the account from the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 has been spent, the commissioner of finance shall close the account."

Renumber the sections in sequence

Amend the title as follows:

Page 1, line 3, after the semicolon, insert "conforming Minnesota law to the requirements necessary to receive federal stimulus money for medical assistance; modifying Hennepin County's 2009 nonfederal share of medical assistance costs to comply with federal requirements to receive enhanced FMAP; creating a fiscal stabilization account in the federal fund;"

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

**Senator Cohen from the Committee on Finance, to which was re-referred**

**S.F. No. 666:** A bill for an act relating to human services; modifying provisions related to children aging out of foster care; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 260C.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 1, after line 4, insert:

"Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 260C.212, subdivision 7, is amended to read:

Subd. 7. **Administrative or court review of placements.** (a) There shall be an administrative review of the out-of-home placement plan of each child placed in foster care no later than 180 days after the initial placement of the child in foster care and at least every six months thereafter if the child is not returned to the home of the parent or parents within that time. The out-of-home placement plan must be monitored and updated at each administrative review. The administrative review shall be conducted by the responsible social services agency using a panel of appropriate persons at least one of whom is not responsible for the case management of, or the delivery of services to, either the child or the parents who are the subject of the review. The administrative review shall be open to participation by the parent or guardian of the child and the child, as appropriate.

(b) As an alternative to the administrative review required in paragraph (a), the court may, as part of any hearing required under the Minnesota Rules of Juvenile Protection Procedure, conduct a hearing to monitor and update the out-of-home placement plan pursuant to the procedure and standard in section 260C.201, subdivision 6, paragraph (d). The party requesting review of the out-of-home placement plan shall give parties to the proceeding notice of the request to review and update the out-of-home placement plan. A court review conducted pursuant to section 260C.193; 260C.201, subdivision 1 or 11; 260C.141, subdivision 2 or 2a, clause (2); or 260C.317 shall satisfy the requirement for the review so long as the other requirements of this section are met.

(c) As appropriate to the stage of the proceedings and relevant court orders, the responsible social services agency or the court shall review:

- (1) the safety, permanency needs, and well-being of the child;
- (2) the continuing necessity for and appropriateness of the placement;
- (3) the extent of compliance with the out-of-home placement plan;
- (4) the extent of progress which has been made toward alleviating or mitigating the causes necessitating placement in foster care;
- (5) the projected date by which the child may be returned to and safely maintained in the home or placed permanently away from the care of the parent or parents or guardian; and
- (6) the appropriateness of the services provided to the child.

(d) When a child is age 16 or older, in addition to any administrative review conducted by the agency, at the review required under section 260C.201, subdivision 11, paragraph (d), clause (3), item (iii); or 260C.317, subdivision 3, clause (3), the court shall review the independent living plan required under subdivision 1, paragraph (c), clause (8), and the provision of services to the child related to the well-being of the child as the child prepares to leave foster care. The review shall include the actual plans related to each item in the plan necessary to the child's future safety and well-being when the child is no longer in foster care.

(1) At the court review, the responsible social services agency shall establish that it has given the notice required under Minnesota Rules, part 9560.0060, regarding the right to continued access to services for certain children in foster care past age 18 and of the right to appeal a denial of social services under section 256.245. If the agency is unable to establish that the notice, including the right to appeal a denial of social services, has been given, the court shall require the agency to give it.

(2) The court shall make findings regarding progress toward or accomplishment of the following goals:

- (i) the child has obtained a high school diploma or its equivalent;
- (ii) the child has completed a driver's education course or has demonstrated the ability to use public transportation in the child's community;
- (iii) the child is employed or enrolled in postsecondary education;
- (iv) the child has applied for and obtained postsecondary education financial aid for which the child is eligible;
- (v) the child has health care coverage and health care providers to meet the child's physical and mental health needs;
- (vi) the child has applied for and obtained disability income assistance for which the child is eligible;
- (vii) the child has obtained affordable housing with necessary supports, which does not include a homeless shelter;
- (viii) the child has saved sufficient funds to pay for the first month's rent and a damage deposit;
- (ix) the child has an alternative affordable housing plan, which does not include a homeless shelter, if the original housing plan is unworkable;
- (x) the child, if male, has registered for the Selective Service; and
- (xi) the child has a permanent connection to a caring adult.

(3) The court shall ensure that the responsible agency in conjunction with the placement provider assists the child in obtaining the following documents prior to the child's leaving foster care: a Social Security card; the child's birth certificate; a state identification card or driver's license, green card, or school visa; the child's school, medical, and dental records; a contact list of the child's medical, dental, and mental health providers; and contact information for the child's siblings, if the siblings are in foster care.

(e) When a child is age 17 or older, during the 90-day period immediately prior to the date the child is expected to be discharged from foster care, the responsible social services agency is required to provide the child with assistance and support in developing a transition plan that is personalized at the direction of the child. The transition plan must be as detailed as the child may elect and include specific options on housing, health insurance, education, local opportunities for mentors and continuing support services, and work force supports and employment services. The county shall also provide the individual with appropriate contact information if the individual needs more



information or needs help dealing with a crisis situation through age 21."

Page 1, line 11, after "and" insert ", to the extent funds are available,"

Renumber the sections in sequence

Amend the title numbers accordingly

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

**Senator Cohen from the Committee on Finance, to which was re-referred**

**S.F. No. 2:** A bill for an act relating to state government; specifying the development of budget recommendations and requiring state agencies to provide information; requiring disclosure of status of fiscal note requests; modifying state budget requirements; requiring a forecast of cash flow for the general fund; specifying format for detailed budget estimates of expenditures; imposing deadline for notice of deficiency requests; providing additional whistleblower protection to state employees; requiring a budget working group; eliminating obsolete requirements; amending Minnesota Statutes 2008, sections 3.885, by adding a subdivision; 3.98, subdivision 4; 3.987, subdivision 1; 16A.10, subdivisions 1, 2; 16A.11, subdivision 3, by adding a subdivision; 181.932, subdivision 1; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapters 16A; 43A; repealing Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 16A.152, subdivision 1b.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert:

**"ARTICLE 1**

**BUDGET**

Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 3.885, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 11. **Budget development.** The commission may develop budget recommendations to present to the legislature. If the commission proceeds with the development of budget recommendations, state agencies must provide information to the commission as requested by the commission to develop those recommendations. That information includes the base budget, information on how the base budget is determined and how it is allocated, recommendations from agency staff for changes in the base level appropriations to improve agency operations and efficiency or to improve or increase efficiency of programs operated by the agency, and responses to proposals for reductions in agency budgets.

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 3.98, subdivision 4, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. **Uniform procedure.** The commissioner of finance shall prescribe a uniform procedure to govern the departments and agencies of the state in complying with the requirements of this section. The uniform procedure must include a system for posting the date a fiscal note was requested, the requested completion date, and the estimated completion date, as well as the display of those dates on the front page of each completed fiscal note.

Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 3.987, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **Local impact notes.** The commissioner of finance shall coordinate the development of a local impact note for any proposed legislation introduced after June 30, 1997, upon request of the chair or the ranking minority member of either legislative Tax or Finance Committee, or the house of representatives Committee on Ways and Means. Upon receipt of a request to prepare a local impact note, the commissioner must notify the authors of the proposed legislation that the request has been made. The local impact note must be made available to the public upon request. If the action is among the exceptions listed in section 3.988, a local impact note need not be requested nor prepared. The commissioner shall make a reasonable and timely estimate of the local fiscal impact on each type of political subdivision that would result from the proposed legislation. The commissioner of finance may require any political subdivision or the commissioner of an administrative agency of the state to supply in a timely manner any information determined to be necessary to determine local fiscal impact. The political subdivision, its representative association, or commissioner shall convey the requested information to the commissioner of finance with a signed statement to the effect that the information is accurate and complete to the best of its ability. The political subdivision, its representative association, or commissioner, when requested, shall update its determination of local fiscal impact based on actual cost or revenue figures, improved estimates, or both. Upon completion of the note, the commissioner must provide a copy to the authors of the proposed legislation, as well as to the chair and ranking minority member of all committees to which a bill is referred.

Sec. 4. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 4A.01, is amended to read:

#### **4A.01 OFFICE OF STRATEGIC AND LONG-RANGE PLANNING.**

Subdivision 1. **Duties.** The Office of Strategic and Long Range Planning is created, with a director appointed by the governor. The commissioner of administration is the state planning officer and is responsible for the coordination, development, assessment, and communication of information, performance measures, planning, and policy concerning the state's future. The commissioner may contract with another agency for the provision of administrative services.

Subd. 2. **Long-range plan.** By September 15, 2010, and every five years thereafter, the Office of Strategic and Long Range Planning commissioner must develop an integrated long-range plan for the state based upon the plans and strategies of state agencies, public advice about the future, and other information developed under this chapter. The office commissioner must coordinate activities among all levels of government and must stimulate public interest and participation in the future of the state.

The office commissioner must act in coordination with the commissioner of finance, affected state agencies, and the legislature in the planning and financing of major public programs.

Subd. 3. **Report.** The commissioner must submit a report to the governor and legislature by January 15 of each year that provides economic, social, and environmental demographic information to assist public and elected officials with long-term management decisions. The report must identify and assess the information important to understanding the state's two-, ten-, and 50-year outlook, including the budget implications for those time periods. The report must include the demographic forecast required by section 4A.02, paragraph (e), and information to assist with the preparation of the milestones report required by section 4A.06, and may include policy recommendations based upon the information and assessment provided.

Sec. 5. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 4A.02, is amended to read:

**4A.02 STATE DEMOGRAPHER.**

(a) The ~~director~~ commissioner shall appoint a state demographer. The demographer must be professionally competent in demography and must possess demonstrated ability based upon past performance.

(b) The demographer shall:

(1) continuously gather and develop demographic data relevant to the state;

(2) design and test methods of research and data collection;

(3) periodically prepare population projections for the state and designated regions and periodically prepare projections for each county or other political subdivision of the state as necessary to carry out the purposes of this section;

(4) review, comment on, and prepare analysis of population estimates and projections made by state agencies, political subdivisions, other states, federal agencies, or nongovernmental persons, institutions, or commissions;

(5) serve as the state liaison with the United States Bureau of the Census, coordinate state and federal demographic activities to the fullest extent possible, and aid the legislature in preparing a census data plan and form for each decennial census;

(6) compile an annual study of population estimates on the basis of county, regional, or other political or geographical subdivisions as necessary to carry out the purposes of this section and section 4A.03;

(7) by January 1 of each year, issue a report to the legislature containing an analysis of the demographic implications of the annual population study and population projections;

(8) prepare maps for all counties in the state, all municipalities with a population of 10,000 or more, and other municipalities as needed for census purposes, according to scale and detail recommended by the United States Bureau of the Census, with the maps of cities showing precinct boundaries;

(9) prepare an estimate of population and of the number of households for each governmental subdivision for which the Metropolitan Council does not prepare an annual estimate, and convey the estimates to the governing body of each political subdivision by June 1 of each year;

(10) direct, under section 414.01, subdivision 14, and certify population and household estimates of annexed or detached areas of municipalities or towns after being notified of the order or letter of approval by the chief administrative law judge of the State Office of Administrative Hearings;

(11) prepare, for any purpose for which a population estimate is required by law or needed to implement a law, a population estimate of a municipality or town whose population is affected by action under section 379.02 or 414.01, subdivision 14; and

(12) prepare an estimate of average household size for each statutory or home rule charter city with a population of 2,500 or more by June 1 of each year.

(c) A governing body may challenge an estimate made under paragraph (b) by filing their specific

objections in writing with the state demographer by June 24. If the challenge does not result in an acceptable estimate, the governing body may have a special census conducted by the United States Bureau of the Census. The political subdivision must notify the state demographer by July 1 of its intent to have the special census conducted. The political subdivision must bear all costs of the special census. Results of the special census must be received by the state demographer by the next April 15 to be used in that year's June 1 estimate to the political subdivision under paragraph (b).

(d) The state demographer shall certify the estimates of population and household size to the commissioner of revenue by July 15 each year, including any estimates still under objection.

(e) The state demographer shall release a demographic forecast in conjunction with the commissioner of finance and the November state economic forecast.

(f) The state demographer may contract for the development of data and research required under this chapter, including, but not limited to, population estimates and projections, the preparation of maps, and other estimates.

**Sec. 6. [4A.11] MILESTONES REPORT.**

The commissioner must review the statewide system of economic, social, and environmental performance measures in use under section 16A.10, subdivision 1c, and known as Minnesota milestones. The commissioner must provide the economic, social, and environmental information necessary to assist public and elected officials with understanding and evaluating Minnesota milestones. The commissioner must report on the trends and their implications for Minnesota milestones each year and provide the commissioner of finance with recommendations for the use of Minnesota milestones in budget documents. The commissioner may contract for the development of information and measures.

Sec. 7. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 16A.055, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **List.** (a) The commissioner shall:

(1) receive and record all money paid into the state treasury and safely keep it until lawfully paid out;

(2) manage the state's financial affairs;

(3) keep the state's general account books according to generally accepted government accounting principles;

(4) keep expenditure and revenue accounts according to generally accepted government accounting principles;

(5) develop, provide instructions for, prescribe, and manage a state uniform accounting system;

(6) provide to the state the expertise to ensure that all state funds are accounted for under generally accepted government accounting principles; ~~and~~

(7) coordinate the development of, and maintain standards for, internal auditing in state agencies and, in cooperation with the commissioner of administration, report to the legislature and the governor by January 31 of odd-numbered years, on progress made;

(8) monitor and oversee implementation of recommendations made to state agencies by the legislative auditor; and

(9) develop and disseminate training materials and policies on internal controls and ensure that employees in the executive branch with accounting or financial management responsibilities, or those responsible for supervising employees with those duties, participate in a regular course of training on internal controls and financial management.

(b) In addition to the duties in paragraph (a), the commissioner has the powers and duties given to the commissioner in chapter 43A.

**Sec. 8. [16A.056] WEB SITE WITH SEARCHABLE DATABASE ON STATE EXPENDITURES.**

Subdivision 1. **Web database requirement.** The commissioner, in consultation with the commissioners of administration and revenue and the legislative auditor, must maintain a Web site with a searchable database providing the public with information on state contracts, state appropriations, state expenditures, state tax expenditures, and state entities that are the subject of audits. The Web site must not include information that is not public data, as defined in section 13.02, subdivision 8a. For each data field identified in subdivisions 2 to 6, the searchable database must allow a user of the Web site to:

- (1) perform a search using that field;
- (2) sort by that field;
- (3) obtain information grouped or aggregated by that field, where groups or subtotals are feasible; and
- (4) view information in that field by each fiscal year.

The searchable database may accommodate grouping and aggregating by allowing the user to download the data into a user-controlled database.

Subd. 2. **Contracts.** (a) The searchable database on the Web site must include at least the following data fields on state contracts:

- (1) the name of the entity receiving the contract;
- (2) the name of the agency entering into the contract;
- (3) an indication if the contract is for (i) goods; (ii) professional or technical services; (iii) services other than professional and technical services; or (iv) a grant; and
- (4) the fund or funds from which the entity receiving the contract will be paid.

(b) For each contract, the database must also include:

- (1) an address for each entity receiving a contract; and
- (2) a brief statement of the purpose of the contract or grant.

(c) Information on a new contract or grant must be entered into the database within 30 days after the contract or grant is entered into.

(d) For purposes of this section, a "grant" is a contract between a state agency and a recipient, the primary purpose of which is to transfer cash or a thing of value to the recipient to support a public purpose. Grant does not include aid payments to units of local government, payments to state employees, or payments made under laws providing for assistance to individuals.

Subd. 3. **Appropriations.** The searchable database on the Web site must include at least the following data fields on state appropriations:

- (1) the agency receiving the appropriation, or the name of the nonstate entity receiving state money;
- (2) the agency program, to the extent applicable;
- (3) the agency activity, to the extent applicable;
- (4) an item within an activity if applicable;
- (5) the fund from which the appropriation is made; and
- (6) the object of expenditure.

Subd. 4. **State expenditures.** The searchable database on the Web site must include at least the following data fields on state expenditures:

- (1) the name of the agency or nonstate entity making the expenditure;
- (2) the agency program, to the extent applicable;
- (3) the agency activity, to the extent applicable;
- (4) an item within an activity if applicable;
- (5) the fund from which the expenditure is made; and
- (6) the object of expenditure.

Subd. 5. **Tax expenditures.** The Web site must include a searchable database of state tax expenditures. For each fiscal year, the database must include data fields showing the estimated impact on state revenues of each tax expenditure item listed in the report prepared under section 270C.11.

Subd. 6. **Audits.** The Web site required by this section must include a link to a Web site containing the findings and results from the audits completed by the legislative auditor that have been released to the public.

Subd. 7. **Retention of data.** The database required under this section must include information beginning with fiscal year 2010 appropriations and must retain data for at least ten years.

Subd. 8. **Consultation.** The commissioner of finance must consult with the chairs of the house of representatives Ways and Means and senate Finance Committees before encumbering any money appropriated on or after July 1, 2009, for the planning, development, and implementation of state accounting or procurement systems. No money appropriated for these purposes may be spent unless the commissioner certifies that the systems will allow compliance with requirements of this section.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following certification by the commissioner of finance that a new statewide accounting and procurement system has been implemented.

Sec. 9. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 16A.10, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **Budget format.** In each even-numbered calendar year the commissioner shall prepare budget forms and instructions for all agencies, including guidelines for reporting agency performance measures, subject to the approval of the governor. The commissioner shall request and receive advisory recommendations from the chairs of the senate Finance Committee and house of representatives Ways and Means Committee before adopting a format for the biennial budget document. By June 15, the commissioner shall send the proposed budget forms to the appropriations and finance committees. The committees have until July 15 to give the commissioner their advisory recommendations on possible improvements. To facilitate this consultation, the commissioner shall establish a working group consisting of executive branch staff and designees of the chairs of the senate Finance and house of representatives Ways and Means Committees. The commissioner must involve this group in all stages of development of budget forms and instructions. The budget format must show actual expenditures and receipts for the three most recent fiscal ~~year~~ years, estimated expenditures and receipts for the current fiscal year, and estimates for each fiscal year of the next biennium. Estimated expenditures must be classified by funds and character of expenditures and may be subclassified by programs and activities. Agency revenue estimates must show how the estimates were made and what factors were used. Receipts must be classified by funds, programs, and activities. Expenditure and revenue estimates must be based on the law in existence at the time the estimates are prepared.

Sec. 10. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 16A.10, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. **By October 15 and November 30.** By October 15 of each even-numbered year, an agency must file the following with the commissioner:

- (1) ~~budget estimates~~ actual spending for the three most recent and budget estimates for the current fiscal years;
- (2) its upcoming biennial budget estimates;
- (3) a comprehensive and integrated statement of agency missions and outcome and performance measures; and
- (4) a concise explanation of any planned changes in the level of services or new activities.

The commissioner shall prepare and file the budget estimates for an agency failing to file them.

By November 30, the commissioner shall send the final budget format, agency budget estimates for the next biennium, and copies of the filed material to the Ways and Means and Finance Committees, except that the commissioner shall not be required to transmit information that identifies executive branch budget decision items.

Sec. 11. **[16A.107] CASH FLOW FORECAST.**

Within 30 days after the November forecast of state revenue and expenditures under section 16A.103, the commissioner shall deliver to the governor and the legislature a forecast of cash flow

for the general fund, showing the expected maximum and minimum cash balance in the fund for each month of the forecast period.

Sec. 12. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 16A.11, subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. **Part two: detailed budget.** (a) Part two of the budget, the detailed budget estimates both of expenditures and revenues, must contain any statements on the financial plan which the governor believes desirable or which may be required by the legislature. The detailed estimates shall include the budget request of each organizational unit within an agency arranged in tabular form so it may readily be compared with the governor's budget arranged in tabular form for the organizational unit and agency.

(b) Tables listing expenditures for the next biennium must show the appropriation base for each year in column form broken down by appropriation allotments at budget activity level relative to proposed appropriation and appropriation allotment levels by budget activity. The appropriation base is the amount appropriated for the second year of the current biennium. The tables must separately show any adjustments to the base required by current law or policies of the commissioner of finance. For forecasted programs, the tables must also show the amount of the forecast adjustments, based on the most recent forecast prepared by the commissioner of finance under section 16A.103. Any appropriation change requested by an agency or an organizational unit within an agency must be submitted in writing and include information that supports the requested change. For all programs, the tables must show the agency requests, the amount of appropriation changes recommended by the governor, after adjustments to the base and forecast adjustments, and the total recommendation of the governor for that year.

(c) The detailed estimates must include a separate line listing the total cost of professional and technical service contracts for the prior biennium and the projected costs of those contracts for the current and upcoming biennium. They must also include a summary of the personnel employed by the agency, reflected as full-time equivalent positions.

(d) The detailed estimates for internal service funds must include the number of full-time equivalents by program; detail on any loans from the general fund, including dollar amounts by program; proposed investments in technology or equipment of \$100,000 or more; an explanation of any operating losses or increases in retained earnings; and a history of the rates that have been charged, with an explanation of any rate changes and the impact of the rate changes on affected agencies.

(e) The detailed estimates must provide a spending trend analysis by program showing at least the three most recent years of actual spending, or as many years of actual spending as are available for new programs.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective January 1, 2011.

Sec. 13. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 16A.11, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 8. **Deficiency requests.** By January 15 of each year, the commissioner of finance must notify the chair and ranking minority member of the senate Finance Committee and the chair and ranking minority member of the house of representatives Ways and Means Committee of any state agency requests to eliminate budget shortfalls likely to occur before the end of the legislative session.

Sec. 14. [16A.89] MAP OF MONEY USED TO SUPPORT CHILDREN.



Subdivision 1. **Resource map.** (a) After soliciting public input as required by paragraph (b), the commissioner shall use existing resources available to the department to design and oversee a pilot project to map all state expenditures, regardless of source, that serve the primary function of supporting the health, safety, permanence, growth, development, and education of children in this state. For purposes of this section, "children" includes individuals under 21 years of age.

(b) The commissioner shall solicit public input regarding the resource mapping required by this section by providing public notice of the mapping project and subsequent revisions on the Department of Finance Web site. The commissioner shall provide an opportunity for members of the public to provide suggestions for the design and development of the project. In particular, the commissioner shall seek suggestions and comments from individuals who have conducted relevant research at higher education institutions and from individuals with relevant experience at nonprofit institutions and foundations.

(c) The resource mapping must include, but is not limited to:

(1) an inventory of all federal and state funding sources that support children in this state, including prenatal services for pregnant women, grouped in a manner that would assist the legislature in determining whether there are overlapping programs that lead to duplication within the state, gaps in service delivery, and any administrative inefficiencies generally; and

(2) a description of the manner in which the money is being used within the agencies or organizations, the performance measures in place to assess the use of the money, and the intended outcomes of the programs and services, to the extent this information is available.

Subd. 2. **Updates.** As part of the report required under subdivision 4, the commissioner shall provide a description of the experience gained from the pilot project, including any necessary draft legislation regarding possible updates and enhancements to the map of the money used to support children in the state, and an opinion regarding the potential for expanding resource mapping to other areas of the state budget.

Subd. 3. **Agency assistance.** Upon request, each state department or agency shall provide assistance to the commissioner for the purposes of this section.

Subd. 4. **Report.** By January 15, 2010, the commissioner shall report to the legislative committees and budget divisions with jurisdiction over children, family security, education, health, human services, housing, public safety, corrections, and the judiciary by providing an electronic version of the executive summary included in the report required by this subdivision. The report must be available online.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective July 1, 2009.

Sec. 15. **[16A.90] EMPLOYEE SUGGESTION SYSTEM.**

The commissioner shall establish a program to solicit suggestions from state employees for ways to reduce the costs of operating state government or for ways of providing better or more efficient state services. The commissioner may make a onetime award to an employee or group of employees whose suggestion is determined by the commissioner to have resulted in documented cost-savings to the state. The maximum award is the lesser of ten percent of the documented savings in the first fiscal year in which the employee's suggestion is implemented or \$2,500. The award must be paid from the appropriation to which the savings accrued.

Sec. 16. [43A.015] DUTIES AND RIGHTS OF CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES.

State employees in the classified service are expected during their work hours to be nonpartisan resources for information, analysis, and advice, within their area of responsibility and expertise, to elected officials and their staffs in both executive and legislative branches of government. Workload concerns related to requests for information, analysis, and advice shall be mediated, if necessary, by management staff in a manner that ensures adequate and equitable access to the knowledge and expertise of the staff by both the executive and legislators. This section does not authorize or require an employee to disclose data that is not public data under chapter 13.

Sec. 17. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 181.932, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **Prohibited action.** An employer shall not discharge, discipline, threaten, otherwise discriminate against, or penalize an employee regarding the employee's compensation, terms, conditions, location, or privileges of employment because:

(1) the employee, or a person acting on behalf of an employee, in good faith, reports a violation or suspected violation of any federal or state law or rule adopted pursuant to law to an employer or to any governmental body or law enforcement official;

(2) the employee is requested by a public body or office to participate in an investigation, hearing, inquiry;

(3) the employee refuses an employer's order to perform an action that the employee has an objective basis in fact to believe violates any state or federal law or rule or regulation adopted pursuant to law, and the employee informs the employer that the order is being refused for that reason;

(4) the employee, in good faith, reports a situation in which the quality of health care services provided by a health care facility, organization, or health care provider violates a standard established by federal or state law or a professionally recognized national clinical or ethical standard and potentially places the public at risk of harm; or

(5) a public employee communicates the findings of a scientific or technical study that the employee, in good faith, believes to be truthful and accurate, including reports to a governmental body or law enforcement official; or

(6) an employee in the classified service of state government communicates information that the employee, in good faith, believes to be truthful and accurate, and that relates to state services, including the financing of state services to:

(i) a legislator or the legislative auditor; or

(ii) a constitutional officer.

The disclosures protected pursuant to this section do not authorize the disclosure of data otherwise protected by law.

Sec. 18. BUDGET WORKING GROUP.

By July 14, 2009, the commissioner of finance must convene a joint executive-legislative working group to evaluate the usefulness and benefits of the budget documents prepared in

accordance with the requirements of Minnesota Statutes, section 16A.11. The members of the working group must include executive branch staff and designees of the chairs of the senate Finance and house of representatives Ways and Means committees, including representatives of both the majority and minority parties. The appointing authorities from the legislative branch must complete their designations by July 1, 2009.

The working group must also examine the current availability and usefulness to the legislature and the public of state budget information, in both printed and electronic form. The working group must make recommendations, including draft legislation, if necessary, to improve the ability of the legislature and the public to use the information on state revenues and expenditures.

By December 10, 2009, the commissioner must report the progress of the working group to the Legislative Commission on Planning and Fiscal Policy, and other committees as appropriate.

The working group expires when the commissioner submits the report required by this section.

#### **Sec. 19. LICENSE REINSTATEMENT DIVERSION PILOT PROGRAM.**

Subdivision 1. **Establishment.** An eligible city may establish a license reinstatement diversion pilot program for holders of class D drivers' licenses who have been charged with violating Minnesota Statutes, section 171.24, subdivision 1 or 2, but have not yet entered a plea in the proceedings. An individual charged with driving after revocation under Minnesota Statutes, section 171.24, subdivision 2, is eligible for diversion only if the revocation was due to a violation of Minnesota Statutes, section 169.791; 169.797; 169A.52; 169A.54; or 171.17, subdivision 1, paragraph (a), clause (6). An individual who is a holder of a commercial driver's license or who has committed an offense in a commercial motor vehicle is ineligible for participation in the diversion pilot program.

Subd. 2. **Eligible cities.** Each of the cities of Duluth, St. Paul, South St. Paul, West St. Paul, and Inver Grove Heights is eligible to establish the license reinstatement diversion pilot program within its city.

Subd. 3. **Contract.** An eligible city may contract with a third party to create and administer the diversion program.

Subd. 4. **Diversion of individual.** A prosecutor for a participating city may determine whether to accept an individual for diversion, and in doing so shall consider:

- (1) whether the individual has a record of driving without a valid license or other criminal record, or has previously participated in a diversion program;
- (2) the strength of the evidence against the individual, along with any mitigating factors; and
- (3) the apparent ability and willingness of the individual to participate in the diversion program and comply with its requirements.

Subd. 5. **Diversion driver's license.** (a) The commissioner of public safety may issue a diversion driver's license to a person who is a participant in a pilot program for diversion, following receipt of an application and payment of:

- (1) the reinstatement fee under Minnesota Statutes, section 171.20, subdivision 4, by a participant whose driver's license has been suspended;

(2) the reinstatement fee under Minnesota Statutes, section 171.29, subdivision 2, paragraph (a), by a participant whose driver's license has been revoked under Minnesota Statutes, section 169.791; 169.797; or 171.17, subdivision 1, paragraph (a), clause (6); or

(3) the reinstatement fee under Minnesota Statutes, section 171.29, subdivision 2, paragraph (a), by a participant whose driver's license has been revoked under Minnesota Statutes, section 169A.52 or 169A.54. The reinstatement fee and surcharge, both of which are provided under Minnesota Statutes, section 171.29, subdivision 2, paragraph (b), also must be paid during the course of, and as a condition of, the diversion program.

The diversion driver's license may bear restrictions imposed by the commissioner suitable to the licensee's driving ability or other restrictions applicable to the licensee as the commissioner may determine to be appropriate to ensure the safe operation of a motor vehicle by the licensee.

(b) Payments by participants in the diversion program of the reinstatement fee and surcharge under Minnesota Statutes, section 171.29, subdivision 2, paragraph (b), must be applied first toward payment of the reinstatement fee, and after the reinstatement fee has been fully paid, toward payment of the surcharge. Each payment that is applied toward the reinstatement fee must be credited as provided in Minnesota Statutes, section 171.29, subdivision 2, paragraph (b), and each payment that is applied toward the surcharge must be credited as provided in Minnesota Statutes, section 171.29, subdivision 2, paragraphs (c) and (d).

Subd. 6. **Components of program.** (a) At a minimum, the diversion program must require individuals to:

(1) successfully attend and complete, at the individual's expense, educational classes that provide, among other things, information on drivers' licensure;

(2) pay, according to a schedule approved by the prosecutor, all required fees, fines, and charges, including applicable statutory license reinstatement fees and costs of participation in the program;

(3) comply with all traffic laws; and

(4) demonstrate compliance with vehicle insurance requirements.

(b) An individual who is accepted into the pilot program is eligible to apply for a diversion driver's license.

Subd. 7. **Termination of participation in diversion program.** (a) An individual's participation in the diversion program may terminate when:

(1) during participation in the program, the individual is guilty of a moving traffic violation or failure to provide vehicle insurance;

(2) the third-party administrator of the diversion program informs the court and the commissioner of public safety that the individual is no longer satisfying the conditions of the diversion; or

(3) the third-party administrator informs the court, the prosecutor, and the commissioner of public safety that the individual has met all conditions of the diversion program, including, at a minimum, satisfactory fulfillment of the components in subdivision 6, whereupon the court shall dismiss the charge or the prosecutor shall decline to prosecute.

(b) Upon termination of an individual's participation in the diversion program, the commissioner shall cancel the individual's diversion driver's license.

(c) The original charge against the individual of violation of Minnesota Statutes, section 171.24, may be reinstated against an individual whose participation in the diversion program terminates under paragraph (a), clause (1) or (2).

(d) The commissioner shall reinstate the driver's license of an individual whose participation in the diversion program terminates under paragraph (a), clause (3).

Subd. 8. **Report.** (a) By February 1, 2011, the commissioner of public safety and each eligible city that participates in the diversion program shall report to the legislative committees with jurisdiction over transportation and the judiciary concerning the results of the program. The report must be made electronically and be available in print only upon request. The report must include, without limitation, the effect of the program on:

(1) recidivism rates for participants in the diversion pilot program;

(2) the number of unlicensed drivers who continue to drive in violation of Minnesota Statutes, section 171.24;

(3) payment of the fees and fines collected in the diversion pilot program to cities, counties, and the state;

(4) educational support provided to participants in the diversion pilot program; and

(5) the total number of participants in the diversion pilot program and the number of participants who have terminated from the pilot program under subdivision 7, paragraph (a), clauses (1) to (3).

(b) The report must include recommendations regarding the future of the program and any necessary legislative changes.

Subd. 9. **Sunset.** The pilot project under this section expires June 30, 2011.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective July 1, 2009.

Sec. 20. **APPROPRIATION.**

\$763,000 in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2010, and \$536,000 in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011, is appropriated from the general fund to the commissioner of finance to carry out the duties imposed by this article.

\$187,000 in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2010, and \$180,000 in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011, is appropriated from the general fund to the commissioner of administration to carry out the duties imposed by this article.

Sec. 21. **REPEALER.**

(a) Minnesota Statutes 2008, sections 4A.06; and 16A.152, subdivision 1b, are repealed.

(b) Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 16C.046, is repealed.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** Paragraph (b) is effective the day following certification by the commissioner of finance that a new statewide accounting and procurement system has been

implemented.

Sec. 22. **EFFECTIVE DATE.**

Sections 1 to 3, 9 to 11, 13, 16 to 18, and 21 are effective the day following final enactment.

**ARTICLE 2**

**UNCLASSIFIED POSITIONS**

Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 15.06, subdivision 8, is amended to read:

Subd. 8. **Number of deputy commissioners.** ~~Unless specifically authorized by statute, other than section 43A.08, subdivision 2,~~ No department or agency specified in subdivision 1 shall have more than one deputy commissioner.

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 16B.03, is amended to read:

**16B.03 APPOINTMENTS.**

The commissioner is authorized to appoint staff, including ~~two~~ one deputy ~~commissioners~~ commissioner, in accordance with chapter 43A.

Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 43A.08, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **Unclassified positions.** Unclassified positions are held by employees who are:

- (1) chosen by election or appointed to fill an elective office;
- (2) heads of agencies required by law to be appointed by the governor or other elective officers, and the executive or administrative heads of departments, bureaus, divisions, and institutions specifically established by law in the unclassified service;
- (3) ~~deputy and assistant~~ agency heads and one confidential secretary in the agencies listed in ~~subdivision 1a and in the Office of Strategic and Long Range Planning~~ section 15.06, subdivision 1;
- (4) the confidential secretary to each of the elective officers of this state and, for the secretary of state and state auditor, an additional deputy, clerk, or employee;
- (5) intermittent help employed by the commissioner of public safety to assist in the issuance of vehicle licenses;
- (6) employees in the offices of the governor and of the lieutenant governor and one confidential employee for the governor in the Office of the Adjutant General;
- (7) employees of the Washington, D.C., office of the state of Minnesota;
- (8) employees of the legislature and of legislative committees or commissions; provided that employees of the Legislative Audit Commission, except for the legislative auditor, the deputy legislative auditors, and their confidential secretaries, shall be employees in the classified service;
- (9) presidents, vice-presidents, deans, other managers and professionals in academic and academic support programs, administrative or service faculty, teachers, research assistants,

and student employees eligible under terms of the federal Economic Opportunity Act work study program in the Perpich Center for Arts Education and the Minnesota State Colleges and Universities, but not the custodial, clerical, or maintenance employees, or any professional or managerial employee performing duties in connection with the business administration of these institutions;

(10) officers and enlisted persons in the National Guard;

(11) attorneys, legal assistants, and three confidential employees appointed by the attorney general or employed with the attorney general's authorization;

(12) judges and all employees of the judicial branch, referees, receivers, jurors, and notaries public, except referees and adjusters employed by the Department of Labor and Industry;

(13) members of the State Patrol; provided that selection and appointment of State Patrol troopers must be made in accordance with applicable laws governing the classified service;

(14) examination monitors and intermittent training instructors employed by the Departments of Finance and Commerce and by professional examining boards and intermittent staff employed by the technical colleges for the administration of practical skills tests and for the staging of instructional demonstrations;

(15) student workers;

(16) executive directors or executive secretaries appointed by and reporting to any policy-making board or commission established by statute;

(17) employees unclassified pursuant to other statutory authority;

(18) intermittent help employed by the commissioner of agriculture to perform duties relating to pesticides, fertilizer, and seed regulation;

(19) the administrators and the deputy administrators at the State Academies for the Deaf and the Blind; and

(20) chief executive officers in the Department of Human Services.

Sec. 4. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 45.013, is amended to read:

**45.013 POWER TO APPOINT STAFF.**

The commissioner of commerce may appoint ~~four one deputy commissioners, four assistant commissioners, and an assistant to the commissioner. Those positions, as well as that of and a confidential secretary, are~~ in the unclassified service. The commissioner may appoint other employees necessary to carry out the duties and responsibilities entrusted to the commissioner.

Sec. 5. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 84.01, subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. **Employees; delegation.** ~~Subject to the provisions of Laws 1969, chapter 1129, and to other applicable laws~~ The commissioner shall organize the department and employ ~~up to three assistant commissioners, each of whom shall serve at the pleasure of the commissioner in the unclassified service, one of whom shall have responsibility for coordinating and directing the planning of every division within the agency, and such other officers, employees, and agents as the~~

commissioner may deem necessary to discharge the functions of the department, define the duties of such officers, employees, and agents and to delegate to them any of the commissioner's powers, duties, and responsibilities subject to the control of, and under the conditions prescribed by, the commissioner. Appointments to exercise delegated power shall be by written order filed with the secretary of state.

Sec. 6. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 116.03, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **Office.** (a) The office of commissioner of the Pollution Control Agency is created and is under the supervision and control of the commissioner, who is appointed by the governor under the provisions of section 15.06.

(b) The commissioner may appoint a deputy commissioner ~~and assistant commissioners~~ who shall be in the unclassified service.

(c) The commissioner shall make all decisions on behalf of the agency that are not required to be made by the agency under section 116.02.

Sec. 7. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 116J.01, subdivision 5, is amended to read:

Subd. 5. **Departmental organization.** (a) The commissioner shall organize the department as provided in section 15.06.

(b) The commissioner may establish divisions and offices within the department. ~~The commissioner may employ four deputy commissioners in the unclassified service.~~

(c) The commissioner shall:

(1) employ assistants and other officers, employees, and agents that the commissioner considers necessary to discharge the functions of the commissioner's office;

(2) define the duties of the officers, employees, and agents, and delegate to them any of the commissioner's powers, duties, and responsibilities, subject to the commissioner's control and under conditions prescribed by the commissioner.

(d) The commissioner shall ensure that there are at least three employment and economic development officers in state offices in nonmetropolitan areas of the state who will work with local units of government on developing local employment and economic development.

Sec. 8. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 116J.035, subdivision 4, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. **Delegation of powers.** The commissioner may delegate, in written orders filed with the secretary of state, any powers or duties subject to the commissioner's control to officers and employees in the department. Regardless of any other law, the commissioner may delegate the execution of specific contracts or specific types of contracts to the commissioner's ~~deputies~~ deputy, an assistant commissioner, or a program director if the delegation has been approved by the commissioner of administration and filed with the secretary of state.

Sec. 9. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 174.02, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. **Unclassified positions.** The commissioner may ~~establish four positions in the unclassified service at the~~ appoint a deputy ~~and assistant commissioner, assistant to commissioner~~



~~or and a personal secretary levels. No more than two of these positions shall be at the deputy commissioner level in the unclassified service.~~

Sec. 10. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 241.01, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. ~~Deputies~~ **Deputy**. The commissioner of corrections may appoint and employ ~~no more than two~~ a deputy commissioner commissioner. The commissioner may also appoint a personal secretary, who shall serve at the commissioner's pleasure in the unclassified civil service.

Sec. 11. **APPROPRIATION REDUCTION.**

The commissioner of finance shall determine the costs of salaries and economic benefits attributable to the positions eliminated by this article and reduce the appropriation to each affected agency accordingly. The total reduction to general fund appropriations must be at least \$3,871,000 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2010, and \$3,871,000 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011.

Sec. 12. **REPEALER.**

Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 43A.08, subdivision 1b, is repealed."

Amend the title as follows:

Page 1, line 4, after the first semicolon, insert "requiring a report on Minnesota milestones performance measures;"

Page 1, line 7, after the semicolon, insert "requiring a searchable database of state expenditures; requiring a map of money used to support children; reducing the number of deputy commissioners and eliminating assistant commissioner positions in the unclassified service;"

Page 1, delete line 8 and insert "employees; requiring a budget working group; creating pilot program for driver's license reinstatement diversion for individuals charged with driving without valid license; eliminating obsolete requirements; appropriating money;"

Amend the title numbers accordingly

And when so amended the bill do pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Rules and Administration. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

**Senator Cohen from the Committee on Finance, to which was referred**

**S.F. No. 1328:** A bill for an act relating to education; providing for early childhood education and family, kindergarten through grade 12, and adult education, including general education, education excellence, special programs, facilities and technology, nutrition and accounting, libraries, early childhood education, prevention, self-sufficiency and lifelong learning, state agencies, and technical and conforming amendments; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 2008, sections 122A.415, by adding subdivisions; 126C.10, subdivisions 2, 13a, 13b, 29, 30, 32, 33, 34, 35, 36; 126C.13, subdivision 4, by adding subdivisions; 127A.45, subdivisions 2, 3, 13, by adding a subdivision; 127A.49, subdivisions 2, 3; repealing Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 126C.10, subdivisions 13a, 13b, 29, 30, 32, 33, 34, 35, 36; Laws 2008, chapter 363, article 2, section 48.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert:

**"ARTICLE 1**

**GENERAL EDUCATION**

Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 16A.06, subdivision 11, is amended to read:

Subd. 11. **Permanent school fund reporting.** The commissioner shall ~~biannually~~ annually report to the Permanent School Fund Advisory Committee and the legislature ~~on the management of the permanent school trust fund that shows how the commissioner~~ the amount of the permanent school fund transfer and information about the investment of the permanent school fund provided by the State Board of Investment. The State Board of Investment shall provide information about how they maximized the long-term economic return of the permanent school trust fund.

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 120A.40, is amended to read:

**120A.40 SCHOOL CALENDAR.**

(a) Except for learning programs during summer, flexible learning year programs authorized under sections 124D.12 to 124D.127, and learning year programs under section 124D.128, a district must not commence an elementary or secondary school year before Labor Day, except as provided under paragraph (b). Days devoted to teachers' workshops may be held before Labor Day. Districts that enter into cooperative agreements are encouraged to adopt similar school calendars.

(b) A district may begin the school year on any day before Labor Day:

(1) to accommodate a construction or remodeling project of \$400,000 or more affecting a district school facility;

(2) if the district has an agreement under section 123A.30, 123A.32, or 123A.35 with a district that qualifies under clause (1); or

~~A school (3) if the district that agrees to the same schedule with a school district in an adjoining state also may begin the school year before Labor Day as authorized under this paragraph.~~

Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 120A.41, is amended to read:

**120A.41 LENGTH OF SCHOOL YEAR; ~~DAYS~~ HOURS OF INSTRUCTION.**

~~A school board's annual school calendar must include at least the number of days of student instruction the board formally adopted as its school calendar at the beginning of the 1996-1997 school year 425 hours of instruction for a kindergarten student without a disability, 935 hours of instruction for a student in grades 1 through 6, and 1,020 hours of instruction for a student in grades 7 through 12, not including summer school.~~

Sec. 4. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 123B.14, subdivision 7, is amended to read:

Subd. 7. **Clerk records.** The clerk shall keep a record of all meetings of the district and the board in books provided by the district for that purpose. The clerk shall, within three days after an election, notify all persons elected of their election. By ~~August~~ September 15 of each year the clerk shall file with the board a report of the revenues, expenditures and balances in each fund for the preceding fiscal year. The report together with vouchers and supporting documents shall

subsequently be examined by a public accountant or the state auditor, either of whom shall be paid by the district, as provided in section 123B.77, subdivision 3. The board shall by resolution approve the report or require a further or amended report. By ~~August~~ September 15 of each year, the clerk shall make and transmit to the commissioner certified reports, showing:

- (1) ~~The condition and value of school property;~~
- (~~2~~) the revenues and expenditures in detail, and such other financial information required by law, rule, or as may be called for by the commissioner;
- (~~3~~) (2) the length of school term and the enrollment and attendance by grades; and
- (~~4~~) (3) such other items of information as may be called for by the commissioner.

The clerk shall enter in the clerk's record book copies of all reports and of the teachers' term reports, as they appear in the registers, and of the proceedings of any meeting as furnished by the clerk pro tem, and keep an itemized account of all the expenses of the district. The clerk shall furnish to the auditor of the proper county, by ~~October 10~~ September 30 of each year, an attested copy of the clerk's record, showing the amount of ~~money proposed property tax~~ voted by the district or the board for school purposes; draw and sign all orders upon the treasurer for the payment of money for bills allowed by the board for salaries of officers and for teachers' wages and all claims, to be countersigned by the chair. Such orders must state the consideration, payee, and the fund and the clerk shall take a receipt therefor. Teachers' wages shall have preference in the order in which they become due, and no money applicable for teachers' wages shall be used for any other purpose, nor shall teachers' wages be paid from any fund except that raised or apportioned for that purpose.

Sec. 5. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 123B.42, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **Providing education materials and tests.** The commissioner of education shall promulgate rules under the provisions of chapter 14 requiring that in each school year, based upon formal requests by or on behalf of nonpublic school pupils in a nonpublic school with enrollment that exceeds 15 students, the local districts or intermediary service areas must purchase or otherwise acquire textbooks, individualized instructional or cooperative learning materials, and standardized tests and loan or provide them for use by children enrolled in that nonpublic school. These textbooks, individualized instructional or cooperative learning materials, and standardized tests must be loaned or provided free to the children for the school year for which requested. The loan or provision of the textbooks, individualized instructional or cooperative learning materials, and standardized tests shall be subject to rules prescribed by the commissioner of education.

Sec. 6. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 123B.44, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **Provided services.** The commissioner of education shall promulgate rules under the provisions of chapter 14 requiring each district or other intermediary service area: (a) to provide each year upon formal request by a specific date by or on behalf of a nonpublic school pupil enrolled in a nonpublic school located in that district or area with a total enrollment of more than 15 pupils, the same specific health services as are provided for public school pupils by the district where the nonpublic school is located; and (b) to provide each year upon formal request by a specific date by or on behalf of a nonpublic school secondary pupil enrolled in a nonpublic school located in that district or area, the same specific guidance and counseling services as are provided for public school secondary pupils by the district where the nonpublic school is located. The district where the

nonpublic school is located must provide the necessary transportation within the district boundaries between the nonpublic school and a public school or neutral site for nonpublic school pupils who are provided pupil support services under this section if the district elects to provide pupil support services at a site other than the nonpublic school. Each request for pupil support services must set forth the guidance and counseling or health services requested by or on behalf of all eligible nonpublic school pupils enrolled in a given nonpublic school. No district or intermediary service area must not expend an amount for these pupil support services which exceeds the amount allotted to it under this section.

Sec. 7. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 123B.77, subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. **Statement for comparison and correction.** (a) By November 30 of the calendar year of the submission of the unaudited financial data, the district must provide to the commissioner audited financial data for the preceding fiscal year. The audit must be conducted in compliance with generally accepted governmental auditing standards, the federal Single Audit Act, and the Minnesota legal compliance guide issued by the Office of the State Auditor. An audited financial statement prepared in a form which will allow comparison with and correction of material differences in the unaudited financial data shall be submitted to the commissioner and the state auditor by December 31. The audited financial statement must also provide a statement of assurance pertaining to uniform financial accounting and reporting standards compliance and a copy of the management letter submitted to the district by the school district's auditor.

(b) By ~~January~~ February 15 of the calendar year following the submission of the unaudited financial data, the commissioner shall convert the audited financial data required by this subdivision into the consolidated financial statement format required under subdivision 1a and publish the information on the department's Web site.

Sec. 8. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 123B.81, subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. **Debt verification.** The commissioner shall establish a uniform auditing or other verification procedure for districts to determine whether a statutory operating debt exists in any Minnesota school district ~~as of June 30, 1977. This procedure must identify all interfund transfers made during fiscal year 1977 from a fund included in computing statutory operating debt to a fund not included in computing statutory operating debt.~~ The standards for this uniform auditing or verification procedure must be promulgated by the state board pursuant to chapter 14. If a district applies to the commissioner for a statutory operating debt verification ~~or if the unaudited financial statement for the school year ending June 30, 1977 reveals that a statutory operating debt might exist,~~ the commissioner shall require a verification of the amount of the statutory operating debt which actually does exist.

Sec. 9. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 123B.81, subdivision 4, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. **Debt elimination.** If an audit or other verification procedure conducted pursuant to subdivision 3 determines that a statutory operating debt exists, a district must follow the procedures ~~set forth in this section~~ 123B.83 to eliminate this statutory operating debt.

Sec. 10. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 123B.81, subdivision 5, is amended to read:

Subd. 5. **Certification of debt.** The commissioner shall certify the amount of statutory operating debt for each district. ~~Prior to June 30, 1979, the commissioner may, on the basis of corrected figures,~~

~~adjust the total amount of statutory operating debt certified for any district.~~

Sec. 11. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 123B.83, subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. **Failure to limit expenditures.** If a district does not limit its expenditures in accordance with this section, the commissioner may so notify the appropriate committees of the legislature by no later than ~~January 4~~ February 15 of the year following the end of that fiscal year.

Sec. 12. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 124D.10, subdivision 13, is amended to read:

Subd. 13. **Length of school year.** A charter school must provide instruction each year for at least the number of ~~days~~ hours required by section 120A.41. It may provide instruction throughout the year according to sections 124D.12 to 124D.127 or 124D.128.

Sec. 13. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 125A.11, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **Nonresident tuition rate; other costs.** (a) For fiscal year 2006, when a school district provides instruction and services outside the district of residence, board and lodging, and any tuition to be paid, shall be paid by the district of residence. The tuition rate to be charged for any child with a disability, excluding a pupil for whom tuition is calculated according to section 127A.47, subdivision 7, paragraph (d), must be the sum of (1) the actual cost of providing special instruction and services to the child including a proportionate amount for special transportation and unreimbursed building lease and debt service costs for facilities used primarily for special education, plus (2) the amount of general education revenue and referendum aid attributable to the pupil, minus (3) the amount of special education aid for children with a disability received on behalf of that child, minus (4) if the pupil receives special instruction and services outside the regular classroom for more than 60 percent of the school day, the amount of general education revenue and referendum aid, excluding portions attributable to district and school administration, district support services, operations and maintenance, capital expenditures, and pupil transportation, attributable to that pupil for the portion of time the pupil receives special instruction and services outside of the regular classroom. If the boards involved do not agree upon the tuition rate, either board may apply to the commissioner to fix the rate. Notwithstanding chapter 14, the commissioner must then set a date for a hearing or request a written statement from each board, giving each board at least ten days' notice, and after the hearing or review of the written statements the commissioner must make an order fixing the tuition rate, which is binding on both school districts. General education revenue and referendum equalization aid attributable to a pupil must be calculated using the resident district's average general education revenue and referendum equalization aid per adjusted pupil unit.

(b) For fiscal year 2007 and later, when a school district provides special instruction and services for a pupil with a disability as defined in section 125A.02 outside the district of residence, excluding a pupil for whom an adjustment to special education aid is calculated according to section 127A.47, subdivision 7, paragraph (e), special education aid paid to the resident district must be reduced by an amount equal to (1) the actual cost of providing special instruction and services to the pupil, including a proportionate amount for special transportation and unreimbursed building lease and debt service costs for facilities used primarily for special education, plus (2) the amount of general education revenue and referendum equalization aid attributable to that pupil, calculated using the resident district's average general education revenue and referendum equalization aid per adjusted pupil unit excluding basic skills revenue, elementary sparsity revenue and secondary sparsity revenue, minus (3) the amount of special education aid for children with a disability received on behalf of that child, minus (4) if the pupil receives special instruction and

services outside the regular classroom for more than 60 percent of the school day, the amount of general education revenue and referendum equalization aid, excluding portions attributable to district and school administration, district support services, operations and maintenance, capital expenditures, and pupil transportation, attributable to that pupil for the portion of time the pupil receives special instruction and services outside of the regular classroom, calculated using the resident district's average general education revenue and referendum equalization aid per adjusted pupil unit excluding basic skills revenue, elementary sparsity revenue and secondary sparsity revenue and the serving district's basic skills revenue, elementary sparsity revenue and secondary sparsity revenue per adjusted pupil unit. Notwithstanding clauses (1) and (4), for pupils served by a cooperative unit without a fiscal agent school district, the general education revenue and referendum equalization aid attributable to a pupil must be calculated using the resident district's average general education revenue and referendum equalization aid excluding compensatory revenue, elementary sparsity revenue, and secondary sparsity revenue. Special education aid paid to the district or cooperative providing special instruction and services for the pupil must be increased by the amount of the reduction in the aid paid to the resident district. Amounts paid to cooperatives under this subdivision and section 127A.47, subdivision 7, shall be recognized and reported as revenues and expenditures on the resident school district's books of account under sections 123B.75 and 123B.76. If the resident district's special education aid is insufficient to make the full adjustment, the remaining adjustment shall be made to other state aid due to the district.

(c) Notwithstanding paragraphs (a) and (b) and section 127A.47, subdivision 7, paragraphs (d) and (e), a charter school where more than 30 percent of enrolled students receive special education and related services, a site approved under section 125A.515, an intermediate district, a special education cooperative, or a school district that served as the applicant agency for a group of school districts for federal special education aids for fiscal year 2006 may apply to the commissioner for authority to charge the resident district an additional amount to recover any remaining unreimbursed costs of serving pupils with a disability. The application must include a description of the costs and the calculations used to determine the unreimbursed portion to be charged to the resident district. Amounts approved by the commissioner under this paragraph must be included in the tuition billings or aid adjustments under paragraph (a) or (b), or section 127A.47, subdivision 7, paragraph (d) or (e), as applicable.

(d) For purposes of this subdivision and section 127A.47, subdivision 7, paragraphs (d) and (e), "general education revenue and referendum equalization aid" means the sum of the general education revenue according to section 126C.10, subdivision 1, excluding alternative teacher compensation revenue, plus the referendum equalization aid according to section 126C.17, subdivision 7, as adjusted according to section 127A.47, subdivision 7, paragraphs (a) to (c).

Sec. 14. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 126C.05, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. **Foreign exchange pupils.** Notwithstanding section 124D.02, subdivision 3, or any other law to the contrary, a foreign exchange pupil enrolled in a district under a cultural exchange program registered with the Office of the Secretary of State under section 5A.02 may be counted as a resident pupil for the purposes of this chapter and chapters 120B, 122A, 123A, 123B, 124D, 125A, and 127A, even if the pupil has graduated from high school or the equivalent.

Sec. 15. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 126C.10, subdivision 2a, is amended to read:

Subd. 2a. **Extended time revenue.** (a) ~~A school district's~~ The extended time revenue is equal to

for a school district with extended time average daily membership in the current fiscal year equals the product of \$4,601 and the sum of the adjusted marginal cost pupil units of the district for each pupil in average daily membership in excess of 1.0 and less than 1.2 according to section 126C.05, subdivision 8.

(b) A school district's extended time revenue may be used for extended day programs, extended week programs, summer school, and other programming authorized under the learning year program.

Sec. 16. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 126C.10, subdivision 13a, is amended to read:

Subd. 13a. **Operating capital levy.** To obtain operating capital revenue for fiscal year ~~2007~~ years 2009 and later 2010, a district may levy an amount not more than the product of its operating capital revenue for the fiscal year times the lesser of one or the ratio of its adjusted net tax capacity per adjusted marginal cost pupil unit to the operating capital equalizing factor. The operating capital equalizing factor equals \$22,222 for fiscal year 2006, and \$10,700 for fiscal year ~~2007~~ years 2009 and later 2010.

Sec. 17. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 126C.10, subdivision 13b, is amended to read:

Subd. 13b. **Operating capital aid.** For fiscal years 2009 and 2010, a district's operating capital aid equals its operating capital revenue minus its operating capital levy times the ratio of the actual amount levied to the permitted levy.

Sec. 18. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 126C.10, subdivision 29, is amended to read:

Subd. 29. **Equity levy.** To obtain equity revenue for fiscal year ~~2005~~ years 2009 and later 2010, a district may levy an amount not more than the product of its equity revenue for the fiscal year times the lesser of one or the ratio of its referendum market value per resident marginal cost pupil unit to \$476,000.

Sec. 19. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 126C.10, subdivision 30, is amended to read:

Subd. 30. **Equity aid.** For fiscal years 2009 and 2010, a district's equity aid equals its equity revenue minus its equity levy times the ratio of the actual amount levied to the permitted levy.

Sec. 20. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 126C.10, subdivision 32, is amended to read:

Subd. 32. **Transition levy.** To obtain transition revenue for fiscal year ~~2005~~ years 2009 and later 2010, a district may levy an amount not more than the product of its transition revenue for the fiscal year times the lesser of one or the ratio of its referendum market value per resident marginal cost pupil unit to \$476,000.

Sec. 21. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 126C.10, subdivision 33, is amended to read:

Subd. 33. **Transition aid.** (a) For fiscal year 2004, a district's transition aid equals its transition revenue.

(b) For fiscal year ~~2005~~ years 2009 and later 2010, a district's transition aid equals its transition revenue minus its transition levy times the ratio of the actual amount levied to the permitted levy.

Sec. 22. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 126C.10, subdivision 34, is amended to read:

Subd. 34. **Basic alternative teacher compensation aid.** (a) For fiscal years ~~2007 and later~~ year 2009 only, the basic alternative teacher compensation aid for a school district with a plan approved under section 122A.414, subdivision 2b, equals ~~65~~ 73.1 percent of the alternative teacher compensation revenue under section 122A.415, subdivision 1. The basic alternative teacher compensation aid for an intermediate school district or charter school with a plan approved under section 122A.414, subdivisions 2a and 2b, if the recipient is a charter school, equals \$260 times the number of pupils enrolled in the school on October 1 of the previous fiscal year, or on October 1 of the current fiscal year for a charter school in the first year of operation, times the ratio of the sum of the alternative teacher compensation aid and alternative teacher compensation levy for all participating school districts to the maximum alternative teacher compensation revenue for those districts under section 122A.415, subdivision 1.

(b) For fiscal year 2010 only, the basic alternative teacher compensation aid for a school with a plan approved under section 122A.414, subdivision 2b, equals 65 percent of the alternative teacher compensation revenue under section 122A.415, subdivision 1. The basic alternative teacher compensation aid for an intermediate school district or charter school with a plan approved under section 122A.414, subdivisions 2a and 2b, if the recipient is a charter school, equals \$260 times the number of pupils enrolled in the school on October 1 of the previous year, or on October 1 of the current year for a charter school in the first year of operation, times the ratio of the sum of the alternative teacher compensation aid and alternative teacher compensation levy for all participating school districts to the maximum alternative teacher compensation revenue for those districts under section 122A.415, subdivision 1.

(c) Notwithstanding paragraphs (a) and (b) and section 122A.415, subdivision 1, the state total basic alternative teacher compensation aid entitlement must not exceed \$75,636,000 for fiscal year 2007 and later \$51,838,000 for fiscal year 2009 and \$56,097,000 for fiscal year 2010. The commissioner must limit the amount of alternative teacher compensation aid approved under section 122A.415 so as not to exceed these limits.

Sec. 23. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 126C.10, subdivision 35, is amended to read:

Subd. 35. **Alternative teacher compensation levy.** For fiscal year ~~2007~~ years 2009 and later 2010, the alternative teacher compensation levy for a district receiving basic alternative teacher compensation aid equals the product of (1) the difference between the district's alternative teacher compensation revenue and the district's basic alternative teacher compensation aid times (2) the lesser of one or the ratio of the district's adjusted net tax capacity per adjusted pupil unit to \$5,913.

Sec. 24. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 126C.10, subdivision 36, is amended to read:

Subd. 36. **Alternative teacher compensation aid.** (a) For fiscal year ~~2007~~ years 2009 and later 2010, a district's alternative teacher compensation equalization aid equals the district's alternative teacher compensation revenue minus the district's basic alternative teacher compensation aid minus the district's alternative teacher compensation levy. If a district does not levy the entire amount permitted, the alternative teacher compensation equalization aid must be reduced in proportion to the actual amount levied.

(b) A district's alternative teacher compensation aid equals the sum of the district's basic alternative teacher compensation aid and the district's alternative teacher compensation equalization aid.



Sec. 25. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 126C.13, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 3a. **Consolidated tax rate.** The commissioner must establish the consolidated tax rate by July 1 of each year for levies payable in the following year. The consolidated tax capacity rate must be a rate rounded up to the nearest hundredth of a percent that, when applied to the adjusted net tax capacity for all districts, raises the amounts specified in this subdivision. The consolidated tax rate must be the rate that raises \$227,259,000 for fiscal year 2011, \$428,674,000 for fiscal year 2012, and \$584,940,000 for fiscal year 2013 and later years. The consolidated tax rate may not be changed due to changes or corrections made to a district's adjusted net tax capacity after the tax rate has been established. A school district may adopt a board resolution to reduce its levy below the amount calculated in this section.

Sec. 26. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 126C.13, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 3b. **Consolidated levy.** To obtain general education revenue, a district may levy an amount not to exceed the consolidated tax rate times the adjusted net tax capacity of the district for the preceding year. If the amount of the consolidated levy would exceed the general education revenue, the consolidated levy must be determined according to subdivision 3c. If a district adopts a board resolution to reduce its consolidated levy according to subdivision 3a, the district's general education aid shall be reduced proportionately.

Sec. 27. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 126C.13, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 3c. **Consolidated levy; districts off the formula.** If the amount of the consolidated levy for a district exceeds the district's general education revenue, the amount of the consolidated levy must be limited to the following:

- (1) the district's general education revenue; minus
- (2) payments made for the same school year according to section 126C.21, subdivision 3.

For purposes of statutory cross-reference, a levy made according to this subdivision shall be construed to be the levy made according to subdivision 3b.

Sec. 28. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 126C.13, subdivision 4, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. **General education aid.** (a) For fiscal years ~~2007~~ 2009 and ~~later~~ 2010, a district's general education aid is the sum of the following amounts:

- (1) general education revenue, excluding equity revenue, total operating capital revenue, alternative teacher compensation revenue, and transition revenue;
- (2) operating capital aid under section 126C.10, subdivision 13b;
- (3) equity aid under section 126C.10, subdivision 30;
- (4) alternative teacher compensation aid under section 126C.10, subdivision 36;
- (5) transition aid under section 126C.10, subdivision 33;
- (6) shared time aid under section 126C.01, subdivision 7;
- (7) referendum aid under section 126C.17, subdivisions 7 and 7a; and

(8) online learning aid according to section 124D.096.

(b) For fiscal year 2011 and later, a district's general education aid is the sum of the following amounts:

(1) the product of:

(i) the difference between the general education revenue and the consolidated levy; times

(ii) the ratio of the actual amount levied to the permitted levy;

(2) shared time aid according to section 126C.01, subdivision 7;

(3) referendum aid according to section 126C.17, subdivisions 7 and 7a; and

(4) online learning aid according to section 124D.096.

Sec. 29. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 126C.15, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. **Building allocation.** (a) A district must allocate its compensatory revenue to each school building in the district where the children who have generated the revenue are served unless the school district has received permission under Laws 2005, First Special Session chapter 5, article 1, section 50, to allocate compensatory revenue according to student performance measures developed by the school board.

(b) Notwithstanding paragraph (a), a district may allocate up to five percent of the amount of compensatory revenue that the district receives to school sites according to a plan adopted by the school board. The money reallocated under this paragraph must be spent for the purposes listed in subdivision 1, but may be spent on students in any grade, including students attending school readiness or other prekindergarten programs.

(c) For the purposes of this section and section 126C.05, subdivision 3, "building" means education site as defined in section 123B.04, subdivision 1.

~~(d) If the pupil is served at a site other than one owned and operated by the district, the revenue shall be paid to the district and used for services for pupils who generate the revenue~~  
Notwithstanding section 123A. 26, subdivision 1, compensatory revenue generated by students served at a cooperative unit shall be paid to the cooperative unit.

(e) A district with school building openings, school building closings, changes in attendance area boundaries, or other changes in programs or student demographics between the prior year and the current year may reallocate compensatory revenue among sites to reflect these changes. A district must report to the department any adjustments it makes according to this paragraph and the department must use the adjusted compensatory revenue allocations in preparing the report required under section 123B.76, subdivision 3, paragraph (c).

Sec. 30. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 126C.15, subdivision 4, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. **Separate accounts.** Each district and cooperative unit that receives basic skills revenue shall maintain separate accounts to identify expenditures for salaries and programs related to basic skills revenue.

Sec. 31. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 126C.17, subdivision 9, is amended to read:

Subd. 9. **Referendum revenue.** (a) The revenue authorized by section 126C.10, subdivision 1, may be increased in the amount approved by the voters of the district at a referendum called for the purpose. The referendum may be called by the board ~~or shall be called by the board upon written petition of qualified voters of the district.~~ The referendum must be conducted one or two calendar years before the increased levy authority, if approved, first becomes payable. Only one election to approve an increase may be held in a calendar year. Unless the referendum is conducted by mail under subdivision 11, paragraph (a), the referendum must be held on the first Tuesday after the first Monday in November. The ballot must state the maximum amount of the increased revenue per resident marginal cost pupil unit. The ballot may state a schedule, determined by the board, of increased revenue per resident marginal cost pupil unit that differs from year to year over the number of years for which the increased revenue is authorized or may state that the amount shall increase annually by the rate of inflation. For this purpose, the rate of inflation shall be the annual inflationary increase calculated under subdivision 2, paragraph (b). The ballot may state that existing referendum levy authority is expiring. In this case, the ballot may also compare the proposed levy authority to the existing expiring levy authority, and express the proposed increase as the amount, if any, over the expiring referendum levy authority. The ballot must designate the specific number of years, not to exceed ten, for which the referendum authorization applies. The ballot, including a ballot on the question to revoke or reduce the increased revenue amount under paragraph (c), must abbreviate the term "per resident marginal cost pupil unit" as "per pupil." The notice required under section 275.60 may be modified to read, in cases of renewing existing levies at the same amount per pupil as in the previous year:

"BY VOTING "YES" ON THIS BALLOT QUESTION, YOU ARE VOTING TO EXTEND AN EXISTING PROPERTY TAX REFERENDUM THAT IS SCHEDULED TO EXPIRE."

The ballot may contain a textual portion with the information required in this subdivision and a question stating substantially the following:

"Shall the increase in the revenue proposed by (petition to) the board of ....., School District No. ..., be approved?"

If approved, an amount equal to the approved revenue per resident marginal cost pupil unit times the resident marginal cost pupil units for the school year beginning in the year after the levy is certified shall be authorized for certification for the number of years approved, if applicable, or until revoked or reduced by the voters of the district at a subsequent referendum.

(b) The board must prepare and deliver by first class mail at least 15 days but no more than 30 days before the day of the referendum to each taxpayer a notice of the referendum and the proposed revenue increase. The board need not mail more than one notice to any taxpayer. For the purpose of giving mailed notice under this subdivision, owners must be those shown to be owners on the records of the county auditor or, in any county where tax statements are mailed by the county treasurer, on the records of the county treasurer. Every property owner whose name does not appear on the records of the county auditor or the county treasurer is deemed to have waived this mailed notice unless the owner has requested in writing that the county auditor or county treasurer, as the case may be, include the name on the records for this purpose. The notice must project the anticipated amount of tax increase in annual dollars for typical residential homesteads, agricultural homesteads, apartments, and commercial-industrial property within the school district.

The notice for a referendum may state that an existing referendum levy is expiring and project

the anticipated amount of increase over the existing referendum levy in the first year, if any, in annual dollars for typical residential homesteads, agricultural homesteads, apartments, and commercial-industrial property within the district.

The notice must include the following statement: "Passage of this referendum will result in an increase in your property taxes." However, in cases of renewing existing levies, the notice may include the following statement: "Passage of this referendum extends an existing operating referendum at the same amount per pupil as in the previous year."

(c) A referendum on the question of revoking or reducing the increased revenue amount authorized pursuant to paragraph (a) may be called by the board ~~and shall be called by the board upon the written petition of qualified voters of the district.~~ A referendum to revoke or reduce the revenue amount must state the amount per resident marginal cost pupil unit by which the authority is to be reduced. Revenue authority approved by the voters of the district pursuant to paragraph (a) must be available to the school district at least once before it is subject to a referendum on its revocation or reduction for subsequent years. Only one revocation or reduction referendum may be held to revoke or reduce referendum revenue for any specific year and for years thereafter.

~~(d) A petition authorized by paragraph (a) or (c) is effective if signed by a number of qualified voters in excess of 15 percent of the registered voters of the district on the day the petition is filed with the board. A referendum invoked by petition must be held on the date specified in paragraph (a).~~

~~(e)~~ The approval of 50 percent plus one of those voting on the question is required to pass a referendum authorized by this subdivision.

~~(f)~~ (e) At least 15 days before the day of the referendum, the district must submit a copy of the notice required under paragraph (b) to the commissioner and to the county auditor of each county in which the district is located. Within 15 days after the results of the referendum have been certified by the board, or in the case of a recount, the certification of the results of the recount by the canvassing board, the district must notify the commissioner of the results of the referendum.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective for petitions filed after July 1, 2009.

Sec. 32. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 126C.21, subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. **County apportionment deduction.** Each year the amount of money apportioned to a district for that year pursuant to sections 127A.34, subdivision 2, and 272.029, subdivision 6, multiplied by the wind energy factor according to section 127A.335, must be deducted from the general education aid earned by that district for the same year or from aid earned from other state sources.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective for fiscal year 2010 and later.

Sec. 33. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 126C.21, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 6. **Statewide average daily membership aid adjustment.** Each year the commissioner shall reduce the general education aid earned by school districts and charter schools based on the statewide average daily membership aid adjustment. The commissioner shall apportion the statewide average daily membership aid adjustment based on each district and charter school's proportionate share of the statewide total adjusted average daily membership for that year. The

statewide average daily membership aid adjustment for fiscal year 2010 is \$544,003,000. The statewide average daily membership aid adjustment for fiscal year 2011 is \$424,385,000. The statewide average daily membership aid adjustment for fiscal year 2012 is \$271,000,000. The statewide average daily membership aid adjustment for fiscal year 2013 is \$190,322,000. The statewide average daily membership aid adjustment for fiscal year 2014 and later is \$100,000,000. The statewide average daily membership aid adjustment for fiscal year 2015 and later is \$0.

Sec. 34. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 126C.40, subdivision 6, is amended to read:

Subd. 6. **Lease purchase; installment buys.** (a) Upon application to, and approval by, the commissioner in accordance with the procedures and limits in subdivision 1, paragraphs (a) and (b), a district, as defined in this subdivision, may:

(1) purchase real or personal property under an installment contract or may lease real or personal property with an option to purchase under a lease purchase agreement, by which installment contract or lease purchase agreement title is kept by the seller or vendor or assigned to a third party as security for the purchase price, including interest, if any; and

(2) annually levy the amounts necessary to pay the district's obligations under the installment contract or lease purchase agreement.

(b) The obligation created by the installment contract or the lease purchase agreement must not be included in the calculation of net debt for purposes of section 475.53, and does not constitute debt under other law. An election is not required in connection with the execution of the installment contract or the lease purchase agreement.

(c) The proceeds of the levy authorized by this subdivision must not be used to acquire a facility to be primarily used for athletic or school administration purposes.

(d) For the purposes of this subdivision, "district" means:

(1) a racially isolated school district or a school district with a racially identifiable school required to have a comprehensive desegregation or integration plan for the elimination of segregation which is eligible for revenue under section 124D.86, subdivision 3, clause (1), (2), or (3), and whose plan has been determined by the commissioner to be in compliance with Department of Education rules relating to equality of educational opportunity and school desegregation and, for a district eligible for revenue under section 124D.86, subdivision 3, clause (4) or (5), where the acquisition of property under this subdivision is determined by the commissioner to contribute to the implementation of the desegregation plan; or

(2) a school district that participates in a joint program for interdistrict desegregation with a district defined in clause (1) if the facility acquired under this subdivision is to be primarily used for the joint program and the commissioner determines that the joint programs are being undertaken to implement the districts' desegregation plan.

(e) Notwithstanding subdivision 1, the prohibition against a levy by a district to lease or rent a district-owned building to itself does not apply to levies otherwise authorized by this subdivision.

(f) For the purposes of this subdivision, any references in subdivision 1 to building or land shall include personal property.

Sec. 35. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 126C.44, is amended to read:

**126C.44 SAFE SCHOOLS LEVY.**

(a) Each district may make a levy on all taxable property located within the district for the purposes specified in this section. The maximum amount which may be levied for all costs under this section shall be equal to \$30 multiplied by the district's adjusted marginal cost pupil units for the school year. The proceeds of the levy must be reserved and used for directly funding the following purposes or for reimbursing the cities and counties who contract with the district for the following purposes: (1) to pay the costs incurred for the salaries, benefits, and transportation costs of peace officers and sheriffs for liaison in services in the district's schools; (2) to pay the costs for a drug abuse prevention program as defined in section 609.101, subdivision 3, paragraph (e), in the elementary schools; (3) to pay the costs for a gang resistance education training curriculum in the district's schools; (4) to pay the costs for security in the district's schools and on school property; (5) to pay the costs for other crime prevention, drug abuse, student and staff safety, voluntary opt-in suicide prevention tools, and violence prevention measures taken by the school district; or (6) to pay costs for licensed school counselors, licensed school nurses, licensed school social workers, licensed school psychologists, and licensed alcohol and chemical dependency counselors to help provide early responses to problems. For expenditures under clause (1), the district must initially attempt to contract for services to be provided by peace officers or sheriffs with the police department of each city or the sheriff's department of the county within the district containing the school receiving the services. If a local police department or a county sheriff's department does not wish to provide the necessary services, the district may contract for these services with any other police or sheriff's department located entirely or partially within the school district's boundaries.

(b) A school district that is a member of an intermediate school district may include in its authority under this section the costs associated with safe schools activities authorized under paragraph (a) for intermediate school district programs. This authority must not exceed \$10 times the adjusted marginal cost pupil units of the member districts. This authority is in addition to any other authority authorized under this section. Revenue raised under this paragraph must be transferred to the intermediate school district.

(c) A school district must set aside at least \$3 per adjusted marginal cost pupil unit of the safe schools levy proceeds for the purposes authorized under paragraph (a), clause (6). ~~The district must annually certify that its total spending on services provided by the employees listed in paragraph (a), clause (6), is not less than the sum of its expenditures for these purposes, excluding amounts spent under this section, in the previous year plus the amount spent under this section.~~

Sec. 36. **[127A.335] PERMANENT SCHOOL TRUST FUND WIND ENERGY REVENUE.**

For fiscal year 2010 and later, the commissioner shall transfer to the permanent school trust fund an amount equal to the amount of money apportioned to all school districts for that year according to section 272.029, subdivision 6, multiplied by the wind energy factor. The wind energy factor for fiscal year 2010 and later is 0.5. These funds shall be managed as principal to the permanent school trust fund.

Sec. 37. **[127A.431] REDUCTION OF AID FOR NOT PROVIDING REQUIRED HOURS OF INSTRUCTION.**

The commissioner shall reduce the state aid paid to a school district or charter school that does not provide instruction for at least the number of hours required under section 120A.41. If instruction is not provided for the required number of hours, state aid shall be reduced by the ratio that the difference between the required number of hours and the number of hours instruction is provided bears to the required number of hours, multiplied by 60 percent of the basic revenue, as defined in section 126C.10, subdivision 2, of the district or charter school for that year. However, a district or charter school not providing the required number of hours may appeal to the commissioner for a waiver of the state aid reduction if (1) the circumstances causing loss of instructional time below the required minimum number of hours are beyond the control of the board, and (2) a good faith attempt is made to make up time lost due to these circumstances.

Sec. 38. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 127A.47, subdivision 7, is amended to read:

Subd. 7. **Alternative attendance programs.** The general education aid and special education aid for districts must be adjusted for each pupil attending a nonresident district under sections 123A.05 to 123A.08, 124D.03, 124D.08, and 124D.68. The adjustments must be made according to this subdivision.

(a) General education aid paid to a resident district must be reduced by an amount equal to the referendum equalization aid attributable to the pupil in the resident district.

(b) General education aid paid to a district serving a pupil in programs listed in this subdivision must be increased by an amount equal to the greater of (1) the referendum equalization aid attributable to the pupil in the nonresident district; or (2) the product of the district's open enrollment concentration index, the maximum amount of referendum revenue in the first tier, and the district's net open enrollment pupil units for that year. A district's open enrollment concentration index equals the greater of: (i) zero, or (ii) the lesser of 1.0, or the difference between the district's ratio of open enrollment pupil units served to its resident pupil units for that year and 0.2. This clause does not apply to a school district where more than 50 percent of the open enrollment students are enrolled solely in online learning courses.

(c) If the amount of the reduction to be made from the general education aid of the resident district is greater than the amount of general education aid otherwise due the district, the excess reduction must be made from other state aids due the district.

(d) For fiscal year 2006, the district of residence must pay tuition to a district or an area learning center, operated according to paragraph (f), providing special instruction and services to a pupil with a disability, as defined in section 125A.02, or a pupil, as defined in section 125A.51, who is enrolled in a program listed in this subdivision. The tuition must be equal to (1) the actual cost of providing special instruction and services to the pupil, including a proportionate amount for special transportation and unreimbursed building lease and debt service costs for facilities used primarily for special education, minus (2) if the pupil receives special instruction and services outside the regular classroom for more than 60 percent of the school day, the amount of general education revenue and referendum aid attributable to that pupil for the portion of time the pupil receives special instruction and services outside of the regular classroom, excluding portions attributable to district and school administration, district support services, operations and maintenance, capital expenditures, and pupil transportation, minus (3) special education aid attributable to that pupil, that is received by the district providing special instruction and services. For purposes of this paragraph, general education revenue and referendum equalization aid attributable to a pupil must be calculated

using the serving district's average general education revenue and referendum equalization aid per adjusted pupil unit.

(e) For fiscal year 2007 and later, special education aid paid to a resident district must be reduced by an amount equal to (1) the actual cost of providing special instruction and services, including special transportation and unreimbursed building lease and debt service costs for facilities used primarily for special education, for a pupil with a disability, as defined in section 125A.02, or a pupil, as defined in section 125A.51, who is enrolled in a program listed in this subdivision, minus (2) if the pupil receives special instruction and services outside the regular classroom for more than 60 percent of the school day, the amount of general education revenue and referendum equalization aid attributable to that pupil for the portion of time the pupil receives special instruction and services outside of the regular classroom, excluding portions attributable to district and school administration, district support services, operations and maintenance, capital expenditures, and pupil transportation, minus (3) special education aid attributable to that pupil, that is received by the district providing special instruction and services. For purposes of this paragraph, general education revenue and referendum equalization aid attributable to a pupil must be calculated using the serving district's average general education revenue and referendum equalization aid per adjusted pupil unit. Special education aid paid to the district or cooperative providing special instruction and services for the pupil, or to the fiscal agent district for a cooperative, must be increased by the amount of the reduction in the aid paid to the resident district. If the resident district's special education aid is insufficient to make the full adjustment, the remaining adjustment shall be made to other state aids due to the district.

(f) An area learning center operated by a service cooperative, intermediate district, education district, or a joint powers cooperative may elect through the action of the constituent boards to charge the resident district tuition for pupils rather than to have the general education revenue paid to a fiscal agent school district. Except as provided in paragraph (d) or (e), the district of residence must pay tuition equal to at least 90 percent of the district average general education revenue per pupil unit minus an amount equal to the product of the formula allowance according to section 126C.10, subdivision 2, times .0485, calculated without ~~basic skills compensatory revenue and transportation sparsity revenue, times the number of pupil units for pupils attending the area learning center, plus the amount of compensatory revenue generated by pupils attending the area learning center.~~

Sec. 39. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 127A.49, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. **Abatements.** Whenever by virtue of chapter 278, sections 270C.86, 375.192, or otherwise, the net tax capacity or referendum market value of any district for any taxable year is changed after the taxes for that year have been spread by the county auditor and the local tax rate as determined by the county auditor based upon the original net tax capacity is applied upon the changed net tax capacities, the county auditor shall, prior to February 1 of each year, certify to the commissioner of education the amount of any resulting net revenue loss that accrued to the district during the preceding year. Each year, the commissioner shall pay an abatement adjustment to the district in an amount calculated according to the provisions of this subdivision. This amount shall be deducted from the amount of the levy authorized by section 126C.46. The amount of the abatement adjustment must be the product of:

- (1) the net revenue loss as certified by the county auditor, times
- (2) the ratio of:



(i) the sum of the amounts of the district's certified levy in the third preceding year according to the following:

(A) section 123B.57, if the district received health and safety aid according to that section for the second preceding year;

(B) section 124D.20, if the district received aid for community education programs according to that section for the second preceding year;

(C) section 124D.135, subdivision 3, if the district received early childhood family education aid according to section 124D.135 for the second preceding year;

(D) section 126C.17, subdivision 6, if the district received referendum equalization aid according to that section for the second preceding year;

(E) section 126C.10, subdivision 13a, if the district received operating capital aid according to section 126C.10, subdivision 13b, in the second preceding year;

(F) section 126C.10, subdivision 29, if the district received equity aid according to section 126C.10, subdivision 30, in the second preceding year;

(G) section 126C.10, subdivision 32, if the district received transition aid according to section 126C.10, subdivision 33, in the second preceding year;

(H) section 123B.53, subdivision 5, if the district received debt service equalization aid according to section 123B.53, subdivision 6, in the second preceding year;

(I) section 124D.22, subdivision 3, if the district received school-age care aid according to section 124D.22, subdivision 4, in the second preceding year;

(J) section 123B.591, subdivision 3, if the district received deferred maintenance aid according to section 123B.591, subdivision 4, in the second preceding year; and

(K) section 126C.10, subdivision 35, if the district received alternative teacher compensation equalization aid according to section 126C.10, subdivision 36, paragraph (a), in the second preceding year, or section 122A.415, subdivision 5, if the district received alternative compensation equalization aid according to section 122A.415, subdivision 6, in the second preceding year; to

(ii) the total amount of the district's certified levy in the third preceding December, plus or minus auditor's adjustments.

Sec. 40. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 127A.49, subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. **Excess tax increment.** (a) If a return of excess tax increment is made to a district pursuant to sections 469.176, subdivision 2, and 469.177, subdivision 9, or upon decertification of a tax increment district, the school district's aid and levy limitations must be adjusted for the fiscal year in which the excess tax increment is paid under the provisions of this subdivision.

(b) An amount must be subtracted from the district's aid for the current fiscal year equal to the product of:

(1) the amount of the payment of excess tax increment to the district, times

(2) the ratio of:

(i) the sum of the amounts of the district's certified levy for the fiscal year in which the excess tax increment is paid according to the following:

(A) section 123B.57, if the district received health and safety aid according to that section for the second preceding year;

(B) section 124D.20, if the district received aid for community education programs according to that section for the second preceding year;

(C) section 124D.135, subdivision 3, if the district received early childhood family education aid according to section 124D.135 for the second preceding year;

(D) section 126C.17, subdivision 6, if the district received referendum equalization aid according to that section for the second preceding year;

(E) section 126C.10, subdivision 13a, if the district received operating capital aid according to section 126C.10, subdivision 13b, in the second preceding year;

(F) section 126C.10, subdivision 29, if the district received equity aid according to section 126C.10, subdivision 30, in the second preceding year;

(G) section 126C.10, subdivision 32, if the district received transition aid according to section 126C.10, subdivision 33, in the second preceding year;

(H) section 123B.53, subdivision 5, if the district received debt service equalization aid according to section 123B.53, subdivision 6, in the second preceding year;

(I) section 124D.22, subdivision 3, if the district received school-age care aid according to section 124D.22, subdivision 4, in the second preceding year;

(J) section 123B.591, subdivision 3, if the district received deferred maintenance aid according to section 123B.591, subdivision 4, in the second preceding year; and

(K) section 126C.10, subdivision 35, if the district received alternative teacher compensation equalization aid according to section 126C.10, subdivision 36, paragraph (a), in the second preceding year, or section 122A.415, subdivision 5, if the district received alternative compensation equalization aid according to section 122A.415, subdivision 6, in the second preceding year; to

(ii) the total amount of the district's certified levy for the fiscal year, plus or minus auditor's adjustments.

(c) An amount must be subtracted from the school district's levy limitation for the next levy certified equal to the difference between:

(1) the amount of the distribution of excess increment; and

(2) the amount subtracted from aid pursuant to clause (a).

If the aid and levy reductions required by this subdivision cannot be made to the aid for the fiscal year specified or to the levy specified, the reductions must be made from aid for subsequent fiscal years, and from subsequent levies. The school district must use the payment of excess tax increment

to replace the aid and levy revenue reduced under this subdivision.

(d) This subdivision applies only to the total amount of excess increments received by a district for a calendar year that exceeds \$25,000.

**Sec. 41. ALTERNATIVE TEACHER COMPENSATION; ST. CLOUD.**

Notwithstanding Minnesota Statutes, sections 122A.413 and 122A.414, for fiscal year 2009 only, Independent School District No. 742, St. Cloud, must receive alternative teacher compensation revenue under Minnesota Statutes, sections 122A.415 and 126C.10, subdivisions 34, 35, and 36, without interruption. The school district must continue to make progress towards complying with the requirements for alternative teacher compensation under Minnesota Statutes, sections 122A.413 and 122A.414.

**Sec. 42. CONSOLIDATED LEVY ADJUSTMENT.**

(a) For taxes payable in 2010 only, a school district whose consolidated levy, as computed by the commissioner under Minnesota Statutes, section 126C.13, subdivision 3a, is greater than the sum of the district's equity, transition, and operating capital levies that the districts would have levied for taxes payable in 2010 under Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 126C.10, subdivisions 13a, 29, and 32, based on the February 2009 forecast, shall be eligible for a consolidated levy adjustment. An eligible district's consolidated levy adjustment shall be equal to the difference to the district's consolidated levy computed by the commissioner according to Minnesota Statutes, section 126C.13, subdivision 3a, minus the sum of the district's equity, transition, and operating capital levies that districts would have levied for taxes payable in 2010 under Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 126C.10, subdivisions 13a, 29, and 32, as computed according to the February 2009 forecast.

(b) Notwithstanding Minnesota Statutes, section 126C.13, subdivision 3a, for fiscal year 2011 only, the commissioner of education shall reduce an eligible district's consolidated levy by the amount of an eligible district's consolidated levy adjustment. The commissioner shall increase an eligible district's general education state aid under Minnesota Statutes, section 126C.13, subdivision 4, by the amount of the consolidated levy adjustment.

(c) The commissioner shall include the state aid under this section in the payment schedule under Minnesota Statutes, section 127A.45, as if it were general education aid. The state aid entitlement for this section must not exceed \$22,017,000. If this amount is insufficient, the commissioner shall prorate the aid and adjust property taxes proportionately among eligible school districts.

**Sec. 43. EQUALIZING FACTORS.**

The commissioner shall adjust each referendum market value equalizing factor established under Minnesota Statutes, chapter 126C, by dividing the equalizing factor by the ratio of the statewide referendum market value as calculated using the definition of referendum market value that was in effect prior to the 2009 legislative session for assessment year 2009 to the statewide referendum market value that is in effect after the 2009 legislative session for that assessment year.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective for taxes payable in 2010 and later.

**Sec. 44. LEARNING AND DEVELOPMENT REVENUE; TEMPORARY SUSPENSION.**

Notwithstanding Minnesota Statutes, section 126C.12, subdivisions 4 and 5, for fiscal years 2010

and 2011 only, a school district or charter school may use the learning and development revenue reserve under Minnesota Statutes, section 126C.12, subdivision 1, according to the requirements of general education revenue under Minnesota Statutes, section 126C.13, subdivision 5.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective July 1, 2009.

**Sec. 45. RESTORING SUPPORT FOR GENERAL EDUCATION.**

(a) Notwithstanding Minnesota Statutes, section 126C.21, subdivision 6, the statewide average daily membership aid adjustment for fiscal years 2010 only shall be reduced by \$519,617,000. The commissioner must allocate federal aid appropriated under this act from the fiscal stabilization account in the federal fund to reduce the average daily membership aid adjustment under Minnesota Statutes, section 126C.21, subdivision 6, according to this section.

(b) Notwithstanding paragraph (a), the governor shall release the federal aid in paragraph (a) in two phases. The governor shall release \$319,617,000 of the amount in paragraph (a) in fiscal year 2010 to reduce the statewide average daily membership aid adjustment in that year. The governor shall release \$200,000,000 of the amount in paragraph (a) in fiscal year 2011 to reduce the statewide average daily membership aid adjustment in that year.

(c) The commissioner shall allocate the fiscal year 2011 aid under paragraph (b) based on a district or charter school's proportionate share of the statewide total adjusted average daily membership for fiscal year 2010.

**Sec. 46. SAFE SCHOOLS LEVY; TEMPORARY SUSPENSION.**

Notwithstanding Minnesota Statutes, section 126C.44, for fiscal years 2010 and 2011 only, a school district that receives safe school levy funds under Minnesota Statutes, section 126C.44, may use those funds according to the requirement of general education revenue under Minnesota Statutes, section 126C.13, subdivision 5.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective July 1, 2009.

**Sec. 47. TRANSITION REVENUE; BROOKLYN CENTER.**

Notwithstanding Minnesota Statutes, section 126C.10, subdivision 31, for fiscal year 2011 and later, the transition revenue allowance for Independent School District No. 286, Brooklyn Center, equals 221 plus the transition revenue allowance established under Minnesota Statutes, section 126C.10, subdivision 31.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective for revenue for fiscal year 2011 and later.

**Sec. 48. APPROPRIATIONS; STATE.**

Subdivision 1. **Department of Education.** The sums indicated in this section are appropriated from the general fund to the Department of Education for the fiscal years designated.

Subd. 2. **General education aid.** For general education aid under Minnesota Statutes, section 126C.13, subdivision 4:

|    |                      |              |             |
|----|----------------------|--------------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>5,101,495,000</u> | <u>.....</u> | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>5,197,198,000</u> | <u>.....</u> | <u>2011</u> |

The 2010 appropriation includes \$555,864,000 for 2009 and \$4,545,631,000 for 2010.

The 2011 appropriation includes \$505,070,000 for 2010 and \$4,692,128,000 for 2011.

Subd. 3. **Enrollment options transportation.** For transportation of pupils attending postsecondary institutions under Minnesota Statutes, section 124D.09, or for transportation of pupils attending nonresident districts under Minnesota Statutes, section 124D.03:

|    |               |       |             |
|----|---------------|-------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>48,000</u> | ..... | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>52,000</u> | ..... | <u>2011</u> |

Subd. 4. **Abatement revenue.** For abatement aid under Minnesota Statutes, section 127A.49:

|    |                  |       |             |
|----|------------------|-------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>1,175,000</u> | ..... | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>1,034,000</u> | ..... | <u>2011</u> |

The 2010 appropriation includes \$140,000 for 2009 and \$1,035,000 for 2010.

The 2011 appropriation includes \$113,000 for 2010 and \$919,000 for 2011.

Subd. 5. **Consolidation transition.** For districts consolidating under Minnesota Statutes, section 123A.485:

|    |                |       |             |
|----|----------------|-------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>854,000</u> | ..... | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>927,000</u> | ..... | <u>2011</u> |

The 2010 appropriation includes \$0 for 2009 and \$854,000 for 2010.

The 2011 appropriation includes \$94,000 for 2010 and \$833,000 for 2011.

Subd. 6. **Nonpublic pupil education aid.** For nonpublic pupil education aid under Minnesota Statutes, sections 123B.40 to 123B.43 and 123B.87:

|    |                   |       |             |
|----|-------------------|-------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>16,599,000</u> | ..... | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>17,151,000</u> | ..... | <u>2011</u> |

The 2010 appropriation includes \$1,647,000 for 2009 and \$14,952,000 for 2010.

The 2011 appropriation includes \$1,660,000 for 2010 and \$15,491,000 for 2011.

Subd. 7. **Nonpublic pupil transportation.** For nonpublic pupil transportation aid under Minnesota Statutes, section 123B.92, subdivision 9:

|    |                   |       |             |
|----|-------------------|-------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>22,159,000</u> | ..... | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>22,712,000</u> | ..... | <u>2011</u> |

The 2010 appropriation includes \$2,077,000 for 2009 and \$20,082,000 for 2010.

The 2011 appropriation includes \$2,231,000 for 2010 and \$20,481,000 for 2011.

Subd. 8. **One-room schoolhouse.** For a grant to Independent School District No. 690, Warroad, to operate the Angle Inlet School:

|    |               |              |             |
|----|---------------|--------------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>65,000</u> | <u>.....</u> | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>65,000</u> | <u>.....</u> | <u>2011</u> |

Subd. 9. **Independent School District No. 239, Rushford-Peterson.** For school district flood enrollment impact aid as a result of the floods of August 2007:

|    |                |              |             |
|----|----------------|--------------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>158,000</u> | <u>.....</u> | <u>2010</u> |
|----|----------------|--------------|-------------|

The base appropriation for later fiscal years is \$0.

Subd. 10. **Lancaster.** For a grant to Independent School District No. 356, Lancaster, to replace the loss of sparsity revenue:

|    |                |              |             |
|----|----------------|--------------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>100,000</u> | <u>.....</u> | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>100,000</u> | <u>.....</u> | <u>2011</u> |

The base appropriation for later fiscal years is \$0.

Subd. 11. **Compensatory revenue pilot project.** For grants for participation in the compensatory revenue pilot program under Laws 2005, First Special Session chapter 5, article 1, section 50:

|    |                  |              |             |
|----|------------------|--------------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>2,175,000</u> | <u>.....</u> | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>2,175,000</u> | <u>.....</u> | <u>2011</u> |

Of this amount, \$1,500,000 in each year is for a grant to Independent School District No. 11, Anoka-Hennepin; \$210,000 in each year is for a grant to Independent School District No. 279, Osseo; \$160,000 in each year is for a grant to Independent School District No. 281, Robbinsdale; \$75,000 in each year is for a grant to Independent School District No. 286, Brooklyn Center; \$165,000 in each year is for a grant to Independent School District No. 535, Rochester; and \$65,000 in each year is for a grant to Independent School District No. 833, South Washington.

If a grant to a specific school district is not awarded, the commissioner may increase the aid amounts to any of the remaining participating school districts.

This appropriation is part of the base budget for subsequent fiscal years.

Subd. 12. **Consolidated levy adjustment.** For the consolidated levy adjustment:

|    |                   |              |             |
|----|-------------------|--------------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>19,816,000</u> | <u>.....</u> | <u>2011</u> |
|----|-------------------|--------------|-------------|

The 2011 appropriation includes \$0 for 2010 and \$19,816,000 for 2011.

#### Sec. 49. **APPROPRIATIONS; FEDERAL.**

Subdivision 1. **Department of Education.** The sums indicated in this section are appropriated from the fiscal stabilization account in the federal fund for the fiscal years designated.

Subd. 2. **Restoring state support for general education.** For general education aid to reduce the statewide average daily membership aid adjustment under Minnesota Statutes, section 126C.21, subdivision 6:

\$ 519,617,000 ..... 2010

The base for fiscal year 2012 and later is \$0.

**Sec. 50. REPEALER.**

(a) Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 126C.10, subdivisions 13a, 13b, 29, 30, 32, 33, 34, 35, and 36, are repealed for revenue for fiscal year 2011.

(b) Laws 2008, chapter 363, article 2, section 48, is repealed.

**ARTICLE 2**

**EDUCATION EXCELLENCE**

**Section 1. [1.1499] STATE SPORT.**

Ice hockey is adopted as the official sport of the state of Minnesota.

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 120A.22, subdivision 11, is amended to read:

Subd. 11. **Assessment of performance.** (a) Each year the performance of every child who is not enrolled in a public school must be assessed using a nationally norm-referenced standardized achievement examination. ~~The superintendent of the district in which the child receives instruction and the person in charge of the child's instruction must agree about the specific examination to be used and the administration and location of the examination~~ or a nationally recognized college entrance exam.

~~(b) To the extent the examination in paragraph (a) does not provide assessment in all of the subject areas in subdivision 9, the parent must assess the child's performance in the applicable subject area. This requirement applies only to a parent who provides instruction and does not meet the requirements of subdivision 10, clause (1), (2), or (3).~~

~~(c) If the results of the assessments in paragraphs (a) and (b) indicate that the child's performance on the total battery score is at or below the 30th percentile or one grade level below the performance level for children of the same age, the parent must obtain additional evaluation of the child's abilities and performance for the purpose of determining whether the child has learning problems.~~

~~(d) (b)~~ A child receiving instruction from a nonpublic school, person, or institution that is accredited by an accrediting agency, recognized according to section 123B.445, or recognized by the commissioner, is exempt from the requirements of this subdivision.

Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 120A.22, subdivision 12, is amended to read:

**Subd. 12. Legitimate exemptions.** A parent, guardian, or other person having control of a child may apply to a school district to have the child excused from attendance for the whole or any part of the time school is in session during any school year. Application may be made to any member of the board, a truant officer, a principal, or the superintendent. The school district may state in its

school attendance policy that it may ask the student's parent or legal guardian to verify in writing the reason for the child's absence from school. A note from a physician or a licensed mental health professional stating that the child cannot attend school is a valid excuse. The board of the district in which the child resides may approve the application upon the following being demonstrated to the satisfaction of that board:

(1) that the child's ~~body~~ physical or mental condition health is such as to prevent attendance at school or application to study for the period required, which includes:

- (i) child illness, medical, dental, orthodontic, or counseling appointments;
- (ii) family emergencies;
- (iii) the death or serious illness or funeral of an immediate family member;
- (iv) active duty in any military branch of the United States; ~~or~~
- (v) the child has a condition that requires ongoing treatment for a mental health diagnosis; or
- (vi) other exemptions included in the district's school attendance policy;

(2) that the child has already completed state and district standards required for graduation from high school; or

(3) that it is the wish of the parent, guardian, or other person having control of the child, that the child attend for a period or periods not exceeding in the aggregate three hours in any week, a school for religious instruction conducted and maintained by some church, or association of churches, or any Sunday school association incorporated under the laws of this state, or any auxiliary thereof. This school for religious instruction must be conducted and maintained in a place other than a public school building, and it must not, in whole or in part, be conducted and maintained at public expense. However, a child may be absent from school on such days as the child attends upon instruction according to the ordinances of some church.

Sec. 4. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 120A.24, is amended to read:

#### **120A.24 REPORTING.**

Subdivision 1. **Reports to superintendent.** The person in charge of providing instruction to a child must submit ~~the following information~~ to the superintendent of the district in which the child resides the name, birth date, and address of the child; the name of each instructor; and evidence of compliance with one of the requirements specified in section 120A.22, subdivision 10:

(1) by October 1 of each ~~the first~~ school year, ~~the name, birth date, and address of each child receiving instruction~~ the child receives instruction after reaching the age of seven;

~~(2) the name of each instructor and evidence of compliance with one of the requirements specified in section 120A.22, subdivision 10;~~

~~(3) an annual instructional calendar; and~~

~~(4) for each child instructed by a parent who meets only the requirement of section 120A.22, subdivision 10, clause (6), a quarterly report card on the achievement of the child in each subject area required in section 120A.22, subdivision 9~~



(2) within 15 days of when a parent withdraws a child from public school after age seven to homeschool;

(3) within 15 days of moving out of a district; and

(4) by October 1 after a new resident district is established.

Subd. 2. **Availability of documentation.** (a) The person in charge of providing instruction to a child must ~~make available~~ maintain documentation indicating that the subjects required in section 120A.22, subdivision 9, are being taught and proof that the tests under section 120A.22, subdivision 11, have been administered. This documentation must include class schedules, copies of materials used for instruction, and descriptions of methods used to assess student achievement.

(b) The parent of a child who enrolls full-time in public school after having been enrolled in a home school under section 120A.22, subdivision 6, must provide the enrolling public school or school district with the child's scores on any tests administered to the child under section 120A.22, subdivision 11, and other education-related documents the enrolling school or district requires to determine where the child is placed in school and what course requirements apply. This paragraph does not apply to a shared time student who does not seek a public school diploma.

Subd. 3. **Exemptions.** A nonpublic school, person, or other institution that is accredited by an accrediting agency, recognized according to section 123B.445, or recognized by the commissioner, is exempt from the requirements in ~~subdivisions 1 and~~ subdivision 2, ~~except for the requirement in subdivision 1, clause (1).~~

Subd. 4. **Reports to the state.** A superintendent must make an annual report to the commissioner of education by December 1 of the total number of nonpublic children reported as residing in the district. The report must include the following information:

~~(1) the number of children residing in the district attending nonpublic schools or receiving instruction from persons or institutions other than a public school;~~

~~(2) the number of children in clause (1) who are in compliance with section 120A.22 and this section; and~~

~~(3) the number of children in clause (1) who the superintendent has determined are not in compliance with section 120A.22 and this section.~~

Subd. 5. **Obligations.** Nothing in this section alleviates the obligations under section 120A.22.

Sec. 5. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 120B.02, is amended to read:

#### **120B.02 EDUCATIONAL EXPECTATIONS FOR MINNESOTA'S STUDENTS.**

(a) The legislature is committed to establishing rigorous academic standards for Minnesota's public school students. To that end, the commissioner shall adopt in rule statewide academic standards. The commissioner shall not prescribe in rule or otherwise the delivery system, classroom assessments, or form of instruction that school sites must use. For purposes of this chapter, a school site is a separate facility, or a separate program within a facility that a local school board recognizes as a school site for funding purposes.

(b) All commissioner actions regarding the rule must be premised on the following:

- (1) the rule is intended to raise academic expectations for students, teachers, and schools;
- (2) any state action regarding the rule must evidence consideration of school district autonomy; and
- (3) the Department of Education, with the assistance of school districts, must make available information about all state initiatives related to the rule to students and parents, teachers, and the general public in a timely format that is appropriate, comprehensive, and readily understandable.

(c) When fully implemented, the requirements for high school graduation in Minnesota must require students to satisfactorily complete, as determined by the school district, the course credit requirements under section 120B.024 and successfully pass graduation examinations as required under section 120B.30.

~~(1) for students enrolled in grade 8 before the 2005-2006 school year, to pass the basic skills test requirements; and~~

~~(2) for students enrolled in grade 8 in the 2005-2006 school year and later, to pass the Minnesota Comprehensive Assessments Second Edition (MCA-II).~~

(d) The commissioner shall periodically review and report on the state's assessment process.

(e) School districts are not required to adopt specific provisions of the federal School-to-Work programs.

Sec. 6. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 120B.021, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **Required academic standards.** (a) The following subject areas are required for statewide accountability:

- (1) language arts;
- (2) mathematics;
- (3) science;
- (4) social studies, including history, geography, economics, and government and citizenship;
- (5) physical education;
- (6) health and physical education, for which locally developed academic standards apply; and
- ~~(6)~~ (7) the arts, for which statewide or locally developed academic standards apply, as determined by the school district. Public elementary and middle schools must offer at least three and require at least two of the following four arts areas: dance; music; theater; and visual arts. Public high schools must offer at least three and require at least one of the following five arts areas: media arts; dance; music; theater; and visual arts.

(b) To satisfy this subdivision and the one-half credit physical education requirement under section 120B.024, paragraph (a), clause (6), the state physical education standard under paragraph (a) selected by a school district must be consistent with either the physical education benchmarks developed by the quality teaching network or the National Physical Education Standards developed by the National Association for Sport and Physical Education. To satisfy federal reporting

requirements for continued funding under Title VII of the Physical Education for Progress Act, a school district must notify the department, if applicable, of its intent to comply with this subdivision. School districts and charter schools also must use either the physical education benchmarks or the National Physical Education Standards under this paragraph to comply with paragraph (a), clause (5), in providing physical education instruction and programs to students in kindergarten through grade 12.

(c) The commissioner must submit proposed standards in science and social studies to the legislature by February 1, 2004.

(d) For purposes of applicable federal law, the academic standards for language arts, mathematics, and science apply to all public school students, ~~except the very few students with extreme cognitive or physical impairments for whom an individualized education plan team has determined that the required academic standards are inappropriate. An individualized education plan team that makes this determination must establish alternative standards with appropriate~~ alternate achievement standards based on these academic standards for students with individualized education plans described under federal law.

(e) A school district, no later than the 2007-2008 school year, must adopt graduation requirements that meet or exceed state graduation requirements established in law or rule. A school district that incorporates these state graduation requirements before the 2007-2008 school year must provide students who enter the 9th grade in or before the 2003-2004 school year the opportunity to earn a diploma based on existing locally established graduation requirements in effect when the students entered the 9th grade. District efforts to develop, implement, or improve instruction or curriculum as a result of the provisions of this section must be consistent with sections 120B.10, 120B.11, and 120B.20.

(f) The commissioner must include the contributions of Minnesota American Indian tribes and communities as they relate to the academic standards during the review and revision of the required academic standards.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment and applies in the 2009-2010 school year and later, and is a requirement for graduation for students entering the 9th grade in the 2009-2010 school year and later.

Sec. 7. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 120B.023, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. **Revisions and reviews required.** (a) The commissioner of education must revise and appropriately embed technology and information literacy standards consistent with recommendations from school media specialists into the state's academic standards and graduation requirements and implement a review cycle for state academic standards and related benchmarks, consistent with this subdivision. During each review cycle, the commissioner also must examine the alignment of each required academic standard and related benchmark with the knowledge and skills students need for college readiness and advanced work in the particular subject area.

(b) The commissioner in the 2006-2007 school year must revise and align the state's academic standards and high school graduation requirements in mathematics to require that students satisfactorily complete the revised mathematics standards, beginning in the 2010-2011 school year. Under the revised standards:

(1) students must satisfactorily complete an algebra I credit by the end of eighth grade; and

(2) students scheduled to graduate in the 2014-2015 school year or later must satisfactorily complete an algebra II credit or its equivalent.

~~The commissioner also must ensure that the statewide mathematics assessments administered to students in grades 3 through 8 and 11 beginning in the 2010-2011 school year are aligned with the state academic standards in mathematics. The statewide 11th grade mathematics test administered to students under clause (2) beginning in the 2013-2014 school year must include algebra II test items that are aligned with corresponding state academic standards in mathematics. The commissioner must implement a review of the academic standards and related benchmarks in mathematics beginning in the 2015-2016 school year.~~

(c) The commissioner in the 2007-2008 school year must revise and align the state's academic standards and high school graduation requirements in the arts to require that students satisfactorily complete the revised arts standards beginning in the 2010-2011 school year. The commissioner must implement a review of the academic standards and related benchmarks in arts beginning in the 2016-2017 school year.

(d) The commissioner in the 2008-2009 school year must revise and align the state's academic standards and high school graduation requirements in science to require that students satisfactorily complete the revised science standards, beginning in the 2011-2012 school year. Under the revised standards, students scheduled to graduate in the 2014-2015 school year or later must satisfactorily complete a chemistry or physics credit. The commissioner must implement a review of the academic standards and related benchmarks in science beginning in the 2017-2018 school year.

(e) The commissioner in the 2009-2010 school year must revise and align the state's academic standards and high school graduation requirements in language arts to require that students satisfactorily complete the revised language arts standards beginning in the 2012-2013 school year. The commissioner must implement a review of the academic standards and related benchmarks in language arts beginning in the 2018-2019 school year.

(f) The commissioner in the 2010-2011 school year must revise and align the state's academic standards and high school graduation requirements in social studies to require that students satisfactorily complete the revised social studies standards beginning in the 2013-2014 school year. The commissioner must implement a review of the academic standards and related benchmarks in social studies beginning in the 2019-2020 school year.

(g) School districts and charter schools must revise and align local academic standards and high school graduation requirements in health, ~~physical education~~, world languages, and career and technical education to require students to complete the revised standards beginning in a school year determined by the school district or charter school. School districts and charter schools must formally establish a periodic review cycle for the academic standards and related benchmarks in health, ~~physical education~~, world languages, and career and technical education.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** Paragraph (g) is effective the day following final enactment and applies in the 2009-2010 school year and later.

Sec. 8. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 120B.024, is amended to read:

**120B.024 GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS; COURSE CREDITS.**

(a) Students beginning 9th grade in the 2004-2005 school year and later must successfully complete the following high school level course credits for graduation:

- (1) four credits of language arts;
- (2) three credits of mathematics, encompassing at least algebra, geometry, statistics, and probability sufficient to satisfy the academic standard;
- (3) three credits of science, including at least one credit in biology;
- (4) three and one-half credits of social studies, encompassing at least United States history, geography, government and citizenship, world history, and economics or three credits of social studies encompassing at least United States history, geography, government and citizenship, and world history, and one-half credit of economics taught in a school's social studies, agriculture education, or business department;
- (5) one credit in the arts; ~~and~~
- (6) one-half credit of physical education on a pass or fail basis; and
- (7) a minimum of seven 6-1/2 elective course credits.

A course credit is equivalent to a student successfully completing an academic year of study or a student mastering the applicable subject matter of the state academic standards or local academic standards where state standards do not apply, as determined by the local school district.

(b) An agriculture science course may fulfill a science credit requirement in addition to the specified science credits in biology and chemistry or physics under paragraph (a), clause (3).

(c) A career and technical education course may fulfill a science, mathematics, or arts credit requirement in addition to the specified science, mathematics, or arts credits under paragraph (a), clause (2), (3), or (5).

(d) The school board, or school board designee, shall grant a waiver from the physical education requirement if the student is participating in a physical activity outside of the regular physical education course offering.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective August 1, 2012, and applies to students entering grade 9 in the 2012-2013 school year and later; except paragraph (a), clauses (6) and (7), are effective the day following final enactment and apply to students entering 9th grade in the 2009-2010 school year and later.

Sec. 9. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 120B.11, subdivision 5, is amended to read:

Subd. 5. **Report.** (a) By October 1 of each year, the school board shall use standard statewide reporting procedures the commissioner develops and adopt a report that includes the following:

- (1) student achievement goals for meeting state academic standards;
- (2) results of local assessment data, and any additional test data;
- (3) the annual school district improvement plans including staff development goals under section 122A.60;

(4) information about district and learning site progress in realizing previously adopted improvement plans; and

(5) the amount and type of revenue attributed to each education site as defined in section 123B.04.

(b) The school board shall publish a summary of the report in the local newspaper with the largest circulation in the district, by mail, or by electronic means such as the district Web site. If electronic means are used, school districts must publish notice of the report in a periodical of general circulation in the district. School districts must make copies of the report available to the public on request. ~~The board shall make a copy of the report available to the public for inspection. The board shall send a copy of the report to the commissioner of education by October 15 of each year.~~

(c) The title of the report shall contain the name and number of the school district and read "Annual Report on Curriculum, Instruction, and Student Achievement." The report must include at least the following information about advisory committee membership:

- (1) the name of each committee member and the date when that member's term expires;
- (2) the method and criteria the school board uses to select committee members; and
- (3) the date by which a community resident must apply to next serve on the committee.

Sec. 10. **[120B.17] MINNESOTA VIRTUAL EDUCATION PROGRAM.**

Subdivision 1. **Program.** A state of Minnesota virtual education program is established for teachers and students to improve and enhance teacher instruction and student learning through integration of technology and online learning. The commissioner of education shall establish the program and develop a selection of online courses for students. The online student courses shall be established for grades 6 through 12.

Subd. 2. **Scope and requirements.** (a) The student courses shall be developed or approved by department staff, content experts, licensed Minnesota teachers, licensed administrators, and business representatives. The courses must be aligned to the Minnesota academic standards established in Minnesota Rules, chapter 3501. The commissioner of education, in working with qualified individuals, must establish at least ten student courses that will be available to students and teachers no later than the 2010-2011 school year. The commissioner must give priority in the development of courses to science, technology, engineering, mathematics, and advanced courses. The courses available to students must be monitored and delivered by licensed Minnesota teachers under section 122A.16.

(b) School districts and charter schools participating in the program must:

- (1) submit a letter of intent to the commissioner of education;
- (2) allow students to participate in the program;
- (3) train teachers to monitor and deliver courses;
- (4) allow students to receive graduation credit, if appropriate, for successful completion of the courses;

(5) issue grades to students enrolled in the online courses; and

(6) report progress to the department on student participation and completion rates.

Subd. 3. **Report.** The commissioner of education must submit a report to the chairs of the house of representatives and senate education committees by October 1, 2011, assessing the progress and development of the program.

**Sec. 11. [120B.191] WORLD LANGUAGE PROFICIENCY CERTIFICATES.**

(a) Any Minnesota public, charter, or nonpublic school may award Minnesota World Language Proficiency Certificates or Minnesota World Language Proficiency High Achievement Certificates.

(b) The Minnesota World Language Proficiency Certificate recognizes students who demonstrate listening, speaking, reading, and writing language skills at the American Council on the Teaching of Foreign Languages' Intermediate-Low level on a valid and reliable assessment tool. For languages listed as Category 3 by the United States Foreign Service Institute or Category 4 by the United States Defense Language Institute, the standard is Intermediate-Low for listening and speaking and Novice-High for reading and writing.

(c) The Minnesota World Language Proficiency High Achievement Certificate recognizes students who demonstrate listening, speaking, reading, and writing language skills at the American Council on the Teaching of Foreign Languages' Pre-Advanced level for K-12 learners on a valid and reliable assessment tool. For languages listed as Category 3 by the United States Foreign Service Institute or Category 4 by the United States Defense Language Institute, the standard is Pre-Advanced for listening and speaking and Intermediate-Mid for reading and writing.

**Sec. 12. [120B.236] CARDIOPULMONARY RESUSCITATION AND AUTOMATIC EXTERNAL DEFIBRILLATOR INSTRUCTION.**

School districts are encouraged to include cardiopulmonary resuscitation and automatic external defibrillator instruction as part of their curriculum. Schools offering cardiopulmonary resuscitation or automatic external defibrillator instruction must use cardiopulmonary resuscitation or automatic external defibrillator training that has been developed:

(1) by the American Heart Association or the American Red Cross and incorporate psychomotor skills to support the instruction; or

(2) using nationally recognized, evidence-based guidelines for cardiopulmonary resuscitation and incorporates psychomotor skills to support the instruction.

**Sec. 13. [120B.299] DEFINITIONS.**

Subdivision 1. **Definitions.** The definitions in this section apply to this chapter.

Subd. 2. **Growth.** "Growth" compares the difference in a student's achievement score at two or more distinct points in time.

Subd. 3. **Value-added.** "Value-added" is the amount of achievement a student demonstrates above an established baseline. The difference between the student's score and the baseline defines value-added.

Subd. 4. **Growth-based value-added.** "Growth-based value-added" is based on a student's growth score. In a growth-based value-added system, the student's first test is the baseline, and the difference between the student's first and next test scores within a defined period is the measure of value-added.

Subd. 5. **Adequate yearly progress.** A school or district makes "adequate yearly progress" if, for every student subgroup under the federal 2001 No Child Left Behind Act in the school or district, its proficiency index, based on statewide assessment scores, meets or exceeds federal expectations. To make adequate yearly progress, the school or district also must satisfy applicable federal requirements related to student attendance, graduation, and test participation rates.

Subd. 6. **State growth target.** (a) "State growth target" is the average year-two assessment scores for students with similar year-one assessment scores.

(b) Beginning in the 2008-2009 school year, the state growth target is benchmarked to 2006-2007 and 2007-2008 school year data until the assessment scale changes.

(c) Each time before the assessment scale changes, a recognized Minnesota assessment group composed of assessment and evaluation directors and staff and researchers must recommend a new state growth target that the commissioner must consider when revising standards under section 120B.023, subdivision 2.

Subd. 7. **Low growth.** "Low growth" is an assessment score one-half standard deviation below the state growth target.

Subd. 8. **Medium growth.** "Medium growth" is an assessment score within one-half standard deviation above or below the state growth target.

Subd. 9. **High growth.** "High growth" is an assessment score one-half standard deviation or more above the state growth target.

Subd. 10. **Proficiency.** "Proficiency" for purposes of reporting growth on school performance report cards under section 120B.36, subdivision 1, means those students who, in the previous school year, scored at or above "meets standards" on the statewide assessments under section 120B.30. Each year, school performance report cards must separately display: (1) the numbers and percentages of students who achieved low growth, medium growth, and high growth and achieved proficiency in the previous school year; and (2) the numbers and percentages of students who achieved low growth, medium growth, and high growth and did not achieve proficiency in the previous school year.

Subd. 11. **Growth and progress toward proficiency.** The categories of low growth, medium growth and high growth shall be used to indicate both growth, and progress toward grade-level proficiency that is consistent with subdivision 10.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment.

Sec. 14. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 120B.30, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **Statewide testing.** (a) The commissioner, with advice from experts with appropriate technical qualifications and experience and stakeholders, consistent with subdivision 1a, shall include in the comprehensive assessment system, for each grade level to be tested, state-constructed tests developed from and aligned with the state's required academic standards



under section 120B.021 and administered annually to all students in grades 3 through 8 and at the high school level in mathematics and reading. A state-developed test in a subject other than writing, developed after the 2002-2003 school year, must include both machine-scoreable and constructed response questions. The commissioner shall establish one or more months during which schools shall administer the tests to students each school year.

(b) The state assessment system must be aligned to the most recent revision of academic standards as described in section 120B.023 in the following manner:

(1) mathematics;

(i) grades 3 through 8 beginning in the 2010-2011 school year; and

(ii) high school level beginning in the 2013-2014 school year;

(2) science; grades 5 and 8 and at the high school level beginning in the 2011-2012 school year; and

(3) language arts and reading; grades 3 through 8 and high school level beginning in the 2012-2013 school year.

(c) For students enrolled in grade 8 before the 2005-2006 school year, only Minnesota basic skills tests in reading, mathematics, and writing shall fulfill students' basic skills testing requirements for a passing state notation. The passing scores of basic skills tests in reading and mathematics are the equivalent of 75 percent correct for students entering grade 9 in 1997 and thereafter, as based on the first uniform test administration of February 1998. Students who have not successfully passed the basic skills test by the end of the 2011-2012 school year must pass the graduation assessment requirements for Minnesota students given at that time.

~~(b)~~ (d) For students enrolled in grade 8 in the 2005-2006 school year and later, only the following options shall fulfill students' state graduation test requirements:

(1) for reading and mathematics:

(i) obtaining an achievement level equivalent to or greater than proficient as determined through a standard setting process on the Minnesota comprehensive assessments in grade 10 for reading and grade 11 for mathematics or achieving a passing score as determined through a standard setting process on the graduation-required assessment for diploma in grade 10 for reading and grade 11 for mathematics or subsequent retests;

(ii) achieving a passing score as determined through a standard setting process on the state-identified language proficiency test in reading and the mathematics test for English language learners or the graduation-required assessment for diploma equivalent of those assessments for students designated as English language learners;

(iii) achieving an individual passing score on the graduation-required assessment for diploma as determined by appropriate state guidelines for students with an individual education plan or 504 plan;

(iv) obtaining achievement level equivalent to or greater than proficient as determined through a standard setting process on the state-identified alternate assessment or assessments in grade 10 for reading and grade 11 for mathematics for students with an individual education plan; or

(v) achieving an individual passing score on the state-identified alternate assessment or assessments as determined by appropriate state guidelines for students with an individual education plan; and

(2) for writing:

(i) achieving a passing score on the graduation-required assessment for diploma;

(ii) achieving a passing score as determined through a standard setting process on the state-identified language proficiency test in writing for students designated as English language learners;

(iii) achieving an individual passing score on the graduation-required assessment for diploma as determined by appropriate state guidelines for students with an individual education plan or 504 plan; or

(iv) achieving an individual passing score on the state-identified alternate assessment or assessments as determined by appropriate state guidelines for students with an individual education plan.

(e)(e) A student enrolled in grade 8 in the 2005-2006 school year through the 2009-2010 school year who does not pass the state graduation-required assessment for diploma in mathematics, shall receive a passing state notation if they:

(1) complete with a passing score or grade all state and local coursework and credits required for graduation by the school board granting the student their diploma;

(2) participate in the district-prescribed academic remediation in mathematics; and

(3) fully participate in at least two retest attempts in mathematics after the initial spring administration of the mathematics graduation-required assessment for diploma.

(f) For students enrolled in grade 8 in the 2010-2011 school year and later, only the following options shall fulfill students' state graduation test requirements:

(1) for reading:

(i) obtaining an achievement level equivalent to or greater than proficient as determined through a standard setting process on the Minnesota comprehensive assessments in grade 10 for reading or achieving a passing score as determined through a standard setting process on the graduation-required assessment for diploma in grade 10 for reading or subsequent retests;

(ii) achieving a passing score as determined through a standard setting process on the state-identified language proficiency test in reading for English language learners or the graduation-required assessment for diploma equivalent of those assessments for students designated as English language learners;

(iii) achieving an individual passing score on the graduation-required assessment for diploma as determined by appropriate state guidelines for students with an individual education plan or 504 plan;

(iv) obtaining achievement level equivalent to or greater than proficient as determined through

a standard setting process on the state-identified alternate assessment or assessments in grade 10 for reading for students with an individual education plan; or

(v) achieving an individual passing score on the state-identified alternate assessment or assessments as determined by appropriate state guidelines for students with an individual education plan; and

(2) for writing:

(i) achieving a passing score on the graduation-required assessment for diploma;

(ii) achieving a passing score as determined through a standard setting process on the state-identified language proficiency test in writing for students designated as English language learners;

(iii) achieving an individual passing score on the graduation-required assessment for diploma as determined by appropriate state guidelines for students with an individual education plan or 504 plan; or

(iv) achieving an individual passing score on the state-identified alternate assessment or assessments as determined by appropriate state guidelines for students with an individual education plan; and

(3) for mathematics:

(i) obtaining a passing score through a standard setting process on the high school mathematics assessment or subsequent retests;

(ii) achieving a passing score as determined through a standard setting process on the high school mathematics assessment test equivalent of those assessments for students designated as English language learners;

(iii) achieving an individual passing score on the high school mathematics assessment as determined by appropriate state guidelines for students with an individual education plan or 504 plan;

(iv) obtaining a passing score as determined through a standard setting process on the mathematics alternative assessment for students with an individual education plan; or

(v) achieving an individual passing score on the mathematics alternate assessment or assessments as determined by appropriate state guidelines for students with an individual education plan;

(g) The 3rd through 8th grade and high school level test results shall be available to districts for diagnostic purposes affecting student learning and district instruction and curriculum, and for establishing educational accountability. The commissioner must disseminate to the public the test results ~~upon~~ within two weeks of receiving those results.

Individual high school mathematics assessment results must be reported to the student, parent or guardian, school, and district within two weeks of the student's completion on the test. The results must inform the student of college readiness.

~~(d)~~ (h) State tests must be constructed and aligned with state academic standards. The testing process and the order of administration shall be determined by the commissioner. The statewide results shall be aggregated at the site and district level, consistent with subdivision 1a.

~~(e)~~ (i) In addition to the testing and reporting requirements under this section, the commissioner shall include the following components in the statewide public reporting system:

(1) uniform statewide testing of all students in grades 3 through 8 and at the high school level that provides appropriate, technically sound accommodations, or alternate assessments, or exemptions consistent with applicable federal law, only with parent or guardian approval, for those very few students for whom the student's individual education plan team under sections 125A.05 and 125A.06 determines that the general statewide test is inappropriate for a student, or for a limited English proficiency student under section 124D.59, subdivision 2;

(2) educational indicators that can be aggregated and compared across school districts and across time on a statewide basis, including average daily attendance, high school graduation rates, and high school drop-out rates by age and grade level;

(3) state results on the American College Test; and

(4) state results from participation in the National Assessment of Educational Progress so that the state can benchmark its performance against the nation and other states, and, where possible, against other countries, and contribute to the national effort to monitor achievement.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment with the following exceptions: paragraphs (f) and (g) are effective upon the adjournment of the first regular session after which the commissioner, according to section 120B.30, subdivision 5, has completed the standards setting process and determined a passing score for graduation on the high school mathematics assessment that aligns to postsecondary entrance requirements.

Sec. 15. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 120B.30, subdivision 1a, is amended to read:

Subd. 1a. **Statewide and local assessments; results.** (a) The commissioner must develop reading, mathematics, and science assessments aligned with state academic standards that districts and sites must use to monitor student growth toward achieving those standards. The commissioner must not develop statewide assessments for academic standards in social studies, health and physical education, and the arts. The commissioner must require:

(1) annual reading and mathematics assessments in grades 3 through 8 and at the high school level for the 2005-2006 school year and later; and

(2) annual science assessments in one grade in the grades 3 through 5 span, the grades 6 through 9 8 span, and a life sciences assessment in the grades 10 through 12 span any assessments at the high school level that must include a (i) life science and (ii) a chemistry or physics assessment for the 2007-2008 school year and later.

(b) The commissioner must ensure that all statewide tests administered to elementary and secondary students measure students' academic knowledge and skills and not students' values, attitudes, and beliefs.

(c) Reporting of assessment results must:

(1) provide timely, useful, and understandable information on the performance of individual students, schools, school districts, and the state;

(2) include, ~~by no later than the 2008-2009 school year, a growth-based value-added component that is in addition to a measure for student achievement growth over time~~ indicator of student achievement under section 120B.35, subdivision 3, paragraph (b); and

(3)(i) for students enrolled in grade 8 before the 2005-2006 school year, determine whether students have met the state's basic skills requirements; and

(ii) for students enrolled in grade 8 in the 2005-2006 school year and later, determine whether students have met the state's academic standards.

(d) Consistent with applicable federal law and subdivision 1, paragraph ~~(d)~~ (e), clause (1), the commissioner must include appropriate, technically sound accommodations or alternative assessments for the very few students with disabilities for whom statewide assessments are inappropriate and for students with limited English proficiency.

(e) A school, school district, and charter school must administer statewide assessments under this section, as the assessments become available, to evaluate student ~~progress in achieving the proficiency in the context of the state's grade level~~ academic standards. If a state assessment is not available, a school, school district, and charter school must determine locally if a student has met the required academic standards. A school, school district, or charter school may use a student's performance on a statewide assessment as one of multiple criteria to determine grade promotion or retention. A school, school district, or charter school may use a high school student's performance on a statewide assessment as a percentage of the student's final grade in a course, or place a student's assessment score on the student's transcript except as required in paragraph (f).

(f) A school, district, or charter school must place a student's highest assessment score for each of the following assessments on the student's high school transcript: the mathematics Minnesota Comprehensive Assessment, reading Minnesota Comprehensive Assessment, and writing Graduation-Required Assessment for Diploma, and when applicable, the mathematics Graduation-Required Assessment for Diploma and reading Graduation-Required Assessment for Diploma.

Sec. 16. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 120B.30, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. **Department of Education assistance.** The Department of Education shall contract for professional and technical services according to competitive ~~bidding~~ solicitation procedures under chapter 16C for purposes of this section.

Sec. 17. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 120B.30, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 5. **High school mathematics assessment.** (a) The commissioner, with consultation from stakeholders, must identify a high school mathematics assessment by February 15, 2010. The commissioner must align the high school mathematics assessment to the most recent revision of mathematic standards as described in section 120B.023. The commissioner must use the authority granted in paragraph (b) to prepare preliminary administrations in order to determine a passing score in the high school mathematics assessment through a standards setting process. The passing score must be aligned to postsecondary entrance requirements. The commissioner must report to the legislature upon final determination of a passing score.

(b) For the purposes of paragraph (a), schools selected for stand-alone state field testing by the department must participate as requested. Superintendents or charter school directors may appeal in writing to the commissioner of education or the commissioner's designee for an exemption from field testing if undue hardship is demonstrated. The commissioner's decision regarding the appeal is final.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment.

Sec. 18. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 120B.31, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **Educational accountability and public reporting.** Consistent with the process direction to adopt a results-oriented graduation rule statewide academic standards under section 120B.02, the department, in consultation with education and other system stakeholders, must establish a coordinated and comprehensive system of educational accountability and public reporting that promotes higher greater academic achievement, preparation for higher academic education, preparation for the world of work, citizenship under sections 120B.021, subdivision 1, clause (4), and 120B.024, paragraph (a), clause (4), and the arts.

Sec. 19. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 120B.31, subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. **Educational accountability.** (a) The Independent Office of Educational Accountability, as authorized by Laws 1997, First Special Session chapter 4, article 5, section 28, subdivision 2, is established, and shall be funded through the Board of Regents of the University of Minnesota. The office shall advise the education committees of the legislature and the commissioner of education, at least on a biennial basis, on the degree to which the statewide educational accountability and reporting system includes a comprehensive assessment framework that measures school accountability for students achieving the goals described in the state's results-oriented high school graduation rule. The office shall determine and annually report to the legislature whether and how effectively:

(1) the statewide system of educational accountability utilizes uses multiple indicators to provide valid and reliable comparative and contextual data on students, schools, districts, and the state, and if not, recommend ways to improve the accountability reporting system;

(2) the commissioner makes statistical adjustments when reporting student data over time, consistent with clause (4);

(3) the commissioner uses indicators of student achievement growth a growth-based value-added indicator of student achievement over time and a value-added assessment model that estimates the effects of the school and school district on student achievement to measure and measures school performance, consistent with section 120B.36, subdivision 1 120B.35, subdivision 3, paragraph (b);

(4) the commissioner makes (3) data are available on students who do not pass one or more of the state's required GRAD tests and do not receive a diploma as a consequence, and categorizes these data are categorized according to gender, race, eligibility for free or reduced lunch, and English language proficiency; and

(5) the commissioner fulfills (4) the requirements under section 127A.095, subdivision 2, are met.

(b) When the office reviews the statewide educational accountability and reporting system, it

shall also consider:

- (1) the objectivity and neutrality of the state's educational accountability system; and
- (2) the impact of a testing program on school curriculum and student learning.

Sec. 20. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 120B.31, subdivision 4, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. **Statistical adjustments; student performance data.** In developing policies and assessment processes to hold schools and districts accountable for high levels of academic standards under section 120B.021, the commissioner shall aggregate student data over time to report student performance and growth levels measured at the school, school district, regional, or ~~and~~ statewide level. When collecting and reporting the performance data, the commissioner shall: ~~(1) acknowledge the impact of significant demographic factors such as residential instability, the number of single parent families, parents' level of education, and parents' income level on school outcomes; and (2) organize and report the data so that state and local policy makers can understand the educational implications of changes in districts' demographic profiles over time. Any report the commissioner disseminates containing summary data on student performance must integrate student performance and the demographic factors that strongly correlate with that performance.~~

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment.

Sec. 21. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 120B.35, is amended to read:

**120B.35 STUDENT ACADEMIC ACHIEVEMENT AND ~~PROGRESS~~ GROWTH.**

Subdivision 1. ~~Adequate yearly progress of schools and students~~ **School and student indicators of growth and achievement.** The commissioner must develop and implement a system for measuring and reporting academic achievement and individual student ~~progress growth~~, consistent with the statewide educational accountability and reporting system. The ~~system components of the system~~ must measure and separately report the adequate yearly progress of schools and the growth of individual students: students' current achievement in schools under subdivision 2; and individual students' educational progress growth over time under subdivision 3. The system also must include statewide measures of student ~~academic achievement growth~~ that identify schools with high levels of ~~achievement growth~~, and also schools with low levels of ~~achievement growth~~ that need improvement. When determining a school's effect, the data must include both statewide measures of student achievement and, to the extent annual tests are administered, indicators of achievement growth that take into account a student's prior achievement. Indicators of achievement and prior achievement must be based on highly reliable statewide or districtwide assessments. Indicators that take into account a student's prior achievement must not be used to disregard a school's low achievement or to exclude a school from a program to improve low achievement levels. ~~The commissioner by January 15, 2002, must submit a plan for integrating these components to the chairs of the legislative committees having policy and budgetary responsibilities for elementary and secondary education.~~

Subd. 2. **Federal expectations for student academic achievement.** (a) Each school year, a school district must determine if the student achievement levels at each school site meet ~~state and local~~ federal expectations. If student achievement levels at a school site do not meet ~~state and local~~ federal expectations and the site has not made adequate yearly progress for two consecutive school years, beginning with the 2001-2002 school year, the district must work with the school site to

adopt a plan to raise student achievement levels to meet ~~state and local~~ federal expectations. The commissioner of education shall establish student academic achievement levels to comply with this paragraph.

(b) School sites identified as not meeting federal expectations must develop continuous improvement plans in order to meet ~~state and local~~ federal expectations for student academic achievement. The department, at a district's request, must assist the district and the school site in developing a plan to improve student achievement. The plan must include parental involvement components.

(c) The commissioner must:

(1) ~~provide assistance to~~ assist school sites and districts identified as not meeting federal expectations; and

(2) provide technical assistance to schools that integrate student ~~progress~~ achievement measures ~~under subdivision 3 in~~ into the school continuous improvement plan.

(d) The commissioner shall establish and maintain a continuous improvement Web site designed to make data on every school and district available to parents, teachers, administrators, community members, and the general public.

Subd. 3. ~~Student progress assessment~~ **State growth target; other state measures.** (a) The state's educational assessment system ~~component~~ measuring individual students' educational ~~progress must be~~ growth is based, ~~to the extent annual tests are administered,~~ on indicators of achievement growth that show an individual student's prior achievement. Indicators of achievement and prior achievement must be based on highly reliable statewide or districtwide assessments.

(b) The commissioner, in consultation with a recognized Minnesota assessment group composed of assessment and evaluation directors and staff and researchers must ~~identify effective models for measuring individual student progress that enable a school district or school site to perform gains-based analysis, including evaluating the effects of the teacher, school, and school district on student achievement over time. At least one model must be a "value-added" assessment model that reliably estimates those effects for classroom settings where a single teacher teaches multiple subjects to the same group of students, for team teaching arrangements, and for other teaching circumstances.~~ implement a model that uses a growth-based value-added system and includes criteria for identifying schools and school districts that demonstrate medium and high growth under section 120B.299. The system may be used to advance educators' professional development and replicate programs that succeed in meeting students' diverse learning needs. Data on individual teachers generated under the model are personnel data under section 13.43. The model must allow users to:

(1) report student growth consistent with this paragraph; and

(2) for all student categories with a cell size of at least 20, report and compare aggregated and disaggregated state growth data using the nine student categories identified under the federal 2001 No Child Left Behind Act and two student gender categories of male and female, respectively.

The commissioner must report separate measures of student growth and proficiency, consistent with this paragraph.



~~(e) If a district has an accountability plan that includes gains-based analysis or "value-added" assessment, the commissioner shall, to the extent practicable, incorporate those measures in determining whether the district or school site meets expectations. The department must coordinate with the district in evaluating school sites and continuous improvement plans, consistent with best practices.~~

Subd. 4. **Improving schools.** Consistent with the requirements of this section, the commissioner of education must establish a second achievement benchmark to identify improving schools. The commissioner must recommend to annually report to the public and the legislature by February 15, 2002, indicators in addition to the achievement benchmark for identifying improving schools, including an indicator requiring a school to demonstrate ongoing successful use of best teaching practices best practices learned from those schools that demonstrate medium and high growth compared to the state growth target.

Subd. 5. **Improving graduation rates for students with emotional or behavioral disorders.**

(a) A district must develop strategies, in conjunction with parents of students with emotional or behavioral disorders and the county board responsible for implementing sections 245.487 to 245.4889, to keep students with emotional or behavioral disorders in school, when the district has a drop-out rate for students with an emotional or behavioral disorder in grades 9 through 12 exceeding 25 percent.

(b) A district must develop a plan, in conjunction with parents of students with emotional or behavioral disorders and the local mental health authority, to increase the graduation rates of students with emotional or behavioral disorders. A district with a drop-out rate for children with an emotional or behavioral disturbance in grades 9 through 12 that is in the top 25 percent of all districts shall submit a plan for review and oversight to the commissioner.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** Subdivision 3 is effective immediately and applies to students in the 2008-2009 school year. Subdivision 4 is effective for the 2011-2012 school year and later.

Sec. 22. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 120B.36, is amended to read:

**120B.36 SCHOOL ACCOUNTABILITY; APPEALS PROCESS.**

Subdivision 1. **School performance report cards.** (a) ~~The commissioner shall use objective criteria based on levels of student performance to report at least student academic performance under section 120B.35, subdivision 2, the percentages of students showing low, medium, and high growth under section 120B.35, subdivision 3, paragraph (b), school safety, two separate student-to-teacher ratios that clearly indicate the definition of teacher consistent with sections 122A.06 and 122A.15 for purposes of determining these ratios, and staff characteristics excluding salaries, with a value-added component added no later than the 2008-2009 school year student enrollment demographics, district mobility, and extracurricular activities. The report must indicate a school's adequate yearly progress status, and must not set any designations applicable to high and low performing schools due solely to adequate yearly progress status.~~

(b) The commissioner shall develop, annually update, and post on the department Web site school performance report cards.

(c) The commissioner must make available ~~the first performance report cards by November 2003, and during the beginning of each school year thereafter.~~

(d) A school or district may appeal its adequate yearly progress status in writing to the commissioner within 30 days of receiving the notice of its status. The commissioner's decision to uphold or deny an appeal is final.

(e) School performance report ~~cards~~ card data are nonpublic data under section 13.02, subdivision 9, until not later than ten days after the appeal procedure described in paragraph (d) concludes. The department shall annually post school performance report cards to its public Web site no later than September 1.

Subd. 2. **Adequate yearly progress data.** All data the department receives, collects, or creates ~~for purposes of determining to determine~~ adequate yearly progress designations status under Public Law 107-110, section 1116, set state growth targets, and determine student growth are nonpublic data under section 13.02, subdivision 9, until not later than ten days after the appeal procedure described in subdivision 1, paragraph (d), concludes. Districts must provide parents sufficiently detailed summary data to permit parents to appeal under Public Law 107-110, section 1116(b)(2). The department shall annually post federal adequate yearly progress data and state student growth data to its public Web site no later than September 1.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment.

Sec. 23. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 121A.035, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. **School district and charter school policy.** A school board and a charter school must adopt a crisis management policy to address potential violent crisis situations in the district or charter school. The policy must be developed cooperatively with administrators, teachers, employees, students, parents, community members, law enforcement agencies, other emergency management officials, county attorney offices, social service agencies, emergency medical responders, and any other appropriate individuals or organizations. The policy must include at least ~~five~~ two school lock-down drills, ~~five~~ two school fire drills consistent with section 299F.30, ~~and one~~ one tornado drill, and an expectation that students be present and participate in these drills.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective for the 2009-2010 school year and later.

Sec. 24. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 121A.037, is amended to read:

**121A.037 SCHOOL SAFETY DRILLS.**

Private schools and educational institutions not subject to section 121A.035 must have at least ~~five~~ two school lock-down drills, ~~five~~ two school fire drills consistent with section 299F.30, ~~and one~~ one tornado drill, and an expectation that students be present and participate in these drills.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective for the 2009-2010 school year and later.

Sec. 25. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 121A.15, subdivision 8, is amended to read:

Subd. 8. **Report.** The administrator or other person having general control and supervision of the elementary or secondary school shall file a report with the commissioner on all persons enrolled in the school. The superintendent of each district shall file a report with the commissioner for all persons within the district receiving instruction in a home school in compliance with sections 120A.22 and 120A.24. The parent of persons receiving instruction in a home school shall submit the statements as required by subdivisions 1, 2, 3, and 4 to the superintendent of the district in

which the person resides by October 1 of ~~each school year~~ the first year of their homeschooling and the 7th grade year. The school report must be prepared on forms developed jointly by the commissioner of health and the commissioner of education and be distributed to the local districts by the commissioner of health. The school report must state the number of persons attending the school, the number of persons who have not been immunized according to subdivision 1 or 2, and the number of persons who received an exemption under subdivision 3, clause (c) or (d). The school report must be filed with the commissioner of education within 60 days of the commencement of each new school term. Upon request, a district must be given a 60-day extension for filing the school report. The commissioner of education shall forward the report, or a copy thereof, to the commissioner of health who shall provide summary reports to boards of health as defined in section 145A.02, subdivision 2. The administrator or other person having general control and supervision of the child care facility shall file a report with the commissioner of human services on all persons enrolled in the child care facility. The child care facility report must be prepared on forms developed jointly by the commissioner of health and the commissioner of human services and be distributed to child care facilities by the commissioner of health. The child care facility report must state the number of persons enrolled in the facility, the number of persons with no immunizations, the number of persons who received an exemption under subdivision 3, clause (c) or (d), and the number of persons with partial or full immunization histories. The child care facility report must be filed with the commissioner of human services by November 1 of each year. The commissioner of human services shall forward the report, or a copy thereof, to the commissioner of health who shall provide summary reports to boards of health as defined in section 145A.02, subdivision 2. The report required by this subdivision is not required of a family child care or group family child care facility, for prekindergarten children enrolled in any elementary or secondary school provided services according to sections 125A.05 and 125A.06, nor for child care facilities in which at least 75 percent of children in the facility participate on a onetime only or occasional basis to a maximum of 45 hours per child, per month.

Sec. 26. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 122A.06, subdivision 4, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. **Comprehensive, scientifically based reading instruction.** (a) "Comprehensive, scientifically based reading instruction" includes a program or collection of instructional practices that is based on ~~reliable~~, valid, replicated evidence showing that when these programs or practices are used, students can be expected to achieve, at a minimum, satisfactory reading progress. The program or collection of practices must include, at a minimum, instruction in five areas of reading: phonemic awareness, phonics, fluency, vocabulary development, and ~~text~~ reading comprehension.

Comprehensive, scientifically based reading instruction also includes and integrates instructional strategies for continuously assessing, evaluating, and communicating the student's reading progress and needs in order to design and implement ongoing interventions so that students of all ages and proficiency levels can read and comprehend text and apply higher level thinking skills.

(b) "Fluency" is the ability of students to be able to read text with speed, accuracy, and proper expression.

(c) "Phonemic awareness" is the ability of students to notice, think about, and manipulate the individual sounds in spoken syllables and words.

(d) "Phonics" is the understanding that there are systematic and predictable relationships

between written letters and spoken words. Phonics instruction is a way of teaching reading that stresses learning how letters correspond to sounds and how to apply this knowledge in reading and spelling.

(e) "Reading comprehension" is an active process that requires intentional thinking during which meaning is constructed through interactions between text and reader. Comprehension skills are taught explicitly by demonstrating, explaining, modeling, and implementing specific cognitive strategies to help beginning readers derive meaning by intentional, problem-solving thinking processes.

(f) "Vocabulary development" is the process of teaching vocabulary both directly and indirectly, with repetition and multiple exposures to vocabulary items. Learning in rich contexts, incidental learning, and use of computer technology all enhance the acquisition of vocabulary.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment.

Sec. 27. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 122A.07, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. **Eligibility; board composition.** Except for the representatives of higher education and the public, to be eligible for appointment to the Board of Teaching a person must be a teacher currently teaching in a Minnesota school and fully licensed for the position held and have at least five years teaching experience in Minnesota, including the two years immediately preceding nomination and appointment. Each nominee, other than a public nominee, must be selected on the basis of professional experience and knowledge of teacher education, accreditation, and licensure. The board must be composed of:

(1) six teachers who are currently teaching in a Minnesota school or who were teaching at the time of the appointment and who do not qualify under clause (2) or (3) of this subdivision, at least four of whom must be teaching in a public school;

(2) one higher education representative, who must be a faculty member preparing teachers;

(3) one school administrator; and

(4) three members of the public, two of whom must be present or former members of school boards.

Sec. 28. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 122A.07, subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. **Vacant position.** With the exception of a teacher who retires from teaching during the course of completing a board term, the position of a member who leaves Minnesota or whose employment status changes to a category different from that from which appointed is deemed vacant.

Sec. 29. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 122A.09, subdivision 7, is amended to read:

Subd. 7. **Commissioner's assistance; board money.** The commissioner shall provide all necessary materials and assistance for the transaction of the business of the Board of Teaching and all moneys received by the Board of Teaching shall be paid into the state treasury as provided by law. The expenses of administering sections 122A.01, 122A.05 to 122A.09, 122A.15, 122A.16, 122A.17, 122A.18, 122A.20, 122A.21, 122A.22, 122A.23, 122A.26, 122A.30, ~~122A.32~~, 122A.40, 122A.41, 122A.42, 122A.45, 122A.49, 122A.52, 122A.53, 122A.54, 122A.55, 122A.56, 122A.57, and 122A.58 which are incurred by the Board of Teaching shall be paid for from appropriations

made to the Board of Teaching.

Sec. 30. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 122A.18, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. **Teacher and support personnel qualifications.** (a) The Board of Teaching must issue licenses under its jurisdiction to persons the board finds to be qualified and competent for their respective positions.

(b) The board must require a person to successfully complete an examination of skills in reading, writing, and mathematics before being granted an initial teaching license to provide direct instruction to pupils in prekindergarten, elementary, secondary, or special education programs. In addition, the board must require a person to successfully complete an assessment of reading instruction consistent with subdivision 2c before being granted an initial teaching license to provide explicit, sequential, and systematic instruction to pupils in prekindergarten or elementary programs. The board must require colleges and universities offering a board approved teacher preparation program to provide remedial assistance that includes a formal diagnostic component to persons enrolled in their institution who did not achieve a qualifying score on the skills examination or an assessment of reading instruction, including those for whom English is a second language. The colleges and universities must provide assistance in the specific academic areas of deficiency in which the person did not achieve a qualifying score. School districts must provide similar, appropriate, and timely remedial assistance that includes a formal diagnostic component and mentoring to those persons employed by the district who completed their teacher education program outside the state of Minnesota, received a one-year license to teach in Minnesota and did not achieve a qualifying score on the skills examination, including those persons for whom English is a second language. The Board of Teaching shall report annually to the education committees of the legislature on the total number of teacher candidates during the most recent school year taking the skills examination, the number who achieve a qualifying score on the examination, the number who do not achieve a qualifying score on the examination, the distribution of all candidates' scores, the number of candidates who have taken the examination at least once before, and the number of candidates who have taken the examination at least once before and achieve a qualifying score.

(c) A person who has completed an approved teacher preparation program and obtained a one-year license to teach, but has not successfully completed the skills examination, may renew the one-year license for two additional one-year periods. Each renewal of the one-year license is contingent upon the licensee:

(1) providing evidence of participating in an approved remedial assistance program provided by a school district or postsecondary institution that includes a formal diagnostic component in the specific areas in which the licensee did not obtain qualifying scores; and

(2) attempting to successfully complete the skills examination during the period of each one-year license.

(d) The Board of Teaching must grant continuing licenses only to those persons who have met board criteria for granting a continuing license, which includes successfully completing the skills examination in reading, writing, and mathematics.

(e) All colleges and universities approved by the board of teaching to prepare persons for teacher licensure must include in their teacher preparation programs a common core of teaching knowledge and skills to be acquired by all persons recommended for teacher licensure. This common core

shall meet the standards developed by the interstate new teacher assessment and support consortium in its 1992 "model standards for beginning teacher licensing and development." Amendments to standards adopted under this paragraph are covered by chapter 14. The board of teaching shall report annually to the education committees of the legislature on the performance of teacher candidates on common core assessments of knowledge and skills under this paragraph during the most recent school year.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective January 1, 2011.

Sec. 31. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 122A.18, subdivision 2a, is amended to read:

Subd. 2a. **Reading strategies.** (a) All colleges and universities approved by the Board of Teaching to prepare persons for classroom teacher licensure must include in their teacher preparation programs research-based best practices in reading, consistent with section 122A.06, subdivision 4, that enable the licensure candidate to know how to teach reading in the candidate's content areas and prepare the licensure candidate, where applicable, for an assessment of reading instruction.

(b) Board-approved teacher preparation programs for teachers of elementary education must require instruction in the application of comprehensive, scientifically based, ~~and balanced~~ reading instruction programs that:

(1) teach students to read using foundational knowledge, practices, and strategies consistent with section 122A.06, subdivision 4, so that all students will achieve continuous progress in reading; and

(2) teach specialized instruction in reading strategies, interventions, and remediations that enable students of all ages and proficiency levels to become proficient readers.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment.

Sec. 32. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 122A.18, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 2c. **Assessment of reading instruction.** An assessment of reading instruction, selected by the Board of Teaching, in cooperation with the commissioner of education, must measure, at a minimum, the knowledge, skill, and ability of prekindergarten and elementary licensure candidates in comprehensive, scientifically based reading instruction as defined in section 122A.06. Test content areas must assess foundations of reading development, development of reading comprehension, reading assessment and instruction, and integration of knowledge and understanding. The Board of Teaching may incorporate the requirements of this subdivision into other teacher licensure examinations.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment.

Sec. 33. **[122A.245] ALTERNATIVE TEACHER PREPARATION PROGRAM AND RESIDENT TEACHER LICENSE FOR QUALIFIED NONTRADITIONAL CANDIDATES.**

Subdivision 1. **Requirements.** (a) A teacher preparation program that is an alternative to a postsecondary teacher preparation program and to the preparation program under section 122A.24 and a two-year resident teacher license, which may be renewed one time by a resident teacher in good standing, are established as a means of acquiring a standard entrance license. Either (i) a college or university with a board-approved alternative teacher preparation program or (ii) a

nonprofit corporation formed for an education-related purpose and subject to chapter 317A with a board-approved alternative preparation program leading to a standard entrance license may offer this program in any instructional field but must not restrict the program based on geography or on an oversupply of licensed teachers in any particular instructional field. The Board of Teaching must ensure that this program serves to enhance any efforts by the state or a school district to reduce or eliminate the academic achievement gap among identified categories of students.

(b) To participate in this program, a candidate must:

(1) have a bachelor's degree with a minimum 3.0 grade point average or, at the board's discretion, demonstrate at least ten years of relevant successful professional experience;

(2) pass the reading, writing, and mathematics skills examination under section 122A.18; and

(3) obtain qualifying scores on board-approved content area and pedagogy tests.

(c) The board may waive the minimum grade point average requirement in paragraph (a), clause (i), for candidates with a grade point average of 2.75 or higher.

Subd. 2. **Characteristics.** An alternative teacher preparation program offered by an eligible college or university or nonprofit corporation under this section must include:

(1) a minimum 200-hour instructional phase that provides intensive preparation for the resident teacher before that person assumes classroom responsibilities;

(2) a research-based and results-oriented approach focused on best teaching practices to increase student proficiency and growth as measured against state academic standards;

(3) strategies to combine pedagogy and best teaching practices to better inform teachers' classroom instruction;

(4) assessment, supervision, and evaluation of the program participant to determine the participant's specific needs throughout the program and to support the participant in successfully completing the program;

(5) formal instruction and intensive peer coaching during the school year that provide structured guidance and regular ongoing support;

(6) high quality, sustained, intensive, and classroom-embedded staff development opportunities conducted by a resident mentor or by a mentorship team that may include school administrators, teachers, and postsecondary faculty members and are directed at improving student learning and achievement; and

(7) a requirement that program participants demonstrate satisfactory progress toward receiving from the Board of Teaching a standard entrance license at the time the person's resident teacher license finally expires.

Subd. 3. **Program approval.** The Board of Teaching must approve alternative teacher preparation programs under this section based on board-adopted criteria that reflect best practices for alternative teacher preparation programs, consistent with this section. The board must permit licensure candidates to demonstrate licensure competencies in school-based settings and through other nontraditional licensure pathways.

Subd. 4. **Reissued resident teacher license; approval for standard entrance license.** A resident mentor or mentorship team under subdivision 2, clause (6), must evaluate the performance of the resident teacher and submit to the board an evaluation report recommending whether or not to reissue the person a resident teacher license or to issue the resident teacher a standard entrance license.

Subd. 5. **Standard entrance license.** The Board of Teaching must issue a standard entrance license to a resident teacher under this section who successfully performs throughout the program and is recommended for licensure under subdivision 4.

Subd. 6. **Qualified teacher.** A person with a valid resident teacher license under this section is the teacher of record and a qualified teacher within the meaning of section 122A.16.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective for the 2009-2010 school year and later.

Sec. 34. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 122A.31, subdivision 4, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. **Reimbursement.** (a) For purposes of revenue under section ~~125A.78~~ 125A.76, the Department of Education must only reimburse school districts for the services of those interpreters/transliterators who satisfy the standards of competency under this section.

(b) Notwithstanding paragraph (a), a district shall be reimbursed for the services of interpreters with a nonrenewable provisional certificate, interpreters/transliterators employed to mentor the provisional certified interpreters, and persons for whom a time-limited extension has been granted under subdivision 1, paragraph (d), or subdivision 2, paragraph (c).

Sec. 35. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 122A.413, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. **Plan components.** The educational improvement plan must be approved by the school board and have at least these elements:

- (1) assessment and evaluation tools to measure student performance and progress;
- (2) performance goals and benchmarks for improvement;
- (3) measures of student attendance and completion rates;
- (4) a rigorous professional development system, consistent with section 122A.60, that is aligned with educational improvement, designed to achieve teaching quality improvement, instructional leadership, and consistent with clearly defined research-based standards;
- (5) measures of student, family, and community involvement and satisfaction;
- (6) a data system about students and their academic progress that provides parents and the public with understandable information;
- (7) a teacher induction and mentoring program for probationary teachers that provides continuous learning and sustained teacher support; and
- (8) substantial participation by the exclusive representative of the teachers in developing the plan.

Sec. 36. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 122A.414, subdivision 2b, is amended to read:



Subd. 2b. **Approval process.** (a) Consistent with the requirements of this section and sections 122A.413 and 122A.415, the department must prepare and transmit to interested school districts, intermediate school districts, school sites, and charter schools a standard form for applying to participate in the alternative teacher professional pay system. An interested school district, intermediate school district, school site, or charter school must submit to the commissioner by February 1, May 1, or November 1 a completed application executed by the district superintendent and the exclusive bargaining representative of the teachers if the applicant is a school district, intermediate school district, or school site, or executed by the charter school board of directors if the applicant is a charter school. The application must include the proposed alternative teacher professional pay system agreement under subdivision 2. The department must ~~convene a review committee that at least includes teachers and administrators~~ a completed application within 30 days of receiving a completed application to it and recommend to the commissioner whether to approve or disapprove the application. The commissioner must approve applications on a first-come, first-served basis. The applicant's alternative teacher professional pay system agreement must be legally binding on the applicant and the collective bargaining representative before the applicant receives alternative compensation revenue. The commissioner must approve or disapprove an application based on the requirements under subdivisions 2 and 2a.

(b) If the commissioner disapproves an application, the commissioner must give the applicant timely notice of the specific reasons in detail for disapproving the application. The applicant may revise and resubmit its application and related documents to the commissioner within 30 days of receiving notice of the commissioner's disapproval and the commissioner must approve or disapprove the revised application, consistent with this subdivision. Applications that are revised and then approved are considered submitted on the date the applicant initially submitted the application.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment and applies to all applications submitted by the May 1, 2009, deadline and later.

Sec. 37. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 122A.414, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 2c. **Cancelation timing.** If the commissioner determines that a school district that had previously qualified to participate in the alternative teacher professional pay system under this section is no longer in compliance with the program's requirements under this section and section 122A.413, the commissioner may not cancel a school district's participation in the middle of a school year. The commissioner must notify the district 30 days prior to the end of the district's school year if the commissioner intends to end a district's participation in the program for the subsequent school year. The school district must be given the opportunity to correct its compliance with this section and section 122A.413 before the district's participation in the program is ended in the subsequent school year.

Sec. 38. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 122A.415, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 4. **Basic alternative teacher compensation aid.** (a) For fiscal years 2011 and later, the basic alternative teacher compensation aid for a school district with a plan approved under section 122A.414, subdivision 2b, equals 65 percent of the alternative teacher compensation revenue under subdivision 1. The basic alternative teacher compensation aid for an intermediate school district or

charter school with a plan approved under section 122A.414, subdivisions 2a and 2b, if the recipient is a charter school equals \$260 times the number of pupils enrolled in the school on October 1 of the previous fiscal year, or on October 1 of the current fiscal year for a charter school in the first year of operation, times the ratio of the sum of the alternative teacher compensation aid and alternative teacher compensation levy for all participating school districts to the maximum alternative teacher compensation revenue for those districts under subdivision 1.

(b) Notwithstanding subdivision 1, the state total basic alternative teacher compensation aid entitlement must not exceed \$75,636,000 for fiscal year 2007 and later. The commissioner must limit the amount of alternative teacher compensation aid approved under this section so as not to exceed these limits.

Sec. 39. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 122A.415, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 5. **Alternative teacher compensation levy.** For fiscal year 2011 and later, the alternative teacher compensation levy for a district receiving basic alternative teacher compensation aid equals the product of (1) the difference between the district's alternative teacher compensation revenue and the district's basic alternative teacher compensation aid times (2) the lesser of one or the ratio of the district's adjusted net tax capacity per adjusted pupil unit to \$5,913.

Sec. 40. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 122A.415, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 6. **Alternative teacher compensation equalization aid.** (a) For fiscal year 2011 and later, a district's alternative teacher compensation equalization aid equals the district's alternative teacher compensation revenue minus the district's basic alternative teacher compensation aid minus the district's alternative teacher compensation levy. If a district does not levy the entire amount permitted, the alternative teacher compensation equalization aid must be reduced in proportion to the actual amount levied.

(b) A district's alternative teacher compensation aid equals the sum of the district's basic alternative teacher compensation aid and the district's alternative teacher compensation equalization aid.

Sec. 41. [122A.4155] **ALTERNATIVE COMPENSATION APPLICATION GRANTS.**

Subdivision 1. **Reallocation.** By June 1, 2011, and each year thereafter, the unexpended alternative compensation aid, under sections 122.415, subdivision 4, and 126C.10, subdivision 34, from the prior fiscal year must be reallocated to eligible school districts to help districts pay for the costs associated with applying to participate in the alternative compensation program. The commissioner must reallocate the unexpended alternative compensation aid as grants by June 30, 2011, and each year thereafter. The Department of Finance and Department of Education shall continue to forecast the alternative compensation aid, under section 122A.415, subdivision 4. On November 15, 2012, and each year thereafter, the Department of Education must certify the amount of aid that is available to be reallocated to grants under this section. The Department of Education may make a reasonable estimate to prorate grants under this section to ensure that sufficient funding is available to fully fund the forecasted aid under section 122A.415, subdivision 4.

Subd. 2. **Eligibility.** School districts located in greater Minnesota that have submitted a letter of

intent and begun the transitional planning year, under section 122A.414, subdivision 1a, are eligible for alternative compensation application grants. For the purposes of this section, an eligible school district is any school district located in the rural equity region, under section 126C.10, subdivision 28.

Subd. 3. **Awards.** The commissioner of education must reallocate available aid to eligible school districts to encourage participation in the alternative compensation program. The commissioner may establish criteria to select greater Minnesota school districts. School districts that receive grants under this section must be given priority for full participation in alternative compensation program in the subsequent year.

Subd. 4. **Restriction.** A school district that receives a grant under subdivision 3, must use the grant to facilitate the district's progress toward full participation in the alternative compensation program. The commissioner may establish reasonable restrictions on the use of the grant funds to encourage full participation in the alternative compensation program.

Sec. 42. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 122A.60, subdivision 1a, is amended to read:

Subd. 1a. **Effective staff development activities.** (a) Staff development activities must:

- (1) focus on the school classroom and research-based strategies that improve student learning;
- (2) provide opportunities for teachers to practice and improve their instructional skills over time;
- (3) provide opportunities for teachers to use student data as part of their daily work to increase student achievement;
- (4) enhance teacher content knowledge and instructional skills;
- (5) align with state and local academic standards;
- (6) provide opportunities to build professional relationships, foster collaboration among principals and staff who provide instruction, and provide opportunities for teacher-to-teacher mentoring; and
- (7) align with the plan of the district or site for an alternative teacher professional pay system.

Staff development activities may include curriculum development and curriculum training programs, ~~and~~ activities that provide teachers and other members of site-based teams training to enhance team performance, and basic first aid, including CPR and the use of automatic external defibrillators with an option for certification. The school district also may implement other staff development activities required by law and activities associated with professional teacher compensation models.

(b) Release time provided for teachers to supervise students on field trips and school activities, or independent tasks not associated with enhancing the teacher's knowledge and instructional skills, such as preparing report cards, calculating grades, or organizing classroom materials, may not be counted as staff development time that is financed with staff development reserved revenue under section 122A.61.

Sec. 43. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 122A.61, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **Staff development revenue.** A district is required to reserve an amount equal to at least two percent of the basic revenue under section 126C.10, subdivision 2, for in-service education for programs under section 120B.22, subdivision 2, for staff development plans, including plans for challenging instructional activities and experiences under section 122A.60, and for curriculum development and programs, other in-service education, teachers' workshops, teacher conferences, the cost of substitute teachers staff development purposes, preservice and in-service education for special education professionals and paraprofessionals, and other related costs for staff development efforts. A district may annually waive the requirement to reserve their basic revenue under this section if a majority vote of the licensed teachers in the district and a majority vote of the school board agree to a resolution to waive the requirement. A district in statutory operating debt is exempt from reserving basic revenue according to this section. Districts may expend an additional amount of unreserved revenue for staff development based on their needs. With the exception of amounts reserved for staff development from revenues allocated directly to school sites and any amounts spent for first aid or CPR and automatic external defibrillator training, the board must initially allocate 50 percent of the remaining reserved revenue to each school site in the district on a per teacher basis, which must be retained by the school site until used. The board may retain 25 percent to be used for district wide staff development efforts. The remaining 25 percent of the revenue must be used to make grants to school sites for best practices methods. A grant may be used for any purpose authorized under section 120B.22, subdivision 2, 122A.60, or for the costs of curriculum development and programs, other in-service education, teachers' workshops, teacher conferences, substitute teachers for staff development purposes, and other staff development efforts, and determined by the site professional development team. The site professional development team must demonstrate to the school board the extent to which staff at the site have met the outcomes of the program. The board may withhold a portion of initial allocation of revenue if the staff development outcomes are not being met.

Sec. 44. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 123A.05, is amended to read:

**123A.05 AREA LEARNING CENTER STATE-APPROVED ALTERNATIVE PROGRAM ORGANIZATION.**

Subdivision 1. **Governance.** (a) A district may establish an area learning center either by itself or in cooperation with other districts, alternative learning program, or contract alternative in accordance with sections 124D.68, subdivision 3, paragraph (d), and 124D.69.

(b) An area learning center is encouraged to cooperate with a service cooperative, an intermediate school district, a local education and employment transitions partnership, public and private secondary and postsecondary institutions, public agencies, businesses, and foundations. Except for a district located in a city of the first class, a an area learning center must be established in cooperation with other districts and must serve the geographic area of at least two districts. An area learning center must provide comprehensive educational services to enrolled secondary students throughout the year, including a daytime school within a school or separate site for both high school and middle school level students.

(c) An alternative learning program may serve the students of one or more districts, may designate which grades are served, and may make program hours and a calendar optional.

(d) A contract alternative is an alternative learning program operated by a private organization that has contracted with a school district to provide educational services for students under section

124D.68, subdivision 2.

Subd. 2. **Reserve revenue.** Each district that is a member of an area learning center or alternative learning program must reserve revenue in an amount equal to the sum of (1) at least 90 percent of the district average general education revenue per pupil unit minus an amount equal to the product of the formula allowance according to section 126C.10, subdivision 2, times .0485, calculated without basic skills revenue and transportation sparsity revenue, times the number of pupil units attending an area learning center or alternative learning program under this section, plus (2) the amount of basic skills revenue generated by pupils attending the area learning center or alternative learning program. The amount of reserved revenue under this subdivision may only be spent on program costs associated with the area learning center or alternative learning program.

Subd. 3. **Access to services.** A ~~center~~ state-approved alternative program shall have access to the district's regular education programs, special education programs, technology facilities, and staff. It may contract with individuals or postsecondary institutions. It shall seek the involvement of community education programs, postsecondary institutions, interagency collaboratives, culturally based organizations, mutual assistance associations, and other community resources, businesses, and other federal, state, and local public agencies.

Subd. 4. **Nonresident pupils.** A pupil who does not reside in the district may attend a ~~center~~ state-approved alternative program without consent of the school board of the district of residence.

Sec. 45. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 123A.06, is amended to read:

**123A.06 ~~CENTER~~ STATE-APPROVED ALTERNATIVE PROGRAMS AND SERVICES.**

Subdivision 1. **Program focus.** (a) The programs and services of a ~~center~~ state-approved alternative program must focus on academic and learning skills, applied learning opportunities, trade and vocational skills, work-based learning opportunities, work experience, youth service to the community, transition services, and English language and literacy programs for children whose primary language is a language other than English. Applied learning, work-based learning, and service learning may best be developed in collaboration with a local education and transitions partnership, culturally based organizations, mutual assistance associations, or other community resources. In addition to offering programs, the ~~center~~ state-approved alternative program shall coordinate the use of other available educational services, special education services, social services, health services, and postsecondary institutions in the community and services area.

(b) Consistent with the requirements of sections 121A.40 to 121A.56, a school district may provide an alternative education program for a student who is within the compulsory attendance age under section 120A.20, and who is involved in severe or repeated disciplinary action.

Subd. 2. **People to be served.** A ~~center~~ state-approved alternative program shall provide programs for secondary pupils and adults. A center may also provide programs and services for elementary and secondary pupils who are not attending the ~~center~~ state-approved alternative program to assist them in being successful in school. ~~A center shall use research-based best practices for serving limited English proficient students and their parents.~~ An individual education plan team may identify a ~~center~~ state-approved alternative program as an appropriate placement to the extent a ~~center~~ state-approved alternative program can provide the student with the appropriate special education services described in the student's plan. Pupils eligible to be served are those who

qualify under the graduation incentives program in section 124D.68, subdivision 2, those enrolled under section 124D.02, subdivision 2, or those pupils who are eligible to receive special education services under sections 125A.03 to 125A.24, and 125A.65.

Subd. 3. **Hours of instruction exemption.** Notwithstanding any law to the contrary, the area learning center programs must be available throughout the entire year. ~~A center may petition the state board under Minnesota Rules, part 3500.1000, for exemption from other rules.~~

Subd. 4. **Granting a diploma.** Upon successful completion of the area learning center program, a pupil is entitled to receive a high school diploma. The pupil may elect to receive a diploma from either the district of residence or the district in which the area learning center is located.

Sec. 46. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 123A.08, is amended to read:

**123A.08 ~~CENTER STATE-APPROVED ALTERNATIVE PROGRAM FUNDING.~~**

Subdivision 1. **Outside sources for resources and services.** A ~~center~~ state-approved alternative program may accept:

- (1) resources and services from postsecondary institutions serving ~~center~~ state-approved alternative program pupils;
- (2) resources from ~~Job Training Partnership~~ Workforce Investment Act programs, including funding for jobs skills training for various groups and the percentage reserved for education;
- (3) resources from the Department of Human Services and county welfare funding;
- (4) resources from a local education and employment transitions partnership; or
- (5) private resources, foundation grants, gifts, corporate contributions, and other grants.

Subd. 2. **General education aid.** Payment of general education aid for nonresident pupils enrolled in ~~the center~~ area learning centers and alternative learning programs must be made according to section 127A.47, subdivision 7.

Subd. 3. **Special education revenue.** Payment of special education revenue for nonresident pupils enrolled in the ~~center~~ state-approved alternative program must be made according to section ~~125A.15~~ 127A.47, subdivision 7.

Sec. 47. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 123B.03, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **Background check required.** (a) A school hiring authority shall request a criminal history background check from the superintendent of the Bureau of Criminal Apprehension on all individuals who are offered employment in a school and on all individuals, except enrolled student volunteers, who are offered the opportunity to provide athletic coaching services or other extracurricular academic coaching services to a school, regardless of whether any compensation is paid. In order for an individual to be eligible for employment or to provide the services, the individual must provide an executed criminal history consent form and a money order or check payable to either the Bureau of Criminal Apprehension or the school hiring authority, at the discretion of the school hiring authority, in an amount equal to the actual cost to the Bureau of Criminal Apprehension and the school district of conducting the criminal history background check. A school hiring authority deciding to receive payment may, at its discretion, accept payment

in the form of a negotiable instrument other than a money order or check and shall pay the superintendent of the Bureau of Criminal Apprehension directly to conduct the background check. The superintendent of the Bureau of Criminal Apprehension shall conduct the background check by retrieving criminal history data maintained in the criminal justice information system computers. A school hiring authority, at its discretion, may decide not to request a criminal history background check on an individual who holds an initial entrance license issued by the State Board of Teaching or the commissioner of education within the 12 months preceding an offer of employment.

(b) A school hiring authority may use the results of a criminal background check conducted at the request of another school hiring authority if:

(1) the results of the criminal background check are on file with the other school hiring authority or otherwise accessible;

(2) the other school hiring authority conducted a criminal background check within the previous 12 months;

(3) the individual who is the subject of the criminal background check executes a written consent form giving a school hiring authority access to the results of the check; and

(4) there is no reason to believe that the individual has committed an act subsequent to the check that would disqualify the individual for employment.

(c) A school hiring authority may, at its discretion, request a criminal history background check from the superintendent of the Bureau of Criminal Apprehension on any individual who seeks to enter a school or its grounds for the purpose of serving as a school volunteer or working as an independent contractor or student employee. In order for an individual to enter a school or its grounds under this paragraph when the school hiring authority decides to request a criminal history background check on the individual, the individual first must provide an executed criminal history consent form and a money order, check, or other negotiable instrument payable to the school district in an amount equal to the actual cost to the Bureau of Criminal Apprehension and the school district of conducting the criminal history background check. Notwithstanding section 299C.62, subdivision 1, the cost of the criminal history background check under this paragraph is the responsibility of the individual. A school hiring authority may decide to pay the costs of conducting a background check under this paragraph. If the school hiring authority pays the costs, the individual who is the subject of the background check need not pay for it.

(d) For all nonstate residents who are offered employment in a school, a school hiring authority shall request a criminal history background check on such individuals from the superintendent of the Bureau of Criminal Apprehension and from the government agency performing the same function in the resident state or, if no government entity performs the same function in the resident state, from the Federal Bureau of Investigation. Such individuals must provide an executed criminal history consent form and a money order, check, or other negotiable instrument payable to the school hiring authority in an amount equal to the actual cost to the government agencies and the school district of conducting the criminal history background check. Notwithstanding section 299C.62, subdivision 1, the cost of the criminal history background check under this paragraph is the responsibility of the individual.

(e) At the beginning of each school year or when a student enrolls, a school hiring authority must notify parents and guardians about the school hiring authority's policy requiring a criminal

history background check on employees and other individuals who provide services to the school, and identify those positions subject to a background check and the extent of the hiring authority's discretion in requiring a background check. The school hiring authority may include the notice in the student handbook, a school policy guide, or other similar communication. Nothing in this paragraph affects a school hiring authority's ability to request a criminal history background check on an individual under paragraph (c).

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment.

Sec. 48. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 123B.10, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **Budgets; form of notification.** (a) Every board must publish revenue and expenditure budgets for the current year and the actual revenues, expenditures, fund balances for the prior year and projected fund balances for the current year in a form prescribed by the commissioner within one week of the acceptance of the final audit by the board, or November 30, whichever is earlier. The forms prescribed must be designed so that year to year comparisons of revenue, expenditures and fund balances can be made.

(b) A school board annually must notify the public of its revenue, expenditures, fund balances, and other relevant budget information. The board must include the budget information required by this section in the materials provided as a part of its truth in taxation hearing, post the materials in a conspicuous place on the district's official Web site, including a link to the district's school report card on the Department of Education's Web site, and publish a summary of the information in a qualified newspaper of general circulation in the district.

Sec. 49. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 123B.143, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **Contract; duties.** All districts maintaining a classified secondary school must employ a superintendent who shall be an ex officio nonvoting member of the school board. The authority for selection and employment of a superintendent must be vested in the board in all cases. An individual employed by a board as a superintendent shall have an initial employment contract for a period of time no longer than three years from the date of employment. Any subsequent employment contract must not exceed a period of three years. A board, at its discretion, may or may not renew an employment contract. A board must not, by action or inaction, extend the duration of an existing employment contract. Beginning 365 days prior to the expiration date of an existing employment contract, a board may negotiate and enter into a subsequent employment contract to take effect upon the expiration of the existing contract. A subsequent contract must be contingent upon the employee completing the terms of an existing contract. If a contract between a board and a superintendent is terminated prior to the date specified in the contract, the board may not enter into another superintendent contract with that same individual that has a term that extends beyond the date specified in the terminated contract. A board may terminate a superintendent during the term of an employment contract for any of the grounds specified in section 122A.40, subdivision 9 or 13. A superintendent shall not rely upon an employment contract with a board to assert any other continuing contract rights in the position of superintendent under section 122A.40. Notwithstanding the provisions of sections 122A.40, subdivision 10 or 11, 123A.32, 123A.75, or any other law to the contrary, no individual shall have a right to employment as a superintendent based on order of employment in any district. If two or more districts enter into an agreement for the purchase or sharing of the services of a superintendent, the contracting districts have the absolute right to select one of the individuals employed to serve as superintendent in one of the contracting districts and



no individual has a right to employment as the superintendent to provide all or part of the services based on order of employment in a contracting district. The superintendent of a district shall perform the following:

(1) visit and supervise the schools in the district, report and make recommendations about their condition when advisable or on request by the board;

(2) recommend to the board employment and dismissal of teachers;

(3) superintend school grading practices and examinations for promotions;

(4) make reports required by the commissioner; and

~~(5) by January 10, submit an annual report to the commissioner in a manner prescribed by the commissioner, in consultation with school districts, identifying the expenditures that the district requires to ensure an 80 percent student passage rate on the MCA-II's taken in the eighth grade, identifying the highest student passage rate the district expects it will be able to attain on the MCA-II's by grade 12, and the amount of expenditures that the district requires to attain the targeted student passage rate; and~~

~~(6) perform other duties prescribed by the board.~~

Sec. 50. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 123B.51, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 5a. **Temporary closing.** A school district that proposes to temporarily close a schoolhouse or that intends to lease the facility to another entity for use as a schoolhouse for three or fewer years is not subject to subdivision 5 if the school board holds a public meeting and allows public comment on the schoolhouse's future.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment.

Sec. 51. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 124D.095, subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. **Authorization; notice; limitations on enrollment.** (a) A student may apply for full-time enrollment in an approved online learning program under section 124D.03, 124D.08 or 124D.10, ~~or for supplemental online learning.~~ Notwithstanding sections 124D.03, 124D.08, and 124D.10, procedures for enrolling in supplemental online learning shall be as provided in this subdivision. A student age 17 or younger must have the written consent of a parent or guardian to apply. No school district or charter school may prohibit a student from applying to enroll in online learning. In order that a student may enroll in online learning, the student and the student's parents must submit an application to the online learning provider and identify the reason for enrolling in online learning. The online learning provider that accepts a student under this section must within ten days notify the student and the enrolling district in writing if the enrolling district is not the online learning provider. The student and family must notify the online learning provider of their intent to enroll in online learning within ten days of acceptance, at which time the student and parent must sign a statement of assurance that they have reviewed the online course or program and understand the expectations of online learning enrollment. The online learning provider must notify the enrolling district of the student's ~~enrollment~~ application to enroll in online learning in writing on a form provided by the department.

(b) Supplemental online learning notification to the enrolling district upon student ~~enrollment in~~

application to the online learning program provider will include the courses or program, credits to be awarded, and the start date of online enrollment, and confirmation that the courses will meet the student's graduation plan. An online learning provider must make available to the enrolling district the course syllabus in a format established by the commissioner that identifies the state standards met by the course, content outline, assessment requirements, expectations for actual teacher contact time, other student-to-teacher communication, and academic support for supplemental online courses taken by students in the enrolling district. Within 15 days after the online learning provider makes information in this paragraph available to the enrolling district, the enrolling district must either confirm or deny to the online provider that the student, parent or guardian, and enrolling district have agreed the courses meet the enrolling district's graduation requirements. An online learning course or program that meets or exceeds a graduation standard or grade progression requirements at the enrolling district as demonstrated on the online provider's syllabus must be considered to meet the corresponding graduation requirements of the student in the enrolling district. A student may enroll in supplemental online learning courses up to the midpoint of the enrolling district's term. The enrolling district may waive this requirement for special circumstances and upon acceptance by the online provider.

(c) An online learning provider must notify the commissioner that it is delivering online learning and report the number of online learning students it is accepting and the online learning courses and programs it is delivering.

(d) An online learning provider may limit enrollment if the provider's school board or board of directors adopts by resolution specific standards for accepting and rejecting students' applications.

(e) An enrolling district may reduce an online learning student's regular classroom instructional membership in proportion to the student's membership in online learning courses.

(f) The online provider must report or make available individual student progress and credit accumulation to the student, parent or guardian, and enrolling district in a manner specified by the commissioner unless another manner is agreed upon by the enrolling district and the online provider and submitted to the commissioner. The enrolling district must designate a contact person to assist in the facilitation and monitoring of student progress and credit accumulation towards graduation status.

Sec. 52. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 124D.095, subdivision 4, is amended to read:

**Subd. 4. Online learning parameters.** (a) An online learning student must receive academic credit for completing the requirements of an online learning course or program. Secondary credits granted to an online learning student must be counted toward the graduation and credit requirements of the enrolling district. ~~An online learning provider must make available to the enrolling district the course syllabus, standard alignment, content outline, assessment requirements, and contact information for supplemental online courses taken by students in the enrolling district.~~ The enrolling district must apply the same graduation requirements to all students, including online learning students, and must continue to provide nonacademic services to online learning students. If a student completes an online learning course or program that meets or exceeds a graduation standard or grade progression requirement at the enrolling district, that standard or requirement is met. The enrolling district must use the same criteria for accepting online learning credits or courses as it does for accepting credits or courses for transfer students under section 124D.03, subdivision 9. The enrolling district may reduce the course schedule of an online learning student

in proportion to the number of online learning courses the student takes from an online learning provider that is not the enrolling district.

(b) An online learning student may:

(1) enroll in supplemental online learning courses during a single school year to a maximum of 50 percent of the student's full schedule of courses per term. A student may exceed the supplemental online learning registration limit if the enrolling district grants permission for supplemental online learning enrollment above the limit, or if an agreement is made between the enrolling district and the online learning provider for instructional services;

(2) complete course work at a grade level that is different from the student's current grade level; and

(3) enroll in additional courses with the online learning provider under a separate agreement that includes terms for payment of any tuition or course fees.

(c) An online learning student has the same access to the computer hardware and education software available in a school as all other students in the enrolling district. An online learning provider must assist an online learning student whose family qualifies for the education tax credit under section 290.0674 to acquire computer hardware and educational software for online learning purposes.

(d) An enrolling district may offer online learning to its enrolled students. Such online learning does not generate online learning funds under this section. An enrolling district that offers online learning only to its enrolled students is not subject to the reporting requirements or review criteria under subdivision 7, unless the enrolling district is a full-time online provider. A teacher with a Minnesota license must assemble and deliver instruction to enrolled students receiving online learning from an enrolling district. The delivery of instruction occurs when the student interacts with the computer or the teacher and receives ongoing assistance and assessment of learning. The instruction may include curriculum developed by persons other than a teacher with a Minnesota license.

(e) ~~An~~ Both full-time and supplemental online learning provider that is not the enrolling district is providers are subject to the reporting requirements and review criteria under subdivision 7. A teacher with a Minnesota license must assemble and deliver instruction to online learning students. The delivery of instruction occurs when the student interacts with the computer or the teacher and receives ongoing assistance and assessment of learning. The instruction may include curriculum developed by persons other than a teacher with a Minnesota license. Unless the commissioner grants a waiver, a teacher providing online learning instruction must not instruct more than 40 students in any one online learning course or program.

(f) To enroll in more than 50 percent of the student's full schedule of courses per term in online learning, the student must qualify to exceed the supplemental online learning registration limit under paragraph (b) or apply for enrollment to an approved full-time online learning program following appropriate procedures in subdivision 3, paragraph (a). Full-time online learning students may enroll in classes at a local school per contract for instructional services between the online learning provider and the school district.

Sec. 53. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 124D.095, subdivision 7, is amended to read:

Subd. 7. **Department of Education.** (a) The department must review and certify online learning providers. The online learning courses and programs must be rigorous, aligned with state academic standards, and contribute to grade progression in a single subject. ~~Online learning providers must demonstrate to the commissioner that online learning courses have equivalent standards or instruction, curriculum, and assessment requirements as other courses offered to enrolled students. The online learning provider must also demonstrate expectations for actual teacher contact time or other student-to-teacher communication.~~ The online provider must provide written assurance that all courses meet state academic standards, and that the online learning curriculum, instruction and assessment, expectations for actual teacher contact time or other student-to-teacher communication, and academic support meet nationally recognized professional standards and are demonstrated as such in a syllabus provided according to the commissioner's requirements. Once an online learning provider is approved under this paragraph, all of its online learning course offerings are eligible for payment under this section unless a course is successfully challenged by an enrolling district or the department under paragraph (b).

(b) An enrolling district may challenge the validity of a course offered by an online learning provider. The department must review such challenges based on the certification procedures under paragraph (a). The department may initiate its own review of the validity of an online learning course offered by an online learning provider.

(c) The department may collect a fee not to exceed \$250 for certifying online learning providers or \$50 per course for reviewing a challenge by an enrolling district.

(d) The department must develop, publish, and maintain a list of approved online learning providers and online learning courses and programs that it has reviewed and certified.

Sec. 54. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 124D.095, subdivision 10, is amended to read:

Subd. 10. **Online Learning Advisory Council.** (a) An Online Learning Advisory Council is established ~~under section 15.059, except that.~~ The term for each council member shall be three years. The advisory council is composed of 12 members from throughout the state who have demonstrated experience with or interest in online learning. The members of the council shall be appointed by the commissioner. The advisory council shall bring to the attention of the commissioner any matters related to online learning and provide input to the department in matters related, but not restricted, to:

- (1) quality assurance;
- (2) teacher qualifications;
- (3) program approval;
- (4) special education;
- (5) attendance;
- (6) program design and requirements; and
- (7) fair and equal access to programs.

(b) The Online Learning Advisory Council under this subdivision expires June 30, ~~2008~~ 2013.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** Paragraph (b) is effective retroactively to June 30, 2008.

Sec. 55. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 124D.10, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **Purposes.** (a) The purpose of this section is to:

- (1) improve pupil learning and student achievement;
- (2) increase learning opportunities for pupils;
- (3) encourage the use of different and innovative teaching methods;
- (4) ~~require the measurement of~~ measure learning outcomes and create different and innovative forms of measuring outcomes;
- (5) establish new forms of accountability for schools; ~~or~~ and
- (6) create new professional opportunities for teachers, including the opportunity to be responsible for the learning program at the school site.

(b) This section does not provide a means to keep open or replace a school that otherwise would be closed. Applicants in these circumstances bear the burden of proving that conversion to a charter school fulfills a ~~purpose~~ the purposes specified in this subdivision, independent of the school's closing.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment.

Sec. 56. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 124D.10, subdivision 2a, is amended to read:

Subd. 2a. **Charter School Advisory Council.** (a) A Charter School Advisory Council is established ~~under section 15.059 except that~~. The term for each council member shall be three years. The advisory council is composed of ~~seven~~ nine members ~~from throughout the state who have demonstrated experience with or interest in charter schools. The members of the council shall be appointed by the commissioner. The advisory council shall bring to the attention of the commissioner any matters related to charter schools that the council deems necessary and shall.~~ The members may include charter school sponsors, charter school personnel, public K-12 teachers, school board members, parents of currently enrolled K-12 public school students, and school district representatives. The commissioner shall appoint the council members. The commissioner shall consider geographic balance when appointing council members.

- ~~(1) encourage school boards to make full use of charter school opportunities;~~
- ~~(2) encourage the creation of innovative schools;~~
- ~~(3) provide leadership and support for charter school sponsors to increase the innovation in and the effectiveness, accountability, and fiscal soundness of charter schools;~~
- ~~(4) serve an ombudsman function in facilitating the operations of new and existing charter schools;~~
- (5) promote timely financial management training for newly elected members of a charter school board of directors and ongoing training for other members of a charter school board of directors; and

~~(6) facilitate compliance with auditing and other reporting requirements. The advisory council shall refer all its proposals to the commissioner who shall provide time for reports from the council.~~

The advisory council shall advise and make recommendations to the commissioner on sponsoring charter schools and other matters, including:

- (1) approving, reviewing, and disciplining sponsors, consistent with this section;
- (2) supporting charter school innovation, effectiveness, accountability, and fiscal soundness;
- (3) providing a management training program for charter school administrators and board members;
- (4) complying with auditing and other financial reporting requirements;
- (5) reviewing charter school affidavits and charter school grade and program expansion applications; and
- (6) identifying models to improve communication, cooperation, and the exchange of ideas between and among public charter and district schools.

(b) The advisory council shall recommend to the commissioner and the legislature, by December 1, 2009, an organizational model to give state-level leadership to new school planning, development, start-up, and successful ongoing operation in both the district and chartered sectors of public education. The council, as part of its recommendation, must suggest legislation necessary to implement this new state-level organization model.

(c) The Charter School Advisory Council under this subdivision expires June 30, 2007 2015.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** Paragraph (c) is effective retroactively to June 30, 2007.

Sec. 57. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 124D.10, subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. **Sponsor.** (a) For the purposes of this section:

(1) "application" means the charter school business and operational plan a school developer submits to a sponsor for approval that documents the school developer's mission statement, school purposes, program design, financial plan, governance and management structure, and background and experience, plus any other information the sponsor requests. The application also shall include a "statement of assurance" of legal compliance as prescribed by the commissioner; and

(2) "affidavit" means a written statement the sponsor submits to the commissioner for approval under subdivision 4 attesting to its review and approval of a school charter.

(b) The following organizations may sponsor one or more charter schools:

(1) a school board; intermediate school district school board; education district organized under sections 123A.15 to 123A.19;

(2) charitable organization under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, excluding a nonpublic sectarian or religious institution, any person other than a natural person who directly or indirectly, through one or more intermediaries, controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with the nonpublic sectarian or religious institution, and any other charitable

organization under this clause that in the federal IRS Form 1023, Part IV, describes activities indicating a religious purpose, that:

(i) is a member of the Minnesota Council of Nonprofits or the Minnesota Council on Foundations;

(ii) is registered with the attorney general's office, and;

(iii) reports an end-of-year ongoing fund balance of at least \$2,000,000 for at least four consecutive years; and

(iv) is incorporated in the state of Minnesota;

(3) a Minnesota private college, notwithstanding clause (2), that grants two- or four-year degrees and is registered with the Minnesota Office of Higher Education under chapter 136A; community college, state university, or technical college, governed by the Board of Trustees of the Minnesota State Colleges and Universities; or the University of Minnesota may sponsor one or more charter schools;

(b) (4) a nonprofit corporation subject to chapter 317A, described in section 317A.905, and exempt from federal income tax under ~~section~~ sections 501(c)(3) or 501(c)(6) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, may sponsor one or more charter schools if the charter school has operated for at least three years under a different sponsor or an organization that has previously sponsored schools under this subdivision, and if the nonprofit corporation has ~~existed~~ been incorporated in the state of Minnesota for at least ~~25~~ 20 years; or

(5) no more than two single-purpose sponsors that are charitable organizations formed under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and incorporated in the state of Minnesota whose sole purpose is to sponsor charter schools. Eligible organizations interested in being approved as a sponsor under this paragraph must submit a proposal to the commissioner that includes the provisions of paragraph (c) and a five-year financial plan.

(c) An eligible sponsor under this subdivision must apply to the commissioner for approval as a sponsor before submitting an affidavit to the commissioner to sponsor a charter school. The application for approval as a charter school sponsor must demonstrate the applicant's ability to implement the procedures and satisfy the criteria for sponsoring a charter school under this section. The commissioner must approve or disapprove an application within 60 business days of the application deadline. If the commissioner disapproves the application, the commissioner must notify the applicant of the deficiencies and the applicant then has 20 business days to address the deficiencies to the commissioner's satisfaction. Failing to address the deficiencies to the commissioner's satisfaction makes an applicant ineligible to be a sponsor. The affidavit to be submitted to and evaluated by the commissioner must include at least the following:

(1) how sponsoring schools is a way for the organization to carry out its mission;

(2) a description of the capacity of the organization to serve as a sponsor, including the personnel who will perform the sponsoring duties, their qualifications, the amount of time they will be assigned to this responsibility, and the financial resources allocated by the organization to this responsibility;

(3) a description of the application and review process the sponsor will use to make decisions regarding the granting of charters, which will include at least the following:

- (i) how the statutory purposes defined in subdivision 1 are addressed;
  - (ii) the mission, goals, program model, and student performance expectations;
  - (iii) an evaluation plan for the school that includes criteria for evaluating educational, organizational, and fiscal plans;
  - (iv) the school's governance plan;
  - (v) the financial management plan; and
  - (vi) the administration and operations plan;
- (4) a description of the type of contract it will arrange with the schools it sponsors that meets the provisions of subdivision 6 and defines the rights and responsibilities of the charter school for governing its educational program, controlling its funds, and making school management decisions;
- (5) the process to be used for providing ongoing oversight of the school consistent with the contract expectations specified in clause (4) that assures that the schools sponsored are complying with both the provisions of applicable law and rules, and with the contract;
- (6) the process for making decisions regarding the renewal or termination of the school's charter based on evidence that demonstrates the academic, organizational, and financial competency of the school, including its success in increasing student achievement and meeting the goals of the charter school agreement; and
- (7) an assurance specifying that the organization is committed to serving as a sponsor for the full five-year term.
- (d) The sponsor must participate in department-approved training.
- (e) A sponsor that chartered a school before August 1, 2009, must apply by June 30, 2011, to the commissioner for approval, under paragraph (c), to continue as a sponsor under this section. For purposes of this paragraph, a sponsor that fails to submit a timely application is ineligible to charter a school.
- (f) The commissioner shall review a sponsor's performance every five years in a manner and form determined by the commissioner and may review a sponsor's performance more frequently at the commissioner's own initiative or at the request of a charter school operator, charter school board member, or other interested party. The commissioner, after completing the review, shall transmit a report with findings to the sponsor. If, consistent with this section, the commissioner finds that a sponsor has not fulfilled the requirements of this section, the commissioner may subject the sponsor to corrective action, which may include terminating the contract with the charter school board of directors of a school it sponsored. The commissioner must notify the sponsor in writing of any findings that may subject the sponsor to corrective action and the sponsor then has 15 business days to request an informal hearing before the commissioner takes corrective action.
- (g) The commissioner may at any time take corrective action against a sponsor, including terminating a sponsor's ability to charter a school for:
- (1) failing to demonstrate the criteria under paragraph (c) under which the commissioner approved the sponsor;



(2) violating a term of the chartering contract between the sponsor and the charter school board of directors; or

(3) violations by the charter school that the sponsor authorizes and that the board of directors fails to correct.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective August 1, 2009.

Sec. 58. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 124D.10, subdivision 4, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. **Formation of school.** (a) A sponsor may authorize one or more licensed teachers under section 122A.18, subdivision 1, to operate a charter school subject to approval by the commissioner. ~~A board must vote on charter school application for sponsorship no later than 90 days after receiving the application.~~ The school must be organized and operated as a cooperative under chapter 308A or nonprofit corporation under chapter 317A and the provisions under the applicable chapter shall apply to the school except as provided in this section. Notwithstanding sections 465.717 and 465.719, a school district may create a corporation for the purpose of creating a charter school.

(b) Before the operators may ~~form~~ establish and operate a school, the sponsor must file an affidavit with the commissioner stating its intent to authorize a charter school. A sponsor must file a separate affidavit for each school it intends to charter. The affidavit must state the terms and conditions under which the sponsor would authorize a charter school and how the sponsor intends to oversee the fiscal and student performance of the charter school and to comply with the terms of the written contract between the sponsor and the charter school board of directors under subdivision 6. The commissioner must approve or disapprove the sponsor's ~~proposed authorization~~ affidavit within ~~90~~ 60 business days of receipt of the affidavit. If the commissioner disapproves the affidavit, the commissioner shall notify the sponsor of the deficiencies in the affidavit and the sponsor then has 20 business days to address the deficiencies. If the sponsor does not address the deficiencies to the commissioner's satisfaction, the commissioner's disapproval is final. Failure to obtain commissioner approval precludes a sponsor from authorizing the charter chartering the school that was is the subject of ~~the~~ this affidavit.

(c) The sponsor may prevent an approved charter school from opening for operation if, among other grounds, the charter school violates this section or does not meet the ready-to-open standards that are part of the sponsor's oversight and evaluation process or are stipulated in the charter school contract.

(d) The operators authorized to organize and operate a school, before entering into a contract or other agreement for professional or other services, goods, or facilities, must incorporate as a cooperative under chapter 308A or as a nonprofit corporation under chapter 317A and must establish a board of directors composed of at least five members who are not related parties until a timely election for members of the ongoing charter school board of directors is held according to the school's articles and bylaws under paragraph (f). A charter school board of directors must be composed of at least five members. Any Staff members who are employed at the school, including teachers providing instruction under a contract with a cooperative, and all parents or legal guardians of children enrolled in the school may participate in the election for are the voters eligible to elect the members of the school's board of directors. Licensed teachers employed at the school, including teachers providing instruction under a contract with a cooperative, must be a majority of the members of the board of directors before the school completes its third year of operation, unless the commissioner waives the requirement for a majority of licensed teachers on

~~the board.~~ A charter school must notify eligible voters of the school board election dates at least 30 days before the election. Board of director meetings must comply with chapter 13D.

(e) Every charter school board member shall attend department-approved training on board governance, the board's role and responsibilities, employment policies and practices, and financial management standards and practices. A board member who does not begin the required training within three months of being seated and complete the required training within 12 months of being seated on the board is ineligible to continue to serve as a board member.

(f) The ongoing board must be elected before the school completes its third year of operation. The charter school board of directors shall be composed of at least five members who are not related parties and shall include at least a licensed teacher employed at the school, a charter school parent or legal guardian, and an interested community member. The chief financial officer and the chief administrator are nonvoting board members. Board bylaws shall outline the process and procedures for changing the board's governance model. A board may change its governance model within the requirements of board membership in this section and only with approval from the sponsor and a voting majority of the board of directors and the licensed teachers employed at the school.

~~(d)~~ (g) The granting or renewal of a charter school by a sponsoring entity sponsor must not be conditioned upon the bargaining unit status of the employees of the school.

(h) The granting or renewal of a charter school by a sponsor must not be contingent on a requirement to contract, lease, or purchase services from the sponsor. A party to such an arrangement between a sponsor and a school must disclose the arrangement to the commissioner. The commissioner may terminate a charter school contract under this section if the commissioner determines that the arrangement is illegal or in violation of this section.

~~(e)~~ (i) A sponsor may authorize the operators board of directors of a charter school to expand the operation of the charter school to additional sites or to add additional grades at the school beyond those described in the sponsor's application original affidavit as approved by the commissioner only after submitting a supplemental application affidavit for approval to the commissioner in a form and manner prescribed by the commissioner. The supplemental application affidavit must provide evidence that:

(1) the expansion of proposed by the charter school is supported by need and projected enrollment;

(2) the charter school expansion is warranted, at a minimum, by longitudinal data demonstrating sustained academic performance and growth on statewide assessments under chapter 120B;

(3) the charter school is fiscally sound and has the financial capacity to implement the proposed expansion;

~~(3)~~ (4) the sponsor supports the charter school has the potential physical capacity to implement the proposed expansion; and

~~(4) the building of the additional site meets all health and safety requirements to be eligible for lease aid~~ (5) the sponsor finds that the charter school has the management capacity to implement the proposed expansion.

~~(f) The commissioner annually must provide timely financial management training to newly~~

~~elected members of a charter school board of directors and ongoing training to other members of a charter school board of directors. Training must address ways to:~~

~~(1) proactively assess opportunities for a charter school to maximize all available revenue sources;~~

~~(2) establish and maintain complete, auditable records for the charter school;~~

~~(3) establish proper filing techniques;~~

~~(4) document formal actions of the charter school, including meetings of the charter school board of directors;~~

~~(5) properly manage and retain charter school and student records;~~

~~(6) comply with state and federal payroll record keeping requirements; and~~

~~(7) address other similar factors that facilitate establishing and maintaining complete records on the charter school's operations.~~

(j) The commissioner shall have 30 business days to review and comment on the supplemental affidavit. The commissioner shall notify the sponsor of any deficiencies in the supplemental affidavit and the sponsor then has 30 business days to address, to the commissioner's satisfaction, any deficiencies in the supplemental affidavit. The school shall not expand grades or add sites until the commissioner has approved the supplemental affidavit. The commissioner's approval or disapproval of a supplemental affidavit is final.

(k) A new charter school must not open in a newly consolidated district under section 123A.48 or in a district dissolved under section 123A.46 for at least 36 months after the date of consolidation or dissolution, except under subdivision 5 in this section or unless the school board of the school district in which the charter school would be located gives the sponsor written approval to do so.

(l) A new charter school must not open within a one-mile radius of a public school that has closed under section 123B.51 for at least 36 months after the date the school closed unless the commissioner determines that the new charter school applicant does not intend to reestablish the closed public school as a charter school, except under subdivision 5 in this section or unless the school board of the school district in which the charter school would be located gives the sponsor written approval to do so.

(m) A sponsor may apply to the commissioner for a waiver from paragraph (k) or paragraph (l). The commissioner must use the criteria in this section to approve or deny the waiver within 45 business days. The commissioner's decision is final.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective August 1, 2009.

Sec. 59. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 124D.10, subdivision 4a, is amended to read:

Subd. 4a. **Conflict of interest.** ~~(a) A member of a charter school board of directors~~ An individual is prohibited from serving as a member of the charter school board of directors or as if the individual, an immediate family member, or the individual's partner is an owner, employee or agent of or a contractor with a for-profit or nonprofit entity with whom the charter school contracts, directly or indirectly, for professional services, goods, or facilities. A violation of this prohibition renders a

contract voidable at the option of the commissioner or the charter school board of directors. A member of a charter school board of directors who violates this prohibition ~~shall be~~ is individually liable to the charter school for any damage caused by the violation.

(b) No member of the board of directors, employee, officer, or agent of a charter school shall participate in selecting, awarding, or administering a contract if a conflict of interest exists. A conflict exists when:

(1) the board member, employee, officer, or agent;

(2) the immediate family of the board member, employee, officer, or agent;

(3) the partner of the board member, employee, officer, or agent; or

(4) an organization that employs, or is about to employ any individual in clauses (1) to (3), has a financial or other interest in the entity with which the charter school is contracting. A violation of this prohibition renders the contract void.

(c) Any employee, agent, or board member of the sponsor who participates in the initial review, approval, ongoing oversight, evaluation, or the charter renewal or nonrenewal process or decision is ineligible to serve on the board of directors of a school chartered by that sponsor.

(d) An individual may serve as a member of the board of directors if no conflict of interest under paragraph (a) exists.

~~(e) A member of a charter school board of directors that serves as a member of the board of directors or as an employee or agent of or a contractor with a nonprofit entity with whom the charter school contracts, directly or indirectly, for professional services, goods, or facilities, must disclose all potential conflicts to the commissioner.~~

~~(d)~~ (e) The conflict of interest provisions under this subdivision do not apply to compensation paid to a teacher employed by the charter school who also serves as a member of the board of directors.

~~(e)~~ (f) The conflict of interest provisions under this subdivision do not apply to a teacher who provides services to a charter school through a cooperative formed under chapter 308A when the teacher also serves on the charter school board of directors.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment.

Sec. 60. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 124D.10, subdivision 5, is amended to read:

Subd. 5. **Conversion of existing schools.** A board of an independent or special school district may convert one or more of its existing schools to charter schools under this section if 60 percent of the full-time teachers at the school sign a petition seeking conversion. The conversion must occur at the beginning of an academic year.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment.

Sec. 61. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 124D.10, subdivision 6, is amended to read:

Subd. 6. **Charter contract.** The sponsor's authorization for a charter school must be in the form of a written contract signed by the sponsor and the board of directors of the charter school.

The contract must be completed within ~~90~~ 45 business days of the commissioner's approval of the sponsor's ~~proposed authorization~~ affidavit. The sponsor shall submit a copy of the signed contract to the commissioner within ten days of its execution. The contract for a charter school must be in writing and contain at least the following:

- (1) a description of a how the program that carries out one or more of the purposes in subdivision 1;
- (2) a description of the specific academic and nonacademic outcomes that pupils are to must achieve under subdivision 10;
- (3) a statement of admission policies and procedures;
- (4) a governance, management and administration of plan for the school;
- (5) signed agreements from charter school board members to comply with all federal and state laws governing all organizational, programmatic, and financial requirements and procedures for program and financial audits applicable to charter schools;
- (6) how the school will comply with subdivisions 8, 13, 16, and 23 the criteria, processes, and procedures that the sponsor will use for ongoing oversight of operational, financial, and academic performance;
- (7) assumption of liability by the charter school the performance evaluation that is a prerequisite for reviewing a charter school contract under subdivision 15;
- (8) types and amounts of insurance liability coverage to be obtained by the charter school;
- (9) the term of the contract, which may be up to three years for an initial contract, plus a preoperational planning year and up to five years for a renewed contract if warranted by the school's academic, financial, and operational performance;
- (10) if how the board of directors or the operators of the charter school will provide special instruction and services for children with a disability under sections 125A.03 to 125A.24, and 125A.65, and a description of the financial parameters within which the charter school will operate to provide the special instruction and services to children with a disability; and
- (11) the process and criteria the sponsor intends to use to monitor and evaluate the fiscal and student performance of the charter school, consistent with subdivision 15; and
- (12) the plan for an orderly closing of the school under chapter 308A or chapter 317A, if the closure is a termination for cause, voluntary termination, or nonrenewal of the contract that includes establishing the responsibilities of the charter school board of directors and the sponsor, and notifying the commissioner, sponsor, the school district in which the charter school is located, and parents of enrolled students about the closure, the transfer of student records to the students' resident districts, and procedures for closing financial operations.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** The section is effective the day following final enactment.

Sec. 62. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 124D.10, subdivision 6a, is amended to read:

Subd. 6a. **Audit report.** (a) The charter school must submit an audit report to the commissioner

and its sponsor by December 31 each year.

(b) The charter school, with the assistance of the auditor conducting the audit, must include with the report a copy of all charter school agreements for corporate management services. If the entity that provides the professional services to the charter school is exempt from taxation under section 501 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, that entity must file with the commissioner by February 15 a copy of the annual return required under section 6033 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986.

(c) If the commissioner receives as part of the an audit report ~~a management letter~~ indicating that a material weakness exists in the financial reporting systems of a charter school, the charter school must submit a written report to the commissioner explaining how the material weakness will be resolved.

(d) Upon the request of an individual, the charter school must make available in a timely fashion the minutes of meetings of members, the board of directors, and committees having any of the authority of the board of directors, and statements showing the financial result of all operations and transactions affecting income and surplus during the school's last annual accounting period and a balance sheet containing a summary of its assets and liabilities as of the closing date of the accounting period.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** The section is effective the day following final enactment.

Sec. 63. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 124D.10, subdivision 7, is amended to read:

Subd. 7. **Public status; exemption from statutes and rules.** A charter school is a public school and is part of the state's system of public education. ~~Except as provided in this section, a charter school is exempt from all statutes and rules applicable to a school, a board, or a district, although it may elect to comply with one or more provisions of statutes or rules.~~ A charter school is exempt from all statutes and rules applicable to a school, school board, or school district unless a statute or rule is made specifically applicable to a charter school or is included in this section.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** The section is effective the day following final enactment.

Sec. 64. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 124D.10, subdivision 8, is amended to read:

Subd. 8. **Federal, state, and local requirements.** (a) A charter school shall meet all ~~applicable~~ federal, state, and local health and safety requirements applicable to school districts.

(b) A school must comply with statewide accountability requirements governing standards and assessments in chapter 120B.

(c) A school sponsored by a school board may be located in any district, unless the school board of the district of the proposed location disapproves by written resolution.

~~(e)~~ (d) A charter school must be nonsectarian in its programs, admission policies, employment practices, and all other operations. A sponsor may not authorize a charter school or program that is affiliated with a nonpublic sectarian school or a religious institution. A charter school student must be released for religious instruction, consistent with section 120A.22, subdivision 12, clause (3).

~~(d)~~ (e) Charter schools must not be used as a method of providing education or generating revenue for students who are being home-schooled.

~~(e)~~ (f) The primary focus of a charter school must be to provide a comprehensive program of instruction for at least one grade or age group from five through 18 years of age. Instruction may be provided to people younger than five years and older than 18 years of age.

~~(f)~~ (g) A charter school may not charge tuition.

~~(g)~~ (h) A charter school is subject to and must comply with chapter 363A and section 121A.04.

~~(h)~~ (i) A charter school is subject to and must comply with the Pupil Fair Dismissal Act, sections 121A.40 to 121A.56, and the Minnesota Public School Fee Law, sections 123B.34 to 123B.39.

~~(i)~~ (j) A charter school is subject to the same financial audits, audit procedures, and audit requirements as a district. Audits must be conducted in compliance with generally accepted governmental auditing standards, the Federal Single Audit Act, if applicable, and section 6.65. A charter school is subject to and must comply with sections 15.054; 118A.01; 118A.02; 118A.03; 118A.04; 118A.05; 118A.06; ~~123B.52, subdivision 5;~~ 471.38; 471.391; 471.392; and 471.425; ~~471.87; 471.88, subdivisions 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 12, 13, and 15; 471.881; and 471.89.~~ The audit must comply with the requirements of sections 123B.75 to 123B.83, except to the extent deviations are necessary because of the program at the school. Deviations must be approved by the commissioner and sponsor. The Department of Education, state auditor, ~~or legislative auditor~~ or sponsor may conduct financial, program, or compliance audits. A charter school determined to be in statutory operating debt under sections 123B.81 to 123B.83 must submit a plan under section 123B.81, subdivision 4.

~~(j)~~ (k) A charter school is a district for the purposes of tort liability under chapter 466.

~~(k)~~ (l) A charter school must comply with ~~sections 13.32~~ chapters 13 and 13D; and sections 120A.22, subdivision 7; 121A.75; and 260B.171, subdivisions 3 and 5.

~~(l)~~ (m) A charter school is subject to the Pledge of Allegiance requirement under section 121A.11, subdivision 3.

(n) A charter school offering online courses or programs must comply with section 124D.095.

(o) A charter school and charter school board of directors are subject to chapter 181.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment.

Sec. 65. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 124D.10, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 8a. **Aid reduction.** The commissioner must reduce a charter school's state aid according to section 127A.42, if the charter school board fails to correct a violation under this section.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment.

Sec. 66. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 124D.10, subdivision 9, is amended to read:

Subd. 9. **Admission requirements.** A charter school may limit admission to:

(1) pupils within an age group or grade level;

(2) ~~people~~ pupils who are eligible to participate in the graduation incentives program under section 124D.68; or

(3) residents of a specific geographic area where ~~the percentage of the population of non-Caucasian people of that area is greater than the percentage of the non-Caucasian population in the congressional district in which the geographic area is located, and as long as the school reflects the racial and ethnic diversity of the specific area~~ in which the school is located when the majority of students served by the school are members of underserved populations in which the school is located when the majority of students served by the school are members of underserved populations.

A charter school shall enroll an eligible pupil who submits a timely application, unless the number of applications exceeds the capacity of a program, class, grade level, or building. In this case, pupils must be accepted by lot. ~~If a charter school is the only school located in a town serving pupils within a particular grade level, then pupils that are residents of the town must be given preference for enrollment before accepting pupils by lot. If a pupil lives within two miles of a charter school and the next closest public school is more than five miles away, the charter school must give those pupils preference for enrollment before accepting other pupils by lot.~~ The charter school must develop and publish a lottery policy and process that it must use when accepting pupils by lot.

A charter school shall give preference for enrollment to a sibling of an enrolled pupil and to a foster child of that pupil's parents before accepting other pupils by lot.

A charter school may not limit admission to pupils on the basis of intellectual ability, measures of achievement or aptitude, or athletic ability and may not establish any criteria or requirements for admission that are inconsistent with this subdivision.

The charter school shall not distribute any services or goods of value to students, parents or guardians as an inducement, term, or condition of enrolling a student in a charter school.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment and applies to the 2010-2011 school year.

Sec. 67. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 124D.10, subdivision 11, is amended to read:

Subd. 11. **Employment and other operating matters.** (a) A charter school must employ or contract with necessary teachers, as defined by section 122A.15, subdivision 1, who hold valid licenses to perform the particular service for which they are employed in the school. The charter school's state aid may be reduced under section ~~127A.42~~ 127A.43 if the school employs a teacher who is not appropriately licensed or approved by the board of teaching. The school may employ necessary employees who are not required to hold teaching licenses to perform duties other than teaching and may contract for other services. The school may discharge teachers and nonlicensed employees. The charter school board of directors must comply with section 181.932 and a school shall not discharge, discipline, threaten or discriminate against, or penalize an employee regarding the employee's compensation, terms or conditions of work location or privileges of employment because the employee, or person acting on the employee's behalf, in good faith transmits to the department, the state of Minnesota or a local law enforcement agency information about the school's financial circumstances, educational performance, a conflict of interest, or other violation of law or school policy. The charter school board of directors must enter into a written agreement with each teacher that outlines the terms and conditions of employment.

(b) A person, without holding a valid administrator's license, may perform administrative, supervisory, or instructional leadership duties. The board of directors shall establish qualifications



for persons that hold administrative, supervisory, or instructional leadership roles. The qualifications shall include at least the following areas: instruction and assessment; human resource and personnel management; financial management; legal and compliance management; effective communication; and board, sponsor, and community relationships. The board of directors shall use those qualifications as the basis for job descriptions, hiring, and performance evaluations of those who hold administrative, supervisory, or instructional leadership roles. The board of directors and an individual who does not hold a valid administrative license and who serves in an administrative, supervisory, or instructional leadership position shall develop a professional development plan. Documentation of the implementation of the professional development plan of these persons shall be included in the school's annual report.

The board of directors also shall decide matters related to the operation of the school, including budgeting, curriculum and operating procedures.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment.

Sec. 68. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 124D.10, subdivision 14, is amended to read:

Subd. 14. **Annual public reports.** A charter school must publish an annual report at least annually to its sponsor and the commissioner the information required by the sponsor or the commissioner approved by the board of directors. The annual report must at least include information on school enrollment, student attrition, governance and management, staffing, finances, academic performance, operational performance, innovative practices and implementation, and future plans. A charter school must distribute the annual report by publication, mail, or electronic means to the commissioner, sponsor, school employees, and parents and legal guardians of students enrolled in the charter school and must also post the report on the charter school's official Web site. The reports are public data under chapter 13.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment.

Sec. 69. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 124D.10, subdivision 15, is amended to read:

Subd. 15. **Review and comment.** (a) The department must review and comment on the evaluation, by the sponsor, of the performance of a charter school before the charter school's contract is renewed for another contract term. The sponsor must submit to the commissioner timely information for the review and comment. The sponsor shall provide a formal written evaluation of the school's performance before the sponsor renews the charter contract. The department must review and comment on the sponsor's evaluation process at the time the sponsor submits its application for approval and each time the sponsor undergoes its five-year review under subdivision 3, paragraph (e).

(b) A sponsor shall monitor and evaluate the fiscal, operational, and student performance of the school, and may for this purpose annually assess a charter school: (1) in its first, second, or third year of operation up to \$30 per student up to a maximum of \$10,000; and (2) in its fourth or a subsequent year of operation up to \$10 per student up to a maximum of \$3,500 a fee according to paragraph (c). The agreed upon fee structure must be stated in the charter school contract.

(c) The fee that each charter school pays to a sponsor each year is the greater of:

(1) the basic formula allowance for that year; or

(2) the lesser of:

(i) the maximum fee factor times the basic formula allowance for that year; or

(ii) 1.0 percent of the basic formula allowance for that year times the charter school's adjusted marginal cost pupil units for that year. The maximum fee factor equals 1.5 in fiscal year 2010, 2.0 in fiscal year 2011, 3.0 in fiscal year 2012, and 4.0 in fiscal years 2013 and later.

(d) The department and any charter school it sponsors must not assess or pay a fee under paragraphs (b) and (c).

(e) For the preoperational planning period, the sponsor may assess a charter school a fee equal to the basic formula allowance.

(f) By September 30 of each year, a sponsor shall submit to the commissioner a statement of expenditures related to sponsoring activities during the previous school year ending June 30. A copy of the statement shall be given to all schools chartered by the sponsor.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment.

Sec. 70. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 124D.10, subdivision 17, is amended to read:

Subd. 17. **Leased space.** A charter school may lease space from a an independent or special school board eligible to be a sponsor or other public or private nonprofit nonsectarian organization. The department, in consultation with the Department of Administration, must review and approve or disapprove the lease agreement within 60 business days of receiving an application for lease aid. If a charter school is unable to lease appropriate space from an eligible board or other public or private nonprofit nonsectarian organization, the school may lease space from another nonsectarian organization if the Department of Education, in consultation with the Department of Administration, approves the lease. If the school is unable to lease appropriate space from public or private nonsectarian organizations, the school may lease space from a sectarian organization if the leased space is constructed as a school facility and the Department of Education, in consultation with the Department of Administration, approves the lease.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment.

Sec. 71. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 124D.10, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 17a. **Building corporation.** (a) A charter school is prohibited from organizing the nonprofit building corporation until the sponsor files a supplementary affidavit with and receives approval from the commissioner.

(b) Upon approval by the sponsor and the commissioner, a charter school that has operated for at least eight consecutive years and is not currently in statutory operating debt may form a separate affiliated nonprofit building corporation to construct or purchase a school facility. The nonprofit building corporation must elect a board of directors. Members of the building corporation board of directors must not be members of the charter school board of directors. The state is immune from any liability as a result of the contractual arrangement and the facility. The sponsor shall submit a supplemental affidavit to the commissioner stating that the sponsor has reviewed:

(1) the school's feasibility study on facility options;

- (2) documents showing the school's need and projected enrollment for such a facility;
- (3) the school's financial plan and financial status; and
- (4) documentation that no other available existing facilities, including those that could be renovated, are available for purchase or lease.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment and applies to building purchases or expansions initiated by building corporations after July 1, 2009.

Sec. 72. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 124D.10, subdivision 20, is amended to read:

Subd. 20. **Leave to teach in a charter school.** If a teacher employed by a district makes a written request for an extended leave of absence to teach at a charter school, the district must grant the leave. The district must grant a leave not to exceed a total of five years. Any request to extend the leave shall be granted only at the discretion of the school board. The district may require that the request for a leave or extension of leave be made ~~up to 90 days before the teacher would otherwise have to report for duty~~ before February 1 in the school year preceding the school year in which the teacher wishes to begin the leave, or February 1 of the calendar year in which the teacher's leave is scheduled to terminate. Except as otherwise provided in this subdivision and except for section 122A.46, subdivision 7, the leave is governed by section 122A.46, including, but not limited to, reinstatement, notice of intention to return, seniority, salary, and insurance.

During a leave, the teacher may continue to aggregate benefits and credits in the Teachers' Retirement Association account ~~by paying both the employer and employee contributions based upon the annual salary of the teacher for the last full pay period before the leave began. The retirement association may impose reasonable requirements to efficiently administer this subdivision according to chapters 354 and 354A.~~

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment.

Sec. 73. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 124D.10, subdivision 23, is amended to read:

Subd. 23. **Causes for nonrenewal or termination of charter school contract.** (a) The duration of the contract with a sponsor must be for the term contained in the contract according to subdivision 6. The sponsor may or may not renew a contract at the end of the term for any ground listed in paragraph (b). A sponsor may unilaterally terminate a contract during the term of the contract for any ground listed in paragraph (b). At least 60 days before not renewing or terminating a contract, the sponsor shall notify the board of directors of the charter school of the proposed action in writing. The notice shall state the grounds for the proposed action in reasonable detail and that the charter school's board of directors may request in writing an informal hearing before the sponsor within ~~14~~ 15 business days of receiving notice of nonrenewal or termination of the contract. Failure by the board of directors to make a written request for a hearing within the ~~14-day~~ 15-business-day period shall be treated as acquiescence to the proposed action. Upon receiving a timely written request for a hearing, the sponsor shall give ~~reasonable~~ ten business days notice to the charter school's board of directors of the hearing date. The sponsor shall conduct an informal hearing before taking final action. The sponsor shall take final action to renew or not renew a contract ~~by the last day of classes in the school year. If the sponsor is a local board, the school's board of directors may appeal the sponsor's decision to the commissioner~~ no later than 20 business days before the proposed date for terminating the contract or the end date of the contract.

(b) A contract may be terminated or not renewed upon any of the following grounds:

- (1) failure to meet the requirements for pupil performance contained in the contract;
- (2) failure to meet generally accepted standards of fiscal management;
- (3) violations of law; or
- (4) other good cause shown.

If a contract is terminated or not renewed under this paragraph, the school must be dissolved according to the applicable provisions of chapter 308A or 317A, ~~except when the commissioner approves the decision of a different eligible sponsor to authorize the charter school.~~

~~(c) If at the end of a contract term, either the sponsor or and the charter school board of directors wants mutually agree to voluntarily terminate or not renew the contract, a change in sponsors is allowed if the commissioner approves the decision of transfer to a different eligible sponsor to authorize the charter school. The party intending to terminate the contract must notify the other party and the commissioner of its intent at least 90 days before the date on which the contract ends. Both parties must jointly submit their intent in writing to the commissioner to mutually terminate the contract. The sponsor that is a party to the existing contract at least must inform the approved different eligible sponsor about the fiscal and operational status and student performance of the school. Before the commissioner determines whether to approve a transfer of sponsor, the commissioner first must determine whether the charter school and prospective new sponsor can identify and effectively resolve those circumstances causing the previous sponsor and the charter school to mutually agree to terminate the contract. If no different eligible transfer of sponsor is approved, the school must be dissolved according to applicable law and the terms of the contract.~~

(d) The commissioner, after providing reasonable notice to the board of directors of a charter school and the existing sponsor, and after providing an opportunity for a public hearing, may terminate the existing ~~sponsorial relationship~~ contract between the sponsor and the charter school if the charter school has a history of:

- (1) sustained failure to meet pupil performance requirements contained in the contract;
- (2) financial mismanagement or failure to meet generally accepted standards of financial management; or
- ~~(2)~~ (3) repeated or major violations of the law.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment.

Sec. 74. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 124D.10, subdivision 23a, is amended to read:

Subd. 23a. **Related party lease costs.** (a) A charter school is prohibited from entering a lease of real property with a related party ~~as defined in subdivision 26,~~ unless the lessor is a nonprofit corporation under chapter 317A or a cooperative under chapter 308A, and the lease cost is reasonable under section 124D.11, subdivision 4, clause (1).

(b) For purposes of this section and section 124D.11:

- (1) "related party" means an affiliate or a close relative of the other party in question, an affiliate

of a close relative, or a close relative of an affiliate;

(2) "affiliate" means a person that directly or indirectly, through one or more intermediaries, controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with another person;

(3) "close relative" means an individual whose relationship by blood, marriage, or adoption to another individual is no more remote than first cousin;

(4) "person" means an individual or entity of any kind; and

(5) "control" means the ability to affect the management, operations, or policy actions or decisions of a person, whether through ownership of voting securities, by contract or otherwise.

(c) A lease of real property to be used for a charter school, not excluded in paragraph (a), must contain the following statement: "This lease is subject to Minnesota Statutes, section 124D.10, subdivision 23a."

~~(e)~~ (d) If a charter school enters into as lessee a lease with a related party and the charter school subsequently closes, the commissioner has the right to recover from the lessor any lease payments in excess of those that are reasonable under section 124D.11, subdivision 4, clause (1).

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment.

Sec. 75. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 124D.10, subdivision 25, is amended to read:

Subd. 25. **Extent of specific legal authority.** (a) The board of directors of a charter school may sue and be sued.

(b) The board may not levy taxes or issue bonds.

(c) The commissioner, a sponsor, members of the board of a sponsor in their official capacity, and employees of a sponsor are immune from civil or criminal liability with respect to all activities related to a charter school they approve or sponsor. The board of directors shall obtain at least the amount of and types of insurance ~~required by the contract, according to subdivision 6~~ up to the applicable tort liability limits under chapter 466. The charter school board must submit a copy of the insurance policy to its sponsor and the commissioner before starting operations. The charter school board must submit changes in its insurance carrier or policy to its sponsor and the commissioner within 20 business days of the change.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective August 1, 2009.

Sec. 76. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 124D.11, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 4a. **State total building lease aid.** The state total building lease aid equals \$37,045,000 for fiscal year 2009. The state total building lease aid for later years equals the total state building lease aid for the preceding fiscal year times 1.03. If the aid in this section is insufficient, the commissioner shall prorate the available aid among all eligible charter schools for that year.

Sec. 77. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 124D.11, subdivision 9, is amended to read:

Subd. 9. **Payment of aids to charter schools.** (a) Notwithstanding section 127A.45, subdivision 3, aid payments for the current fiscal year to a charter school ~~not in its first year of operation~~ shall be of an equal amount on each of the ~~23~~ 24 payment dates. ~~A charter school in its first year of operation~~

~~shall receive, on its first payment date, ten percent of its cumulative amount guaranteed for the year and 22 payments of an equal amount thereafter the sum of which shall equal the current year aid payment percentage multiplied by the cumulative amount guaranteed.~~

(b) ~~Notwithstanding paragraph (a) and section 127A.45, for a charter school ceasing operation on or prior to the end of a school year, the current year aid payment percentage multiplied by the amount due for the school year may be paid to the school after audit of prior fiscal year and current fiscal year pupil counts June 30 of a school year, for the payment periods occurring after the school has ceased serving students, the commissioner shall withhold state aid due to the school based on estimated state aid entitlements. The charter school board of directors and sponsor must provide the commissioner with a closure plan under chapter 308A or 317A, and financial information that details the school's liabilities and assets. After receiving the closure plan, financial information, an audit of pupil counts, and documentation of lease expenditures, and monitoring special education expenditures, the commissioner may release cash withheld and may continue regular payments up to the current year payment percentages if further amounts are due. If, based on audits and monitoring, the school received state aid in excess of the amount due, the commissioner shall retain cash withheld sufficient to eliminate the aid overpayment. For a charter school ceasing operations prior to, or at the end of, a school year, notwithstanding section 127A.45, subdivision 3, preliminary final payments may be made after receiving the closure plan, audit of pupil counts, monitoring of special education expenditures, and documentation of lease expenditures, and school submission of Uniform Financial Accounting and Reporting Standards (UFARS) financial data for the final year of operation. Final payment may be made upon receipt of audited financial statements under section 123B.77, subdivision 3.~~

(c) ~~If a charter school fails to comply with the commissioner's directive to return, for cause, federal or state funds administered by the department, the commissioner may withhold an amount of state aid sufficient to satisfy the directive.~~

(d) ~~If a charter school, within the timeline under section 471.425, fails to pay a school district, intermediate school district, education cooperative, or the state after receiving an undisputed invoice for goods and services, the commissioner may withhold an amount of state aid sufficient to satisfy the claim and shall distribute the withheld aid to the school district, intermediate school district, or service cooperative. A school district, intermediate school district, education cooperative, or a representative of the state shall notify the commissioner when a charter school fails to pay an undisputed invoice within 75 business days of when it received the original invoice.~~

(e) ~~Notwithstanding section 127A.45, subdivision 3, and paragraph (a), 80 percent of the start-up cost aid under subdivision 8 shall be paid within 45 days after the first day of student attendance for that school year.~~

~~(f)~~ (f) ~~In order to receive state aid payments under this subdivision, a charter school in its first three years of operation must submit a school calendar in the form and manner requested by the department and a quarterly report to the Department of Education. The report must list each student by grade, show the student's start and end dates, if any, with the charter school, and for any student participating in a learning year program, the report must list the hours and times of learning year activities. The report must be submitted not more than two weeks after the end of the calendar quarter to the department. The department must develop a Web-based reporting form for charter schools to use when submitting enrollment reports. A charter school in its fourth and subsequent year of operation must submit a school calendar and enrollment information to the department in~~

the form and manner requested by the department.

~~(e)~~ (g) Notwithstanding sections 317A.701 to 317A.791, upon closure of a charter school and satisfaction of creditors, cash and investment balances remaining shall be returned to the state.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective for fiscal year 2010 and later.

Sec. 78. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 124D.128, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. **Commissioner designation.** (a) ~~An area learning center~~ A state-approved alternative program designated by the state must be a site. ~~An area learning center~~ A state-approved alternative program must provide services to students who meet the criteria in section 124D.68 and who are enrolled in:

(1) a district that is served by the ~~center~~ state-approved alternative program; or

(2) a charter school located within the geographic boundaries of a district that is served by the ~~center~~ state-approved alternative program.

(b) A school district or charter school may be approved biennially by the state to provide additional instructional programming that results in grade level acceleration. The program must be designed so that students make grade progress during the school year and graduate prior to the students' peers.

(c) To be designated, a district, charter school, or ~~center~~ state-approved alternative program must demonstrate to the commissioner that it will:

(1) provide a program of instruction that permits pupils to receive instruction throughout the entire year; and

(2) develop and maintain a separate record system that, for purposes of section 126C.05, permits identification of membership attributable to pupils participating in the program. The record system and identification must ensure that the program will not have the effect of increasing the total average daily membership attributable to an individual pupil as a result of a learning year program. The record system must include the date the pupil originally enrolled in a learning year program, the pupil's grade level, the date of each grade promotion, the average daily membership generated in each grade level, the number of credits or standards earned, and the number needed to graduate.

(d) A student who has not completed a school district's graduation requirements may continue to enroll in courses the student must complete in order to graduate until the student satisfies the district's graduation requirements or the student is 21 years old, whichever comes first.

Sec. 79. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 124D.128, subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. **Student planning.** A district, charter school, or ~~area learning center~~ state-approved alternative program must inform all pupils and their parents about the learning year program and that participation in the program is optional. A continual learning plan must be developed at least annually for each pupil with the participation of the pupil, parent or guardian, teachers, and other staff; each participant must sign and date the plan. The plan must specify the learning experiences that must occur during the entire fiscal year and are necessary for grade progression or, for secondary students, graduation. The plan must include:

(1) the pupil's learning objectives and experiences, including courses or credits the pupil plans to complete each year and, for a secondary pupil, the graduation requirements the student must complete;

(2) the assessment measurements used to evaluate a pupil's objectives;

(3) requirements for grade level or other appropriate progression; and

(4) for pupils generating more than one average daily membership in a given grade, an indication of which objectives were unmet.

The plan may be modified to conform to district schedule changes. The district may not modify the plan if the modification would result in delaying the student's time of graduation.

Sec. 80. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 124D.42, subdivision 6, is amended to read:

Subd. 6. **Program training.** The commission must, within available resources:

(1) orient each grantee organization in the nature, philosophy, and purpose of the program; and

(2) build an ethic of community service through general community service training; ~~and~~

~~(3) provide additional training as it determines necessary, which may include training in evaluating early literacy skills and teaching reading to preschool children through the St. Croix River Education District under Laws 2001, First Special Session chapter 6, article 2, section 70, to assist local Head Start organizations in establishing and evaluating Head Start programs for developing children's early literacy skills.~~

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment.

Sec. 81. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 124D.42, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 6a. **Minnesota reading corps program.** (a) A Minnesota reading corps program is established to provide Americorps members with a data-based problem-solving model of literacy instruction to use in helping to train local Head Start program providers, other prekindergarten program providers, and staff in schools with students in kindergarten through grade 3 to evaluate and teach early literacy skills to children age 3 to grade 3.

(b) Literacy programs under this subdivision must comply with the provisions governing literacy program goals and data use under section 119A.50, subdivision 3, paragraph (b).

Sec. 82. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 124D.68, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. **Eligible pupils.** A pupil under the age of 21 or who meets the requirements of section 120A.20, subdivision 1, paragraph (c), is eligible to participate in the graduation incentives program, if the pupil:

(1) performs substantially below the performance level for pupils of the same age in a locally determined achievement test;

(2) is ~~at least one year~~ behind in satisfactorily completing coursework or obtaining credits for graduation;

(3) is pregnant or is a parent;



- (4) has been assessed as chemically dependent;
- (5) has been excluded or expelled according to sections 121A.40 to 121A.56;
- (6) has been appropriately referred in accordance with section 124D.68, subdivision 1, by a school district for enrollment in an eligible program or a program pursuant to section 124D.69;
- (7) is a victim of physical or sexual abuse;
- (8) has experienced mental health problems;
- (9) has experienced homelessness sometime within six months before requesting a transfer to an eligible program;
- (10) speaks English as a second language or has limited English proficiency; or
- (11) has withdrawn from school or has been chronically truant; or
- (12) is being treated in a hospital in the seven-county metropolitan area for cancer or other life threatening illness or is the sibling of an eligible pupil who is being currently treated, and resides with the pupil's family at least 60 miles beyond the outside boundary of the seven-county metropolitan area.

Sec. 83. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 124D.68, subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. **Eligible programs.** (a) A pupil who is eligible according to subdivision 2 may enroll ~~in area learning centers~~ a state-approved alternative program under sections 123A.05 to 123A.08.

(b) A pupil who is eligible according to subdivision 2 and who is ~~between the ages of 16 and 21~~ a high school junior or senior may enroll in postsecondary courses under section 124D.09.

(c) A pupil who is eligible under subdivision 2, may enroll in any public elementary or secondary education program.

(d) A pupil who is eligible under subdivision 2, may enroll in any nonpublic, nonsectarian school that has contracted with the serving school district to provide educational services. However, notwithstanding other provisions of this section, only a pupil who is eligible under subdivision 2, clause (12), may enroll in a contract alternative school that is specifically structured to provide educational services to such a pupil.

(e) A pupil who is between the ages of 16 and 21 may enroll in any adult basic education programs approved under section 124D.52 and operated under the community education program contained in section 124D.19.

Sec. 84. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 124D.68, subdivision 4, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. **Additional eligible program.** A pupil who is at least 16 years of age, who is eligible under subdivision 2, ~~clause (a),~~ and who has been enrolled only in a public school, if the pupil has been enrolled in any school, during the year immediately before transferring under this subdivision, may transfer to any nonpublic school that has contracted with the serving school district to provide nonsectarian educational services. The school must enroll every eligible pupil who seeks to transfer to the school under this program subject to available space.

Sec. 85. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 124D.68, subdivision 5, is amended to read:

Subd. 5. **Pupil enrollment.** (a) Any eligible pupil may apply to enroll in an eligible program. Approval of the resident district is not required for:

(1) an eligible pupil to enroll in any eligible program in a nonresident district under subdivision 3 or 4 or ~~an area learning center~~ a state-approved alternative program established under section 123A.05; or

(2) an eligible pupil under subdivision 2, to enroll in an adult basic education program approved under section 124D.52.

(b) Notwithstanding paragraph (a), a nonresident district must first approve the enrollment application of any eligible pupil who was expelled under section 121A.45 for a reason stated in section 124D.03, subdivision 1, paragraph (b).

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective for the 2009-2010 school year and later.

Sec. 86. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 124D.83, subdivision 4, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. **Early childhood family education revenue.** A school receiving aid under this section ~~is eligible~~ may apply annually to the commissioner to receive an early childhood family education revenue grant to provide early childhood family education programs for parents and children who are enrolled or eligible for enrollment in a federally recognized tribe. The revenue equals 1.5 times the statewide average expenditure per participant under section 124D.135, times the number of children and parents participating full time in the program. ~~The program must grant must be used for programs and services that comply with section 124D.13, except that the school is not required to provide a community education program or establish a community education advisory council. The program must be designed to improve the skills of parents and promote American Indian history, language, and culture. The school must make affirmative efforts to encourage participation by fathers. Admission may not be limited to those enrolled in or eligible for enrollment in a federally recognized tribe.~~

Sec. 87. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 124D.86, subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. **Integration revenue.** (a) Integration revenue for a school district equals the lesser of: the district's integration revenue per pupil unit for fiscal year 2009 times the adjusted pupil units for the school year or the following amounts:

(1) for Independent School District No. 709, Duluth, \$206 times the adjusted pupil units for the school year;

(2) for Independent School District No. 625, St. Paul, \$445 times the adjusted pupil units for the school year;

(3) for Special School District No. 1, Minneapolis, the sum of \$445 times the adjusted pupil units for the school year and an additional \$35 times the adjusted pupil units for the school year that is provided entirely through a local levy;

(4) for a district not listed in clause (1), (2), or (3), that must implement a plan under Minnesota Rules, parts 3535.0100 to 3535.0180, where the district's enrollment of protected students, as defined under Minnesota Rules, part 3535.0110, exceeds 15 percent, the lesser of (i) the actual cost of

implementing the plan during the fiscal year minus the aid received under subdivision 6, or (ii) \$129 times the adjusted pupil units for the school year;

(5) for a district not listed in clause (1), (2), (3), or (4), that is required to implement a plan according to the requirements of Minnesota Rules, parts 3535.0100 to 3535.0180, the lesser of

(i) the actual cost of implementing the plan during the fiscal year minus the aid received under subdivision 6, or

(ii) \$92 times the adjusted pupil units for the school year.

Any money received by districts in clauses (1) to (3) which exceeds the amount received in fiscal year 2000 shall be subject to the budget requirements in subdivision 1a; and

(6) for a member district of a multidistrict integration collaborative that files a plan with the commissioner, but is not contiguous to a racially isolated district, integration revenue equals the amount defined in clause (5).

(b) A district that did not receive integration revenue under this subdivision for fiscal year 2009 is not eligible for integration revenue for fiscal year 2010 or later.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective July 1, 2009.

Sec. 88. **[124D.98] SUMMER OF SUCCESS.**

Subdivision 1. **Establishment.** The summer of success program is established to provide intensive intervention to students not yet proficient on the 8th grade standardized assessments in mathematics or reading. Intervention aiming to accelerate students to grade level shall be delivered to students the summer between 8th and 9th grade or in an extended day format during 9th grade.

Subd. 2. **Program administration.** Mathematics and reading instruction shall be delivered in a manner to support student success. Program components shall include, but are not limited to:

(1) duration of sufficient length and intensity, individualized based on data, to support student mastery of content that brings them to grade level and prepares them for 9th grade material;

(2) curriculum aligned to Minnesota kindergarten through grade 12 academic standards and delivered by highly qualified instructors in the content area in which instruction will be provided;

(3) connections to other support programs and opportunities offered during the traditional school year;

(4) creation of a high school transition plan, including courses supporting college and career readiness; and

(5) participation in an external program evaluation.

Subd. 3. **Program administration.** The commissioner shall administer the program through a competitive process. Applicants shall apply in the form and manner prescribed by the commissioner. The commissioner shall, to the extent possible, select sites in St. Paul, Minneapolis, the suburban metropolitan area, and greater Minnesota.

Sec. 89. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 126C.05, subdivision 15, is amended to read:

Subd. 15. **Learning year pupil units.** (a) When a pupil is enrolled in a learning year program under section 124D.128, an area learning center or an alternative learning program approved by the commissioner under sections 123A.05 and 123A.06, ~~an alternative program approved by the commissioner,~~ or a contract alternative program under section 124D.68, subdivision 3, paragraph (d), or subdivision 3a, for more than 1,020 hours in a school year for a secondary student, more than 935 hours in a school year for an elementary student, or more than 425 hours in a school year for a kindergarten student without a disability, that pupil may be counted as more than one pupil in average daily membership for purposes of section 126C.10, subdivision 2a. The amount in excess of one pupil must be determined by the ratio of the number of hours of instruction provided to that pupil in excess of: (i) the greater of 1,020 hours or the number of hours required for a full-time secondary pupil in the district to 1,020 for a secondary pupil; (ii) the greater of 935 hours or the number of hours required for a full-time elementary pupil in the district to 935 for an elementary pupil in grades 1 through 6; and (iii) the greater of 425 hours or the number of hours required for a full-time kindergarten student without a disability in the district to 425 for a kindergarten student without a disability. Hours that occur after the close of the instructional year in June shall be attributable to the following fiscal year. A kindergarten student must not be counted as more than 1.2 pupils in average daily membership under this subdivision. A student in grades 1 through 12 must not be counted as more than 1.2 pupils in average daily membership under this subdivision.

(b)(i) To receive general education revenue for a pupil in an area learning center or alternative learning program that has an independent study component, a district must meet the requirements in this paragraph. The district must develop, for the pupil, a continual learning plan consistent with section 124D.128, subdivision 3. Each school district that has ~~a state-approved public~~ an area learning center or alternative learning program must reserve revenue in an amount equal to at least 90 percent of the district average general education revenue per pupil unit ~~less compensatory revenue per pupil unit,~~ minus an amount equal to the product of the formula allowance according to section 126C.10, subdivision 2, times .0485, calculated without basic skills and transportation sparsity revenue, times the number of pupil units generated by students attending a state-approved public an area learning center or alternative learning program. The amount of reserved revenue available under this subdivision may only be spent for program costs associated with the ~~state-approved public~~ area learning center or alternative learning program. ~~Compensatory revenue must be allocated according to section 126C.15, subdivision 2.~~ Basic skills revenue, according to section 126C.10, subdivision 4, generated by pupils attending the eligible program must be allocated to the program.

(ii) General education revenue for a pupil in ~~an approved~~ a state-approved alternative program without an independent study component must be prorated for a pupil participating for less than a full year, or its equivalent. The district must develop a continual learning plan for the pupil, consistent with section 124D.128, subdivision 3. Each school district that has ~~a state-approved public~~ an area learning center or alternative learning program must reserve revenue in an amount equal to at least 90 percent of the district average general education revenue per pupil unit ~~less compensatory revenue per pupil unit,~~ minus an amount equal to the product of the formula allowance according to section 126C.10, subdivision 2, times .0485, calculated without basic skills and transportation sparsity revenue, times the number of pupil units generated by students attending a state-approved public an area learning center or alternative learning program. The amount of reserved revenue available under this subdivision may only be spent for program costs associated with the ~~state-approved public~~ area learning center or alternative learning program. ~~Compensatory revenue must be allocated according to section 126C.15, subdivision 2.~~ Basic skills

revenue, according to section 126C.10, subdivision 4, generated by pupils attending the eligible program must be allocated to the program.

(iii) General education revenue for a pupil in ~~an~~ a state-approved alternative program that has an independent study component must be paid for each hour of teacher contact time and each hour of independent study time completed toward a credit or graduation standards necessary for graduation. Average daily membership for a pupil shall equal the number of hours of teacher contact time and independent study time divided by 1,020.

(iv) For ~~an~~ a state-approved alternative program having an independent study component, the commissioner shall require a description of the courses in the program, the kinds of independent study involved, the expected learning outcomes of the courses, and the means of measuring student performance against the expected outcomes.

Sec. 90. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 126C.05, subdivision 20, is amended to read:

Subd. 20. **Project-based average daily membership.** (a) Project-based is an instructional program where students complete coursework for credit at an individual pace that is primarily student-led and may be completed on site, in the community, or online. A project-based program may be made available to all or selected students and grades in a school. To receive general education revenue for a pupil enrolled in a public school with a project-based program, a school must meet the requirements in this paragraph. The school must:

(1) register with the commissioner as a project-based program by May 30 of the preceding fiscal year apply and receive approval from the commissioner as a project-based program at least 90 days prior to starting the program;

(2) provide a minimum teacher contact of no less than one hour per week per project-based credit for each pupil;

(3) ensure that the program will not increase the total average daily membership generated by the student and that there will be the expectation that the students will be making typical progression towards high school graduation;

~~(3)~~ (4) maintain a record system that shows when each credit or portion thereof was reported for membership for each pupil; and

~~(4)~~ (5) report pupil membership consistent with paragraph (b).

(b) The commissioner must develop a formula for reporting pupil membership to compute average daily membership for each ~~registered~~ approved project-based school program. Average daily membership for a pupil in a ~~registered~~ approved project-based program is the lesser of:

(1) 1.0; or

(2) the ratio of (i) the number of membership hours generated by project-based credits completed during the school year plus membership hours generated by credits completed in a seat-based setting to (ii) the annual required instructional hours at that grade level. Membership hours for a partially completed project-based credit must be prorated. General education revenue for a pupil in a project-based program must be prorated for a pupil participating for less than a full year, or its equivalent.

(c) For a program that has not been approved by the commissioner for project-based learning but an auditor or other site visit deems that any portion or credits awarded by the school are project-based, student membership must be computed per paragraph (b).

Sec. 91. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 171.05, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

**Subd. 2. Person less than 18 years of age.** (a) Notwithstanding any provision in subdivision 1 to the contrary, the department may issue an instruction permit to an applicant who is 15, 16, or 17 years of age and who:

(1) has completed a course of driver education in another state, has a previously issued valid license from another state, or is enrolled in either:

(i) a public, private, or commercial driver education program that is approved by the commissioner of public safety and that includes classroom and behind-the-wheel training; or

(ii) an approved behind-the-wheel driver education program when the student is receiving full-time instruction in a home school within the meaning of sections 120A.22 and 120A.24, the student is working toward a homeschool diploma, ~~the student's status as a homeschool student has been certified by the superintendent of the school district in which the student resides,~~ and the student is taking home-classroom driver training with classroom materials approved by the commissioner of public safety, and the student's parent has certified the student's homeschool and home-classroom driver training status on the form approved by the commissioner;

(2) has completed the classroom phase of instruction in the driver education program;

(3) has passed a test of the applicant's eyesight;

(4) has passed a department-administered test of the applicant's knowledge of traffic laws;

(5) has completed the required application, which must be approved by (i) either parent when both reside in the same household as the minor applicant or, if otherwise, then (ii) the parent or spouse of the parent having custody or, in the event there is no court order for custody, then (iii) the parent or spouse of the parent with whom the minor is living or, if items (i) to (iii) do not apply, then (iv) the guardian having custody of the minor or, in the event a person under the age of 18 has no living father, mother, or guardian, or is married or otherwise legally emancipated, then (v) the applicant's adult spouse, adult close family member, or adult employer; provided, that the approval required by this clause contains a verification of the age of the applicant and the identity of the parent, guardian, adult spouse, adult close family member, or adult employer; and

(6) has paid the fee required in section 171.06, subdivision 2.

(b) For the purposes of determining compliance with the certification of paragraph (a), clause (1), item (ii), the commissioner may request verification of a student's homeschool status from the superintendent of the school district in which the student resides and the superintendent shall provide that verification.

(c) The instruction permit is valid for two years from the date of application and may be renewed upon payment of a fee equal to the fee for issuance of an instruction permit under section 171.06, subdivision 2.

Sec. 92. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 171.17, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **Offenses.** (a) The department shall immediately revoke the license of a driver upon receiving a record of the driver's conviction of:

(1) manslaughter resulting from the operation of a motor vehicle or criminal vehicular homicide or injury under section 609.21;

(2) a violation of section 169A.20 or 609.487;

(3) a felony in the commission of which a motor vehicle was used;

(4) failure to stop and disclose identity and render aid, as required under section 169.09, in the event of a motor vehicle accident, resulting in the death or personal injury of another;

(5) perjury or the making of a false affidavit or statement to the department under any law relating to the application, ownership or operation of a motor vehicle, including on the certification required under section 171.05, subdivision 2, clause (1), item (ii), to issue an instruction permit to a homeschool student;

(6) except as this section otherwise provides, three charges of violating within a period of 12 months any of the provisions of chapter 169 or of the rules or municipal ordinances enacted in conformance with chapter 169, for which the accused may be punished upon conviction by imprisonment;

(7) two or more violations, within five years, of the misdemeanor offense described in section 169.444, subdivision 2, paragraph (a);

(8) the gross misdemeanor offense described in section 169.444, subdivision 2, paragraph (b);

(9) an offense in another state that, if committed in this state, would be grounds for revoking the driver's license; or

(10) a violation of an applicable speed limit by a person driving in excess of 100 miles per hour. The person's license must be revoked for six months for a violation of this clause, or for a longer minimum period of time applicable under section 169A.53, 169A.54, or 171.174.

(b) The department shall immediately revoke the school bus endorsement of a driver upon receiving a record of the driver's conviction of the misdemeanor offense described in section 169.443, subdivision 7.

Sec. 93. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 171.22, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **Violations.** With regard to any driver's license, including a commercial driver's license, it shall be unlawful for any person:

(1) to display, cause or permit to be displayed, or have in possession, any fictitious or fraudulently altered driver's license or Minnesota identification card;

(2) to lend the person's driver's license or Minnesota identification card to any other person or knowingly permit the use thereof by another;

(3) to display or represent as one's own any driver's license or Minnesota identification card not issued to that person;

(4) to use a fictitious name or date of birth to any police officer or in any application for a driver's license or Minnesota identification card, or to knowingly make a false statement, or to knowingly conceal a material fact, or otherwise commit a fraud in any such application;

(5) to alter any driver's license or Minnesota identification card;

(6) to take any part of the driver's license examination for another or to permit another to take the examination for that person;

(7) to make a counterfeit driver's license or Minnesota identification card;

(8) to use the name and date of birth of another person to any police officer for the purpose of falsely identifying oneself to the police officer; ~~or~~

(9) to display as a valid driver's license any canceled, revoked, or suspended driver's license. A person whose driving privileges have been withdrawn may display a driver's license only for identification purposes; or

(10) to submit a false affidavit or statement to the department on the certification required under section 171.05, subdivision 2, clause (1), item (ii), to issue an instruction permit to a homeschool student.

Sec. 94. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 181A.05, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **When issued.** Any minor 14 or 15 years of age who wishes to work on school days during school hours shall first secure an employment certificate. The certificate shall be issued only by the school district superintendent, the superintendent's agent, ~~or~~ some other person designated by the Board of Education, or by the person in charge of providing instruction for students enrolled in nonpublic schools as defined in section 120A.22, subdivision 4. The employment certificate shall be issued only for a specific position with a designated employer and shall be issued only in the following circumstances:

(1) if a minor is to be employed in an occupation not prohibited by rules promulgated under section 181A.09 and as evidence thereof presents a signed statement from the prospective employer; and

(2) if the parent or guardian of the minor consents to the employment; and

(3) if the issuing officer believes the minor is physically capable of handling the job in question and further believes the best interests of the minor will be served by permitting the minor to work.

Sec. 95. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 299F.30, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **Duties of fire marshal.** Consistent with sections 121A.035, 121A.037, and this section, it shall be the duty of the state fire marshal, deputies and assistants, to require public and private schools and educational institutions to have at least ~~five~~ two fire drills each school year, to expect students to be present and participate in these drills, and to keep all doors and exits unlocked from the inside of the building during school hours.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective for the 2009-2010 school year and later.

Sec. 96. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 299F.47, subdivision 4, is amended to read:



Subd. 4. **Local inspections.** (a) If inspections of public school buildings and charter schools were conducted by local units of government between January 1, 1987, and January 1, 1990, then inspections may continue to be provided by the local unit of government.

(b) Notwithstanding subdivision 5, Special School District No. 6, South Saint Paul, may contract with the South Metro Fire Department to conduct inspections required under this section.

**Sec. 97. ASSESSMENT OF READING INSTRUCTION.**

(a) No later than March 1, 2010, the Board of Teaching, in cooperation with the commissioner of education, shall adopt an assessment of reading instruction for all prekindergarten and elementary licensure candidates consistent with Minnesota Statutes, section 122A.18, subdivision 2c.

(b) The Board of Teaching and the commissioner shall report to the legislative committees with jurisdiction over prekindergarten through grade 12 education policy by March 15, 2010, on the assessment of reading instruction that was adopted.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment.

**Sec. 98. READING INSTRUCTION RULES; LEGISLATIVE REVIEW.**

The Board of Teaching may not adopt proposed rules regarding licensure and reading instruction until the legislature has adjourned the 2009 regular session.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment.

**Sec. 99. RESERVED REVENUE FOR STAFF DEVELOPMENT; TEMPORARY SUSPENSION.**

Notwithstanding Minnesota Statutes, section 122A.61, subdivision 1, for fiscal years 2010 and 2011 only, a school district or charter school may use revenue reserved for staff development under Minnesota Statutes, section 122A.61, subdivision 1, according to the requirements of general education revenue under Minnesota Statutes, section 126C.13, subdivision 5.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective July 1, 2009.

**Sec. 100. APPOINTMENTS TO CHARTER SCHOOL ADVISORY COUNCIL.**

The commissioner shall complete the appointments required under Minnesota Statutes, section 124D.10, subdivision 2a, no later than September 1, 2009. The commissioner's designee shall convene the first meeting of the council no later than October 1, 2009.

**Sec. 101. SINGLE-PURPOSE SPONSOR.**

The commissioner shall approve at least one but no more than two charitable organizations formed under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 whose sole purpose is to sponsor charter schools, consistent with Minnesota Statutes, section 124D.10, subdivision 3, paragraph (b), clause (5), by June 30, 2011.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment.

**Sec. 102. APPROPRIATIONS.**

Subdivision 1. **Department of Education.** The sums indicated in this section are appropriated

from the general fund to the Department of Education for the fiscal years designated.

Subd. 2. **Charter school building lease aid.** For building lease aid under Minnesota Statutes, section 124D.11, subdivision 4:

|    |                   |       |             |
|----|-------------------|-------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>38,045,000</u> | ..... | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>39,186,000</u> | ..... | <u>2011</u> |

The 2010 appropriation includes \$3,704,000 for 2009 and \$34,341,000 for 2010.

The 2011 appropriation includes \$3,815,000 for 2010 and \$35,371,000 for 2011.

Subd. 3. **Charter school startup aid.** For charter school startup cost aid under Minnesota Statutes, section 124D.11:

|    |                  |       |             |
|----|------------------|-------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>1,488,000</u> | ..... | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>1,064,000</u> | ..... | <u>2011</u> |

The 2010 appropriation includes \$202,000 for 2009 and \$1,286,000 for 2010.

The 2011 appropriation includes \$142,000 for 2010 and \$922,000 for 2011.

Subd. 4. **Integration aid.** For integration aid under Minnesota Statutes, section 124D.86, subdivision 5:

|    |                   |       |             |
|----|-------------------|-------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>61,431,000</u> | ..... | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>61,067,000</u> | ..... | <u>2011</u> |

The 2010 appropriation includes \$6,110,000 for 2009 and \$55,322,000 for 2010.

The 2011 appropriation includes \$6,146,000 for 2010 and \$54,920,000 for 2011.

Subd. 5. **Magnet school grants.** For magnet school and program grants under Minnesota Statutes section 124D.88:

|    |                |       |             |
|----|----------------|-------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>750,000</u> | ..... | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>750,000</u> | ..... | <u>2011</u> |

Subd. 6. **Interdistrict desegregation or integration transportation grants.** For interdistrict desegregation or integration transportation grants under Minnesota Statutes, section 124D.87:

|    |                   |       |             |
|----|-------------------|-------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>14,468,000</u> | ..... | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>17,582,000</u> | ..... | <u>2011</u> |

Subd. 7. **Success for the future.** For American Indian success for the future grants under Minnesota Statutes, section 124D.81:

|    |                  |       |             |
|----|------------------|-------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>2,137,000</u> | ..... | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>2,137,000</u> | ..... | <u>2011</u> |

The 2010 appropriation includes \$213,000 for 2009 and \$1,924,000 for 2010.

The 2011 appropriation includes \$213,000 for 2010 and \$1,924,000 for 2011.

Subd. 8. **American Indian teacher preparation grants.** For joint grants to assist American Indian people to become teachers under Minnesota Statutes, section 122A.63:

|    |                |       |             |
|----|----------------|-------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>190,000</u> | ..... | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>190,000</u> | ..... | <u>2011</u> |

Subd. 9. **Tribal contract schools.** For tribal contract school aid under Minnesota Statutes, section 124D.83:

|    |                  |       |             |
|----|------------------|-------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>2,030,000</u> | ..... | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>2,211,000</u> | ..... | <u>2011</u> |

The 2010 appropriation includes \$191,000 for 2009 and \$1,839,000 for 2010.

The 2011 appropriation includes \$204,000 for 2010 and \$2,007,000 for 2011.

Subd. 10. **Early childhood programs at tribal schools.** For early childhood family education programs at tribal contract schools under Minnesota Statutes, section 124D.83, subdivision 4:

|    |               |       |             |
|----|---------------|-------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>68,000</u> | ..... | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>68,000</u> | ..... | <u>2011</u> |

Subd. 11. **Statewide testing and reporting system.** For the statewide testing and reporting system under Minnesota Statutes, section 120B.30:

|    |                   |       |             |
|----|-------------------|-------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>10,724,000</u> | ..... | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>10,724,000</u> | ..... | <u>2011</u> |

None of the amounts appropriated under this subdivision shall be used for contract costs associated with hand-scoring of reading or mathematics constructed response questions. Any balance in the first year does not cancel but is available in the second year.

Subd. 12. **Summer of success.** For summer of success under Minnesota Statutes, section 124D.98:

|    |                  |       |             |
|----|------------------|-------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>1,500,000</u> | ..... | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>3,000,000</u> | ..... | <u>2011</u> |

Of this amount, \$100,000 in fiscal year 2010 and \$175,000 in fiscal year 2011 is for evaluation, development, and administration of the program. Any balance available from the first year does not cancel but is available in the second year. This is a onetime appropriation.

Subd. 13. **Alternative compensation.** For alternative compensation aid under Minnesota Statutes, section 122A.415, subdivision 4:

\$            56,021,000    .....    2011

The 2011 appropriation includes \$0 for 2010 and \$56,021,000 for 2011.

Subd. 14. **Examination fees; teacher training and support programs.** (a) For students' advanced placement and international baccalaureate examination fees under Minnesota Statutes, section 120B.13, subdivision 3, and the training and related costs for teachers and other interested educators under Minnesota Statutes, section 120B.13, subdivision 1:

\$            3,500,000    .....    2010

\$            3,500,000    .....    2011

(b) The advanced placement program shall receive 75 percent of the appropriation each year and the international baccalaureate program shall receive 25 percent of the appropriation each year. The department, in consultation with representatives of the advanced placement and international baccalaureate programs selected by the Advanced Placement Advisory Council and IBMN, respectively, shall determine the amounts of the expenditures each year for examination fees and training and support programs for each program.

(c) Notwithstanding Minnesota Statutes, section 120B.13, subdivision 1, at least \$500,000 each year is for teachers to attend subject matter summer training programs and follow-up support workshops approved by the advanced placement or international baccalaureate programs. The commissioner shall determine the payment process and the amount of the subsidy.

(d) The commissioner shall pay all examination fees for all students of low-income families under Minnesota Statutes, section 120B.13, subdivision 3, and to the extent of available appropriations shall also pay examination fees for students sitting for an advanced placement examination, international baccalaureate examination, or both.

Any balance in the first year does not cancel but is available in the second year.

Subd. 15. **Advanced placement, preadvanced placement, international baccalaureate, and concurrent enrollment programs.** For advanced placement, preadvanced placement, international baccalaureate programs, and concurrent enrollment programs under Minnesota Statutes, sections 120B.132 and 124D.091:

\$            2,000,000    .....    2010

\$            2,000,000    .....    2011

Of this amount, \$1,000,000 each year is for concurrent enrollment program aid under Minnesota Statutes, section 124D.091. If the appropriation is insufficient, the commissioner must proportionately reduce the aid payment to each district.

Any balance in the first year does not cancel but is available in the second year.

Subd. 16. **Collaborative urban educator.** For the collaborative urban educator grant program:

\$            328,000    .....    2010

\$            328,000    .....    2011

Any balance in the first year does not cancel but is available in the second year.

Subd. 17. **Youth works program.** For funding youth works programs under Minnesota Statutes, sections 124D.37 to 124D.45:

|    |                |              |             |
|----|----------------|--------------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>900,000</u> | <u>.....</u> | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>900,000</u> | <u>.....</u> | <u>2011</u> |

A grantee organization may provide health and child care coverage to the dependents of each participant enrolled in a full-time youth works program to the extent such coverage is not otherwise available.

Subd. 18. **Student organizations.** For student organizations:

|    |                |              |             |
|----|----------------|--------------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>725,000</u> | <u>.....</u> | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>725,000</u> | <u>.....</u> | <u>2011</u> |

\$40,000 each year is for student organizations serving health occupations.

\$38,000 each year is for student organizations serving service occupations.

\$88,000 each year is for student organizations serving trade and industry occupations.

\$84,000 each year is for student organizations serving business occupations.

\$131,000 each year is for student organizations serving agriculture occupations.

\$125,000 each year is for student organizations serving family and consumer science occupations.

\$95,000 each year is for student organizations serving marketing occupations.

Any balance in the first year does not cancel but is available in the second year.

Subd. 19. **Education Planning and Assessment System (EPAS) program.** For the Educational Planning and Assessment System (EPAS) program under Minnesota Statutes, section 120B.128:

|    |                |              |             |
|----|----------------|--------------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>829,000</u> | <u>.....</u> | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>829,000</u> | <u>.....</u> | <u>2011</u> |

Any balance in the first year does not cancel but is available in the second year.

Subd. 20. **Early childhood literacy programs.** For early childhood literacy programs under Minnesota Statutes, section 119A.50, subdivision 3:

|    |                  |              |             |
|----|------------------|--------------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>1,500,000</u> | <u>.....</u> | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>1,500,000</u> | <u>.....</u> | <u>2011</u> |

(a) \$1,000,000 each year is for leveraging federal and private funding to support AmeriCorps members serving in the Minnesota Reading Corps program established by Serve Minnesota, including costs associated with the training and teaching of early literacy skills to children age

three to grade 3 and the evaluation of the impact of the program under Minnesota Statutes, sections 124D.38, subdivision 2, and 124D.42, subdivision 6.

(b) \$500,000 each year is for a grant to the St. Croix River Education District. These funds must be used to:

(1) deliver standardized research-based professional development in problem-solving, including response to intervention and scientifically based reading instruction and assessment;

(2) provide coaching targeted to districts throughout the state;

(3) deliver large-scale training throughout the state;

(4) provide ongoing technical assistance to schools;

(5) assist with implementing professional development content into higher education instruction curricula; and

(6) evaluate the effectiveness of project activities.

Any balance in the first year does not cancel but is available in the second year.

Subd. 21. **Teacher centers.** For teacher centers under Minnesota Statutes, section 122A.72:

|    |                  |              |             |
|----|------------------|--------------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>1,000,000</u> | <u>.....</u> | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>1,000,000</u> | <u>.....</u> | <u>2011</u> |

Of this amount, \$100,000 in fiscal year 2010 and \$100,000 in fiscal year 2011 is for administration and evaluation of the program. Any balance in the first year does not cancel but is available in the second year. This is a onetime appropriation.

Subd. 22. **Principals' Leadership Institute.** For the Principals' Leadership Institute under Minnesota Statutes, section 122A.75:

|    |                |              |             |
|----|----------------|--------------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>400,000</u> | <u>.....</u> | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>400,000</u> | <u>.....</u> | <u>2011</u> |

Any balance in the first year does not cancel but is available in the second year.

Subd. 23. **Minnesota virtual education.** For the Minnesota Virtual Education program under Minnesota Statutes, section 120B.17:

|    |                |              |             |
|----|----------------|--------------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>500,000</u> | <u>.....</u> | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>500,000</u> | <u>.....</u> | <u>2011</u> |

Any balance from the first year does not cancel but is available in the second year.

This is a onetime appropriation.

Sec. 103. **REPEALER.**

(a) Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 122A.24, is repealed for the 2009-2010 school year and

later.

(b) Minnesota Statutes 2008, sections 120A.26, subdivisions 1 and 2; 120B.11, subdivisions 6, 7, and 8; 120B.362; 120B.39; 121A.06; 122A.32; 122A.628; 122A.72, subdivisions 3 and 4; 122A.75; 123B.92, subdivision 5; and 124D.10, subdivisions 18, 19, and 26, are repealed the day following final enactment.

### ARTICLE 3

#### SPECIAL PROGRAMS

Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 121A.41, subdivision 7, is amended to read:

Subd. 7. **Pupil.** (a) "Pupil" means any student:

(1) without a disability under 21 years of age; or

(2) with a disability ~~until September 1 after the child with a disability becomes 22 years of age~~ under 21 years old who has not received a regular high school diploma or for a child with a disability who becomes 21 years old during the school year but has not received a regular high school diploma, until the end of that school year; and

(3) ~~and~~ who remains eligible to attend a public elementary or secondary school.

(b) A "student with a disability" or a "pupil with a disability" has the same meaning as a "child with a disability" under section 125A.02.

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 121A.41, subdivision 10, is amended to read:

Subd. 10. **Suspension.** "Suspension" means an action by the school administration, under rules promulgated by the school board, prohibiting a pupil from attending school for a period of no more than ten school days. If a suspension is longer than five days, the suspending administrator must provide the superintendent with a reason for the longer suspension. This definition does not apply to dismissal from school for one school day or less, except as provided in federal law for a student with a disability. Each suspension action may include a readmission plan. The readmission plan shall include, where appropriate, a provision for implementing alternative educational services upon readmission and may not be used to extend the current suspension. Consistent with section 125A.091, subdivision 5, the readmission plan must not obligate a parent to provide a sympathomimetic medication for the parent's child as a condition of readmission. The school administration may not impose consecutive suspensions against the same pupil for the same course of conduct, or incident of misconduct, except where the pupil will create an immediate and substantial danger to self or to surrounding persons or property, or where the district is in the process of initiating an expulsion, in which case the school administration may extend the suspension to a total of 15 school days. ~~In the case of a student with a disability, the student's individual education plan team must meet immediately but not more than ten school days after the date on which the decision to remove the student from the student's current education placement is made. The individual education plan team and other qualified personnel shall at that meeting conduct a review of the relationship between the child's disability and the behavior subject to disciplinary action; and determine the appropriateness of the child's education plan.~~

~~The requirements of the individual education plan team meeting apply when:~~

~~(1) the parent requests a meeting;~~

~~(2) the student is removed from the student's current placement for five or more consecutive days; or~~

~~(3) the student's total days of removal from the student's placement during the school year exceed ten cumulative days in a school year. The school administration shall implement alternative educational services when the suspension exceeds five days. A separate administrative conference is required for each period of suspension.~~

Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 121A.43, is amended to read:

**121A.43 EXCLUSION AND EXPULSION OF PUPILS WITH A DISABILITY.**

(a) Consistent with federal law governing days of removal and section 121A.46, school personnel may suspend a child with a disability. When a child with a disability has been suspended for more than five consecutive school days or 10 cumulative school days in the same school year, and that suspension does not involve a recommendation for expulsion or exclusion or other change of placement under federal law, relevant members of the child's individualized education program team, including at least one of the child's teachers, shall meet and determine the extent the child needs services in order to continue to participate in the general education curriculum, although in another setting, and to progress toward meeting the goals in the child's individualized education program. That meeting must occur as soon as possible, but no more than 10 days after the sixth consecutive day of suspension or the tenth cumulative day of suspension has elapsed.

(b) A dismissal for one school day or less is a day of suspension if the child with a disability does not receive regular or special education instruction during that dismissal period. The notice requirements under section 121A.46 do not apply to a dismissal of one day or less.

(c) A child with a disability shall be provided alternative educational services to the extent a suspension exceeds five consecutive school days.

(d) Before initiating an expulsion or exclusion under sections 121A.40 to 121A.56, the district, relevant members of the child's individualized education program team, and the child's parent shall, consistent with federal law, determine whether the child's behavior was caused by or had a direct and substantial relationship to the child's disability and whether the child's conduct was a direct result of a failure to implement the child's individualized education program. When a pupil child with a disability who has an individual individualized education plan program is excluded or expelled under sections 121A.40 to 121A.56 for misbehavior that is not a manifestation of the pupil's child's disability, the district shall continue to provide special education and related services after a period of suspension, if suspension is imposed. The district shall initiate a review of the pupil's individual education plan and conduct a review of the relationship between the pupil's disability and the behavior subject to disciplinary action and determine the appropriateness of the pupil's education plan before commencing an expulsion or exclusion during the exclusion or expulsion.

Sec. 4. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 124D.60, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **Notice.** Within ~~ten~~ 30 days after the enrollment of any pupil in an instructional program for limited English proficient students, the district in which the pupil resides must notify the parent by mail. This notice must:



- (1) be in writing in English and in the primary language of the pupil's parents;
- (2) inform the parents that their child has been enrolled in an instructional program for limited English proficient students;
- (3) contain a simple, nontechnical description of the purposes, method and content of the program;
- (4) inform the parents that they have the right to visit the educational program for limited English proficient students in which their child is enrolled;
- (5) inform the parents of the time and manner in which to request and receive a conference for the purpose of explaining the nature and purpose of the program; and
- (6) inform the parents of their rights to withdraw their child from an educational program for limited English proficient students and the time and manner in which to do so.

The department shall, at the request of the district, prepare the notice in the primary language of the parent.

Sec. 5. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 125A.01, is amended to read:

**125A.01 DEFINITIONS.**

Subdivision 1. **Terms defined.** For purposes of this chapter, the words defined in section 120A.05 have the same meaning.

Subd. 2. **Local education agency.** "Local education agency" means a public board of education or other public authority legally constituted within the state for either administrative control or direction of, or to perform a service function for, public elementary or secondary schools in a city, county, township, school district, or other political subdivision of the state, or for a combination of school districts in the state as an administrative agency for its public elementary and secondary schools. Local education agency includes a fiscal host. The Minnesota Department of Education must continue to recognize fiscal hosts for purposes of paying Minnesota's special education aids and calculating tuition billing amounts.

Sec. 6. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 125A.02, is amended to read:

**125A.02 CHILD WITH A DISABILITY DEFINED.**

Subdivision 1. **Child with a disability.** ~~Every child who has~~ Child with a disability means a child evaluated in accordance with federal and state special education law as having a hearing impairment, blindness, visual disability, speech or language impairment, physical disability, other health impairment, mental disability, emotional/behavioral disorder, specific learning disability, autism, traumatic brain injury, multiple disabilities, or deaf/blind disability and who, by reason thereof, needs special instruction and education and related services, as determined by the standards rules of the commissioner, is a child with a disability. A licensed physician, an advanced practice nurse, or a licensed psychologist is qualified to make a diagnosis and determination of attention deficit disorder or attention deficit hyperactivity disorder for purposes of identifying a child with a disability.

Subd. 1a. **Children ages three through seven experiencing developmental delays.** In addition,

every child under age three, and at local district discretion from age three to age seven, who needs special instruction and services, as determined by the ~~standards~~ rules of the commissioner, because the child has a substantial delay or has an identifiable physical or mental condition known to hinder normal development is a child with a disability.

Subd. 2. **Not a child with a disability.** A child with a short-term or temporary physical or emotional illness or disability, as determined by the ~~standards~~ rules of the commissioner, is not a child with a disability.

Sec. 7. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 125A.07, is amended to read:

**125A.07 RULES OF COMMISSIONER RULEMAKING.**

(a) ~~As defined in~~ Consistent with this paragraph section, the commissioner ~~must~~ shall ~~adopt new rules and amend existing rules relative to qualifications of essential personnel, courses of study, methods of instruction, pupil eligibility, size of classes, rooms, equipment, supervision, parent consultation, and other necessary rules for instruction of children with a disability. These rules must provide standards and procedures appropriate for the implementation of and within the limitations of sections 125A.08 and 125A.091. These rules must also provide standards for the discipline, control, management, and protection of children with a disability. The commissioner must not adopt rules for pupils served primarily in the regular classroom establishing either case loads or the maximum number of pupils that may be assigned to special education teachers. The commissioner, in consultation with the Departments of Health and Human Services, must adopt permanent rules for instruction and services for children under age five and their families. These rules are binding on state and local education, health, and human services agencies. The commissioner must adopt rules to determine eligibility for special education services. The rules must include procedures and standards by which to grant variances for experimental eligibility criteria. The commissioner must, according to section 14.05, subdivision 4, notify a district applying for a variance from the rules within 45 calendar days of receiving the request whether the request for the variance has been granted or denied. If a request is denied, the commissioner must specify the program standards used to evaluate the request and the reasons for denying the request related to children with disabilities only under specific authority and consistent with the requirements of chapter 14 and paragraph (c).~~

(b) As provided in this paragraph, the state's regulatory scheme should support schools by assuring that all state special education rules adopted by the commissioner result in one or more of the following outcomes:

(1) increased time available to teachers and, where appropriate, to support staff including school nurses for educating students through direct and indirect instruction;

(2) consistent and uniform access to effective education programs for students with disabilities throughout the state;

(3) reduced inequalities and conflict, appropriate due process hearing procedures and reduced court actions related to the delivery of special education instruction and services for students with disabilities;

(4) clear expectations for service providers and for students with disabilities;

(5) increased accountability for all individuals and agencies that provide instruction and other services to students with disabilities;

(6) greater focus for the state and local resources dedicated to educating students with disabilities; and

(7) clearer standards for evaluating the effectiveness of education and support services for students with disabilities.

(c) Subject to chapter 14, the commissioner may adopt, amend, or rescind a rule related to children with disabilities if such action is specifically required by federal law.

Sec. 8. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 125A.08, is amended to read:

**125A.08 SCHOOL DISTRICT OBLIGATIONS INDIVIDUALIZED EDUCATION PROGRAMS.**

(a) At the beginning of each school year, each school district shall have in effect, for each child with a disability, an individualized education program.

(b) As defined in this section, every district must ensure the following:

(1) all students with disabilities are provided the special instruction and services which are appropriate to their needs. Where the individual education plan team has determined appropriate goals and objectives based on the student's needs, including the extent to which the student can be included in the least restrictive environment, and where there are essentially equivalent and effective instruction, related services, or assistive technology devices available to meet the student's needs, cost to the district may be among the factors considered by the team in choosing how to provide the appropriate services, instruction, or devices that are to be made part of the student's individual education plan. The individual education plan team shall consider and may authorize services covered by medical assistance according to section 256B.0625, subdivision 26. The student's needs and the special education instruction and services to be provided must be agreed upon through the development of an individual education plan. The plan must address the student's need to develop skills to live and work as independently as possible within the community. The individual education plan team must consider positive behavioral interventions, strategies, and supports that address behavior for children with attention deficit disorder or attention deficit hyperactivity disorder. By During grade 9 or age 14, the plan must address the student's needs for transition from secondary services to postsecondary education and training, employment, community participation, recreation, and leisure and home living. In developing the plan, districts must inform parents of the full range of transitional goals and related services that should be considered. The plan must include a statement of the needed transition services, including a statement of the interagency responsibilities or linkages or both before secondary services are concluded;

(2) children with a disability under age five and their families are provided special instruction and services appropriate to the child's level of functioning and needs;

(3) children with a disability and their parents or guardians are guaranteed procedural safeguards and the right to participate in decisions involving identification, assessment including assistive technology assessment, and educational placement of children with a disability;

(4) eligibility and needs of children with a disability are determined by an initial assessment or reassessment, which may be completed using existing data under United States Code, title 20, section 33, et seq.;

(5) to the maximum extent appropriate, children with a disability, including those in public or private institutions or other care facilities, are educated with children who are not disabled, and that special classes, separate schooling, or other removal of children with a disability from the regular educational environment occurs only when and to the extent that the nature or severity of the disability is such that education in regular classes with the use of supplementary services cannot be achieved satisfactorily;

(6) in accordance with recognized professional standards, testing and evaluation materials, and procedures used for the purposes of classification and placement of children with a disability are selected and administered so as not to be racially or culturally discriminatory; and

(7) the rights of the child are protected when the parents or guardians are not known or not available, or the child is a ward of the state.

~~(b)~~ (c) For paraprofessionals employed to work in programs for students with disabilities, the school board in each district shall ensure that:

(1) before or immediately upon employment, each paraprofessional develops sufficient knowledge and skills in emergency procedures, building orientation, roles and responsibilities, confidentiality, vulnerability, and reportability, among other things, to begin meeting the needs of the students with whom the paraprofessional works;

(2) annual training opportunities are available to enable the paraprofessional to continue to further develop the knowledge and skills that are specific to the students with whom the paraprofessional works, including understanding disabilities, following lesson plans, and implementing follow-up instructional procedures and activities; and

(3) a districtwide process obligates each paraprofessional to work under the ongoing direction of a licensed teacher and, where appropriate and possible, the supervision of a school nurse.

Sec. 9. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 125A.091, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 3a. **Additional requirements for prior written notice.** In addition to federal requirements, a prior written notice shall:

(1) inform the parent that except for the initial placement of a child in special education, the school district will proceed with its proposal for the child's placement or for providing special education services unless the child's parent notifies the district of an objection within 14 days of when the district sends the prior written notice to the parent; and

(2) state that a parent who objects to a proposal or refusal in the prior written notice may request a conciliation conference under subdivision 7 or another alternative dispute resolution procedure under subdivision 8 or 9.

Sec. 10. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 125A.091, subdivision 7, is amended to read:

Subd. 7. **Conciliation conference.** A parent must have an opportunity to meet with appropriate district staff in at least one conciliation conference if the parent objects to any proposal of which the parent receives notice under subdivision 2 3a. If the parent refuses district efforts to conciliate the dispute, the conciliation requirement is satisfied. Following a conciliation conference A district must hold a conciliation conference within ten calendar days from the date the district receives a parent's

objection to a proposal or refusal in the prior written notice. Except as provided in this section, all discussions held during a conciliation conference are confidential and are not admissible in a due process hearing. Within five school days after the final conciliation conference, the district must prepare and provide to the parent a conciliation conference memorandum that describes the district's final proposed offer of service. This memorandum is admissible in evidence in any subsequent proceeding.

Sec. 11. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 125A.091, subdivision 10, is amended to read:

Subd. 10. **Mediated agreements.** Mediated agreements are not admissible unless the parties agree otherwise or a party to the agreement believes the agreement is not being implemented, in which case the aggrieved party may enter the agreement into evidence at a due process hearing. The parties may request another mediation to resolve a dispute over implementing the mediated agreement. After a due process hearing is requested, a party may request mediation and the commissioner must provide a mediator who conducts a mediation session no later than the third business day after the mediation request is made to the commissioner. If the parties resolve all or a portion of the dispute, or agree to use another procedure to resolve the dispute, the mediator shall ensure that the resolution or agreement is in writing, signed by the parties, and a copy is given to each party. The written resolution or agreement shall state that all discussions that occurred during mediation are confidential and may not be used as evidence in any hearing or civil proceeding. The resolution or agreement is legally binding upon the parties and is enforceable in the state or federal district court. A party may request another mediation to resolve a dispute over implementing the mediated agreement.

Sec. 12. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 125A.091, subdivision 12, is amended to read:

Subd. 12. **Impartial due process hearing.** (a) A parent or a district is entitled to an impartial due process hearing conducted by the state when a dispute arises over the identification, evaluation, educational placement, manifestation determination, interim alternative educational placement, or the provision of a free appropriate public education to a child with a disability. The hearing must be held in the district responsible for ensuring that a free appropriate public education is provided according to state and federal law. The proceedings must be recorded and preserved, at state expense, pending ultimate disposition of the action. The parent and the district shall receive, at state expense, a copy of the hearing transcript or recording and the hearing officer's findings of fact, conclusion of law, and decisions.

~~(b) The due process hearing must be conducted according to the rules of the commissioner and federal law.~~

Sec. 13. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 125A.091, subdivision 13, is amended to read:

Subd. 13. **Hearing officer qualifications.** The commissioner must appoint an individual who is qualified under this subdivision to serve as a hearing officer. The commissioner shall maintain a list of qualified hearing officers who are not employees of or otherwise under contract with the department or the school district except when under contract with the department as a hearing officer, and who do not have a personal or professional interest that conflicts with their objectivity when serving as hearing officers in hearings under this section. The list shall include a statement of the qualifications of each person listed. A hearing officer must know and understand state and federal special education laws, rules, and regulations, and legal interpretations by federal and state courts. A hearing officer also must have the knowledge and ability to conduct hearings and render and write

decisions according to appropriate, standard legal practice. Upon receipt of a written request for a hearing, the commissioner shall appoint a hearing officer from the list. The hearing officer must:

- (1) be knowledgeable and impartial;
- (2) have no personal interest in or specific involvement with the student who is a party to the hearing;
- (3) not have been employed as an administrator by the district that is a party to the hearing;
- (4) not have been involved in selecting the district administrator who is a party to the hearing;
- (5) have no personal, economic, or professional interest in the outcome of the hearing other than properly administering federal and state laws, rules, and policies;
- (6) have no substantial involvement in developing state or local policies or procedures challenged in the hearing;
- (7) not be a current employee or board member of a Minnesota public school district, education district, intermediate unit or regional education agency, or the department if the department is the service provider; and
- (8) not be a current employee or board member of a disability advocacy organization or group.

Sec. 14. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 125A.091, subdivision 14, is amended to read:

Subd. 14. **Request for hearing.** ~~A request for a due process hearing must:~~

- ~~(1) be in writing;~~
- ~~(2) describe the nature of the dispute about providing special education services to the student including facts relating to the dispute; and~~
- ~~(3) state, to the extent known, the relief sought.~~

~~Any school district administrator receiving a request for a due process hearing must immediately forward the request to the commissioner. Within two business days of receiving a request for a due process hearing, the commissioner must appoint a hearing officer. The commissioner must not deny a request for hearing because the request is incomplete. A party may disqualify a hearing officer only by affirmatively showing prejudice or bias to the commissioner or to the chief administrative law judge if the hearing officer is an administrative law judge. If a party affirmatively shows prejudice against a hearing officer, the commissioner must assign another hearing officer to hear the matter.~~

(a) A parent or a school district may file a written request for a due process hearing regarding a proposal or refusal to initiate or change that child's evaluation, individualized education program, or educational placement, or to provide a free appropriate public education.

(b) The parent shall include in the hearing request the name of the child, the address of the child's residence, the name of the school the child attends, a description of the child's problem relating to the proposed or refused initiation or change, including facts relating to the problem, and a proposed resolution of the problem to the extent known and available to the parents at the time.

(c) A parent or a school district may file a written request for a hearing under United States Code, title 20, section 1415, paragraph (k).

(d) A parent or school district filing a request for a hearing under this subdivision must provide the request to the other party and a copy of the request to the department. Upon receiving a request for a hearing, the department shall give to the child's parent a copy of the procedural safeguards notice available to a parent under federal regulations.

(e) (1) If the parent of a child with a disability files a written request for a hearing, and the school district has not previously sent a written notice to the parent under subdivision 3a, regarding the subject matter of the hearing request, the school district shall, within ten days of receiving the hearing request, send to the child's parent a written explanation of why the school district proposed or refused to take the action raised in the hearing request, a description of other options that the individualized education program team considered and the reason why those options were rejected, a description of each evaluation procedure, assessment, record, or report that the school district used as the basis for the proposed or refused action, and a description of the factors that are relevant to the school district's proposal or refusal. A response by a school district under this subdivision does not preclude the school district from asserting that the parent's request for a hearing is insufficient under clause (2) of this paragraph; and

(2) a hearing may not occur until the party requesting the hearing files a request that meets the requirements of paragraph (b). The request under paragraph (b) is considered sufficient unless the party receiving the request notifies the hearing officer and the other party in writing within 15 days of receiving the request that the receiving party believes the request does not meet the requirements of paragraph (b). Within five days of receiving a notice under this subdivision, the hearing officer shall determine whether the request meets the requirements under paragraph (b) and notify the parties.

(f) Except as provided in paragraph (e), clause (1), the party receiving a request for a hearing shall send to the party requesting the hearing a written response that addresses the issues raised in the hearing request within ten days of receiving the request.

Sec. 15. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 125A.091, subdivision 16, is amended to read:

~~Subd. 16. **Burden of proof.** The burden of proof at a due process hearing is on the district to demonstrate, by a preponderance of the evidence, that it is complying with the law and offered or provided a free appropriate public education to the child in the least restrictive environment. If the district has not offered or provided a free appropriate public education in the least restrictive environment and the parent wants the district to pay for a private placement, the burden of proof is on the parent to demonstrate, by a preponderance of the evidence, that the private placement is appropriate party seeking relief.~~

Sec. 16. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 125A.091, subdivision 18, is amended to read:

Subd. 18. **Hearing officer authority.** (a) A hearing officer must limit an impartial due process hearing to the time sufficient for each party to present its case.

(b) A hearing officer must establish and maintain control and manage the hearing. This authority includes, but is not limited to:

(1) requiring attorneys representing parties at the hearing, after notice and an opportunity to be heard, to pay court reporting and hearing officer costs, or fines payable to the state, for failing to: (i) obey scheduling or prehearing orders, (ii) appear, (iii) be prepared, or (iv) participate in the hearing process in good faith;

- (2) administering oaths and affirmations;
  - (3) issuing subpoenas;
  - (4) determining the responsible and providing districts and joining those districts, if not already notified, in the proceedings;
  - (5) making decisions involving identification, evaluation, educational placement, manifestation determination, interim alternative educational placement, or the provision of a free appropriate public education to a child with a disability; ~~and~~
  - (6) ordering an independent educational evaluation of a child at district expense; and
  - (7) extending the hearing decision timeline for good cause shown.
- (c) Good cause includes, but is not limited to, the time required for mediation or other settlement discussions, independent educational evaluation, complexity and volume of issues, or finding or changing counsel.

Sec. 17. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 125A.091, subdivision 19, is amended to read:

Subd. 19. **Expedited due process hearings.** Consistent with federal law, a parent has the right to or a school district may file a written request for an expedited due process hearing when there is a dispute over a manifestation determination or a proposed or actual placement in an interim alternative educational setting. A district has the right to an expedited due process hearing when proposing or seeking to maintain placement in an interim alternative educational setting. A hearing officer must hold an expedited due process hearing within 20 school days of the date the expedited due process request is filed and must issue a decision within ten calendar school days of after the request for a hearing. A hearing officer may extend by up to five additional calendar days the time for issuing a decision in an expedited due process hearing. All policies in this section apply to expedited due process hearings to the extent they do not conflict with federal law. A resolution meeting must occur within seven days of receiving the request for an expedited due process hearing unless the parent and the school district agree in writing either to waive the resolution meeting or use the mediation process. The expedited due process hearing may proceed unless the matter has been resolved to the satisfaction of both parties within 15 days of receiving the expedited due process hearing request.

Sec. 18. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 125A.091, subdivision 20, is amended to read:

Subd. 20. **Hearing officer's decision; time period.** (a) The hearing officer must issue a decision within 45 calendar days of the date on which the commissioner receives the request for a due process hearing ensure that not later than 45 days after the 30-day period or the adjusted time periods under federal regulations expire, the hearing officer reaches a final decision in the due process hearing and transmits a copy of the decision to each party. A hearing officer, at the request of either party, may grant specific extensions of time beyond the 45-day period under subdivision 18. The hearing officer must conduct the oral arguments in a hearing at a time and place that is reasonably convenient to the parents and child involved. A hearing officer is encouraged to accelerate the time line to 30 days for a child under the age of three whose needs change rapidly and who requires quick resolution of a dispute. A hearing officer may not extend the time beyond the 45-day period unless requested by either party for good cause shown on the record. Extensions of time must not exceed a total of 30 calendar days unless both parties and the hearing officer agree or time is needed to complete an



~~independent educational evaluation. Good cause includes, but is not limited to, the time required for mediation or other settlement discussions, independent educational evaluation, complexity and volume of issues, or finding or changing counsel.~~

~~(b) The hearing officer's decision must:~~ Once the hearing officer has issued a final decision, the hearing officer lacks authority to amend the decision except for clerical or mathematical errors.

~~(c) Nothing in this subdivision precludes a hearing officer from ordering a school district to comply with federal procedural safeguards under the federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act.~~

~~(1) be in writing;~~

~~(2) state the controlling and material facts upon which the decision is made in order to apprise the reader of the basis and reason for the decision; and~~

~~(3) be based on local standards, state statute, the rules of the commissioner, and federal law.~~

Sec. 19. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 125A.091, subdivision 24, is amended to read:

Subd. 24. **Review of hearing officer decisions.** The parent or district may seek review of the hearing officer's decision in the Minnesota Court of Appeals or in the federal district court, ~~consistent with federal law.~~ A party must appeal to the Minnesota Court of Appeals within 60 days of receiving the hearing officer's decision and must appeal to federal district court within 90 days of receiving the hearing officer's decision.

Sec. 20. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 125A.091, subdivision 25, is amended to read:

Subd. 25. **Enforcement of orders.** The commissioner must monitor final hearing officer decisions and ensure enforcement of hearing officer ~~orders~~ decisions.

Sec. 21. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 125A.091, subdivision 27, is amended to read:

Subd. 27. **Hearing officer training.** A hearing officer must participate in training ~~and follow procedures established~~ offered by the commissioner.

Sec. 22. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 125A.091, subdivision 28, is amended to read:

Subd. 28. **District liability.** A district is not liable for harmless technical violations of ~~this section or rules implementing this section~~ federal or state laws, rules, or regulations governing special education if the school district can demonstrate on a case-by-case basis that the violations did not harm a student's educational progress or the parent's right to notice, participation, or due process. This subdivision is applicable to due process hearings and special education complaints filed with the department.

Sec. 23. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 125A.15, is amended to read:

#### **125A.15 PLACEMENT IN ANOTHER DISTRICT; RESPONSIBILITY.**

The responsibility for special instruction and services for a child with a disability temporarily placed in another district for care and treatment shall be determined in the following manner:

(a) The district of residence of a child shall be the district in which the child's parent resides, if

living, or the child's guardian, or the district designated by the commissioner if neither parent nor guardian is living within the state.

(b) If a district other than the resident district places a pupil for care and treatment, the district placing the pupil must notify and give the resident district an opportunity to participate in the placement decision. When an immediate emergency placement of a pupil is necessary and time constraints foreclose a resident district from participating in the emergency placement decision, the district in which the pupil is temporarily placed must notify the resident district of the emergency placement within 15 days. The resident district has up to five business days after receiving notice of the emergency placement to request an opportunity to participate in the placement decision, which the placing district must then provide.

(c) When a child is temporarily placed for care and treatment in a day program located in another district and the child continues to live within the district of residence during the care and treatment, the district of residence is responsible for providing transportation to and from the care and treatment facility program and an appropriate educational program for the child. The resident district may establish reasonable restrictions on transportation, except if a Minnesota court or agency orders the child placed at a day care and treatment program and the resident district receives a copy of the order, then the resident district must provide transportation to and from the program unless the court or agency orders otherwise. Transportation shall only be provided by the resident district during regular operating hours of the resident district. The resident district may provide the educational program at a school within the district of residence, at the child's residence, or in the district in which the day treatment center is located by paying tuition to that district.

~~(e)~~ (d) When a child is temporarily placed in a residential program for care and treatment, the nonresident district in which the child is placed is responsible for providing an appropriate educational program for the child and necessary transportation while the child is attending the educational program; and must bill the district of the child's residence for the actual cost of providing the program, as outlined in section 125A.11, except as provided in paragraph ~~(d)~~ (e). However, the board, lodging, and treatment costs incurred in behalf of a child with a disability placed outside of the school district of residence by the commissioner of human services or the commissioner of corrections or their agents, for reasons other than providing for the child's special educational needs must not become the responsibility of either the district providing the instruction or the district of the child's residence. For the purposes of this section, the state correctional facilities operated on a fee-for-service basis are considered to be residential programs for care and treatment.

~~(d)~~ (e) A privately owned and operated residential facility may enter into a contract to obtain appropriate educational programs for special education children and services with a joint powers entity. The entity with which the private facility contracts for special education services shall be the district responsible for providing students placed in that facility an appropriate educational program in place of the district in which the facility is located. If a privately owned and operated residential facility does not enter into a contract under this paragraph, then paragraph ~~(e)~~ (d) applies.

~~(e)~~ (f) The district of residence shall pay tuition and other program costs, not including transportation costs, to the district providing the instruction and services. The district of residence may claim general education aid for the child as provided by law. Transportation costs must be paid by the district responsible for providing the transportation and the state must pay transportation aid to that district.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment.

Sec. 24. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 125A.28, is amended to read:

**125A.28 STATE INTERAGENCY COORDINATING COUNCIL.**

An Interagency Coordinating Council of at least 17, but not more than 25 members is established, in compliance with Public Law 108-446, section 641. The members must be appointed by the governor. Council members must elect the council chair. The representative of the commissioner may not serve as the chair. The council must be composed of at least five parents, including persons of color, of children with disabilities under age 12, including at least three parents of a child with a disability under age seven, five representatives of public or private providers of services for children with disabilities under age five, including a special education director, county social service director, local Head Start director, and a community health services or public health nursing administrator, one member of the senate, one member of the house of representatives, one representative of teacher preparation programs in early childhood-special education or other preparation programs in early childhood intervention, at least one representative of advocacy organizations for children with disabilities under age five, one physician who cares for young children with special health care needs, one representative each from the commissioners of commerce, education, health, human services, a representative from the state agency responsible for child care, foster care, mental health, homeless coordinator of education of homeless children and youth, and a representative from Indian health services or a tribal council. Section 15.059, subdivisions 2 to 5, apply to the council. The council must meet at least quarterly.

The council must address methods of implementing the state policy of developing and implementing comprehensive, coordinated, multidisciplinary interagency programs of early intervention services for children with disabilities and their families.

The duties of the council include recommending policies to ensure a comprehensive and coordinated system of all state and local agency services for children under age five with disabilities and their families. The policies must address how to incorporate each agency's services into a unified state and local system of multidisciplinary assessment practices, individual intervention plans, comprehensive systems to find children in need of services, methods to improve public awareness, and assistance in determining the role of interagency early intervention committees.

On the date that Minnesota Part C Annual Performance Report is submitted to the federal Office of Special Education, the council must recommend to the governor and the commissioners of education, health, human services, commerce, and employment and economic development policies for a comprehensive and coordinated system.

Notwithstanding any other law to the contrary, the State Interagency Coordinating Council expires on June 30, ~~2009~~ 2014.

Sec. 25. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 125A.51, is amended to read:

**125A.51 PLACEMENT OF CHILDREN WITHOUT DISABILITIES; EDUCATION AND TRANSPORTATION.**

The responsibility for providing instruction and transportation for a pupil without a disability who has a short-term or temporary physical or emotional illness or disability, as determined by the standards of the commissioner, and who is temporarily placed for care and treatment for that illness

or disability, must be determined as provided in this section.

(a) The school district of residence of the pupil is the district in which the pupil's parent or guardian resides.

(b) When parental rights have been terminated by court order, the legal residence of a child placed in a residential or foster facility for care and treatment is the district in which the child resides.

(c) Before the placement of a pupil for care and treatment, the district of residence must be notified and provided an opportunity to participate in the placement decision. When an immediate emergency placement is necessary and time does not permit resident district participation in the placement decision, the district in which the pupil is temporarily placed, if different from the district of residence, must notify the district of residence of the emergency placement within 15 days of the placement. When a nonresident district makes an emergency placement without first consulting with the resident district, the resident district has up to five business days after receiving notice of the emergency placement to request an opportunity to participate in the placement decision, which the placing district must then provide.

(d) When a pupil without a disability is temporarily placed for care and treatment in a day program and the pupil continues to live within the district of residence during the care and treatment, the district of residence must provide instruction and necessary transportation to and from the care and treatment facility program for the pupil. The resident district may establish reasonable restrictions on transportation, except if a Minnesota court or agency orders the child placed at a day care and treatment program and the resident district receives a copy of the order, then the resident district must provide transportation to and from the program unless the court or agency orders otherwise. Transportation shall only be provided by the resident district during regular operating hours of the resident district. The resident district may provide the instruction at a school within the district of residence, at the pupil's residence, or in the case of a placement outside of the resident district, in the district in which the day treatment program is located by paying tuition to that district. The district of placement may contract with a facility to provide instruction by teachers licensed by the state Board of Teaching.

(e) When a pupil without a disability is temporarily placed in a residential program for care and treatment, the district in which the pupil is placed must provide instruction for the pupil and necessary transportation while the pupil is receiving instruction, and in the case of a placement outside of the district of residence, the nonresident district must bill the district of residence for the actual cost of providing the instruction for the regular school year and for summer school, excluding transportation costs.

(f) Notwithstanding paragraph (e), if the pupil is homeless and placed in a public or private homeless shelter, then the district that enrolls the pupil under section 127A.47, subdivision 2, shall provide the transportation, unless the district that enrolls the pupil and the district in which the pupil is temporarily placed agree that the district in which the pupil is temporarily placed shall provide transportation. When a pupil without a disability is temporarily placed in a residential program outside the district of residence, the administrator of the court placing the pupil must send timely written notice of the placement to the district of residence. The district of placement may contract with a residential facility to provide instruction by teachers licensed by the state Board of Teaching. For purposes of this section, the state correctional facilities operated on a fee-for-service basis are considered to be residential programs for care and treatment.

(g) The district of residence must include the pupil in its residence count of pupil units and pay tuition as provided in section 123A.488 to the district providing the instruction. Transportation costs must be paid by the district providing the transportation and the state must pay transportation aid to that district. For purposes of computing state transportation aid, pupils governed by this subdivision must be included in the disabled transportation category if the pupils cannot be transported on a regular school bus route without special accommodations.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment.

Sec. 26. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 125A.57, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. **Assistive technology device.** "Assistive technology device" means any item, piece of equipment, software, or product system, whether acquired commercially off the shelf, modified, or customized, that is used to increase, maintain, or improve functional capabilities of ~~children with disabilities~~ a child with a disability. It does not mean a medical device that is surgically implanted or a replacement of such a device.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment.

Sec. 27. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 125A.63, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. **Programs.** The resource centers must offer summer institutes ~~and like programs~~ or other training programs throughout the state for deaf or ~~hard-of-hearing~~ hard-of-hearing, blind or visually impaired, and multiply disabled pupils. The resource centers must also offer workshops for teachers, and leadership development for teachers.

A program offered through the resource centers must promote and develop education programs offered by school districts or other organizations. The program must assist school districts or other organizations to develop innovative programs.

Sec. 28. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 125A.63, subdivision 4, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. **Advisory committees.** The commissioner shall establish an advisory committee for each resource center. The advisory committees shall develop recommendations regarding the resource centers and submit an annual report to the commissioner on the form and in the manner prescribed by the commissioner. The advisory committee for the Resource Center for the Deaf and Hard-of-Hearing shall meet at least four times a year and submit an annual report to the commissioner, the legislature, and the Commission of Deaf, DeafBlind, and Hard-of-Hearing Minnesotans.

The recommendations must include:

(1) aggregate data-based education outcomes over time for deaf and hard-of-hearing children, consistent with state academic standards and assessments under chapter 120B; and

(2) a data-based plan that includes evidence-based best practices known to improve the educational outcomes of deaf and hard-of-hearing children.

Sec. 29. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 125A.744, subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. **Implementation.** Consistent with section 256B.0625, subdivision 26, school districts may enroll as medical assistance providers or subcontractors and bill the Department of Human

Services under the medical assistance fee for service claims processing system for special education services which are covered services under chapter 256B, which are provided in the school setting for a medical assistance recipient, and for whom the district has secured informed consent consistent with section 13.05, subdivision 4, paragraph (d), and section 256B.77, subdivision 2, paragraph (p), to bill for each type of covered service. School districts shall be reimbursed by the commissioner of human services for the federal share of individual education plan health-related services that qualify for reimbursement by medical assistance, minus up to five percent retained by the commissioner of human services for administrative costs, not to exceed ~~\$350,000~~ \$370,000 per fiscal year. The commissioner may withhold up to five percent of each payment to a school district. Following the end of each fiscal year, the commissioner shall settle up with each school district in order to ensure that collections from each district for departmental administrative costs are made on a pro rata basis according to federal earnings for these services in each district. A school district is not eligible to enroll as a home care provider or a personal care provider organization for purposes of billing home care services under sections 256B.0651 and 256B.0653 to 256B.0656 until the commissioner of human services issues a bulletin instructing county public health nurses on how to assess for the needs of eligible recipients during school hours. To use private duty nursing services or personal care services at school, the recipient or responsible party must provide written authorization in the care plan identifying the chosen provider and the daily amount of services to be used at school.

Sec. 30. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 125A.76, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **Definitions.** For the purposes of this section, the definitions in this subdivision apply.

(a) "Basic revenue" has the meaning given it in section 126C.10, subdivision 2. For the purposes of computing basic revenue pursuant to this section, each child with a disability shall be counted as prescribed in section 126C.05, subdivision 1.

(b) "Essential personnel" means teachers, cultural liaisons, related services, and support services staff providing direct services to students. Essential personnel may also include special education paraprofessionals or clericals providing support to teachers and students by preparing paperwork and making arrangements related to special education compliance requirements, including parent meetings and individual education plans. Essential personnel does not include administrators and supervisors.

(c) "Average daily membership" has the meaning given it in section 126C.05.

(d) "Program growth factor" means 1.046 for fiscal year 2012 and later.

Sec. 31. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 127A.47, subdivision 5, is amended to read:

Subd. 5. **Notification of resident district.** A district educating a pupil who is a resident of another district must notify the district of residence within 60 days of the date the pupil is determined by the district to be a nonresident, but not later than August 1 following the end of the school year in which the pupil is educated. ~~If the district of residence does not receive a notification from the providing district pursuant to this subdivision, it is not liable to that district for any tuition billing received after August 1 of the next school year.~~

Sec. 32. **APPROPRIATIONS.**

Subdivision 1. **Department of Education.** The sums indicated in this section are appropriated

from the general fund to the Department of Education for the fiscal years designated.

Subd. 2. **Special education; regular.** For special education aid under Minnesota Statutes, section 125A.75:

|    |                    |       |             |
|----|--------------------|-------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>734,071,000</u> | ..... | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>781,497,000</u> | ..... | <u>2011</u> |

The 2010 appropriation includes \$71,947,000 for 2009 and \$662,124,000 for 2010.

The 2011 appropriation includes \$73,569,000 for 2010 and \$707,928,000 for 2011.

Subd. 3. **Aid for children with disabilities.** For aid under Minnesota Statutes, section 125A.75, subdivision 3, for children with disabilities placed in residential facilities within the district boundaries for whom no district of residence can be determined:

|    |                  |       |             |
|----|------------------|-------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>1,717,000</u> | ..... | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>1,895,000</u> | ..... | <u>2011</u> |

If the appropriation for either year is insufficient, the appropriation for the other year is available.

Subd. 4. **Travel for home-based services.** For aid for teacher travel for home-based services under Minnesota Statutes, section 125A.75, subdivision 1:

|    |                |       |             |
|----|----------------|-------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>258,000</u> | ..... | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>282,000</u> | ..... | <u>2011</u> |

The 2010 appropriation includes \$24,000 for 2009 and \$234,000 for 2010.

The 2011 appropriation includes \$26,000 for 2010 and \$256,000 for 2011.

Subd. 5. **Special education; excess costs.** For excess cost aid under Minnesota Statutes, section 125A.79, subdivision 7:

|    |                    |       |             |
|----|--------------------|-------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>110,871,000</u> | ..... | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>110,877,000</u> | ..... | <u>2011</u> |

The 2010 appropriation includes \$37,046,000 for 2009 and \$73,825,000 for 2010.

The 2011 appropriation includes \$37,022,000 for 2010 and \$73,855,000 for 2011.

Subd. 6. **Court-placed special education revenue.** For reimbursing serving school districts for unreimbursed eligible expenditures attributable to children placed in the serving school district by court action under Minnesota Statutes, section 125A.79, subdivision 4:

|    |               |       |             |
|----|---------------|-------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>76,000</u> | ..... | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>78,000</u> | ..... | <u>2011</u> |

Subd. 7. **Special education out-of-state tuition.** For special education out-of-state tuition

according to Minnesota Statutes, section 125A.79, subdivision 8:

|    |                |       |             |
|----|----------------|-------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>250,000</u> | ..... | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>250,000</u> | ..... | <u>2011</u> |

Sec. 33. **REPEALER.**

Minnesota Statutes 2008, sections 125A.05; and 125A.091, subdivisions 1, 2, 3, 4, 22, and 23 are repealed.

Minnesota Rules, parts 3525.0210, subparts 34 and 43; 3525.0400; 3525.2445; and 3525.4220, are repealed.

**ARTICLE 4**

**FACILITIES AND TECHNOLOGY**

Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 123B.54, is amended to read:

**123B.54 DEBT SERVICE APPROPRIATION.**

(a) ~~\$14,814,000 in fiscal year 2008,~~ \$9,109,000 in fiscal year 2009, ~~\$7,286,000~~ \$7,948,000 in fiscal year 2010, ~~and \$6,878,000~~ \$9,275,000 in fiscal year 2011, \$9,574,000 in fiscal year 2012, and \$8,904,000 in fiscal year 2013 and later are appropriated from the general fund to the commissioner of education for payment of debt service equalization aid under section 123B.53.

(b) The appropriations in paragraph (a) must be reduced by the amount of any money specifically appropriated for the same purpose in any year from any state fund.

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 123B.59, subdivision 6, is amended to read:

Subd. 6. **Alternative facilities aid.** (a) A district's alternative facilities aid is the amount equal to the district's annual debt service costs, provided that the amount does not exceed the amount certified to be levied for those purposes for taxes payable in 1997, or for a district that made a levy under subdivision 5, paragraph (b), the lesser of the district's annual levy amount, or one-sixth of the amount of levy that it certified for that purpose for taxes payable in 1998.

(b) Notwithstanding paragraph (a), for fiscal years 2010 through 2012, an independent school district that has authority to issue general obligation bonds without voter approval, other than authority according to this section or under section 475.51, is not eligible for aid under this section. In addition to levy authority granted in this section, for taxes payable in 2010 only, a school district that previously received aid under this section may levy for any aid eliminated under this paragraph in taxes payable 2010 and recognize that revenue in fiscal year 2010.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective for fiscal year 2010 and later.

Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 123B.59, subdivision 7, is amended to read:

Subd. 7. **Alternative facilities appropriation.** (a) An amount not to exceed ~~\$19,700,000~~ \$15,554,000 for fiscal year ~~2000~~ 2010, ~~and \$20,000,000~~ \$4,554,000 for fiscal year ~~2001~~ and 2011, \$15,554,000 for fiscal year 2012, and \$19,287,000 each year thereafter is appropriated from the general fund to the commissioner of education for payment of alternative facilities aid under



subdivision 6.

(b) The appropriation in paragraph (a) must be reduced by the amount of any money specifically appropriated for the same purpose in any year from any state fund.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective for fiscal year 2010 and later.

Sec. 4. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 123B.70, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **Commissioner approval.** In determining whether to give a school facility a positive, negative, or unfavorable review and comment, the commissioner must evaluate the proposals for facilities using the information provided under section 123B.71, subdivision 9.

(a) If a school board proposes a new school, the local school board retains the authority to determine the minimum acreage needed to accommodate the school and related facilities. The commissioner may evaluate the proposals but may not issue a negative or unfavorable review and comment under this section for a school facility based solely on acreage of the proposed school site.

(b) If a school board proposes to renovate an existing school, the local school board retains the authority to choose whether to renovate an existing school or to build a new school, regardless of the acreage of the current school site or the cost of the renovation relative to the cost of building a new school. The commissioner's evaluation of whether to replace a facility must not be based solely upon the ratio of renovation costs to the cost of replacement.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective for review and comments issued after July 1, 2009.

Sec. 5. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 123B.71, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **Consultation.** A school district shall consult with the commissioner of education before developing any plans and specifications to construct, remodel, or improve the building or site of an educational facility for which the estimated cost exceeds ~~\$250,000~~ \$500,000. This consultation shall occur before a referendum for bonds, solicitation for bids, or use of capital expenditure facilities revenue according to section 126C.10, subdivision 14, clause (2). The commissioner may require the district to participate in a management assistance plan before conducting a review and comment on the project.

Sec. 6. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 123B.71, subdivision 8, is amended to read:

Subd. 8. **Review and comment.** A school district, a special education cooperative, or a cooperative unit of government, as defined in section 123A.24, subdivision 2, must not initiate an installment contract for purchase or a lease agreement, hold a referendum for bonds, nor solicit bids for new construction, expansion, or remodeling of an educational facility that requires an expenditure in excess of \$500,000 per school site if it has a capital loan outstanding, or \$1,400,000 per school site if it does not have a capital loan outstanding, prior to review and comment by the commissioner. The commissioner may exempt a facility maintenance project funded with general education aid and levy, alternative facilities bonding and levy program, or health and safety revenue from this provision after reviewing a written request from a school district describing the scope of work. A school board shall not separate portions of a single project into components to avoid the requirements of this subdivision.

Sec. 7. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 123B.71, subdivision 9, is amended to read:

Subd. 9. **Information required.** A school board proposing to construct a facility described in subdivision 8 shall submit to the commissioner a proposal containing information including at least the following:

(1) the geographic area and population to be served, preschool through grade 12 student enrollments for the past five years, and student enrollment projections for the next five years;

(2) a list of existing facilities by year constructed, their uses, and an assessment of the extent to which alternate facilities are available within the school district boundaries and in adjacent school districts;

(3) a list of the specific deficiencies of the facility that demonstrate the need for a new or renovated facility to be provided, and a list of the specific benefits that the new or renovated facility will provide to the students, teachers, and community users served by the facility;

(4) the relationship of the project to any priorities established by the school district, educational cooperatives that provide support services, or other public bodies in the service area;

(5) a description of the pedestrian, bicycle, and transit connections between the school and nearby residential areas that make it easier for children, teachers, and parents to get to the school by walking, bicycling, and taking transit;

~~(5) (6) a specification of how the project will increase community use of the facility maximizes the opportunity for cooperative use of existing park, recreation, and other public facilities and whether and how the project will increase collaboration with other governmental or nonprofit entities;~~

~~(6) (7) a description of the project, including the specification of site and outdoor space acreage and square footage allocations for classrooms, laboratories, and support spaces; estimated expenditures for the major portions of the project; and the dates the project will begin and be completed;~~

~~(7) (8) a specification of the source of financing the project; the scheduled date for a bond issue or school board action; a schedule of payments, including debt service equalization aid; and the effect of a bond issue on local property taxes by the property class and valuation;~~

~~(8) (9) an analysis of how the proposed new or remodeled facility will affect school district operational or administrative staffing costs, and how the district's operating budget will cover any increased operational or administrative staffing costs;~~

~~(9) (10) a description of the consultation with local or state road and transportation officials on multimodal school site access and safety issues, and the ways that the project will address those issues;~~

~~(10) (11) a description of how indoor air quality issues have been considered and a certification that the architects and engineers designing the facility will have professional liability insurance;~~

~~(11) (12) as required under section 123B.72, for buildings coming into service after July 1, 2002, a certification that the plans and designs for the extensively renovated or new facility's heating, ventilation, and air conditioning systems will meet or exceed code standards; will provide for the~~

monitoring of outdoor airflow and total airflow of ventilation systems; and will provide an indoor air quality filtration system that meets ASHRAE standard 52.1;

~~(12)~~ (13) a specification of any desegregation requirements that cannot be met by any other reasonable means;

~~(13)~~ (14) a specification, ~~if applicable,~~ of how the facility will utilize environmentally sustainable school facility design concepts; ~~and~~

~~(14)~~ (15) a description of how the architects and engineers have considered the American National Standards Institute Acoustical Performance Criteria, Design Requirements and Guidelines for Schools of the maximum background noise level and reverberation times; and

(16) any existing information from the relevant local unit of government about the cumulative costs to provide infrastructure to serve the school, such as utilities, sewer, roads, and sidewalks.

Sec. 8. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 123B.71, subdivision 12, is amended to read:

Subd. 12. **Publication.** (a) At least 20 days but not more than 60 days before a referendum for bonds or solicitation of bids for a project that has received a positive or unfavorable review and comment under section 123B.70, the school board shall publish a summary of the commissioner's review and comment of that project in the legal newspaper of the district. Supplementary information shall be available to the public.

(b) The publication requirement in paragraph (a) does not apply to alternative facilities projects approved under section 123B.59. Publication for alternative facilities projects shall be as specified in section 123B.59, subdivisions 3 and 3a.

Sec. 9. [125B.015] STATE AND SCHOOL DISTRICT TECHNOLOGY GUIDELINES.

Subdivision 1. State technology guidelines; guideline setting. (a) Notwithstanding other law to the contrary, the commissioner, the Minnesota Education Technology Task Force, and representatives of school districts must work together to identify for school districts the robust technology tools and systems that improve the educational achievement of all Minnesota students. These entities must establish a foundation of flexible shared services that supports state development and implementation of new and more efficient educational business practices, including the use of modern analytical tools that help schools and school districts make data-driven decisions and increase instructional time. These entities also must anticipate the needs of school districts for effectively using emerging technologies to make the best and most cost-effective use of finite educational resources.

(b) The commissioner, the Minnesota Education Technology Task Force, representatives of school districts, and other interested and affected stakeholders must establish and then maintain, revise, and publish every four years beginning December 1, 2009, state and district technology guidelines consistent with the requirements of this section and section 120B.023, subdivision 2, paragraph (a). The state and school districts must use the technology guidelines to participate in a uniform data collection system premised on:

(1) common data definitions for all required data elements;

(2) a common course catalogue;

(3) common transcript definitions; and

(4) school district infrastructure technology guidelines.

(c) School districts, consistent with this section and other applicable law, may use financial resources in addition to state funding to provide students with the technology tools they need to succeed in an increasingly complex and information-rich environment.

Subd. 2. **District technology guidelines.** (a) The commissioner, in collaboration with the Minnesota Education Technology Task Force, must establish and then maintain, revise, and publish six categories of district technology guidelines consistent with this section. The district technology guidelines must encompass:

(1) instructional technology that includes best practices in 21st century classroom instruction and student learning;

(2) technological tools that support formative and summative online assessments, equipment, and software;

(3) shared services that facilitate network and data systems administration;

(4) data practices that include technical security, Internet safety, and data privacy;

(5) data management that facilitates efficient data transfers involving school districts and the department; and

(6) facilities infrastructure that supports multipurpose technology facilities for instruction and assessment.

(b) School districts are encouraged to align district technology expenditures with state and district technology guidelines established under this section.

(c) Beginning December 1, 2010, and each two-year period thereafter, school districts must use the district technology guidelines in this section to complete a review of the district technology environment that:

(1) examines the alignment of district technology expenditures to the technology guidelines under this section;

(2) identifies service gaps in the district technology plan; and

(3) estimates the funding needed to fill service gaps.

(d) School districts must transmit the substance of the review to the commissioner in the form and manner the commissioner determines in collaboration with the Minnesota Education Technology Task Force. The commissioner must evaluate and report the substance of the reviews to the legislature by February 15, 2011, and each two-year period thereafter.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment and applies to the 2009-2010 school year and later.

Sec. 10. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 125B.26, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **Costs to be submitted.** (a) A district ~~or~~, charter school, or intermediate school

district shall submit its actual telecommunications/Internet access costs for the previous fiscal year, adjusted for any e-rate revenue received, to the department by August 15 of each year as prescribed by the commissioner. Costs eligible for reimbursement under this program are limited to the following:

(1) ongoing or recurring telecommunications/Internet access costs associated with Internet access, data lines, and video links providing:

(i) the equivalent of one data line, video link, or integrated data/video link that relies on a transport medium that operates at a minimum speed of 1.544 megabytes per second (T1) for each elementary school, middle school, or high school under section 120A.05, subdivisions 9, 11, and 13, including the recurring telecommunications line lease costs and ongoing Internet access service fees; or

(ii) the equivalent of one data line or video circuit, or integrated data/video link that relies on a transport medium that operates at a minimum speed of 1.544 megabytes per second (T1) for each district, including recurring telecommunications line lease costs and ongoing Internet access service fees;

(2) recurring costs of contractual or vendor-provided maintenance on the school district's wide area network to the point of presence at the school building up to the router, codec, or other service delivery equipment located at the point of presence termination at the school or school district;

(3) recurring costs of cooperative, shared arrangements for regional delivery of telecommunications/Internet access between school districts, postsecondary institutions, and public libraries including network gateways, peering points, regional network infrastructure, Internet2 access, and network support, maintenance, and coordination; and

(4) service provider installation fees for installation of new telecommunications lines or increased bandwidth.

(b) Costs not eligible for reimbursement under this program include:

(1) recurring costs of school district staff providing network infrastructure support;

(2) recurring costs associated with voice and standard telephone service;

(3) costs associated with purchase of network hardware, telephones, computers, or other peripheral equipment needed to deliver telecommunications access to the school or school district;

(4) costs associated with laying fiber for telecommunications access;

(5) costs associated with wiring school or school district buildings;

(6) costs associated with purchase, installation, or purchase and installation of Internet filtering; and

(7) costs associated with digital content, including online learning or distance learning programming, and information databases.

Sec. 11. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 125B.26, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. **E-rates.** To be eligible for aid under this section, a district ~~or~~, charter school, or

intermediate school district is required to file an e-rate application either separately or through its telecommunications access cluster and have a current technology plan on file with the department. Discounts received on telecommunications expenditures shall be reflected in the costs submitted to the department for aid under this section.

Sec. 12. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 125B.26, subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. **Reimbursement criteria.** The commissioner shall develop criteria for approving costs submitted by organized school districts ~~and~~, charter schools, and intermediate school districts under subdivision 1.

Sec. 13. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 125B.26, subdivision 4, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. **District aid.** For fiscal year 2006 and later, a district ~~or~~, charter school's school, or intermediate school district's Internet access equity aid equals the district ~~or~~, charter school's school, or intermediate school district's approved cost for the previous fiscal year according to subdivision 1 exceeding \$15 times the district's adjusted marginal cost pupil units for the previous fiscal year or no reduction if the district is part of an organized telecommunications access cluster. Equity aid must be distributed to the telecommunications access cluster for districts, charter schools, or intermediate school districts that are members of the cluster or to individual districts ~~and~~, charter schools, or intermediate school districts not part of a telecommunications access cluster.

Sec. 14. **ALTERNATIVE FACILITIES AID ADJUSTMENT.**

Notwithstanding Minnesota Statutes, section 123B.59, subdivision 6, for fiscal year 2011 only, a special school district that has authority to issue general obligation bonds without voter approval, other than authority according to Minnesota Statutes, section 123B.59 or 475.51, is not eligible for aid under Minnesota Statutes, section 123B.59, subdivision 6.

Sec. 15. **APPROPRIATIONS.**

Subdivision 1. Department of Education. The sums indicated in this section are appropriated from the general fund to the Department of Education for the fiscal years designated.

Subd. 2. Health and safety revenue. For health and safety aid according to Minnesota Statutes, section 123B.57, subdivision 5:

|    |                |       |             |
|----|----------------|-------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>161,000</u> | ..... | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>160,000</u> | ..... | <u>2011</u> |

The 2010 appropriation includes \$10,000 for 2009 and \$151,000 for 2010.

The 2011 appropriation includes \$16,000 for 2010 and \$144,000 for 2011.

Subd. 3. Debt service equalization. For debt service aid according to Minnesota Statutes, section 123B.53, subdivision 6:

|    |                  |       |             |
|----|------------------|-------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>7,948,000</u> | ..... | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>9,275,000</u> | ..... | <u>2011</u> |

The 2010 appropriation includes \$851,000 for 2009 and \$7,097,000 for 2010.

The 2011 appropriation includes \$788,000 for 2010 and \$8,487,000 for 2011.

Subd. 4. **Alternative facilities bonding aid.** For alternative facilities bonding aid, according to Minnesota Statutes, section 123B.59, subdivision 1:

|    |                   |       |             |
|----|-------------------|-------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>15,927,000</u> | ..... | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>5,654,000</u>  | ..... | <u>2011</u> |

The 2010 appropriation includes \$1,928,000 for 2009 and \$13,999,000 for 2010.

The 2011 appropriation includes \$1,555,000 for 2010 and \$4,099,000 for 2011.

Subd. 5. **Equity in telecommunications access.** For equity in telecommunications access:

|    |                  |       |             |
|----|------------------|-------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>3,750,000</u> | ..... | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>3,750,000</u> | ..... | <u>2011</u> |

If the appropriation amount is insufficient, the commissioner shall reduce the reimbursement rate in Minnesota Statutes, section 125B.26, subdivisions 4 and 5, and the revenue for fiscal years 2010 and 2011 shall be prorated.

Any balance in the first year does not cancel but is available in the second year.

Subd. 6. **Deferred maintenance aid.** For deferred maintenance aid, according to Minnesota Statutes, section 123B.591, subdivision 4:

|    |                  |       |             |
|----|------------------|-------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>2,302,000</u> | ..... | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>2,073,000</u> | ..... | <u>2011</u> |

The 2010 appropriation includes \$260,000 for 2009 and \$2,042,000 for 2010.

The 2011 appropriation includes \$226,000 for 2010 and \$1,847,000 for 2011.

## ARTICLE 5

### NUTRITION, LIBRARIES, AND ACCOUNTING

Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 134.31, subdivision 4a, is amended to read:

Subd. 4a. **Services to the blind and physically handicapped people with visual and physical disabilities.** The Minnesota Department of Education shall provide specialized services to ~~the blind and physically handicapped~~ people with visual and physical disabilities through the Minnesota Braille and Talking Book Library ~~for the Blind and Physically Handicapped~~ under a cooperative plan with the National Library Services for the Blind and Physically Handicapped of the Library of Congress.

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 134.31, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 7. **Telephone or electronic meetings.** (a) Notwithstanding section 13D.01, the Advisory Committee for the Minnesota Braille and Talking Book Library may conduct a meeting of its members by telephone or other electronic means so long as the following conditions are met:

(1) all members of the committee participating in the meeting, wherever their physical locations, can hear one another and can hear all discussion and testimony;

(2) members of the public present at the regular meeting location of the committee can hear all discussion, testimony, and votes of the members of the committee;

(3) at least one member of the committee is physically present at the regular meeting location; and

(4) all votes are conducted by roll call, so each member's vote on each issue can be identified and recorded.

(b) Each member of the committee participating in a meeting by telephone or other electronic means is considered present at the meeting for purposes of determining quorum and participating in all proceedings.

(c) If telephone or other electronic means is used to conduct a meeting, to the extent practical, the committee shall allow a person to monitor the meeting electronically from a remote location. The committee may require the person making the connection to pay for the documented additional costs that the committee incurs as a result of the additional connection.

(d) If telephone or other electronic means is used to conduct a regular, special, or emergency meeting, the committee shall provide notice of the regular meeting location, the fact that some members may participate by telephone or other electronic means, and the provisions of paragraph (c). The timing and method of providing notice is governed by section 13D.04.

Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 134.34, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **Local support levels.** (a) A regional library basic system support grant shall be made to any regional public library system where there are at least three participating counties and where each participating city and county is providing for public library service support the lesser of (a) an amount equivalent to .82 percent of the average of the adjusted net tax capacity of the taxable property of that city or county, as determined by the commissioner of revenue for the second, third, and fourth year preceding that calendar year in 1991 and later years or (b) a per capita amount calculated under the provisions of this subdivision. The per capita amount is established for calendar year 1993 as \$7.62. In succeeding calendar years, the per capita amount shall be increased by a percentage equal to one-half of the percentage by which the total state adjusted net tax capacity of property as determined by the commissioner of revenue for the second year preceding that calendar year increases over that total adjusted net tax capacity for the third year preceding that calendar year.

(b) The minimum level of support specified under this subdivision or subdivision 4 shall be certified annually to the participating cities and counties by the Department of Education. If a city or county chooses to reduce its local support in accordance with subdivision 4, paragraphs (b) or (c), it shall notify its regional public library system. The regional public library system shall notify the Department of Education that a revised certification is required. The revised minimum level of support shall be certified to the city or county by the Department of Education.

(c) A city which is a part of a regional public library system shall not be required to provide this level of support if the property of that city is already taxable by the county for the support of that regional public library system. In no event shall the Department of Education require any city or county to provide a higher level of support than the level of support specified in this section in order



for a system to qualify for a regional library basic system support grant. This section shall not be construed to prohibit a city or county from providing a higher level of support for public libraries than the level of support specified in this section.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective for calendar years 2009 and later, except that the change in paragraph (a) is effective for calendar years 2011 and later.

Sec. 4. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 134.34, subdivision 4, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. **Limitation.** (a) For calendar year 2010 and later, a regional library basic system support grant shall not be made to a regional public library system for a participating city or county which decreases the dollar amount provided for support for operating purposes of public library service below the amount provided by it for the second, or third preceding year, whichever is less. For purposes of this subdivision and subdivision 1, any funds provided under section 473.757, subdivision 2, for extending library hours of operation shall not be considered amounts provided by a city or county for support for operating purposes of public library service. This subdivision shall not apply to participating cities or counties where the adjusted net tax capacity of that city or county has decreased, if the dollar amount of the reduction in support is not greater than the dollar amount by which support would be decreased if the reduction in support were made in direct proportion to the decrease in adjusted net tax capacity.

(b) For calendar year 2009 and later, in any calendar year in which a city's or county's aid under sections 477A.011 to 477A.014 or credits under section 273.1384 is reduced after the city or county has certified its levy payable in that year, it may reduce its local support by the lesser of:

(1) ten percent; or

(2) a percent equal to the ratio of the aid and credit reductions to the city's or county's revenue base, based on aids certified for the current calendar year. For calendar year 2009 only, the reduction under this paragraph shall be based on 2008 aid and credit reductions under the December 2008 unallotment, as well as any aid and credit reductions in calendar year 2009. For pay 2009 only, the commissioner of revenue will calculate the reductions under this paragraph and certify them to the commissioner of education within 15 days of this provision becoming law.

(c) For taxes payable in 2010 and later, in any payable year in which the total amounts certified for city or county aids under sections 477A.011 to 477A.014 are less than the total amounts paid under those sections in the previous calendar year, a city or county may reduce its local support by the lesser of:

(1) ten percent; or

(2) a percent equal to the ratio of:

(i) the difference between (A) the sum of the aid it was paid under sections 477A.011 to 477A.014 and the credits it received under section 273.1398 in the previous calendar year and (B) the sum of the aid it is certified to be paid in the current calendar year under sections 477A.011 to 477A.014 and the credits estimated to be paid under section 273.1398; to

(ii) its revenue base for the previous year, based on aids actually paid in the previous calendar year. The commissioner of revenue shall calculate the percent aid cut for each county and city under this paragraph and certify the percentage cuts to the commissioner of education by August 1 of

the year prior to the year in which the reduced aids and credits are to be paid. The percentage of reduction related to reductions to credits under section 273.1384, shall be based on the best estimation available as of July 30.

(d) Notwithstanding paragraph (a), (b), or (c), for calendar year 2010 and later, no city or county shall reduce its support for public libraries below the minimum level specified in subdivision 1.

(e) For purposes of this subdivision, "revenue base" means the sum of:

(1) its levy for taxes payable in the current calendar year, including the levy on the fiscal disparities distribution under section 276A.06, subdivision 3, paragraph (a), or 473F.08, subdivision 3, paragraph (a);

(2) its aid under sections 477A.011 to 477A.014 in the current calendar year; and

(3) its taconite aid in the current calendar year under sections 298.28 and 298.282.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective for support in calendar year 2009 and thereafter and for library grants paid in fiscal year 2010 and thereafter, except that the changes in paragraph (a) are effective for support in calendar year 2010 and thereafter.

#### Sec. 5. **ELEVATOR LEVY.**

Subdivision 1. **Lac Qui Parle Valley.** For taxes payable in 2010 only, Independent School District No. 2853, Lac Qui Parle Valley, may levy an amount up to \$8,500 for the costs of a replacement elevator. The district must recognize the revenue from this section in fiscal year 2010.

Subd. 2. **Richfield.** For taxes payable in 2010 only, Independent School District No. 280, Richfield, may levy an amount up to \$25,000 for the costs of replacing elevators in the district. The district must recognize the revenue from this section in fiscal year 2010.

Subd. 3. **Restriction.** The levy authority provided in this section must not supplant the authority provided by the health and safety levy under Minnesota Statutes, section 123B.57.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective for taxes payable in 2010 only.

#### Sec. 6. **FUND TRANSFERS.**

Subdivision 1. **Capital account transfers.** Notwithstanding any law to the contrary, on June 30, 2009, a school district may transfer money from its reserved for operating capital account to its undesignated balance in the general fund. The amount transferred by any school district must not exceed \$51 times the district's adjusted marginal cost pupil units for fiscal year 2008. The transfer may occur only after the school board has adopted a written resolution stating the amount of the transfer and declaring that the school district's operating capital needs are met.

Subd. 2. **Lac Qui Parle Valley.** Notwithstanding Minnesota Statutes, sections 123B.79; 123B.80; and 475.61, subdivision 4, on June 30, 2009, Independent School District No. 2853, Lac qui Parle Valley, may permanently transfer up to \$221,000 from its debt redemption fund to its reserved for capital account without making a levy reduction.

Subd. 3. **Mankato.** Notwithstanding Minnesota Statutes, section 123B.79, 123B.80, or 475.61, subdivision 4, on June 30, 2009, Independent School District No. 77, Mankato, may permanently

transfer up to \$250,000 from its debt redemption fund to its undesignated general fund balance without making a levy reduction.

Subd. 4. **Ortonville.** Notwithstanding Minnesota Statutes, section 123B.79, 123B.80, or 475.61, subdivision 4, on June 30, 2009, Independent School District No. 62, Ortonville, may permanently transfer up to \$200,000 from its debt redemption fund to its reserved for operating capital account without making a levy reduction.

Subd. 5. **St. Anthony-New Brighton.** Notwithstanding Minnesota Statutes, section 123B.79 or 123B.80, on June 30, 2009, Independent School District No. 282, St. Anthony-New Brighton, may permanently transfer up to \$400,000 from its reserved for operating capital account to its undesignated general fund balance without making a levy reduction.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment.

Sec. 7. **APPROPRIATIONS.**

Subdivision 1. **Department of Education.** The sums indicated in this section are appropriated from the general fund to the Department of Education for the fiscal years designated.

Subd. 2. **School lunch.** For school lunch aid according to Minnesota Statutes, section 124D.111, and Code of Federal Regulations, title 7, section 210.17:

|    |                   |              |             |
|----|-------------------|--------------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>12,688,000</u> | <u>.....</u> | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>13,069,000</u> | <u>.....</u> | <u>2011</u> |

Subd. 3. **School breakfast.** For traditional school breakfast aid under Minnesota Statutes, section 124D.1158:

|    |                  |              |             |
|----|------------------|--------------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>4,978,000</u> | <u>.....</u> | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>5,147,000</u> | <u>.....</u> | <u>2011</u> |

Subd. 4. **Kindergarten milk.** For kindergarten milk aid under Minnesota Statutes, section 124D.118:

|    |                  |              |             |
|----|------------------|--------------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>1,098,000</u> | <u>.....</u> | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>1,120,000</u> | <u>.....</u> | <u>2011</u> |

Subd. 5. **Summer school service replacement aid.** For summer food service replacement aid under Minnesota Statutes, section 124D.119:

|    |                |              |             |
|----|----------------|--------------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>150,000</u> | <u>.....</u> | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>150,000</u> | <u>.....</u> | <u>2011</u> |

Subd. 6. **Basic system support.** For basic system support grants under Minnesota Statutes, section 134.355:

|    |                   |              |             |
|----|-------------------|--------------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>13,570,000</u> | <u>.....</u> | <u>2010</u> |
|----|-------------------|--------------|-------------|

\$            13,570,000    .....    2011

The 2010 appropriation includes \$1,357,000 for 2009 and \$12,213,000 for 2010.

The 2011 appropriation includes \$1,357,000 for 2010 and \$12,213,000 for 2011.

Subd. 7. **Multicounty, multitype library systems.** For grants under Minnesota Statutes, sections 134.353 and 134.354, to multicounty, multitype library systems:

\$            1,300,000    .....    2010

\$            1,300,000    .....    2011

The 2010 appropriation includes \$130,000 for 2009 and \$1,170,000 for 2010.

The 2011 appropriation includes \$130,000 for 2010 and \$1,170,000 for 2011.

Subd. 8. **Electronic library for Minnesota.** For statewide licenses to online databases selected in cooperation with the Minnesota Office of Higher Education for school media centers, public libraries, state government agency libraries, and public or private college or university libraries:

\$            900,000    .....    2010

\$            900,000    .....    2011

Any balance in the first year does not cancel but is available in the second year.

Subd. 9. **Regional library telecommunications aid.** For regional library telecommunications aid under Minnesota Statutes, section 134.355:

\$            2,300,000    .....    2010

\$            2,300,000    .....    2011

The 2010 appropriation includes \$230,000 for 2009 and \$2,070,000 for 2010.

The 2011 appropriation includes \$230,000 for 2010 and \$2,070,000 for 2011.

## ARTICLE 6

### EARLY CHILDHOOD EDUCATION, PREVENTION, SELF-SUFFICIENCY, AND LIFELONG LEARNING

#### Section 1. [4.046] OFFICE OF EARLY LEARNING.

(a) An Office of Early Learning is established to coordinate a high-quality early childhood system in Minnesota to make such programs more effective and to improve the educational outcomes of all children and ensure that all children are fully ready for kindergarten by 2020. The governor must appoint, subject to the advice and consent of the senate, a director who is a recognized expert in the field of early childhood care and education who will oversee prekindergarten and child care programs under the administration of the Departments of Education and Human Services.

(b) The director of the Office of Early Learning must report to the commissioners of education and human services and must coordinate Departments of Education and Human Services staff efforts to:

(1) oversee resources and public funding streams for early childhood education and child care, and ensure the accountability and coordinated development of early childhood education and child care services to children from birth to age five;

(2) work with the Departments of Education and Human Services and the Minnesota Early Learning Foundation (MELF) to create common standards for quality early childhood programming;

(3) create a seamless transition from early childhood programs to kindergarten that aligns with kindergarten through grade 3 standards;

(4) develop and oversee an effective data collection system and participate in the state's longitudinal data collection program to support the necessary functions of a coordinated system of early childhood education and child care;

(5) plan and implement a quality rating and improvement system to ensure that Minnesota's children have access to high-quality early learning and care programs in a range of settings that meet the needs of children and their families and reflects the diversity of the family values and cultural heritage represented in the community; and

(6) prior to the creation of a quality rating and improvement system, employ the Minnesota quality rating system rating tool in use in fiscal year 2008.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment.

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 119A.52, is amended to read:

**119A.52 DISTRIBUTION OF APPROPRIATION.**

(a) The commissioner of education must distribute money appropriated for that purpose to federally designated Head Start programs to expand services and to serve additional low-income children. Migrant and Indian reservation programs must be initially allocated money based on the programs' share of federal funds. The remaining money must be initially allocated to the remaining local agencies based equally on the agencies' share of federal funds and on the proportion of eligible children in the agencies' service area who are not currently being served. A Head Start program must be funded at a per child rate equal to its contracted, federally funded base level at the start of the fiscal year. For all agencies without a federal Early Head Start rate, the state average federal cost per child for Early Head Start applies. In allocating funds under this paragraph, the commissioner of education must assure that each Head Start program in existence in 1993 is allocated no less funding in any fiscal year than was allocated to that program in fiscal year 1993. Before paying money to the programs, the commissioner must notify each program of its initial allocation, and how the money must be used, ~~and the number of low-income children to be served with the allocation based upon the federally funded per-child rate.~~ Each program must present a plan under section 119A.535. For any program that cannot utilize its full allocation at the beginning of the fiscal year, the commissioner must reduce the allocation proportionately. Money available after the initial allocations are reduced must be redistributed to eligible programs.

(b) The commissioner must develop procedures to make payments to programs based upon the number of children reported to be enrolled during the required time period of program operations. Enrollment is defined by federal Head Start regulations. The procedures must include a reporting schedule, corrective action plan requirements, and financial consequences to be imposed on programs that do not meet full enrollment after the period of corrective action. Programs reporting chronic underenrollment, as defined by the commissioner, will have their subsequent program year allocation reduced proportionately. Funds made available by prorating payments and allocations to programs with reported underenrollment will be made available to the extent funds exist to fully enrolled Head Start programs through a form and manner prescribed by the department.

(c) Programs with approved innovative initiatives that target services to high-risk populations, including homeless families and families living in homeless shelters and transitional housing, are exempt from the procedures in paragraph (b). This exemption does not apply to entire programs. The exemption applies only to approved innovative initiatives that target services to high-risk populations, including homeless families and families living in homeless shelters and transitional housing.

**Sec. 3. [124D.082] PREKINDERGARTEN THROUGH GRADE 3 PROGRAM.**

Subdivision 1. **Establishment.** A school district, charter school, or collaboration of school districts and charter schools may establish a prekindergarten through grade 3 educational program that serves children three years old through grade 3.

Subd. 2. **Program components.** The program may strive to include the following:

(1) provide a minimum of 12 hours per week prekindergarten program for children three and four years old;

(2) provide a full school day of kindergarten;

(3) align curriculum and child assessment to the early childhood indicators of progress and K-12 standards within and across grades;

(4) provide a licensed teacher or the equivalent for each grade kindergarten through grade 3 and prekindergarten for children three and four years old;

(5) promote participation in ongoing intentional professional development and offer curriculum and classroom planning time;

(6) provide classroom environments that promote high-quality teacher-child interactions that are supportive of student learning;

(7) maintain student-staff ratios that are 20-to-one in prekindergarten through third grade;

(8) use observational performance-based child assessments for children ages three and four years and in kindergarten and grades 1 and 2 to inform classroom planning, curriculum, and instruction, and to inform parents of child progress;

(9) conduct a readiness assessment on entering kindergarteners that aligns with the state kindergarten readiness assessment and provide continuous observational assessment to measure student progress toward achievement of developmentally appropriate skills and knowledge;

(10) develop and identify student benchmarks aligned to state standards for students' continued progress in kindergarten and grades 1 and 2; and

(11) demonstrate commitment of and leadership by school principals to ensure the necessary tools and systems are in place to support prekindergarten through grade 3 continuum.

Subd. 3. **Financing.** School districts or charter schools that establish a program under subdivision 1 may allocate revenues attributable to students in kindergarten through grade 3 to support the program. If a school district has a provisional rating under section 124D.143, or the program has been rated at a three-star or higher quality level under the quality rating and improvement system as provided in section 124D.142, the program may accept prekindergarten allowances under section 124D.143, to support the program for children aged three and four years. The program may establish fees to support children aged three and four years.

Sec. 4. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 124D.13, subdivision 13, is amended to read:

~~Subd. 13. **Plan and Program data submission requirements.** (a) An early childhood family education program must submit a biennial plan addressing the requirements of subdivision 2 for approval by the commissioner. The plan must also describe how the program provides parenting education and ensures participation of families representative of the school district. A school district must submit the plan for approval by the commissioner in the form and manner prescribed by the commissioner. One half of districts, as determined by the commissioner, must first submit a biennial plan by April 1, 2009, and the remaining districts must first submit a plan by April 1, 2010.~~

~~(b) Districts receiving early childhood family education revenue under section 124D.135 must submit annual program data to the department by July 15 in the form and manner prescribed by the commissioner.~~

~~(c) Beginning with levies for fiscal year 2011, a school district must submit its annual program data to the department before it may certify a levy under section 124D.135. Districts selected by the commissioner to submit a biennial plan by April 1, 2009, must also have an approved plan on file with the commissioner before certifying a levy under section 124D.135 for fiscal year 2011. Beginning with levies for fiscal year 2012, all districts must submit annual program data and have an approved biennial plan on file with the commissioner before certifying a levy under section 124D.135.~~

Sec. 5. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 124D.135, subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. **Early childhood family education levy.** (a) By September 30 of each year, the commissioner shall establish a tax rate for early childhood family education revenue that raises \$22,135,000 in each fiscal year. If the amount of the early childhood family education levy would exceed the early childhood family education revenue, the early childhood family education levy must equal the early childhood family education revenue. ~~Beginning with levies for fiscal year 2011,~~ a district may not certify an early childhood family education levy unless it has met the annual program data reporting and biennial plan requirements under section 124D.13, subdivision 13.

(b) Notwithstanding paragraph (a), for fiscal year 2009 only, the commissioner shall establish a tax rate for early education revenue that raises \$13,565,000.

Sec. 6. [124D.142] QUALITY RATING AND IMPROVEMENT SYSTEM.

(a) There is established a quality rating and improvement system to ensure that Minnesota's children have access to high-quality early learning and care programs in a range of settings so that they are fully ready for kindergarten by 2020. Creation of a standards-based quality rating and improvement system includes:

(1) establishing an early care and education framework that improves quality opportunities in order to improve the educational outcomes of children so that they are ready for school. The framework shall be based on the Minnesota quality rating system rating tool and a common set of child outcome standards and informed by evaluation results;

(2) using the framework as a tool to increase the number of publicly funded and regulated early learning and care services in both public and private market programs that are high quality. If a program or provider chooses to participate, the program or provider will be rated and will receive public funding associated with the rating. The state shall develop a plan to link future early learning and care state funding to the framework in a manner that complies with federal requirements; and

(3) using the framework to track progress toward statewide access to high-quality early learning and care programs, progress toward the number of low-income children whose parents can access quality programs, and progress toward increasing the number of children who are fully prepared to enter kindergarten.

(b) In planning and implementing a statewide quality rating and improvement system in paragraph (a), the state shall assess the cost of administering and staffing the system and collecting assessment and evaluation data of the early learning and care system, including ensuring children are fully ready for kindergarten. This cost assessment shall be provided to the early childhood learning education finance committees of the legislature by January 15, 2010.

(c) Prior to the creation of a statewide quality rating and improvement system in paragraph (a), the state shall employ the Minnesota quality rating system rating tool in use in fiscal year 2008 with its modification as a result of the evaluation results of the pilot project.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective July 1, 2009.

#### **Sec. 7. [124D.143] PREKINDERGARTEN FINANCE ALLOWANCES.**

Subdivision 1. **Early childhood allowance locations.** In fiscal year 2010 and later, the commissioners of human services and education shall continue three prekindergarten exploratory projects located in the city of St. Paul, Hennepin County, and Blue Earth County that are conducted in partnership with the Minnesota Early Learning Foundation to promote children's school readiness. In fiscal year 2011 and later, the commissioners of human services and education shall establish additional prekindergarten projects to be conducted in partnership with the Minnesota Early Learning Foundation to promote children's school readiness. In fiscal year 2011, the additional prekindergarten project sites shall be located in Otter Tail County, Itasca County, St. Louis County, and a consortium of Benton, Stearns, and Sherburne Counties.

Subd. 2. **Allowance eligibility.** Parents or legal guardians with incomes less than or equal to 46 percent of the state median income are eligible to receive allowances to pay for their children's education in a quality early education program, in an amount not to exceed \$4,000 per child per year. The allowance must be used during the 12 months following receipt of the allowance by the claimant for a child who is age three or four on September 1 to pay for services designed to promote



school readiness in a quality early care and education setting. A claimant may use the allowance to pay fees or charges associated with their child's education in a quality early care and education setting. A quality setting is one that meets the standards in subdivision 3.

Subd. 2a. **Automatic eligibility.** For the purpose of establishing eligibility for the prekindergarten education allowance, the commissioners of education and human services must accept children identified in other public funding eligibility processes, including, but not limited to, public school programs, Head Start, and child care assistance programs. In addition, the commissioners of education and human services must make a sample form available to providers that can be used to determine potential eligible children. The commissioner must submit a prekindergarten education allowance to an eligible child who used this automatic process.

Subd. 3. **Quality standards.** (a) Until a quality rating and improvement system is established under section 124D.142, a provider may satisfy the quality rating system requirements and be deemed eligible to receive prekindergarten education allowances if the provider has received a provisional quality rating system approval from either the Department of Human Services or the Department of Education, or has received a three-star or higher quality rating under the Minnesota Early Learning Foundation quality rating system. An eligible participant must agree to accept a prekindergarten allowance to pay for services.

(b) A quality early care and education setting for this section is a service program that receives a three-star or higher quality rating based on the quality rating and improvement system established according to section 124D.142.

(c) For the purposes of receiving a provisional quality rating, a child care program or provider must be approved by the commissioner of human services and a school-based program or a Head Start program must be approved by the commissioner of education. Programs and providers must apply for approval in the form and manner prescribed by the commissioners. To receive approval, the commissioners must determine that applicants:

(1) use research-based curricula that are aligned with the education standards under section 120B.021, instruction, and child assessment instruments approved by the Department of Education and the Department of Human Services, in consultation with the Minnesota Early Learning Foundation;

(2) provide a program of sufficient intensity and duration to improve the school readiness of participating children;

(3) provide opportunities for parent involvement; and

(4) meet other research-based criteria determined necessary by the commissioners.

(d) Notwithstanding paragraph (b), for 2010 and 2011 only, Head Start programs meeting Head Start performance standards and accredited child care centers are granted a provisional quality rating for the purposes of receiving a prekindergarten allowance under this section.

(e) Notwithstanding paragraph (b), for fiscal years 2010 and 2011 only, school readiness programs under section 124D.15 are granted a provisional quality rating for the purposes of receiving a prekindergarten allowance under this section.

(f) Upon completion of the quality rating system pilot evaluation, the commissioner shall review

the Head Start and school readiness programs that received initial provisional quality ratings to establish an appropriate star-based rating.

(g) A provider deemed eligible to receive a prekindergarten education allowance under paragraphs (a) to (c) may use the allowance to enhance services above the current quality levels, increase the duration of services provided, or expand the number of children to whom services are provided.

(h) School district-based and Head Start programs may combine prekindergarten allowances under this section with resources from other programs to offer services to more participants.

(i) For fiscal years 2010 and 2011 only, when no quality program is available, a recipient may direct the prekindergarten allowance to a provider or program for school readiness quality improvements that will make the provider or program eligible for a quality rating according the quality rating system. Allowable expenditures that will increase the capacity of the provider or program to help children be ready for school include purchase of curricula and assessment tools, training on the use of curriculum and assessment tools, purchase of materials to improve the learning environment, or other expenditures approved by the commissioner of human services for child care providers and the commissioner of education for school readiness programs.

Subd. 4. **Eligibility; applications.** Eligible families must have incomes less than or equal to 46 percent of the state median income. Allowances paid to families under this program may not be counted as earned income for the purposes of medical assistance, MinnesotaCare, MFIP, child care assistance, or Head Start programs. All children whose parents meet the income requirements are eligible to receive prekindergarten allowances under this section.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment.

Sec. 8. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 124D.15, subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. **Program requirements.** A school readiness program provider must:

(1) assess each child's cognitive skills with a comprehensive, culturally relevant child assessment instrument when the child enters and again before the child leaves the program to inform program planning and parents and promote kindergarten readiness;

(2) provide comprehensive program content and intentional instructional practice aligned with the state early childhood learning guidelines and kindergarten standards and based on early childhood research and professional practice that is focused on children's cognitive, social, emotional, and physical skills and development and prepares children for the transition to kindergarten, including early literacy skills;

(3) coordinate appropriate kindergarten transition with parents and kindergarten teachers;

~~(3)~~ (4) arrange for early childhood screening and appropriate referral;

~~(4)~~ (5) involve parents in program planning and decision making;

~~(5)~~ (6) coordinate with relevant community-based services; and

~~(6)~~ (7) cooperate with adult basic education programs and other adult literacy programs;

(8) ensure staff-child ratios of one to ten and maximum group size of 20 children with the first staff required to be a teacher;

(9) serve children a minimum of 12 hours per week; and

(10) have teachers knowledgeable in early childhood curriculum content, cultural competency, assessment, and instruction.

Sec. 9. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 124D.19, subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. **Community education director.** (a) Except as provided under paragraphs (b) and (c), each board shall employ a licensed community education director. The board shall submit the name of the person who is serving as director of community education under this section on the district's annual community education report to the commissioner.

(b) A board may apply to the Minnesota Board of School Administrators under Minnesota Rules, part 3512.3500, subpart 9, for authority to use an individual who is not licensed as a community education director.

(c) A board of a district with a total population of ~~2,000~~ 4,000 or less may identify an employee who holds a valid Minnesota teacher, principal, or superintendent license under Minnesota Rules, chapter 3512, to serve as director of community education. To be eligible for an exception under this paragraph, the board shall certify in writing to the commissioner that the district has not placed a licensed director of community education on unrequested leave.

Sec. 10. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 124D.19, subdivision 10, is amended to read:

Subd. 10. **Youth service programs.** (a) A school board may offer, as part of a community education program with a youth development program, a youth service program that provides young people with meaningful opportunities to become involved in their community, develop individual capabilities, make career connections, seek support networks and services, become active citizens, and address community needs through youth service. The board may award up to one credit, or the equivalent, toward graduation for a pupil who completes the youth service requirements of the district. The community education advisory council, after considering the results of the commissioner's study under section 124D.50, subdivision 1, must design the program in cooperation with the district planning, evaluating and reporting committee and local organizations that train volunteers or need volunteers' services.

(b) Programs must include:

(1) preliminary training for pupil volunteers conducted, when possible, by organizations experienced in such training;

(2) supervision of the pupil volunteers to ensure appropriate placement and adequate learning opportunity;

(3) sufficient opportunity, in a positive setting for human development, for pupil volunteers to develop general skills in preparation for employment, to enhance self-esteem and self-worth, and to give genuine service to their community;

(4) integration of academic learning with the service experience; and

(5) integration of youth community service with elementary and secondary curriculum.

(c) Youth service projects include, but are not limited to, the following:

(1) human services for the elderly, including home care and related services;

(2) tutoring and mentoring;

(3) training for and providing emergency services;

(4) services at extended day programs;

(5) environmental services; and

(6) service-learning programs in which schools, including postsecondary schools, and employers work together with young people to provide them with meaningful opportunities for community service and with the academic and technical skills that employers require.

~~(d) The commissioner shall maintain a list of acceptable projects with a description of each project. A project that is not on the list must be approved by the commissioner.~~

~~(e)~~ A youth service project must have a community sponsor that may be a governmental unit or nonprofit organization. To assure that pupils provide additional services, each sponsor must assure that pupil services do not displace employees or reduce the workload of any employee.

~~(f)~~ (e) The commissioner shall assist districts in planning youth service programs, implementing programs, and developing recommendations for obtaining community sponsors.

Sec. 11. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 124D.19, subdivision 14, is amended to read:

Subd. 14. **Community education; annual report.** Each district offering a community education program under this section must annually report to the department information regarding ~~the cost per participant and cost per contact hour for each community education program, including youth after-school enrichment programs, that receives aid or levy. The department must include cost per participant and cost per contact hour information by program in the community education annual report.~~

Sec. 12. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 124D.522, is amended to read:

**124D.522 ADULT BASIC EDUCATION SUPPLEMENTAL SERVICE GRANTS.**

(a) The commissioner, in consultation with the policy review task force under section 124D.521, may make grants to nonprofit organizations to provide services that are not offered by a district adult basic education program or that are supplemental to either the statewide adult basic education program, or a district's adult basic education program. The commissioner may make grants for: staff development for adult basic education teachers and administrators; training for volunteer tutors; training, services, and materials for serving disabled students through adult basic education programs; statewide promotion of adult basic education services and programs; development and dissemination of instructional and administrative technology for adult basic education programs; programs which primarily serve communities of color; adult basic education distance learning projects, including television instruction programs; and other supplemental services to support the mission of adult basic education and innovative delivery of adult basic education services.

(b) The commissioner must establish eligibility criteria and grant application procedures. Grants under this section must support services throughout the state, focus on educational results for adult learners, and promote outcome-based achievement through adult basic education programs. Beginning in fiscal year 2002, the commissioner may make grants under this section from the state total adult basic education aid set aside for supplemental service grants under section 124D.531. Up to one-fourth of the appropriation for supplemental service grants must be used for grants for adult basic education programs to encourage and support innovations in adult basic education instruction and service delivery. A grant to a single organization cannot exceed ~~\$100,000~~ 20 percent of the total supplemental services aid. Nothing in this section prevents an approved adult basic education program from using state or federal aid to purchase supplemental services.

Sec. 13. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 299A.297, is amended to read:

**299A.297 OTHER DUTIES.**

The commissioner of public safety, in consultation with the Chemical Abuse and Violence Prevention Council, shall:

(1) provide information and assistance upon request to school preassessment teams established under section 121A.26 ~~and school and community advisory teams established under section 121A.27~~;

(2) provide information and assistance upon request to the State Board of Pharmacy with respect to the board's enforcement of chapter 152;

(3) cooperate with and provide information and assistance upon request to the Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse Section in the Department of Human Services;

(4) coordinate the policy of the office with that of the Narcotic Enforcement Unit in the Bureau of Criminal Apprehension; and

(5) coordinate the activities of the regional drug task forces, provide assistance and information to them upon request, and assist in the formation of task forces in areas of the state in which no task force operates.

**Sec. 14. AMERICAN RECOVERY AND REINVESTMENT ACT OF 2009 FUNDS FOR EARLY EDUCATION.**

Subdivision 1. **Policy.** It is the policy of the state of Minnesota that school districts and charter schools, in partnership with local community partners, should focus the spending of available resources to ensure that Minnesota's children are fully ready for kindergarten.

Subd. 2. **Encouragement.** The state of Minnesota encourages school districts and charter schools to work with community partners to direct a portion of the increased revenue that districts and charters will receive from the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 to ensure that Minnesota's children are fully ready for kindergarten.

Subd. 3. **Report.** Every school district and charter school that receives federal title I funding must report to the Department of Education, in a manner prescribed by the commissioner, on how it used its increased funding in fiscal years 2010 and 2011 from the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 to ensure that Minnesota's children are fully ready for kindergarten. The commissioner

must summarize the results of the district and charter school reports under this subdivision, and report the findings to the education finance committees of the legislature by January 15, 2012.

**Sec. 15. TRANSFER OF DUTIES.**

Responsibilities of the commissioner of education for early childhood education programs and financing under Minnesota Statutes, sections 124D.082; 124D.13; 124D.135; 124D.141; 124D.142; 124D.143; 124D.15; 124D.16; and 124D.162 are transferred to the Office of Early Learning. All positions in the Department of Education related to early childhood education are transferred to the Office of Early Learning. Minnesota Statutes, section 15.039, applies to the transfer of the responsibilities in this section.

**Sec. 16. APPROPRIATIONS.**

Subdivision 1. **Department of Education.** The sums indicated in this section are appropriated from the general fund to the Department of Education for the fiscal years designated.

Subd. 2. **School readiness.** For revenue for school readiness programs under Minnesota Statutes, sections 124D.15 and 124D.16:

|    |                   |       |             |
|----|-------------------|-------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>10,095,000</u> | ..... | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>10,095,000</u> | ..... | <u>2011</u> |

The 2010 appropriation includes \$1,009,000 for 2009 and \$9,086,000 for 2010.

The 2011 appropriation includes \$1,009,000 for 2010 and \$9,086,000 for 2011.

Subd. 3. **Early childhood family education aid.** For early childhood family education aid under Minnesota Statutes, section 124D.135:

|    |                   |       |             |
|----|-------------------|-------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>22,955,000</u> | ..... | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>22,547,000</u> | ..... | <u>2011</u> |

The 2010 appropriation includes \$3,020,000 for 2009 and \$19,935,000 for 2010.

The 2011 appropriation includes \$2,214,000 for 2010 and \$20,333,000 for 2011.

Subd. 4. **Health and developmental screening aid.** For health and developmental screening aid under Minnesota Statutes, sections 121A.17 and 121A.19:

|    |                  |       |             |
|----|------------------|-------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>3,694,000</u> | ..... | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>3,800,000</u> | ..... | <u>2011</u> |

The 2010 appropriation includes \$367,000 for 2009 and \$3,327,000 for 2010.

The 2011 appropriation includes \$369,000 for 2010 and \$3,431,000 for 2011.

Subd. 5. **Head Start program.** For Head Start programs under Minnesota Statutes, section 119A.52:

|    |                   |       |             |
|----|-------------------|-------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>20,100,000</u> | ..... | <u>2010</u> |
|----|-------------------|-------|-------------|

\$            20,100,000    .....    2011

Any balance in the first year does not cancel but is available in the second year.

Subd. 6. **Educate parents partnership.** For the educate parents partnership under Minnesota Statutes, section 124D.129:

\$            50,000        .....    2010

\$            50,000        .....    2011

Any balance in the first year does not cancel but is available in the second year.

Subd. 7. **Kindergarten entrance assessment initiative and intervention program.** For the kindergarten entrance assessment initiative and intervention program under Minnesota Statutes, section 124D.162:

\$            287,000        .....    2010

\$            287,000        .....    2011

Any balance in the first year does not cancel but is available in the second year.

Subd. 8. **Parent aware star rating tool.** For the parent aware star rating tool:

\$            250,000        .....    2010

\$            250,000        .....    2011

This appropriation must be used for the administration of the rating tool and for onsite observations. The base for subsequent years is \$500,000.

Subd. 9. **Prekindergarten finance allowances.** For grants to prekindergarten finance allowances under Minnesota Statutes, section 124D.143.

\$            6,000,000        .....    2010

\$            8,000,000        .....    2011

Of this amount, up to ten percent of the annual appropriation is for the administration of the Office of Early Learning.

In fiscal year 2010, this appropriation is for grants to the city of St. Paul, Hennepin County, and Blue Earth County for scholarship projects in collaboration with the Minnesota Early Learning Foundation to promote children's school readiness. In fiscal year 2011 and later, this appropriation is for grants to the city of St. Paul, Hennepin County, Blue Earth County, Otter Tail County, Itasca County, St. Louis County, and a consortium of Benton, Stearns, and Sherburne Counties. The appropriation is available until expended. This appropriation is part of the base budget for subsequent fiscal years. For fiscal year 2011 and later, strong consideration for expanded eligibility in Hennepin County must be given to participants who have completed an accredited home visiting program.

Subd. 10. **Community education aid.** For community education aid under Minnesota Statutes,

section 124D.20:

|    |                |       |             |
|----|----------------|-------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>585,000</u> | ..... | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>467,000</u> | ..... | <u>2011</u> |

The 2010 appropriation includes \$73,000 for 2009 and \$512,000 for 2010.

The 2011 appropriation included \$56,000 for 2010 and \$411,000 for 2011.

Subd. 11. **Adults with disabilities program aid.** For adults with disabilities programs under Minnesota Statutes, section 124D.56:

|    |                |       |             |
|----|----------------|-------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>710,000</u> | ..... | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>710,000</u> | ..... | <u>2011</u> |

The 2010 appropriation includes \$71,000 for 2009 and \$639,000 for 2010.

The 2011 appropriation includes \$71,000 for 2010 and \$639,000 for 2011.

Subd. 12. **Hearing-impaired adults.** For programs for hearing-impaired adults under Minnesota Statutes, section 124D.57:

|    |               |       |             |
|----|---------------|-------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>70,000</u> | ..... | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>70,000</u> | ..... | <u>2011</u> |

Subd. 13. **School-age care revenue.** For extended day aid under Minnesota Statutes, section 124D.22:

|    |              |       |             |
|----|--------------|-------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>1,000</u> | ..... | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>1,000</u> | ..... | <u>2011</u> |

The 2010 appropriation includes \$0 for 2009 and \$1,000 for 2010.

The 2011 appropriation includes \$0 for 2010 and \$1,000 for 2011.

Subd. 14. **Adult basic education aid.** For adult basic education aid under Minnesota Statutes:

|    |                   |       |             |
|----|-------------------|-------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>42,975,000</u> | ..... | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>44,258,000</u> | ..... | <u>2011</u> |

The 2010 appropriation includes \$4,187,000 for 2009 and \$38,788,000 for 2010.

The 2011 appropriation includes \$4,309,000 for 2010 and \$39,949,000 for 2011.

Subd. 15. **GED tests.** For payment of 60 percent of the costs of GED tests under Minnesota Statutes, section 124D.55:

|    |                |       |             |
|----|----------------|-------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>125,000</u> | ..... | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>125,000</u> | ..... | <u>2011</u> |



Any balance in the first year does not cancel but is available in the second year.

Sec. 17. **REVISOR'S INSTRUCTION.**

In the next and subsequent editions of Minnesota Statutes, the revisor of statutes shall:

(1) substitute the term "the director" for "commissioner" and "commissioner of education" in the following: Minnesota Statutes, sections 124D.082; 124D.13; 124D.135; 124D.141; 124D.142; 124D.143; 124D.15; 124D.16; and 124D.162; and

(2) substitute the term "Office of Early Learning" for the term "Department of Education" in the following: Minnesota Statutes, sections 124D.082; 124D.13; 124D.135; 124D.141; 124D.142; 124D.143; 124D.15; 124D.16; and 124D.162.

Sec. 18. **REPEALER.**

Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 121A.27, is repealed.

**ARTICLE 7**

**STATE AGENCIES**

Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 125A.61, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **State schools at Faribault.** The Minnesota State Academy for the Deaf and the Minnesota State Academy for the Blind are residential schools in Faribault. They are public schools under sections 122A.15, and 122A.16, and 122A.32 and state educational institutions.

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 125A.62, subdivision 8, is amended to read:

Subd. 8. **Grants and gifts.** The board, through the chief administrators of the academies, may apply for all competitive grants administered by agencies of the state and other government or nongovernment sources. Application may not be made for grants over which the board has discretion. Any money so received is hereby appropriated and dedicated for the purpose for which it is granted.

Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 2008, section 127A.08, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 5. **Grants and gifts.** The commissioner may apply for and receive grants and gifts administered by agencies of the state and other government or nongovernment sources. Any money received is hereby appropriated and dedicated for the purpose for which it is granted.

The commissioner must annually report by February 15 a list of all grants and gifts received and applied for under this subdivision.

Sec. 4. **APPROPRIATIONS.**

Subdivision 1. **Department of Education.** Unless otherwise indicated, the sums indicated in this section are appropriated from the general fund to the Department of Education for the fiscal years designated.

Subd. 2. **Department.** (a) For the Department of Education:

|    |            |       |      |
|----|------------|-------|------|
| \$ | 21,042,000 | ..... | 2010 |
|----|------------|-------|------|

\$            21,042,000    .....    2011

Any balance in the first year does not cancel but is available in the second year.

(b) \$260,000 each year is for the Minnesota Children's Museum.

(c) \$41,000 each year is for the Minnesota Academy of Science.

(d) \$632,000 each year is for the Board of Teaching. Any balance in the first year does not cancel but is available in the second year.

(e) \$171,000 each year is for the Board of School Administrators. Any balance in the first year does not cancel but is available in the second year.

(f) Unless otherwise specified in this act, the expenditures of federal grants and aids as shown in the biennial budget document and its supplements are approved and appropriated and shall be spent as indicated.

(g) \$40,000 each year is for an early hearing loss intervention coordinator under Minnesota Statutes, section 125A.63, subdivision 5. If the department expends federal funds to employ a hearing loss coordinator under Minnesota Statutes, section 125.63, subdivision 5, then the appropriation under this paragraph is reallocated for purposes of employing a world languages coordinator.

(h) \$50,000 each year is for the Duluth Children's Museum.

(i) None of the amounts appropriated under this subdivision may be used for Minnesota's Washington, D.C., office.

Subd. 3. **Board of Teaching; licensure by portfolio.** For the Board of Teaching for licensure by portfolio:

\$            17,000    .....    2010

\$            17,000    .....    2011

This appropriation is from the education licensure portfolio account of the special revenue fund.

**Sec. 5. APPROPRIATIONS; MINNESOTA STATE ACADEMIES.**

The sums indicated in this section are appropriated from the general fund to the Minnesota State Academies for the Deaf and the Blind for the fiscal years designated:

\$            11,554,000    .....    2010

\$            11,554,000    .....    2011

Any balance in the first year does not cancel but is available in the second year.

**Sec. 6. APPROPRIATIONS; PERPICH CENTER FOR ARTS EDUCATION.**

The sums indicated in this section are appropriated from the general fund to the Perpich Center

for Arts Education for the fiscal years designated:

|    |                  |       |             |
|----|------------------|-------|-------------|
| \$ | <u>6,874,000</u> | ..... | <u>2010</u> |
| \$ | <u>6,874,000</u> | ..... | <u>2011</u> |

Any balance in the first year does not cancel but is available in the second year.

## ARTICLE 8

### EDUCATION FORECAST ADJUSTMENTS

#### A. GENERAL EDUCATION

Section 1. Laws 2007, chapter 146, article 1, section 24, subdivision 2, as amended by Laws 2008, chapter 363, article 3, section 1, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. **General education aid.** For general education aid under Minnesota Statutes, section 126C.13, subdivision 4:

|    |                          |       |      |
|----|--------------------------|-------|------|
| \$ | 5,600,647,000            | ..... | 2008 |
| \$ | <del>5,649,098,000</del> | ..... | 2009 |
|    | <u>5,644,263,000</u>     |       |      |

The 2008 appropriation includes \$536,251,000 for 2007 and \$5,064,396,000 for 2008.

The 2009 appropriation includes ~~\$543,752,000~~ \$533,760,000 for 2008 and ~~\$5,105,346,000~~ \$5,110,503,000 for 2009.

Sec. 2. Laws 2007, chapter 146, article 1, section 24, subdivision 4, as amended by Laws 2008, chapter 363, article 3, section 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. **Enrollment options transportation.** For transportation of pupils attending postsecondary institutions under Minnesota Statutes, section 124D.09, or for transportation of pupils attending nonresident districts under Minnesota Statutes, section 124D.03:

|    |                                 |       |      |
|----|---------------------------------|-------|------|
| \$ | 48,000                          | ..... | 2008 |
| \$ | <del>50,000</del> <u>45,000</u> | ..... | 2009 |

Sec. 3. Laws 2007, chapter 146, article 1, section 24, subdivision 5, as amended by Laws 2008, chapter 363, article 3, section 4, is amended to read:

Subd. 5. **Abatement revenue.** For abatement aid under Minnesota Statutes, section 127A.49:

|    |                      |       |      |
|----|----------------------|-------|------|
| \$ | 1,333,000            | ..... | 2008 |
| \$ | <del>1,629,000</del> | ..... | 2009 |
|    | <u>1,407,000</u>     |       |      |

The 2008 appropriation includes \$76,000 for 2007 and \$1,257,000 for 2008.

The 2009 appropriation includes \$139,000 for 2008 and ~~\$1,490,000~~ \$1,268,000 for 2009.

Sec. 4. Laws 2007, chapter 146, article 1, section 24, subdivision 6, as amended by Laws 2008, chapter 363, article 3, section 5, is amended to read:

Subd. 6. **Consolidation transition.** For districts consolidating under Minnesota Statutes, section 123A.485:

|    |                                  |       |      |
|----|----------------------------------|-------|------|
| \$ | 240,000                          | ..... | 2008 |
| \$ | <del>339,000</del> <u>21,000</u> | ..... | 2009 |

The 2008 appropriation includes \$43,000 for 2007 and \$197,000 for 2008.

The 2009 appropriation includes \$21,000 for 2008 and ~~\$318,000~~ \$0 for 2009.

Sec. 5. Laws 2007, chapter 146, article 1, section 24, subdivision 7, as amended by Laws 2008, chapter 363, article 3, section 6, is amended to read:

Subd. 7. **Nonpublic pupil education aid.** For nonpublic pupil education aid under Minnesota Statutes, sections 123B.40 to 123B.43, and 123B.87:

|    |                       |       |      |
|----|-----------------------|-------|------|
| \$ | 15,601,000            | ..... | 2008 |
| \$ | <del>16,608,000</del> | ..... | 2009 |
|    | <u>16,271,000</u>     |       |      |

The 2008 appropriation includes \$1,214,000 for 2007 and \$14,387,000 for 2008.

The 2009 appropriation includes ~~\$1,598,000~~ \$1,439,000 for 2008 and ~~\$15,010,000~~ \$14,832,000 for 2009.

Sec. 6. Laws 2007, chapter 146, article 1, section 24, subdivision 8, as amended by Laws 2008, chapter 363, article 3, section 7, is amended to read:

Subd. 8. **Nonpublic pupil transportation.** For nonpublic pupil transportation aid under Minnesota Statutes, section 123B.92, subdivision 9:

|    |                       |       |      |
|----|-----------------------|-------|------|
| \$ | 20,755,000            | ..... | 2008 |
| \$ | <del>21,007,000</del> | ..... | 2009 |
|    | <u>20,739,000</u>     |       |      |

The 2008 appropriation includes \$2,124,000 for 2007 and \$18,631,000 for 2008.

The 2009 appropriation includes ~~\$2,070,000~~ \$2,037,000 for 2008 and ~~\$18,937,000~~ \$18,702,000 for 2009.

## B. EDUCATION EXCELLENCE

Sec. 7. Laws 2007, chapter 146, article 2, section 46, subdivision 2, as amended by Laws 2008, chapter 363, article 3, section 8, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. **Charter school building lease aid.** For building lease aid under Minnesota Statutes,

section 124D.11, subdivision 4:

|    |                       |       |      |
|----|-----------------------|-------|------|
| \$ | 32,817,000            | ..... | 2008 |
| \$ | <del>37,527,000</del> | ..... | 2009 |
|    | <u>36,605,000</u>     |       |      |

The 2008 appropriation includes \$2,814,000 for 2007 and \$30,003,000 for 2008.

The 2009 appropriation includes ~~\$3,333,000~~ \$3,264,000 for 2008 and ~~\$34,194,000~~ \$33,341,000 for 2009.

Sec. 8. Laws 2007, chapter 146, article 2, section 46, subdivision 3, as amended by Laws 2008, chapter 363, article 3, section 9, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. **Charter school startup cost aid.** For charter school startup cost aid under Minnesota Statutes, section 124D.11:

|    |                      |       |      |
|----|----------------------|-------|------|
| \$ | 1,801,000            | ..... | 2008 |
| \$ | <del>1,987,000</del> | ..... | 2009 |
|    | <u>1,982,000</u>     |       |      |

The 2008 appropriation includes \$239,000 for 2007 and \$1,562,000 for 2008.

The 2009 appropriation includes ~~\$173,000~~ \$162,000 for 2008 and ~~\$1,814,000~~ \$1,820,000 for 2009.

Sec. 9. Laws 2007, chapter 146, article 2, section 46, subdivision 4, as amended by Laws 2008, chapter 363, article 3, section 10, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. **Integration aid.** For integration aid under Minnesota Statutes, section 124D.86, subdivision 5:

|    |                       |       |      |
|----|-----------------------|-------|------|
| \$ | 59,036,000            | ..... | 2008 |
| \$ | <del>62,448,000</del> | ..... | 2009 |
|    | <u>60,826,000</u>     |       |      |

The 2008 appropriation includes \$5,824,000 for 2007 and \$53,212,000 for 2008.

The 2009 appropriation includes ~~\$5,912,000~~ \$5,833,000 for 2008 and ~~\$56,536,000~~ \$54,993,000 for 2009.

Sec. 10. Laws 2007, chapter 146, article 2, section 46, subdivision 6, as amended by Laws 2008, chapter 363, article 3, section 11, is amended to read:

Subd. 6. **Interdistrict desegregation or integration transportation grants.** For interdistrict desegregation or integration transportation grants under Minnesota Statutes, section 124D.87:

|    |                       |       |      |
|----|-----------------------|-------|------|
| \$ | 9,901,000             | ..... | 2008 |
| \$ | <del>11,881,000</del> | ..... | 2009 |
|    | <u>11,947,000</u>     |       |      |

Sec. 11. Laws 2007, chapter 146, article 2, section 46, subdivision 9, as amended by Laws 2008, chapter 363, article 3, section 12, is amended to read:

Subd. 9. **Tribal contract schools.** For tribal contract school aid under Minnesota Statutes, section 124D.83:

|    |                      |       |      |
|----|----------------------|-------|------|
| \$ | 2,207,000            | ..... | 2008 |
| \$ | <del>2,392,000</del> | ..... | 2009 |
|    | <u>1,844,000</u>     |       |      |

The 2008 appropriation includes \$204,000 for 2007 and \$2,003,000 for 2008.

The 2009 appropriation includes ~~\$222,000~~ \$122,000 for 2008 and ~~\$2,170,000~~ \$1,722,000 for 2009.

### C. SPECIAL EDUCATION

Sec. 12. Laws 2007, chapter 146, article 3, section 24, subdivision 3, as amended by Laws 2008, chapter 363, article 3, section 13, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. **Aid for children with disabilities.** For aid under Minnesota Statutes, section 125A.75, subdivision 3, for children with disabilities placed in residential facilities within the district boundaries for whom no district of residence can be determined:

|    |                      |       |      |
|----|----------------------|-------|------|
| \$ | 2,086,000            | ..... | 2008 |
| \$ | <del>2,282,000</del> | ..... | 2009 |
|    | <u>1,556,000</u>     |       |      |

If the appropriation for either year is insufficient, the appropriation for the other year is available.

Sec. 13. Laws 2007, chapter 146, article 3, section 24, subdivision 4, as amended by Laws 2008, chapter 363, article 3, section 14, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. **Travel for home-based services.** For aid for teacher travel for home-based services under Minnesota Statutes, section 125A.75, subdivision 1:

|    |                                   |       |      |
|----|-----------------------------------|-------|------|
| \$ | 207,000                           | ..... | 2008 |
| \$ | <del>227,000</del> <u>237,000</u> | ..... | 2009 |

The 2008 appropriation includes \$22,000 for 2007 and \$185,000 for 2008.

The 2009 appropriation includes ~~\$20,000~~ \$21,000 for 2008 and ~~\$207,000~~ \$216,000 for 2009.

Sec. 14. Laws 2007, chapter 146, article 3, section 24, subdivision 7, is amended to read:

Subd. 7. **Court-placed special education revenue.** For reimbursing serving school districts for unreimbursed eligible expenditures attributable to children placed in the serving school district by court action under Minnesota Statutes, section 125A.79, subdivision 4:

|    |        |       |      |
|----|--------|-------|------|
| \$ | 72,000 | ..... | 2008 |
|----|--------|-------|------|

\$ 74,000 ..... 2009

#### D. FACILITIES AND TECHNOLOGY

Sec. 15. Laws 2007, chapter 146, article 4, section 16, subdivision 2, as amended by Laws 2008, chapter 363, article 3, section 15, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. **Health and safety revenue.** For health and safety aid according to Minnesota Statutes, section 123B.57, subdivision 5:

\$ 254,000 ..... 2008

\$ ~~403,000~~ 119,000 ..... 2009

The 2008 appropriation includes \$20,000 for 2007 and \$234,000 for 2008.

The 2009 appropriation includes ~~\$26,000~~ \$23,000 for 2008 and ~~\$77,000~~ \$96,000 for 2009.

Sec. 16. Laws 2007, chapter 146, article 4, section 16, subdivision 6, as amended by Laws 2008, chapter 363, article 3, section 17, is amended to read:

Subd. 6. **Deferred maintenance aid.** For deferred maintenance aid, according to Minnesota Statutes, section 123B.591, subdivision 4:

\$ 3,232,000 ..... 2008

\$ ~~2,627,000~~  
2,720,000 ..... 2009

The 2008 appropriation includes \$0 for 2007 and \$3,232,000 for 2008.

The 2009 appropriation includes ~~\$359,000~~ \$371,000 for 2008 and ~~\$2,268,000~~ \$2,349,000 for 2009.

Sec. 17. Laws 2007, chapter 146, article 4, section 16, subdivision 8, as amended by Laws 2008, chapter 363, article 3, section 18, is amended to read:

Subd. 8. **School technology and operating capital aid grants.** For school technology and operating capital grants under section 11:

\$ 38,236,000 ..... 2008

\$ ~~52,454,000~~  
52,254,000 ..... 2009

This is a onetime appropriation.

#### E. NUTRITION

Sec. 18. Laws 2007, chapter 146, article 5, section 13, subdivision 2, as amended by Laws 2008, chapter 363, article 3, section 19, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. **School lunch.** For school lunch aid according to Minnesota Statutes, section 124D.111, and Code of Federal Regulations, title 7, section 210.17:

|    |                       |       |      |
|----|-----------------------|-------|------|
| \$ | 12,094,000            | ..... | 2008 |
| \$ | <del>12,394,000</del> | ..... | 2009 |
|    | <u>12,298,000</u>     |       |      |

Sec. 19. Laws 2007, chapter 146, article 5, section 13, subdivision 3, as amended by Laws 2008, chapter 363, article 2, section 40, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. **Traditional school breakfast; kindergarten milk.** For traditional school breakfast aid and kindergarten milk under Minnesota Statutes, sections 124D.1158 and 124D.118:

|    |                      |       |      |
|----|----------------------|-------|------|
| \$ | 5,583,000            | ..... | 2008 |
| \$ | <del>6,396,000</del> | ..... | 2009 |
|    | <u>5,801,000</u>     |       |      |

The 2009 appropriation includes \$4,725,000 for traditional school breakfast and \$1,076,000 for kindergarten milk.

#### F. EARLY CHILDHOOD EDUCATION

Sec. 20. Laws 2007, chapter 146, article 9, section 17, subdivision 2, as amended by Laws 2008, chapter 363, article 3, section 21, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. **Early childhood family education aid.** For early childhood family education aid under Minnesota Statutes, section 124D.135:

|    |                       |       |      |
|----|-----------------------|-------|------|
| \$ | 21,092,000            | ..... | 2008 |
| \$ | <del>29,324,000</del> | ..... | 2009 |
|    | <u>29,326,000</u>     |       |      |

The 2008 appropriation includes \$1,796,000 for 2007 and \$19,296,000 for 2008.

The 2009 appropriation includes \$2,144,000 for 2008 and ~~\$27,180,000~~ \$27,182,000 for 2009.

Sec. 21. Laws 2007, chapter 146, article 9, section 17, subdivision 4, as amended by Laws 2008, chapter 363, article 2, section 42, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. **Health and developmental screening aid.** For health and developmental screening aid under Minnesota Statutes, sections 121A.17 and 121A.19:

|    |                      |       |      |
|----|----------------------|-------|------|
| \$ | 2,624,000            | ..... | 2008 |
| \$ | <del>3,592,000</del> | ..... | 2009 |
|    | <u>3,552,000</u>     |       |      |

The 2008 appropriation includes \$288,000 for 2007 and \$2,336,000 for 2008.

The 2009 appropriation includes ~~\$259,000~~ \$247,000 for 2008 and ~~\$3,333,000~~ \$3,305,000 for 2009.

#### G. PREVENTION



Sec. 22. Laws 2007, chapter 146, article 9, section 17, subdivision 8, as amended by Laws 2008, chapter 363, article 3, section 23, is amended to read:

Subd. 8. **Community education aid.** For community education aid under Minnesota Statutes, section 124D.20:

|    |                                   |       |      |
|----|-----------------------------------|-------|------|
| \$ | 1,299,000                         | ..... | 2008 |
| \$ | <del>796,000</del> <u>785,000</u> | ..... | 2009 |

The 2008 appropriation includes \$195,000 for 2007 and \$1,104,000 for 2008.

The 2009 appropriation includes \$122,000 for 2008 and ~~\$674,000~~ \$663,000 for 2009.

Sec. 23. Laws 2007, chapter 146, article 9, section 17, subdivision 9, as amended by Laws 2008, chapter 363, article 3, section 24, is amended to read:

Subd. 9. **Adults with disabilities program aid.** For adults with disabilities programs under Minnesota Statutes, section 124D.56:

|    |         |       |      |
|----|---------|-------|------|
| \$ | 709,000 | ..... | 2008 |
| \$ | 710,000 | ..... | 2009 |

The 2008 appropriation includes \$70,000 for 2007 and \$639,000 for 2008.

The 2009 appropriation includes \$71,000 for 2008 and \$639,000 for 2009.

School districts operating existing adults with disabilities programs that are not fully funded shall receive full funding for the program beginning in fiscal year 2008 before the commissioner awards grants to other districts.

## H. SELF-SUFFICIENCY AND LIFELONG LEARNING

Sec. 24. Laws 2007, chapter 146, article 9, section 17, subdivision 13, as amended by Laws 2008, chapter 363, article 3, section 25, is amended to read:

Subd. 13. **Adult basic education aid.** For adult basic education aid under Minnesota Statutes, section 124D.531:

|    |  |       |      |
|----|--|-------|------|
| \$ | 40,344,000                                 | ..... | 2008 |
| \$ | <del>41,712,000</del><br><u>41,749,000</u> | ..... | 2009 |

The 2008 appropriation includes \$3,759,000 for 2007 and \$36,585,000 for 2008.

The 2009 appropriation includes \$4,065,000 for 2008 and ~~\$37,647,000~~ \$37,684,000 for 2009."

Delete the title and insert:

"A bill for an act relating to education; providing for policy and funding for early childhood, family, adult, and prekindergarten through grade 12 education, including general education; education excellence; special programs; facilities and technology; nutrition; libraries and

accounting; early education, prevention, self-sufficiency, and lifelong learning; state agencies; and forecast adjustments; creating a consolidated levy; modifying charter school provisions; reducing mandates; allocating prekindergarten allowances; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 2008, sections 16A.06, subdivision 11; 119A.52; 120A.22, subdivisions 11, 12; 120A.24; 120A.40; 120A.41; 120B.02; 120B.021, subdivision 1; 120B.023, subdivision 2; 120B.024; 120B.11, subdivision 5; 120B.30, subdivisions 1, 1a, 2, by adding a subdivision; 120B.31, subdivisions 1, 3, 4; 120B.35; 120B.36; 121A.035, subdivision 2; 121A.037; 121A.15, subdivision 8; 121A.41, subdivisions 7, 10; 121A.43; 122A.06, subdivision 4; 122A.07, subdivisions 2, 3; 122A.09, subdivision 7; 122A.18, subdivisions 2, 2a, by adding a subdivision; 122A.31, subdivision 4; 122A.413, subdivision 2; 122A.414, subdivision 2b, by adding a subdivision; 122A.415, by adding subdivisions; 122A.60, subdivision 1a; 122A.61, subdivision 1; 123A.05; 123A.06; 123A.08; 123B.03, subdivision 1; 123B.10, subdivision 1; 123B.14, subdivision 7; 123B.143, subdivision 1; 123B.42, subdivision 1; 123B.44, subdivision 1; 123B.51, by adding a subdivision; 123B.54; 123B.59, subdivisions 6, 7; 123B.70, subdivision 1; 123B.71, subdivisions 1, 8, 9, 12; 123B.77, subdivision 3; 123B.81, subdivisions 3, 4, 5; 123B.83, subdivision 3; 124D.095, subdivisions 3, 4, 7, 10; 124D.10, subdivisions 1, 2a, 3, 4, 4a, 5, 6, 6a, 7, 8, 9, 11, 13, 14, 15, 17, 20, 23, 23a, 25, by adding subdivisions; 124D.11, subdivision 9, by adding a subdivision; 124D.128, subdivisions 2, 3; 124D.13, subdivision 13; 124D.135, subdivision 3; 124D.15, subdivision 3; 124D.19, subdivisions 3, 10, 14; 124D.42, subdivision 6, by adding a subdivision; 124D.522; 124D.60, subdivision 1; 124D.68, subdivisions 2, 3, 4, 5; 124D.83, subdivision 4; 124D.86, subdivision 3; 125A.01; 125A.02; 125A.07; 125A.08; 125A.091, subdivisions 7, 10, 12, 13, 14, 16, 18, 19, 20, 24, 25, 27, 28, by adding a subdivision; 125A.11, subdivision 1; 125A.15; 125A.28; 125A.51; 125A.57, subdivision 2; 125A.61, subdivision 1; 125A.62, subdivision 8; 125A.63, subdivisions 2, 4; 125A.744, subdivision 3; 125A.76, subdivision 1; 125B.26, subdivisions 1, 2, 3, 4; 126C.05, subdivisions 2, 15, 20; 126C.10, subdivisions 2a, 13a, 13b, 29, 30, 32, 33, 34, 35, 36; 126C.13, subdivision 4, by adding subdivisions; 126C.15, subdivisions 2, 4; 126C.17, subdivision 9; 126C.21, subdivision 3, by adding a subdivision; 126C.40, subdivision 6; 126C.44; 127A.08, by adding a subdivision; 127A.47, subdivisions 5, 7; 127A.49, subdivisions 2, 3; 134.31, subdivision 4a, by adding a subdivision; 134.34, subdivisions 1, 4; 171.05, subdivision 2; 171.17, subdivision 1; 171.22, subdivision 1; 181A.05, subdivision 1; 299A.297; 299F.30, subdivision 1; 299F.47, subdivision 4; Laws 2007, chapter 146, article 1, section 24, subdivisions 2, as amended, 4, as amended, 5, as amended, 6, as amended, 7, as amended, 8, as amended; article 2, section 46, subdivisions 2, as amended, 3, as amended, 4, as amended, 6, as amended, 9, as amended; article 3, section 24, subdivisions 3, as amended, 4, as amended, 7; article 4, section 16, subdivisions 2, as amended, 6, as amended, 8, as amended; article 5, section 13, subdivisions 2, as amended, 3, as amended; article 9, section 17, subdivisions 2, as amended, 4, as amended, 8, as amended, 9, as amended, 13, as amended; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapters 1; 4; 120B; 122A; 124D; 125B; 127A; repealing Minnesota Statutes 2008, sections 120A.26, subdivisions 1, 2; 120B.11, subdivisions 6, 7, 8; 120B.362; 120B.39; 121A.06; 121A.27; 122A.24; 122A.32; 122A.628; 122A.72, subdivisions 3, 4; 122A.75; 123B.92, subdivision 5; 124D.10, subdivisions 18, 19, 26; 125A.05; 125A.091, subdivisions 1, 2, 3, 4, 22, 23; 126C.10, subdivisions 13a, 13b, 29, 30, 32, 33, 34, 35, 36; Laws 2008, chapter 363, article 2, section 48; Minnesota Rules, parts 3525.0210, subparts 34, 43; 3525.0400; 3525.2445; 3525.4220."

And when so amended the bill do pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Taxes. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

**SECOND READING OF SENATE BILLS**

S.F. Nos. 97, 694, 713, 1938 and 666 were read the second time.

**MEMBERS EXCUSED**

Senators Gimse; Latz; Olson, M.; Ortman; Rosen; Sheran and Tomassoni were excused from the Session of today.

**ADJOURNMENT**

Senator Pogemiller moved that the Senate do now adjourn until 11:00 a.m., Monday, April 6, 2009. The motion prevailed.

Peter S. Wattson, Secretary of the Senate (Legislative)



# INDEX TO DAILY JOURNAL

Friday, April 3, 2009

## EXECUTIVE AND OFFICIAL COMMUNICATIONS

Pages 1471 to 1472

## CHAPTER LAWS

| S.F. Nos. | H.F. Nos.  | Session Laws<br>Chapter No. | Page |
|-----------|------------|-----------------------------|------|
| 236 ..... |            | 8 .....                     | 1472 |
|           | 1797 ..... | 9 .....                     | 1472 |

## MESSAGES FROM THE HOUSE AND FIRST READING OF HOUSE FILES

| S.F.<br>Nos.             | Message<br>Page | H.F.<br>Nos. | Message<br>Page | 1st<br>Reading<br>Page |
|--------------------------|-----------------|--------------|-----------------|------------------------|
| 95 .....                 | 1473            |              |                 |                        |
| 832 .....                | 1473            |              |                 |                        |
| Sen. Con.<br>No. 6 ..... | 1472            |              |                 |                        |
| Sen. Con.<br>No. 7 ..... | 1472            |              |                 |                        |

## REPORTS OF COMMITTEES AND SECOND READINGS

| S.F.<br>Nos. | Report<br>Page | 2nd<br>Reading<br>Page | H.F.<br>Nos. | Report<br>Page | 2nd<br>Reading<br>Page |
|--------------|----------------|------------------------|--------------|----------------|------------------------|
| 2 .....      | 1527           |                        |              |                |                        |
| 97 .....     | 1511           | 1689                   |              |                |                        |
| 182 .....    | 1523           |                        |              |                |                        |
| 312 .....    | 1511           |                        |              |                |                        |
| 518 .....    | 1473           |                        |              |                |                        |
| 666 .....    | 1525           | 1689                   |              |                |                        |
| 694 .....    | 1512           | 1689                   |              |                |                        |
| 713 .....    | 1522           | 1689                   |              |                |                        |
| 806 .....    | 1496           |                        |              |                |                        |
| 1328 .....   | 1543           |                        |              |                |                        |
| 1743 .....   | 1500           |                        |              |                |                        |
| 1905 .....   | 1510           |                        |              |                |                        |
| 1938 .....   | 1524           | 1689                   |              |                |                        |

**MOTIONS AND RESOLUTIONS**

| S.F. Nos.  | Page | H.F. Nos. | Page |
|------------|------|-----------|------|
| 18 .....   | 1496 |           |      |
| 1274 ..... | 1496 |           |      |
| 1274 ..... | 1496 |           |      |
| 1478 ..... | 1496 |           |      |
| 2029 ..... | 1496 |           |      |

**INTRODUCTION AND FIRST READING OF SENATE BILLS**

S.F Nos. 2033 to 2047 ..... Pages 1493 to 1495